
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR SESSION AGENDA
Monday, October 16, 2023 - 6:00 PM

City Council Chambers

All public meetings of the City of Newport will be held in the City Council Chambers of the
Newport City Hall, 169 SW Coast Highway, Newport. The meeting location is accessible to
persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter, or for other accommodations, should be
made at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting to Erik Glover, City Recorder at
541.574.0613, or e.glover@newportoregon.gov.

All meetings are live-streamed at https://newportoregon.gov, and broadcast on Charter Channel
190. Anyone wishing to provide written public comment should send the comment to
publiccomment@newportoregon.gov. Public comment must be received four hours prior to a
scheduled meeting. For example, if a meeting is to be held at 3:00 P.M., the deadline to submit
written comment is 11:00 A.M. If a meeting is scheduled to occur before noon, the written
comment must be submitted by 5:00 P.M. the previous day.
To provide virtual public comment during a city meeting, a request must be made to the meeting
staff at least 24 hours prior to the start of the meeting. This provision applies only to public
comment and presenters outside the area and/or unable to physically attend an in person
meeting.

The agenda may be amended during the meeting to add or delete items, change the order of
agenda items, or discuss any other business deemed necessary at the time of the meeting.

1.  CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

2.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3.  PUBLIC COMMENT

1

mailto:e.glover@newportoregon.gov
https://newportoregon.gov/


This is an opportunity for members of the audience to bring to the Council’s attention any item
not listed on the agenda. Comments will be limited to three (3) minutes per person with a
maximum of 15 minutes for all items. Speakers may not yield their time to others

4.  PROCLAMATIONS, PRESENTATIONS, AND SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS
Any formal proclamations or recognitions by the Mayor and Council can be placed in this

section. Brief presentations to the City Council of five minutes or less are also included in
this part of the agenda.

4.A Oath of  Off ice for Robert  Emond to serve as a member of  City Council
City Council Oath of Office.pdf

4.B Proclamation Recognizing Domestic Violence Recognit ion Month Received by
Amber Wishoff-Mart in Execut ive Director My Sisters' Place 

PROCLAMATION.pdf

4.C Report  on Great Oregon Shakeout
Staff Report Great Oregon ShakeOut 10.19.23.pdf
City Manager's Report 

5.  CONSENT CALENDAR
The consent calendar consists of items of a repeating or routine nature considered under a

single action. Any Councilor may have an item on the consent agenda removed and
considered separately on request.

5.A Ratify the Mayor's Appointment of  Natasha (Tasha) Hazdra to the Library
Advisory Committee Board as a High School Student Representat ive for a
Term that will Expire August 31, 2024
City Manager's Report 
Staff Report for LAC Board Recommendation_High School Student Representative.pdf
Hazdra Library Board Application.pdf

5.B Approval of  City Council Meet ing and Work Session Minutes
05-01-2023 City Council Work Session Minutes-final.pdf
09-05-2023 City Council Work Session Minutes-final.pdf
09-18-2023 City Council Work Session Minutes-Final.pdf
09-25-2023 City Council Work Session Minutes-Final.pdf
09-25-2023 City Council  Minutes-Final.pdf

5.C Receipt  of  Approved Committee Minutes 
Park and Rec Committee Minutes 4-5-23 FINAL.pdf
Park and Rec Committee Minutes 5-3-23 FINAL.pdf

2

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2222470/City_Council_Oath_of_Office.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2222382/PROCLAMATION_RECOGNIZING_DOMESTIC_VIOLENCE_AWARNESS_MONTH_2023_IN_THE_CITY_OF_NEWPORT.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2219967/Staff_Report_Great_Oregon_ShakeOut_10.19.23.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2224991/Shakeout_drill.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2224994/Appointment_of_Library_Board.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2214530/Staff_Report_for_LAC_Board_Recommendation_High_School_Student_Representative.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2214531/Hazdra_Library_Board_Application.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2225004/05-01-2023_City_Council_Work_Session_Minutes-final.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2225006/09-05-2023_City_Council_Work_Session_Minutes-final.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2225007/09-18-2023_City_Council_Work_Session_Minutes-Final.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2225008/09-25-2023_City_Council_Work_Session_Minutes-Final.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2225009/09-25-2023_City_Council__Minutes-Final.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2219923/Park_and_Rec_Committee_Minutes_4-5-23_FINAL.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2219924/Park_and_Rec_Committee_Minutes_5-3-23_FINAL.pdf


Park and Rec Committee Minutes 7-13-23 FINAL.pdf
Park and Rec Committee Minutes 8-9-23 FINAL.pdf

6.  PUBLIC HEARING
This is an opportunity for members of the audience to provide testimony/comments on the

specific issue being considered by the City Council. Comments will be limited to three (3)
minutes per person.

6.A Public Hearing and Potent ial Adopt ion of  Ordinance No. 2215, Amending
Chapter 14.14 of  the Newport  Municipal Code Related to Off-street Parking
Requirements for Development and Redevelopment in Special Parking Areas
City Manager's Report 
Staff Report.pdf
Ordinance No. 2215_draft.pdf
Special Parking Area Map.pdf
Draft Planning Commission Regular Session Minutes 09-25-2023.pdf
Resolution No. 3864.pdf
Public Hearing Notice.pdf

7.  COMMUNICATIONS
Any agenda items requested by Mayor, City Council Members, City Attorney, or any

presentations by boards or commissions, other government agencies, and general public
will be placed on this part of the agenda. 

7.A Communicat ion from Lincoln County Historical Society Regarding the Lincoln
County Historical Society’s Funding Needs
City Manager's Report 
Communication from LCHS.pdf

7.B From Councilor Hall Regarding Follow-up of  Potent ial City Membership with
the Nat ional League of  Cit ies
City Manager's Report 

8.  CITY MANAGER’S REPORT
All matters requiring approval of the City Council originating from the City Manager and

departments will be included in this section. This section will also include any status
reports for the City Council’s information.

8.A Considerat ion and Potent ial Adopt ion of  Resolut ion No. 3996, a Resolut ion in
Support  of  Establishing a Cont inuum of Care for the Linn, Benton, and Lincoln
Counties Region and Registering with the United States Department of
Housing and Urban Development in 2024
City Manager's Report 

3

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2219925/Park_and_Rec_Committee_Minutes_7-13-23_FINAL.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2219926/Park_and_Rec_Committee_Minutes_8-9-23_FINAL.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2225221/PH-_Ordinance_2215.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2224940/Staff_Report.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2224945/Ordinance_No._2215_draft.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2219976/Special_Parking_Area_Map.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2219977/Draft_PC_Reg_Session_Minutes_09-25-2023.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2219978/Resolution_No._3864_-_Final.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2219979/Public_Hearing_Notice.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2225029/Comm-_From_LC_Historical_Society.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2221989/Communication_from_LCHS.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2225122/Comm-_From_Councilor_Hall_Followup_on_NLC__Membership.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2225190/CM-_Resolution_Adoption.pdf


Res. No. 3996 - Support for Tri County Continuum of Care.pdf

8.B Authorizat ion to Execute a Grant Contract  for Source Water Protect ion for the
Oregon Health Authority –  Drinking Water Services in the Amount of  $30,000.

City Manager's Report 
Staff Report.pdf
U24002 Safe Drinking Water Agreement.090523.pdf

8.C Authorizat ion of  a Request for Proposals for City Manager Execut ive
Recruitment Services
City Manager's Report 
City Manager Executive Recruitment RFP 10-2023.pdf

8.D Report  and Possible Act ion on Ut ilizat ion of  Act ion Minutes for the City
Council, Boards and Commissions

City Manager's Report 
Staff Report.pdf
Councilor Hall Email Minutes.pdf
12.10.18 CC Mtg Minutes Draft - Florence.pdf
Astoria Council Minutes.pdf
Baker City Minutes.pdf
Cottage Grove Minutes.pdf
Independent City Council, July 25, 2023 - Agenda - Pdf.pdf
Lincoln City Minutes.pdf
Monmouth Minutes.pdf
Stayton August 7 2023 Work Session Minutes (1).pdf
Stayton August 21 2023 Minutes.pdf
Sweet Home Minutes.pdf
David Allen e-mail - ORS 192.650.pdf

8.E Working Draft  of  a Climate Act ion Plan for the City of  Newport
City Manager's Report 
Climate Study.pdf
Working Draft Climate Plan.pdf

8.F Scheduling a Council Tour of  Various City Facilit ies
City Manager's Report 

8.G Report  on Sustainable Northwest ’s Oregon Coastal Resilience Source Water

4

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2222070/Res._No._3996_-_Support_for_Tri_County_Continuum_of_Care.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2225046/Authorization_Water_Source.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2222330/Staff_Report.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2222331/U24002_Safe_Drinking_Water_Agreement.090523.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2225143/CM__Report_on_CM_Recruitment.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2224995/City_Manager_Executive_Recruitment_RFP_10-2023.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2225212/Report_on_Action_Minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2219951/Staff_Report_-_Action_Minutes_10-2023_Rev_1.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2219895/Councilor_Hall_Email_Minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2219955/12.10.18_CC_Mtg_Minutes_Draft_-_Florence.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2219957/Astoria_Council_Minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2219958/Baker_City_Minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2219959/Cottage_Grove_Minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2219960/Independent_City_Council__July_25__2023_-_Agenda_-_Pdf.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2219961/Lincoln_City_Minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2219962/Monmouth_Minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2219963/Stayton_August_7_2023_Work_Session_Minutes__1_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2219964/Stayton_August_21_2023_Minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2219965/Sweet_Home_Minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2219966/David_Allen_e-mail_-_ORS_192.650.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2225182/Working_Draft._Survey_Plan..pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2221287/Climate_Study.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2225224/Working_Draft_Climate_Plan.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2225106/Council_Tour.pdf


Acquisit ion Project
City Manager's Report 
Staff Report.pdf
Sustainable NW Letter of Intent.pdf
NOAA Notice of Funding Opportunity.pdf

9.  REPORT FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL
This section of the agenda is where the Mayor and Council can report any activities or discuss

issues of concern.

9.A Council and Mayor Report  
CM Hall Report.pdf

10.  PUBLIC COMMENT  
This is an additional opportunity for members of the audience to provide public comment.

Comments will be limited to three (3) minutes per person with a maximum of 15 minutes
for all items. Speakers may not yield their time to others.

11.  ADJOURNMENT

5

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2225131/Sustainable_NW.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2224910/Staff_Report.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2224682/Sustainable_NW_Letter_of_Intent.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2224683/NOAA_Notice_of_Funding_Opportunity.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2222161/CM_Hall_Report.pdf


 
 

 
 

 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OATH OF OFFICE 

 
I, ______________________________, do affirm that I will support the Constitutions of the United States of 

America, and the State of Oregon, and the Charter and ordinances of the City of Newport, and that I will faithfully 

perform the duties of the Office of City Councilor of the City of Newport, Oregon, to the best of my ability. 

 
_________________________________________ 
____________________________, City Councilor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________________ 
Erik Glover, Assistant City Manager/City Recorder 
 

6



 

 
 
PROCLAMATION RECOGNIZING DOMESTIC VIOLENCE AWARENESS 

MONTH IN THE CITY OF NEWPORT 
 
WHEREAS, the crime of domestic violence violates an individual’s privacy 
and dignity, security and humanity, due to systematic use of physical, 
emotional, sexual, psychological and economic control and/or 
abuse; and 
WHEREAS, domestic and sexual violence crosses all social groups; but 
people who are women, men, LGBTQIA2S+, poor or working class, Native, 
of color, immigrant, non-English speaking, disabled, young, elderly, or 
otherwise marginalized not only shoulder the burdens of oppression but 
also experience high rates of domestic violence; and 
WHEREAS, the impact of domestic violence is wide ranging, directly 
affecting the health and wellness of individuals and society as a whole, here 
in this community, throughout the United States and the world; and 
WHEREAS, preventing interpersonal violence is not only possible but is our 
collective responsibility, and prevention requires significant changes to our 
social norms regarding gender roles, strength, sexuality, relationships, and 
the normalization of violence; and 
WHEREAS, a coalition of organizations has emerged to directly confront 
this crisis, including advocates, law enforcement officials, health care 
providers, the clergy and other concerned individuals who are helping in the 
efforts to end domestic violence. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I Jan Kaplan Mayor of Newport do hereby proclaim 
October 2023, as Domestic Violence Awareness month in Newport and 
urge all residents to work with our invaluable community agencies to help 
alleviate this problem in our community. 
 
Dated: October 16, 2023 
 
 
_________________________ 
Jan Kaplan, Mayor 

7



 

 

       
       

   
 
         Meeting Date: 10.17.2023 
      

 
 

 
 
Title: Great Oregon ShakeOut Earthquake Drill, “Drop, Cover, and Hold On” 
 
Prepared by: Del Lockwood 
  
Recommended Motion: Information only. 
 
Background Information: This year’s International ShakeOut Day is October 19, when 
millions of people worldwide will participate in earthquake drills at work, school, or 
home. 
At 10:19 a.m. on 10/19, you can join millions of people across the world practicing 
earthquake safety. Registration is voluntary, but there are already 7,324 people 
registered in Lincoln County as seen at www.shakeout.org/oregon/participants.php 
All City of Newport buildings/work areas have been directed to participate in this drill. 
Each building will make an announcement that the Earthquake “Drop-Cover-Hold” for 1-
minute drill and evacuation has started and all staff and public are to evacuate their 
building through the closest available exit. People in each building/work area will be 
accounted for via roll call and City Hall will use portable radios to receive their status 
reports. Staff and the public will be allowed to re-enter the building and then discuss 
how the evacuation went and recommendations for improvement will be collected by 
supervisors. 
We are reminded that “Safety” is part of everyone’s job and that drills help us to “Be 
Prepared, Not Scared.” 
 
 
 
Fiscal Notes: No fiscal impact. 
Alternatives: Information only. 
Attachments: Information page from www.ShakeOut.org/oregon 
 
 
 

STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

8

http://www.shakeout.org/oregon/participants.php
http://www.shakeout.org/oregon


 

 

 
 

9



CITY MANAGER REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: October 16, 2023 
Agenda Item: 
Report on the Great Oregon Shakeout Earthquake Drill, “Drop, Cover and Hold”  

 
Background: 
Del Lockwood will provide an update of the October 19 shakeout day. We will be 
observing the shakeout in all City of Newport buildings and work areas to practice our 
drills for our evacuation practice efforts in all of our facilities.  
 
Recommendation: 
None.  
 
Fiscal Effects: 
None.  
 
Alternatives:  
Consider moving any Council meeting dates, or as suggested by City Council.  
 
Respectfully submitted,  

 
 
 

Spencer Nebel 
City Manager 

10



CITY MANAGER REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: October 16, 2023 
Agenda Item: 
Ratify the Mayor's Appointment of Natasha (Tasha) Hazdra to the Library Advisory 
Committee Board as a High School Student Representative for a Term that will Expire 
August 31, 2024. 
 
Background: 
 
The Library Advisory Committee Board has recommended to the Mayor the appointment 
of Natasha (Tasha) Hazdra for a term that will expire on August 31, 2024. Mayor Kaplan 
would like to proceed with the appointment.  

 
Recommendations: 
I recommend, as part of the Consent Calendar, the appointment of Natasha (Tasha) 
Hazdra to the Library Advisory Committee Board as a high school representative for a 
term that will expire on August 31, 2024.  
 
Fiscal Effects: 
None.  
 
Alternatives:  
None recommended.   
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 

 
 
 

Spencer Nebel 
City Manager 
 
 
 

11



 

 

       
       

   
 
        Meeting Date: October 16, 2023 
       
 
 
Title: Library Advisory Committee Board Recommendation for Appointment  
 
Prepared by: Laura Kimberly, Newport Public Library Director  
  
Recommended Motion: I move to ratify the Mayor’s appointment of Natasha (Tasha) Hazdra to 
the Library Advisory Committee Board as the High School Student Representative. 
 
 
Background Information:  
The Library Advisory Committee Board recommends one person for appointment to the Library 
Advisory Committee Board as the High School Student Representative: Natasha (Tasha) Hazdra. 
Tasha Hazdra’s term will expire on August 31, 2024. 
 
The Library Advisory Committee Board looks for applicants who represent different parts of the 
community and bring unique talents to the Board. The Library Advisory Committee Board had a 
High School Student Representative, Maddy Husko. Maddy graduated from high school in June 
2023 and resigned from the Library Board in August 2023, which left a vacancy of a high school 
student representative on the Library Advisory Committee Board. Maddy was the first high 
school student to serve as the high school student representative on the Library Advisory 
Committee Board.  
 
Tasha was the Newport Public Library’s Summer Teen Intern in the summer of 2023. She is a 
high school senior at Newport High School. She has spent practically every day at the library 
since she was in 6th grade. She has been a teen volunteer for the Newport Public Library for 
over five years. She has a deep understanding and love of our library. Tasha has a valuable 
prospective to add to the board as a queer youth residing in Lincoln County. She would be 
honored to be part of the Library Advisory Committee Board. We are pleased to submit this 
stellar candidate to the Mayor and Council for appointment to the Newport Public Library 
Advisory Committee Board.   
 
 
Fiscal Notes: None  
 
 
Alternatives: 
 
Attachments: Application  

STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

12



8/31/23, 9:56 AM City of Newport, OR:: Committees

City Home Business Contacts Departments Emergency Info

Employment Government Services
CITY OF

OREGON

41~\ I

~[ ~~ IL !
____ ~~~____________ - ‘ - ~-—~ ~ .~‘‘!!!!.‘!~‘~~ ~ .

Committees Home City Council Meetings Committees Committee Members Committee Application

General Public Meetings

Committee Application

Thank you for your interest in serving on a committee for the City of Newport. Please complete the form below and click
the “Submit” button at the bottom of the page. Someone from the City Manager’s office will be in touch with you. Submitted
applications become a public record of the City of Newport, and may become a part of a committee and/or City Council
packet.

Date 8/31/2023

List the Commission/
Committee of interest: Library Board

Name:* Natasha Hazdra

Address:

Work Telephone
Number:

Home Telephone
Number:

Email Address:

Occupation: Summer Teen Intern through 8/31/2023

Employer: City of Newport, Library

Over the past several years, I’ve spent practically every day at the
library. I began utilizing our library in 6th grade, and I’m now

(1\~AIk ~ entering my 12th grade year as a 5-year teen volunteer of the library.y •°~‘°~.~ in you I have a deep understanding and love of our library and I’d be honored
are qualified to be a . .to share my perspective on matters concerning our community.Committee member?

LAnkA., nnwnnrtnrannn nn,,Init,,nn,,I,’nmmlr’nmmn nnnon~r.—7

13



8/31/23, 9:56AM City of Newport, OR :: Committees

(2) State your
educational
background.*

(3) Have you ever
served on a community
committee? If so, what
kind?*

I’m entering my senior year at Newport high school.

Yes, I’ve served on teen advisory board for several years.

(4) Do you agree with
consensus decision
making?*

Yes, I believe consensus decision making is absolutely integral to
collaborative work.

(5) Are you willing to
attend regularly
scheduled meetings for
your term of office?*

Yes, if given the opportunity, I will prioritize punctual attendance
to library board meetings.

(6) Would you make
decisions based on the
facts and standards
even though you may
not agree with the
ultimate decision?*

Yes, in decision making for the betterment of our community, I
understand that objective information absolutely takes priority over
personal opinions and will proceed with the utmost respect even if I
disagree.

(7) Do you anticipate
having many conflicts of
interest that may
disqualify you in making
decisions, due to
personal and/or
business relationships?*

(8) List all other pertinent
information/background
for this position.*

No, I do not. By the time of~ i~E~ening, I will no
longer be working at the library, as the internship will come to a
close, and I will return as a teen volunteer.

I believe I have a valuable perspective to add to the board as a queer
youth residing in Lincoln County. I’ve lived in several other states
across the country, so I believe my experiences prior to living here
have really opened my eyes to what makes a community and only
emphasizes how beautifully we coexist here. I am a creative individual
that is eager to learn, eager to help, and so happy to be involved in
serving the public wherever I can.

Thank you in advance for your community spirit in offering to serve!

https://wwwnewportoregon.gov/citygov/comm/commapp.asp?07 2/3
14



                                                                                                                      

Page 1 of 6 
May 01, 2023 

City Council Work Session 
Newport, Oregon  

 
May 01, 2023 

4:00 PM 
Newport, Oregon 

 
CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION  

 
The Newport City Council met on the above date and time in the City Council Chambers 
of the Newport City Hall. On roll call Jacobi, Parker, Hall, Sawyer, Goebel, Kaplan, and  
Botello (delayed arrival).   

  
City Staff in attendance were: Spencer Nebel, City Manager; Erik Glover; Assistant City 
Manager/City Recorder.  Also present were; Steve Baugher; Finance Director, and David 
Allen, City Attorney.  

 
CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

 
Sawyer called the meeting to order at 4:03 P.M. and Glover conducted roll call.   
 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
City Manager’s Report.  Nebel presented the written City Manager Report on Monday, 

May 1 at 4 PM the City Council will meet in a work session to discuss two finance policies 
and to schedule an Executive Session for the purposes of discussing negotiations. This 
will be followed by an urban renewal meeting scheduled for 4:45. This meeting will be to 
approve minutes and schedule an executive session that will follow the regular City 
Council meeting. Following the Urban Renewal meeting, we will have an executive 
session for negotiations. The City Council will start at 6 PM and following the Council 
meeting will have the Urban Renewal meeting to discuss land transactions. A schedule 
provided below for times and issues to be discussed during the course of the meetings 
on May 1. Schedule for Meetings for Monday, May 1, 2023 1.) City Council Work Session 
at 4 PM. 4:00 Discussion on write-off policies (20 minutes) 4:20 Discussion on utility billing 
policies (20 minutes) 4:40 Scheduling an Executive Session for labor negotiations (5 
minutes) 4:45 Adjournment 2.) Urban Renewal Meeting at 4:45 PM. 4:45 call to order, 
approval of minutes and scheduling an Executive Session for property transactions (5 
minutes) 4:50 Adjournment 3.) Executive Session on labor negotiations 4:50 PM. 4.) 
Regular Council Meeting at 6 PM. 5.) Executive Session for URA property transactions 
immediately following adjournment at the Regular Council meeting. Discussion on Draft 
Write-off Polices for Uncollectable Debt (20 minutes) I have had a number of priorities to 
clean up various practices and policies for the City of Newport that had been previously 
identified by me, the Budget Committee or the City Council. This includes water and sewer 
policies, write-off policies, completing the personnel manual, implementing the 
purchasing and contracting policies, and other similar efforts that will certainly be of great 
assistance to future city managers, city councils and staff. This will remain one of my top 
priorities as we proceed through this year. 

15



                                                                                                                      

Page 2 of 6 
May 01, 2023 

City Council Work Session 
Newport, Oregon  

 I appreciate the efforts of Erik Glover in pulling together a number of these draft 
policies. Presenting them to the Council as working drafts to get further feedback from 
Council. City Attorney, David Allen, will also be reviewing this in further detail as we refine 
this document. We also need to work with the Finance Department to make sure that the 
provisions included in these policies are appropriate. This has been a challenge, as Steve 
has been working single-handedly to get through the audit and budget processes. He has 
had to set aside a number of other things in order to keep those two major efforts moving 
forward. within the timeframe we need to pull together those efforts. The City Finance 
Department does not have a written policy on debt to be written off when it is 
uncollectable. Erik, however, has a reviewed a number of municipal policies and pulled 
together this draft for your review. It provides for regular process of writing- off bad debts. 
It provides that the City Manager shall provide an annual report to the City Council on 
outstanding debt. It outlines the situations which may result in writing-off uncollectible 
receivables. We will review this policy with Council to get any additional input on how to 
proceed with this policy.  

Policy and Code Provisions for Utility Billing (20 minutes) Over the years with the 
changeover of personnel in Finance, there have been many practices that have been in 
place for the utility billing system that do not necessarily match up with our Newport 
Municipal Code provisions. Accounting Technician, Rebecca Morrow, has identified 
several specific concerns and has asked for guidance in addressing those issues. 
Rebecca has also been working with Erik Glover on modifications to the Code and 
modifications to specific policy, on how to handle specific utility billing issues. In 
December 2022, we reinitiated efforts to revise the billing, collections and administration 
Code for utility services. Our current Code provisions have separate billing provisions for 
water, wastewater and storm water, even though they are all collected in the same 
method. This has certainly created some administrative confusion in the past. We are 
proposing the addition of section 5.05 which would be a section entitled Billings, 
Collections and Administration of Utility Services that would consolidate all the billing 
processes in one section for water, wastewater and stormwater. Erik Glover and Rebecca 
Morrow have been reviewing this section to address a number of issues. Some of the key 
concerns are having a uniform method of dealing with late fees and interest on accounts, 
having a reasonable deposit policy, and incorporating provisions as to how leak 
adjustments are to be handled.  

The Code provisions will need further review prior to scheduling them for a public 
hearing and Council consideration of approving these revised Code provisions. Of more 
immediate concern, is an administration policy change that we are planning to make 
regarding landlord-tenant utility accounts. Most landlords have been very responsible 
about covering any outstanding balances left by tenants on their properties. One issue 
that the Finance Department has not been doing, however, is having the owner of the 
property sign a form indicating that they wish to have the account in their tenant’s name, 
and in return, will guarantee payment of the account if the tenant does not pay. While 
holding the land owner responsible has been our practice, we have had property owners 
raise this issue that they did not agree I writing to be responsible for this bill. We are 
proposing to require all landlords to sign the attached form at the time that a tenant 
vacates a piece property and a new tenant is moving into the property. If the property 
owner will not sign the form, and does not pay the bill, we will not provide water service 

16



                                                                                                                      

Page 3 of 6 
May 01, 2023 

City Council Work Session 
Newport, Oregon  

for any new tenants. I appreciate the efforts of Rebecca Morrow in identifying this problem. 
I plan to proceed with this change in practice that will make it consistent with our current 
Code provisions so that there are no questions regarding the property owner's 
responsibilities for paying any balances left on properties. As an alternative, the property 
owners could keep the bills in their name, pay the bills, and then collect from their tenants, 
should they choose not to sign one of these forms.  

Scheduling an Executive Session for Purposes of Discussing Labor Negotiations (5 
minutes) I would request that City Council consider the following motion: I move to hold 
an executive session immediately following the Urban Renewal meeting for consultation 
with labor negotiators for the International Firefighters Association contract discussions. 
Following the work session there will be a brief Urban Renewal meeting to schedule an 
executive session, and then the Council will go into executive session to discuss labor 
negotiations. The regular meeting starts at 6 PM and an executive session for Urban 
Renewal will be held immediately after adjournment of the regular meeting. 

 
Report on Write-Off Policies for Uncollectable Accounts Receivables including 

Business Licenses known as Bad Debt. Nebel introduced the item and advised water and 
sewer policies cleanup is also planned, due to some variances between practices and 
code.  Nebel advised that the practices related to writing off bad debt has not been good, 
he advised Finance Department reviewed records and it doesn’t seem that any 
bad/uncollectible debt has been written off in ten years. He advised that for example 
Business Licenses are auto generated by billing software, many of these companies are 
out of business and the system auto bills yearly.  

 
Nebel reviewed the draft written policy, and advised that this change and regular 

practices guided by policy, should clean up the financial records of the City. He advised 
a challenge with these new policies is the Finance Department is having staffing 
challenges, a new person in Accounts Payable, a staffer with about a year in utility billing. 
The good aspect is they are evaluating stuff with a critical eye, the bad part is they are still 
learning what they are doing. Nebel reported he wanted to express his thanks to Steve 
baugher who has been doing double duty for the last year here in Newport, and 
implementing new GASB standards and an intensive audit, which was overlaid with 
budget.  

Nebel covered 3.0 of the draft policy, dealing with homeless, deceased or incarcerated 
folks saying at present they are currently not written off. Parker referenced incarcerated 
aspect of the policy, and if it pertains to restitutions by incarcerated person, and suggested 
using parole and probation to collect debts from incarcerated folks instead of writing it off. 
He advised folks provide cash on the books for folks, so it seems like some of that could 
be used for payment instead of deleting the debt, as everyone is an adult and subject to 
the rules.  

 
Nebel reported that Attorney Allen advised it would likely not be worthwhile to sue a 

debtor. Nebel advised a yearly report would be given to the City Manager who would 
present the report annually to City Council on debts written off. Nebel advised just 
because the debt is written off for accounting purposes, it would still be maintained in the 
event the debt is collected at a later point. Allen referenced statutory interest is simple 

17



                                                                                                                      

Page 4 of 6 
May 01, 2023 

City Council Work Session 
Newport, Oregon  

rate of interest at 9%, not 12%, and would recommend statutory legal rate of interest as 
9% on principle. Nebel advised this is a working draft and can be evaluated.  

Parker shared that it would be nice to see a graphical representation of all the debts 
by category. There have been some property tax collections in the news recently, and it 
would be important to have a breakdown by category, and trending over time.  

Hall asked what someone submits as identification an SSN, Oregon Driver’s License, 
or what number is used for collections purposes as she had a concern with fairness and 
consistency. Hall referenced a concern with the time spent to track down $100 after 3 
years for example. Nebel advised a threshold for amounts needs to be put into policy.  

Goebel advised a deficit of that is that the City will get a reputation as being not likely 
to collect debt and be taken advantage of. Allen advised that the City has a collections 
agency.  

Baugher reported he believe ODL was obtained for utilities. Hall reported that 
collecting the information the same from all categories is necessary. She advised treating 
utility rate payers the same as room tax payers was important.  

Allen advised room tax interest is 1% per month, so perhaps 9-12% would be a good 
interest rate, but he would want to review the code.  He suggested referencing using 
interest rate provided in code, but if one is not there then default/statutory rate of interest.  

Parker asked if abatement costs factor into, Nebel advised that is more likely leaning 
towards Property Liens discussion would be another upcoming discussion.  

Goebel asked why is this being done? Nebel said to clean up the books the City has 
a decade of debt which needs written off, and secondly a clean and clear policy to prevent 
the accumulation of bad debt in the future. Nebel advised the amounts of bad debt by 
category would need to be brought back in a future report.  

Allen advised abatement costs are in code and interest is 9% per annum, and 
suggested making consistent with code.  

Hall said interest for room tax for 1% per month, and 12% after 30 days would it be an 
unfair assessment.  Allen reported it was important to be tied to the code if there was an 
interest rate which was different. Hall reported it would be important to know the threshold 
amounts for write off.  

Glover advised that page 4 of the policy details the threshold amounts, section 5.   
Hall asked if the City is consistent on identification for what is being requested. Nebel 

advised probably not as someone checking out a hydrant meter, would be different than 
airport hangar, which is different than utility billing, which is different than room tax.  

Report on Draft Code Revisions and Policies for Utility Billing.  
Nebel gave the report and detailed that separate provisions for water, wastewater, and 

stormwater billing exist, as well as collections protocols, despite being collected on one 
bill. Nebel detailed deposits. Nebel covered leak adjustments Sawyer inquired about what 
the City is charging for deposit on water? Baugher reported the amount was $346.00. 
Sawyer reported the deposit was $100 when he first came here. Sawyer reported it seems 
good to have a deposit refund, instead of keeping it permanent. Nebel advised this is 
covered in the draft code as discussed tonight. Botello asked if someone is hard up for an 
account if they can borrow the money from the City to get it turned on, and then get it 
back? Nebel reported that was not an option.  Baugher advised the deposit is kept and 
refunded at final close out. Nebel advised the purpose of the deposit is to protect the 
utility, and somewhat the landlord,  if there is a open balance left.  

18



                                                                                                                      

Page 5 of 6 
May 01, 2023 

City Council Work Session 
Newport, Oregon  

Goebel asked about habitability and water service being needed. Kaplan referenced 
a concern about deposit and homelessness. Nebel detailed landlord tenant responsibility 
for water bill. Allen detailed the code requiring property owner responsibility, which has 
not been placed on application forms to date and practice since 2008 has not consistent 
with existing code. 

 Allen detailed that as new tenants establish accounts, landlords will have to sign the 
new form to effect a change.  

Parker advised that this change provides some clarity for tenant which is great. Allen 
advised we don’t want to get into landlord tenant agreements/relationship, but there are 
some notice provisions in the statute which needs to be followed in this process.  These 
will ultimately be outlined in any agreement to provide notice before any action. Parker 
reported he has experience as a renter in Oregon, and utility increases was always a 
reason to increase rent.  

Sawyer asked what is the process on a rental, Renter A moves out and gets deposit 
back, and Renter B moves in a month from now. Does the City switch from renter, to 
landlord, and to new tenant. Baugher reported it transfers back to landlord, then the new 
tenant upon application. Nebel generally the water bill will remain with the landlord unless 
they request in writing the City transfer an account to a tenant, with the property owner’s 
understanding of being responsible.  

Allen noted concern on landlord tenant to question by Parker.  
 
Nebel detailed that a change to utility billing cycles has already been made, by shifting 

to only one billing cycle per month. Previously with manual read meters, 4 separate routes 
were ran by readers, thus four billing cycles. This transition will have some with a longer 
period of use, some will have a shorter use and from this point forward meters will be read 
on one day a month which will be closer to billing period.  

Hall said she is concerned with landlord having to come in to City Hall sign off on the 
forms, and had concerns about making the process more difficult for folks. Nebel advised 
that a signature would need to be obtained electronic or in person. Allen detailed that 
docu-sign for e-signatures may be an option, as they seem to be commonplace. Baugher 
reported his ultimate goal is all the forms and processes are online and folks don’t have 
to come in to City Hall to fill out any of them.  

Nebel advised this is a year of cleanups, and getting this cleaned up should make 
things easier for future managers.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

19



                                                                                                                      

Page 6 of 6 
May 01, 2023 

City Council Work Session 
Newport, Oregon  

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
Scheduling an Executive Session Pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(d) to Discuss Labor 

Negotiations 
 
MOTION was made by Kaplan, seconded by Parker to hold an executive session 

immediately following the Urban Renewal meeting in accordance with ORS 192.660(2)(d) 
for consultation with labor negotiators regarding the current negotiations with the IAFF. 
The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote.  

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 5:03 PM 

 

 

20



                                                                                                                      

Page 1 of 9 
September 05, 2023 

City Council Work Session 
Newport, Oregon  

 
September 05, 2023 

4:02 PM 
Newport, Oregon 

 
CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION  

 
The Newport City Council met on the above date and time in the City Council Chambers 
of the Newport City Hall. On roll call Jacobi, Hall, Botello, Parker, Goebel, and Kaplan.   

  
City Staff in attendance were: Spencer Nebel, City Manager; Erik Glover; Assistant City 
Manager/City Recorder, Derrick Tokos, Community Development Director; Lance 
Vanderbeck; Airport Director, Travis Reeves; Acting IT Director, Jason Malloy, Police 
Chief.   

 
CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

 
Kaplan called the meeting to order at 4:02 P.M. and Glover conducted roll call.  
 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

City Manager’s Report. Nebel presented the written City Manager’s Report saying The 
City Council will hold a work session on Tuesday, September 5 at 4 PM to cover a number 
of issues. Schedule for Meetings for Tuesday, September 5, 2023 1.) City Council Work 
Session at 4 PM 4:00 Discussion of homeless winter sheltering plan with County 
Commissioner Kaety Jacobson and Health and Human Services Director Jane Romero 
(20 minutes) 4:20) Discussion on red light speed cameras (20 minutes) 4:40 Update on 
public access GIS information (20 minutes 5:00 PM Report on landing fees at the 
municipal airport (15 minutes) 2.) Regular City Council meeting. Discussion on Homeless 
Winter Sheltering with Lincoln County Commissioner, Kaety Jacobson and Health and 
Human Services Director, Jane Romero (20 minutes) A county-wide proposal for winter 
sheltering was shared with the City Council in a status report earlier this year. The County 
has hired a coordinator to develop a winter housing program from October 1 through 
March 31. The shelter will be open from 6 PM to 7 AM each day and will be managed and 
supervised by paid County employees. The shelter will provide low-barrier or no-barrier 
access focusing on getting people out of the winter weather. The County is currently 
working to secure space for group sheltering in Newport with the capacity to support up 
to 50 people on any given night. This effort has included discussions with churches about 
providing space on a rotating basis through the course of the winter.  

During the past two winters, the City of Newport has kicked in $30,000 to put people 
in hotel rooms when weather conditions reached a certain point through Grace Wins. This 
was an expensive solution and provided shelter only when weather conditions were below 
40° and there was precipitation in the forecast. Having a county-run shelter that is 
available throughout the course of the winter will provide a much safer environment for 
those seeking shelter indoors. The County is requesting financial assistance from the 
Cities based on a contribution of $4.50 per city resident. The County is asking for $46,152 

21



                                                                                                                      

Page 2 of 9 
September 05, 2023 

City Council Work Session 
Newport, Oregon  

from the City of Newport to support this program for this winter. Overall, I am a 
supportive of this proposal and participating in this effort. There are a number of plans 
that are moving forward to provide a more permanent solution in future years, but 
having a solution for the 2023 – 2024 winter that is comprehensive is a much better 
investment of public dollars than what has been done in the recent past. After the 
presentation, if the Council is supportive of providing financing for this effort, we will 
bring back an intergovernmental agreement between the City and the County for 
providing financial support for these services that would be provided by the County. 
Disclosure: Summit Public Relations owned by my wife, Angela, has provided services 
to both Lincoln County and the Health and Human Services Department. She is not 
involved in the winter shelter program.  

Red Light/Speed Cameras (20 minutes) The City Council has discussed on a 
couple of previous occasions the potential use of cameras to enforce traffic signals or 
speed limits in the city of Newport. We had a study done at the intersection of US 101 
and US 20 regarding red light cameras. Red light cameras still appear limited to the 
10 largest cities in Oregon. House Bill 2095 did allow all Cities to utilize the photo radar 
system to enforce speed limits as part of a traffic safety program. Police Chief, Jason 
Malloy, will provide a brief to Council on the new legislation and potential applications 
of that legislation for the City of Newport to determine whether there is interest in 
furthering discussions on this new speed enforcement tool.  

GIS Update (20 minutes) Travis Reeves, Acting IT Director, and Ethan Bassett, 
GIS Coordinator, will provide an update to Council on progress that is been made in 
providing information to the public through the City's website. To date, this is primarily 
focused on various planning documents. We are having discussions on providing 
additional information on the website through GIS, as well. I appreciate the continued 
progress that is being made by Ethan and Travis with the City's GIS system.  

Report on Landing Fees at the Newport Municipal Airport (15 minutes) Lance 
Vanderbeck, Airport Director, has provided a report on the current fees that are 
collected at the airport, including the provisions for payment made by FedEx and UPS 
for use of the airport. This is an item that was suggested by the Budget Committee to 
be reviewed in preparation for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 schedule and budget. Following 
the work session, the City Council will meet for a regular meeting at 6 PM. 

 
Discussion on Homeless Winter Sheltering with Lincoln County Commissioner, 

Kaety Jacobson and Health and Human Services Director, Jane Romero. Jane 
Romero handed out a paper copy of a business plan to the Council. Jacobson said a 
letter was submitted requesting funding assistance. Romero advised the goal was two 
emergency low barrier shelters one in Newport, one in Lincoln City. Two paid staff for 
oversight and security, and to recruit volunteers who may be interested in cooking etc. 
Full time shelter coordinator has been hired and funded from county general fund. 
Jacobi asked about the two churches saying they are facilizing until the shelter is set 
up, will it be at their churches or elsewhere? Romero said at their facilities. Jacobi said 
goal is what capacity per night? Romero reported 25-50 per night, but the facility the 
group was targeting in Newport should be able to accommodate at least 50.   

 

22



                                                                                                                      

Page 3 of 9 
September 05, 2023 

City Council Work Session 
Newport, Oregon  

Kaplan asked will county staff the church locations too? Jacobson said that would be 
correct, with a corresponding lease agreement. Goebel advised he added up the 
numbers, shows about $320,000 per year other jurisdictions for, will the county pay 
the remaining portion. Romero reported county has picked up the coordinator salary, 
ARPA funds have been contributed, and behavioral health is contributing some. She 
advised additional requests have been made to Samaritan Health, and a grant proposal 
to Siletz tribe for funding for supplies, and are continuing to solicit grants. She added the 
funding goal is $600,000, but they haven't met it yet. 

 Nebel advised that in the past few years the City has partnered with Grace Wins 
Haven when they were doing inclement sheltering. By way of example, last year the City 
provided $30,000 to Grace Wins Haven for temperate contingent inclement sheltering. He 
advised the request today is full 7 day a week services during certain periods, and the 
requested contribution is $46,152.  

Nebel reported that the effort which has gone into this effort is superior to what has 
been able to be done over the last few years, as it would be a permanent location from 
October to March.  

Nebel shared his recommendation is the City participate in this program. Jacobson 
said an IGA would be made for this process. Goebel referenced the temperate component 
from the previous inclement shelter program, and Nebel reported the county proposal has 
no temperature restriction and is 7 day a week option during the months of operation 

Botello shared that in her view, the effort needs additional money, and is the City 
contributing $16,000 more than previous? Nebel advised that the $16,000 additional, was 
over the $30,000 provided last year to Grace Wins Haven to operate a temperate 
restricted inclement shelter facility. Nebel reported that the City has ARPA funds for a 
permanent program, but the terms of that eventual initiative is different than this effort. 

 Botello asked about how the numbers are calculated? Romero said they calculated 
operation costs, and allocated it out. Jacobson said the prorated amounts are related to 
population at $4.50 per person. Parker added he was in full support of funding, but 
wondered if we have an accurate count of unhoused in county. Romero said if you look in 
business plan the housing advisory board hired a consultant, and their estimate is closer 
to 2,000 homeless. She added discussions were held with harm reduction staff, who 
estimates homeless counts in the hundreds.  Romero advised that the County goal was 
to provide an attractive setting so solutions of what to do with pets is necessary.  

Jacobson reported that if the shelter received more than 50 people, in a severe event 
such as a snow storm, it would mean sleeping accommodations in places like the floor, 
or hallway. She added that the Episcopal Church held more than 50 people last year, and 
is a smaller facility.  

Jacobi reported that she supported the proposal and is glad to see it, but has a concern 
about hours being from 6 pm to 7am, specially what happens to residents at 7 am. Romero 
advised that day sheltering services with programming is a large necessity in the 
community.  

 
It was the general consensus of the Council to move it forward for action on the 

September 18, 2023 meeting. Jacobson reported that she would inquire with Lincoln 
County Counsel about the status of an IGA for the initiative.   

  

23



                                                                                                                      

Page 4 of 9 
September 05, 2023 

City Council Work Session 
Newport, Oregon  

Red Light/Speed Cameras. Elon Kaiserman - Regional Sales Manager - Altumint, Inc. 
spoke reporting he previously worked in public safety for eleven years, and joined Altumint 
in 2022.  Cory Kuzyk with Altumint spoke and reported he has been in the  in public safety 
sector for 20 years, 13 years as a police officer and with Altumint for the last eight years.   

 
Kaiserman reported the goal is public safety, and it is accomplished by building a host 

of camera solutions.   
 
Malloy said he met with company previously, with discussions about red light cameras, 

and pedestrian safety. Previous laws prohibited Newport ability to do either option. Now 
it becomes a reality where cities can utilize this kind of technology.  He added we would 
have to work with ODOT, but the company offers new technology which does not utilize 
ODOT infrastructure.  

Hall inquired about what are the changes in law. Malloy reported jurisdictions can now 
regulate speed up to ten MPH above or below, posted limits  

 
Malloy added generally the costs of these program does not necessitate bids, as most 

of the costs are violator funded.  
 
Nebel reported the goal tonight is to understand the technology.  
 
Kuzyk gave a summary of the speed cameras, reporting no up front costs due from 

the city. He added Altumint gets paid through violator funds, when it is paid they get paid 
a portion.  Multiple systems available, Blackhawk is one it can be placed on a pole with a 
radar which detects a vehicle, and the system captures a photo if it breaks a threshold 
speed set by the city. It can also be in an enclosed box, like a traffic control box.  He added 
that he personally ran a photo enforcement program for 3 years as a police officer in Ohio 
from this program. He reported the system doesn't tie into red lights, but one camera to 
watch the lights, second camera watches the vehicle and snaps a picture if it does a 
violation of red light, or speed depending upon how City sets it.  

 
Parker added his concern is as a driver, as a lot of the red lights catch people on fast 

yellows. If a driver is in the intersection trapped on yellow it’s an expensive ticket. 
Sherwood, Oregon for example had cases of this on hwy 99. He said in addition the red 
light tickets are regressive toward lower income people, and he is concerned for non -
English speakers on how they interface and mitigate a ticket. Kuzyk reported the cameras 
don't distinguish who is driving the vehicle, the vehicle action is how it gets captured.  We 
can vet violations before they get to Police Department for their approval. We provide the 
clip before the intersection, appx 2-3 seconds before the violation. The clip then goes to 
Police Chief or designee who can then mark as a violator.   

 
Nebel asked if you are driving through and traveling at higher rate of speed. What is 

process for driver receiving the ticket?  Kuzyk said once approved by Police Department 
it gets mailed to violator, they can be contested in municipal court. There is a way to 
transfer liability to another person who is driving a vehicle not registered to them. He 
added the company has many bilingual customer service reps who can take the phone  

24



                                                                                                                      

Page 5 of 9 
September 05, 2023 

City Council Work Session 
Newport, Oregon  

call from non-English speakers and the company can seek out specialists for any 
languages they may not have.  

 
Botello reported that she feels like there is a lot of cops in attendance tonight, and 

would like some data from other cities which show progress in change of behavior. I'd like 
to see more info and plan on education, important to know about outreach and promotion 
efforts. She added incomes here in Lincoln County are not as high as other counties in 
Oregon.  Kaiserman reported the company can conduct a speed study at no cost in the 
areas City identifies as concern. Studies show a 54% reduction in fatal incidents after 
speed cameras in Portland, Oregon and Scottsdale AZ. There was a 63% reduction in 
New York school zone speeding after implementation of the system. The main thing is the 
program goal is not to generate revenue, it is not meant to harm community members 
who are in financially dire straits, it is designed to prevent deaths.  These speed cameras 
do change behavior, we look at a 90% decay in revenue over time. He added this means 
over a 5 year period generally you will see a 90% reduction in revenues received.  Before 
a system goes live the company would do a 30 day warning program, with signage and it 
would result in warnings being mailed.  On the back of the warning citation, City can put 
statistics or whatever is desired, local data from traffic studies etc.  

 
Kaiserman added that with HB 2095 signage is required 100-400 feet ahead of speed 

enforcement zone and the company can help embark on a public education campaign.  
 
Malloy reported he understands there is a lot of questions, in 2019 there was a lot of 

staff time spent on reports, and research and the proposal was declined by Council. He 
shared he didn’t mind doing questions or a full 2 hour summary, at a later point. Malloy 
shared the purpose of tonight is to learn if Council is interested in proceeding, or it was a 
hard no. He shared statistics won’t be available as the law is brand new, and comparisons 
would be made to Portland or Beaverton who have been authorized to utilize radar 
cameras before this recent HB was approved. Malloy shared that a traffic team of 3 police 
officers would likely have the same result, but it would cost $350,000 more than the 
program which was discussed tonight.   

 
Hall referenced that the program is paid through violator funds, are they the same 

prices and fee fines as if an officer pulls someone over? Kuzyk reported that the company 
does not add fines, Council can keep the same structure on fee fines. He added a 
community in Iowa for example kept the same fine fee structure, but it doesn't include 
court costs which add up exponentially.  

 
Malloy said State of Oregon sets fines, Newport however is more expensive than other 

places in the county because a $10 traffic safety assessment is added to every violation.  
 
Nebel said no will be made decision tonight.  Jacobi requested clarification that these 

cameras are not just for intersections with red lights they can catch general speed too 
such as on Oceanview? Kuzyk reported that was correct.   

 

25



                                                                                                                      

Page 6 of 9 
September 05, 2023 

City Council Work Session 
Newport, Oregon  

Kaiserman reported that the City sets the speed threshold on the program for 
violations, it doesn't have to be 10 mph,  the City could set at 15 mph or more.  

 
Goebel reported he is not a fan of this idea, or “big brother” in general and is not going 

to support it.  He added that if Newport puts this up we are no longer the friendliest town, 
and is concerned on the information will be used and doesn’t like that a third party from 
out of the area will be regulating speed here. He shared that the last time Council talked 
about this item, it was definitely a no.   

 
Nebel added the Council dropped it last time because City legally couldn't do it.  
 
Hall reported the goal is to keep folks safe. Goebel reported there is no safety issue 

here, there are folks not being killed on roads.  
 
Kaiserman reported the company can do a free speed study to provide the data. Hall 

advised that the issue with that, is the company would be doing study after the busiest 
time of year, which is a largely in accurate against customary traffic patterns. If you do the 
study you have to do a couple of times of year, and it needs to be at peak tourist time.  

 
Parker reported that he emailed details on HB 4105, which talks about passive 

signage. Potentially City has jurisdiction to lower speeds without 3rd party. He requested 
a report about passive speed limit change. Nebel advised staff will bring back a report.  

 
Nebel inquired does the City want to pursue radar speed enforcement via a report, or 

not.    
It was the general consensus of Council to proceed with obtaining further information, 

and a report. Goebel was opposed with proceeding. Kaplan advised that questions will be 
routed to Chief Malloy. Nebel advised there will be further discussion once things are 
compiled.  

GIS Update. Reeves introduced Ethan Bassett as the new GIS Technician of the City 
of Newport. Bassett presented the written staff report which said Recommended Motion: 
NONE: Informational Only Background Information: It has been a while since the IT 
Department provided an update on our GIS initiatives. Since our last update Carl has 
moved on back in October 2022, and for the last four months Ethan has been working to 
complete the projects started by Carl, and to work on some new projects. Today’s 
presentation will highlight some of these projects and provide some insight as to how GIS 
will be used in the City and how it can possibly be used in the future for better citizen 

engagement. Some of the Highlights follow: • Started and completed the Transition to 

ESRI AGOL (Arc GIS Online) at the end of June 2023 • Created an AGOL Viewer for 

Planning front desk, and soon Public Works front desk • Established a Back-up solution 

to allow for restoration and open editing capabilities • Created a Pesticide reporting form, 

map, and database • Finish the Fire run-books, they are basically complete and are ready 

for test prints • Polished and launched a Community Development Web Map Fiscal Notes: 
Our licensing for the software underlining these projects and future projects cost the city 
$15,500.00/Year and has a 3-year commitment. We purchased this licensing at the end 

26



                                                                                                                      

Page 7 of 9 
September 05, 2023 

City Council Work Session 
Newport, Oregon  

of June this year (2023) and have commitments with ESRI till June 2026. Alternatives: 
None. Attachments: The presentation is in person on screen, No attachments.  

 
Nebel spoke saying that the City previously had a GIS staffer who left to take a job in 

Portland. His departure left a gap in resources, so the City hired a GIS contract firm. He 
advised Ethan started in May 2023, and strong progress had been made in GIS data at 
the City.   

 
Reeves reported that Ethan has carried on the good progress the previous staffer had 

made, and the request was to get more data to the public and displayed in a way which 
makes sense.   

 
Bassett showed a presentation and detailed the community development web app on 

website saying it is access from main city website and via rotating banner, or a link on 
community development page. Bassett noted there was a disclaimer on the maps 
information, pertaining to full accuracy. Parker advised that it looks very similar to ORMAP 
tax lot viewer.  Bassett detailed various features of the GIS platforms, layers, lines etc.  

Parker reported that Lincoln County has an issue with tsunami and earthquake evacs, 
because many folks don't know where the roads go and GPS isn't always reliable.  

 
Nebel reported that Chief Murphy shared that these GIS maps were the first fire 

resource maps available in the county, they will serve as a huge help to fire agencies in 
the future.  

 
Report on Landing Fees at the Newport Municipal Airport.  
Vanderbeck presented the written staff report which said airport landing fees have 

been a long-time revenue generator for airfield operations. Landing fees are usually used 
to help maintain runway and taxiway (movement area) surfaces to FAA standards. These 
standards contribute to pilot safety by ensuring landing surfaces are well maintained. Free 
of cracks, holes, settling issues, and bright visible stripping that will not cause an aircraft 
to deviate from course during final stages of touch down. During the Fiscal Year 2023-
2024 budget cycle inquiries from the budget committee were made about landing fees for 
aircraft and tenants. Currently landing fees are set at $20.00 for aircraft over 12,500 
pounds. This amount was recommended by the airport committee during the March 14, 
2023 meeting.  

Currently, aircraft over 12,500 pounds are jet aircraft utilizing the airport, around 120 
per year. Estimating annual revenue around $2,400. Which doesn’t have significant 
impact on movement area maintenance. However, this amount of revenue does help with 
matching funds for Oregon Department of Aviation Pavement Maintenance Program 
(ODAV PMP) the airport currently participates in. ODAV published a Pavement 
Evaluation/ Maintenance Management Program report for Newport in 2018. Attached is 
2018 pavement condition drawing form the ODAV report. ODAV PMP report from 2018 
reflects an estimated total cost to slurry seal would be around $261,271.00. If divided by 
the $20.00 landing fee, would require 13,064 aircraft over 12,500 pounds to achieve that 
revenue number. Newport is averaging 120 jet aircraft over 12,500 pounds each year. 
Currently no airfield land lease or T-hangar tenant flies an aircraft over 12,500 pounds 

27



                                                                                                                      

Page 8 of 9 
September 05, 2023 

City Council Work Session 
Newport, Oregon  

landing weight. Landing weight for Empire (FedEx) Caravan 208 is 8,035 pounds. 
Ameriflight (UPS) Beech 99 Landing weight is 11,300 pounds. Currently Ameriflight is 
paying $169 per month for a landing fee. This fee was established from an email in 2009 
with prior airport administration and Ameriflight.  

No contract is in place with Ameriflight and Newport Airport; which is a public use 
airport, and Ameriflight is not based here. FedEx holds a current agreement, 2591, up for 
renewal in May 2024. Recitals in agreement 2591 allow for one tie down space the 
Cessna 208; which does not meet landing weight requirements to be charged. One item 
that will need to be consider in the next lease is the area of the cargo apron FedEx is 
currently using and not just the tie down spot. Signatory- lease holders Non-signatory – 
not lease holders Fee Comparison: 2021 Oregon Airports Statewide Rate and Charges 
Survey. Newport is a category II urban general aviation airport. There are eleven category 
II airports in Oregon: Astoria, Aurora, Bend, Corvallis, McMinnville, Portland Downtown 
Heliport, Hillsboro, Troutdale, Salem, and Scappoose.  

Some of 91 airports in Oregon may not charge or reported a landing fee published by 
ODAV. Category II Airport: Astoria - $5.00 /1,000 lbs. which can be waived with Fuel 
purchase. Corvallis - $0.50 /1,000 lbs. for non-signatory. Newport – Over 12,500 lbs. 
$20.00. Troutdale - $2.76 /1,000 lbs. FBO collects fees and retains 25%. Hillsboro - $3.68 
/1,000 lbs. for signatory FBO collects fees and retains 25%. Salem - $1.00 - $1.50 /1,000 
lbs. for non-signatory. Category I Airports: K-falls – over 12,500 lbs.- $2.00 /1000 lbs. for 
non-signatory $0.50 - $1.50 /1,000 lbs. for signatory. Eugene - $3.41 /1,000 lbs. for non-
signatory $2.73 /1,000 lbs. for signatory. Medford - $4.24 /1,000 lbs. for non-signatory 
$3.26 /1,000 lbs. for signatory. North Bend – Use fee - $10.00 - $645 based on rates I – VII 
for size of aircraft. Pendleton - $12.00 /1,000 lbs. for non-signatory. PDX- $4.48 /1,000 
lbs. for non-signatory $3.70 /1,000 lbs. for signatory. Redmond - $3.08 /1,000 lbs. for non-
signatory (part 125, 135, 137 operators only). $3.08 /1,000 lbs. for signatory. Category III 
Airports: La Grande – over 12,500 lbs. - $1.50 /1,000 lbs. for signatory. Category IV: Sun 
River - $60.00 Turboprop, $120.00 small & medium jet, $180.00 large jet. Fiscal Notes: 
Estimated current annual landing fee collected at Newport $2,400. Newport FBO logged 
3,019 aircraft for Fiscal Year 2022/2023. That would be $62,200 in revenue if each aircraft 
was charged a $20 fee. However, not all aircraft come to the FBO and a majority of those 
flights would be USCG, Empire, Ameriflight, Life Flight, and land lease tenants. 
Alternatives: Changing to rate structure of landing fees or addition of airport usage fees. 

 
Nebel said at the budget committee meeting a question about landing fees came up, 

and how we charge FedEx and UPS for use of airport. Vanderback reported that landing 
fees are designed to maintain runways, and taxiways and paint. He reported that he didn't 
think the cargo apron for FedEx is figured in correctly to lease, which needs to be 
evaluated at a later point. He suggested adopting a rate structure like North Bends with a 
chart, also suggested evaluating leases for folks with box hangars who don't pay to use 
airport may want to evaluate later.  

Kaplan advised that he hoped by budget time next year this can be detailed out as 
possible revenue options. Vanderbeck reported it didn’t seem necessary to have the 
highest fee for all users, but many users with large jets seem to express no concern over 
the current $20.00 fee, saying they often paid $800 or $1,000 to land elsewhere.  

28



                                                                                                                      

Page 9 of 9 
September 05, 2023 

City Council Work Session 
Newport, Oregon  

Parker reported that he’d like to see the fee being weight based and classification 
based, including by who owns the plane. Vanderbeck detailed Boeing 737 and Canadian 
air regional jets are not at the Newport airport, but North Bend calculated square footage 
occupied overnight by plane size and it factored into the fee calculation for space occupied 
overnight.  

Nebel reported that the City cannot differentiate fees based upon who owns the plane 
that lands. Goebel shared that currently the only people who get charged are over 12500 
lbs to land there, the rest land there for free? Vanderbeck reported that was correct. 
Goebel reported that needed to change. 

 Vanderbeck reported that fees are to ensure the City can maintain taxiway and the 
majority of citizenry in Newport doesn't use airport on the daily from a fee/user 
perspective, but City needs to have good runways if Cascadia event ever happens so 
planes can land.  

 
Vanderbeck reported that 12,500 is a common cited number which appears to be 

based upon a DC3 aircraft weight, as it was the most widely utilized aircraft back in the 
day.  

Nebel inquired as to how fees are collected. Vanderbeck reported City would have to 
let people know it was coming, and they could come and pay via card or cash. Vanderbeck 
reported that Bend, Oregon for example has a large amount of flights, and only 3 staff. 
They have a device which is located at the end of the runway, it captures tail numbers of 
landing aircraft and a bill is automatically sent, to help ensure landings while the airport is 
not staffed such as evenings, or weekends are accounted for on a fee basis. Council was 
generally in favor of looking into and proceeding with fee changes in the future.   

Lance shared the Oregon Airport Manager’s Association conference will be in 
Newport, October 9-11 and would love to have Council attend.  

He advised one presenter was Traci Williams from Bend who will be able to talk about 
that system was generating revenue for them in Bend. 

Vanderbeck reported he would register council members to attend, requested they 
email him if they want to attend.  

 
ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 5:30 P.M. 

 

 

29



                                                                                                                      

Page 1 of 6 
September 18, 2023 

City Council Work Session 
Newport, Oregon  

 
September 18, 2023 

4:00 PM 
Newport, Oregon 

 
CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION  

 
The Newport City Council met on the above date and time in the City Council Chambers 
of the Newport City Hall. On roll call Jacobi, Hall, Parker, Goebel, and Kaplan.   

  
City Staff in attendance were: Spencer Nebel, City Manager; Erik Glover; Assistant City 
Manager/City Recorder, Steve Baugher, Finance Director; Aaron Collett, City Engineer.  

 
CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

 
Kaplan called the meeting to order at 4:04 P.M. and Glover conducted roll call.  
 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

City Manager’s Report. Nebel presented the written City Manager’s Report saying the 
City Council will hold a work session on Monday, September 18 at 4 PM to cover two 
items. Schedule for Meetings for Monday, September 18, 2023 1.) City Council Work 
Session at 4 PM 4:00 PM Dig Deep presentation 5:00 PM Council applicant Interview 
preparation 2.) Urban Renewal Meeting at 5:15 PM 3.) Regular City Council meeting at 
6:00 PM Presentation by Dig Deep Research (60 minutes) Dig Deep Research will give a 
presentation on the various grant initiatives they are currently working on for the City of 
Newport. Dig Deep will present the role they have played the in the obtaining funding for 
the City of Newport, discuss the current pursuits of funding that are currently underway, 
update Council on Big Creek Dam funding, and discuss the Big Creek Dam public 
outreach efforts. This session is expected to last 60 minutes.  

Preparation of Questions for the City Council Applicants (15 minutes) City Council has 
scheduled a special work session on Monday, September 25 at 11 AM to conduct 
interviews for the City Council. I have attached a copy of the questions that the candidates 
are asked on the applications to avoid duplication of the same types of questions. We 
have modified questions from the Mayor’s interview as a starting point for the questions 
that Council would like to ask the applicants. The decision to appoint a new member is up 
to the members of the Council. At this point, we have four applicants for City Council. The 
deadline for applications is Wednesday, September 20. Council should confirm the start 
time for the work session so that we can schedule the interviews accordingly. 

Presentation by Dig Deep Research.  Tia Cavender, Peggy Hawker, and Fernando 
Garza with Dig Deep Research spoke and did introductions. Peggy Hawker did 
introductions, said she retired from City on March 1, 2023, and started with Dig Deep on 
July 1, 23. Hawker advised they traveled to the meeting today on Dig Deep Research 
cost. Summary of personnel was heard saying Tia Cavender is CEO, Fernando Gonzalez 
is COO, Peggy Hawker is Project Manager, Cheryl Thomas is grants strategist, James 
Diana is research/editor. Rachel Gaikan, accounting manager. Brad Cavender is co-

30



                                                                                                                      

Page 2 of 6 
September 18, 2023 

City Council Work Session 
Newport, Oregon  

owner of Dig Deep. Hawker detailed that Dig Deep has helped secured $53 million in 
grants and low interest loans, 6 to 1 cumulative return on investment for Newport. This 
has resulting in saving every residential household $40.12 per month/per year Dig Deep 
Research has been doing work in Newport over 11 years of service. Hall asked how 
are saved dollars calculated.  

Tia Cavender advised that Dig Deep took total amounts of funding secured on 
grants, and divided by number of residential connections to get an idea of what kind 
of impact is being had on a monthly basis. Tia reported low interest loans saved about 
$8 million, but the above total does not include any loan savings. Hawker reported $20 
million has been received towards $80 million Big Creek Dam replacement project so 
far. Tia reported delays increase cost more. WRDA bill is approved as authorization 
for $60million, but it is not money in the bank, it means the City is allowed to ask for 
money now. The $60 million is likely to be a few million dollars at a time, not a lump 
sum, essentially the authorization is permission from fed gov to stand in line for 
monies. Appropriations is the real dollars exchanged.  

Kaplan asked are we only competing against entities with authorization. Tia 
reported that the City is competing against everyone, but because you have priority 
status from congress it is deemed a priority, despite it not being in scoring. Tia reported 
this is the 1st step of many, but is not a check for $60 million, or a guarantee of money, 
as the same bill has $4.5 billion in projects. Fernando spoke said on wastewater 
project they just got $3.825 million from DEQ through lottery bond sales, $625k from 
water and wastewater funding program, will have $8 million in financing. This funding 
finance the next phase on WWTP project. $4.05 million through Oregon DEQ, clean 
water state revolving fund loan which has principal forgiveness meaning City will only 
pay back $2.05 million, of the $4.05 million total loan. Goebel asked is that a 20 year 
loan. Fernando said up to 30 years. Tia shared the loans were given in a presentation 
in February of 23, after Council approval. Tia reported the loan agreement would clarify 
the terms. Fernando advised this money was for dichlorination, and influent pump 
station piping project. Fernando advised there are four pending FEMA grants from 
2021, and 2022. Originally they had a 75/25 split between City and fed government, 
but recently FEMA has announced the cost share is changed to 90/10. Thus the City 
has to get 10 percent now.  

He advised $11.7 million for main tank project, $3.3 million for underbay waterline, 
and $4.9 million in Fall Street Pacific Communities Health District project and the state 
will pay the 10% match. 75% is $3.2million of 54th street project, or fire flow project. 
Nebel clarified it was Agate Beach water system. Fernando advised FEMA will 
prioritize disaster declarations in Florida and elsewhere, so requests are still pending 
with FEMA and timing is unknown. Hall asked would having multiple applications in 
with FEMA would make it likely to only get one award. Fernando shared they are all 
through the program with FEMA under the disaster declaration  and FEMA will still 
make decisions on which programs they fund. Tia reported two years ago many of 
these applications were submitted, and because all have been approved through 
state, we are confident in the awarding of the funds assuming that nothing devastating 
which happens elsewhere in the country. She advised the project has approval 
through state and FEMA as far as it can go, but environmental review/archeological 
review needs done and project can be awarded after that. 

31



                                                                                                                      

Page 3 of 6 
September 18, 2023 

City Council Work Session 
Newport, Oregon  

 Botello inquired about the timeline to utilize the funds. Nebel reported that from a 
project standpoint they are not time constrained on when they start, the delay is mostly 
about waiting for funding to start the projects. Nebel reported wastewater projects 
were more time sensitive. Goebel asked if the projects are ready to construction when 
awarded. Nebel advised not shovel ready, as some design work will still need to be done 
because the project will not be designed until awarded.  

Tia advised design and construction can be picked up in grants award cost. Tia shared 
that projects cannot be started until they get award notification, but can take three years 
from notification. Tia reported managing $23 million in projects on top of everything else, 
is a tall order for current project management staffing at the City level. Fernando reported 
that much of the work has been working towards getting appropriation from the US 
government.  

Parker shared that the City was told before that Army Corps appropriation was the 
main work/hurdle. Tia reported that section 2.19 has $4.5 billion in projects, they will only 
dole out money on a year to year basis. Tia detailed various grant initiatives Dig Deep 
was applying for. Parker said he thought that the Army Corps of Engineers CFR had a $5 
million limit for WRDA authorizations per year. Nebel reported that was correct. Tia 
reported someone can ask for $60 million, but the max is $1-2 distributed million per year. 
Tia reported all options have to be explored because of the timeframe required to pay for 
a project with max of $1-2 million distribution per year, but no matter where the money 
comes from the authorization will always be with the Army Corps. 

Tia advised it is possible to be under the Army Corps for the entire duration of this 
project and not get any money from them whatsoever. Tia reported this request would be 
in WRDA every 2 years until the City asks them to remove it, but more projects are added 
every 2 years, thus the $4.5 billion in project requests will continue to grow. Kaplan asked 
if City could ask for more money. Tia reported that $60 million is the max an entity can 
ask for at one time, but Dig Deep planned to go back to legislative friends in Washington, 
D.C and ask for an increase, which would be in the next WRDA bill.  

Hawker reported that the City has a lot of challenges given current staffing levels to 
bring projects to fruition, and there was a big question about project management 
capacity, given the volume and magnitude of critical infrastructure projects the City needs 
to undertake. She advised that $23 million was raised in 11 years, and Dig Deep was not 
sure how the projects load could possibly be managed by existing city staffing. She 
reported that a lack of current utility rate study for water, sewer, and wastewater is a critical 
deficit for the City, and suggested that the City needs to look at implementing that process 
quickly.  

Hawker reported that there are options outside of a full rate study, which may not be 
as robust, but would serve well for calculating repayment ability on debt service the City 
needs to undertake these projects. She reported that waiting and delaying progression on 
the projects, cost more than the City can raise. Hall inquired about the rate study process 
is, is it contracted out and is there an expense or timeline on it.  Nebel reported the biggest 
issue is not the expense, the biggest issue is until master plans are complete for the 
utilities, the City has no data on other expenses and would be best estimates only. Collett 
reported that the water master plan is close to release, wastewater is underway. Hawker 
reported that a full blown rate study could be in $300k range. Nebel reported last rate 

32



                                                                                                                      

Page 4 of 6 
September 18, 2023 

City Council Work Session 
Newport, Oregon  

study was FCS Group, and was around $70,000 five or so years ago. Baugher 
reported that was correct.  

Nebel reported that the City knows revenues in water utility right now, which generates 
$6 million a year with $2 million in debt on an annual basis, rates are going to be about 
30% increase to cover added debt service. Hawker asked if wastewater master plan 
had been approved. Collett reported the wastewater master plan is done, but need to 
be done by Council and get through the Planning Commission. Nebel reported a 
number of briefings and summaries on it. Collett reported previous Director of Public 
Works David Powell brought the plan out before he left, it needed additional staff time, 
but the project total on completion of the wastewater master plan items has increased 
above what he previously thought they were.  

Tia reported that it is wrap the mind around, but HDR did some analysis and they 
discovered that escalated costs through covid on the dam project were massive. The 
delay cost $416,617 per month. $96,153 per week, $13,737 per calendar day. In total 
it is roughly a $5 million increase in project cost per year of delay. She advised that a 
3-5% escalation is common, but the average escalation through covid went up 8.9% 
which is very high. She reported that the longer it takes, the more fundraising that will 
have to be done by the City. Tia reported that information was taken from an HDR 
memo shown to Council in April 2023. Goebel shared that the delays and escalations 
were concerning, and has the Council gotten in the way of the schedule. Tia advised 
that the fact that the large $14 million scope is still not approved, is concerning. Nebel 
reported Council hasn't been in the way, the bond funds due to the City haven’t been 
committed more than received in, which was $4million from the state and $10 million 
in additional lottery bond fonds. Collett reported that the $10 million in lottery bond 
funds, just got confirmed.  

Nebel shared that only so much work can be done by HDR at once, and so much 
that City staff can review at once. Collett reported that reviewing the 144 page scope 
of work for HDR, took him longer than originally expected, and felt it was important to 
pass through the $10 million in manageable chunks, thus building in checks and 
balances. Tia clarified that the intent of her statement was to merely display the impact 
of delays.  Tia advised that staffing is a challenge, because of wastewater and 
compliance issues, and only so much for engineering to manage at one time. Tia 
reported the initial goal was $80 million before covid, on the Big Creek Dam and now 
$100 million is the goal for fundraising. Parker asked if the $10 million was for design, 
and in water permitting etc. Nebel said that is correct. Collett reported that was correct, 
and he wanted to see it officially. Parker requested that staff put together a thank you 
letter to Gomberg, once City officially gets official confirmation on funding.  Nebel 
reported Gomberg has been a big advocate, and key to the funding. 

 Goebel said he wanted to check his understanding that $60 million has not been 
secured, but the first stage of the process at the federal level. Tia advised that was 
correct it is permission to stand in lines asking for money. Nebel reported one big issue 
is a decision about how to keep moving on the project, City is in good shape with $14 
million through the design phase, but the big question is can we move forward before 
having money in hand. He advised it is impossible to build half a dam, and waiting until 
funds are in hand to finance those improvements is a challenge. He advised the City 
may need to move forward before funds are in hand, but the question is what rate 

33



                                                                                                                      

Page 5 of 6 
September 18, 2023 

City Council Work Session 
Newport, Oregon  

burden would that place on rate payers. Goebel inquired that if the City takes on funds via 
loan to build dam, we can't go back to get those funds from grant when done. Nebel 
reported that was correct. Tia shared that fortunately there is new loan through Army 
Corps of Engineers specifically for dams. The goal would be to secure the money as 
backup to be able to move forward if you have to take it. You can roll through process, 
engineering, permitting etc. while trying to secure as many grants as possible thus 
lowering loan amount. Tia reported Dig Deep is trying to secure funding from every source 
possible., which may be loans. Goebel asked if City borrows money via loan for Big Creek 
Dam can City get grants to repay those Tia shared no not exactly, only grants for stuff 
unspent thus far, impossible to ask for grants for project which has been built. Nebel 
shared the next 2.5-3 years through design and permitting phase is really going to 
determine what those costs are going to be, at some point Council will determine if you 
want to get a loan to begin construction process, challenge will be once you start 
construction you can't stop.  

 
Botello shared staffing is a challenge and thinks this is the stage to hire folks, it is going 

to be hard to have someone in place and know what is happening, if they are not hired 
soon. Nebel reported it is difficult to hire professionals right now, with lots of infrastructure 
dollars, folks are working for private agencies. He advised that he and Collett have had 
conservations about it, and the City needs to establish a plan for how it will gear up to 
handle the project going forward.  

Jacobi shared she is very concerned about local rate payers, but we have a high water 
rate each month and it will go up. Nebel reported rates will go up to pay for the costs we 
have to pay for the system. Nebel reported grants are direct costs ratepayers don't have 
to pay in monthly rates, but the project will cost money above what City generates via 
grants. Nebel reported City had a significant rate increase this year, another one slated 
next year, but may not have to go as high due to $4 million in state appropriations. Tia 
reported this topic is exactly why Dig Deep wanted to highlight how much each household 
has saved, it is an actual data point which can be messaged to public and shows the City 
is doing everything it can to keep rates down. Kaplan reported questions from Council 
could be emailed to Peggy Hawker.  Hawker shared Dig Deep would like to know how 
Council would like to receive info from Dig Deep, written, or to show up and take 1 hour 
at a meeting each time. Hall shared she would like to know when you have applied to new 
grants, and dates of application. Fernando advised Dig Deep has a live dashboard which 
shows agency, and request, and project it would fund. Nebel introduced Cathy Rigby, who 
was the new grant manager for Newport. Rigby advised she was from Salt Lake City, Utah 
was working in economic development but was familiar with federal grants, HUD, and 
affordable housing and her life long dream was to move to Newport. 

Preparation of Questions for the City Council Applicants. Nebel spoke on the 
interviews and said City would likely allow 15 minutes per person for 7 questions, but was 
contingent upon number of applicants.  

Nebel advised Glover put a draft set of questions together which are: 1. Does your 
interest in serving on the City Council stem from a personal interest or goal? Is there 
something in particular you hope to accomplish while serving on the City Council, and 
why is serving on the Council important to you? Please elaborate. 2. What has been your 
involvement with the City of Newport, either serving on a City Committee or otherwise? 

34



                                                                                                                      

Page 6 of 6 
September 18, 2023 

City Council Work Session 
Newport, Oregon  

How have you contributed to the City of Newport in your time as a resident? 3. What 
unique skills, experiences, perspectives, and relationships would you bring to this 
leadership position that could support and advance the work of the City? 4. What do you 
perceive to be the current challenges and opportunities facing Newport? 5. Do you 
consider yourself to represent a historically underserved or underrepresented population 
as those terms are informed by the National League and Oregon League of Cities? The 
City of Newport encourages all applicants to read the City’s DEI statement but for ease of 
reference, please know that underrepresented and underserved populations in City 
governance, council and committee matters generally includes: Native Americans, 
BIPOC, immigrants, people with disabilities, LGBTQ+, younger adults and youth, 
economically-disadvantaged, farm and migrant workers, and people living in rural parts 
of the state. 6. The City Council must render decisions regarding the implementation of 
policies and/or programs that may be somewhat difficult. Are you willing to take on the 
responsibly of making decisions that are in the best interest of the public even though they 
may be somewhat difficult? 7. The position of City Councilor is a time consuming position. 
With various community and committee meetings etc. Would you be able to devote the 
necessary time to adequately fill the position? Expected time commitment: 2 council 
regular session meetings per month; 2 council work sessions per month • Including 
meeting materials reading & meeting preparation Potential Additional Commitments: • 
Committee meeting(s) as Council Liaison • Special Meetings – as needed • Budget 
Meeting(s) in Spring • Representation as Liaison on boards & committees Meeting 
days/times: City Council: Regular Sessions: • 1st & 3rd Monday of every month at 6:00 
p.m. Work Sessions: • 1st and 3rd Monday at 4:00 p.m. Committee assignments: 
(Dependent upon appointment) 

Parker said he is not a fan of yes or no questions, it allows a short answer. He 
requested shorter questions, and an environmental question focus was desired. Nebel 
advised proposed council vacancy questions will be the ones asked. Hall said she 
understands about question 5 being yes or no. She reported she thinks 5 is still critical, it 
is about setup which could be tweaked. Hall proposed adding council clarifier, and say 
how do you consider yourself as a member of this group. Kaplan shared he liked most of 
the questions, and it was big improvement over what we have been doing. Kaplan advised 
he would suggest we clarify hours, and prep time for question 7 to clarify what folks are 
committing to. Goebel shared he could clarify that yes or no answers aren't desired. Hall 
suggested to get into great detail on the hours required, and requested to clarify liaison 
for 1.5- 2 hours for each committee, to give all the information. Jacobi shared she would 
like to add some of the meetings are in the morning, or afternoon, and some evening. 
Council wanted to add question- do you have any questions for us to the list. Hall said she 
would wordsmith question 5, and councilors were given instructions to send any revisions 
to Glover, who would provide to Mayor Kaplan for final approval.  

 
ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 5:21 P.M. 

 

 

35



                                                                                                                      

Page 1 of 6 
September 25, 2023 

City Council Work Session 
Newport, Oregon  

 
September 25, 2023 

11:02 AM 
Newport, Oregon 

 
CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION  

 
The Newport City Council met on the above date and time in the City Council Chambers 
of the Newport City Hall. On roll call Jacobi, Hall, Parker, Goebel, Botello, and Kaplan.   

  
City Staff in attendance were: Spencer Nebel, City Manager; Erik Glover; Assistant City 
Manager/City Recorder, Jason Malloy, Police Chief.    

 
CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

 
Kaplan called the meeting to order at 11:02 A.M. and Glover conducted roll call.  
 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

City Manager’s Report. Nebel presented the written City Manager’s Report saying A 
special work session and a special meeting of for City Council has been set up to conduct 
interviews of applicants to serve the remaining portion of the Council term vacated by Jan 
Kaplan following his appointment as Mayor. This term which will run to January 4, 2027. 
The voters of the City of Newport will fill this position at the November 2026 election. A 
special Council meeting will be held on or after 1 PM to consider appointment to the City 
Council. The City Recorder received nine applications for this position prior to the 
September 20 deadline. Chapter VII, Section 28 of the City Charter provides: (a) The 
Mayor and each Councilor must be a qualified elector under state law, and reside within 
the City for at least one year immediately before election or appointment to office. One 
applicant did not meet residency requirements, and three applicants have since 
withdrawn, so there are five qualified applicants to consider for appointment to serve the 
remainder of this term. We have invited the applicants to participate in interviews based 
on the date of their application. Work Session Interviews (11 AM) The work session will 
begin at 11 AM. The Council will discuss the process outlined for the selection of the new 
Council member. Questions have been provided to the applicants. Each interview has 
been allocated 15 minutes. The interview questions have been attached. The applicants 
are invited to remain in the Council Chambers during the entire interview process.  

The work session will be adjourned following the last interview. Special City Council 
Meeting (1 PM) The Council member will be appointed at a special City Council meeting 
beginning at 1 PM. The City Council consists of a Mayor and six Councilors nominated 
and elected from the city at-large. The City Charter provides that Council will appoint a 
qualified applicant to fill the remainder of a vacated term by majority of the remaining 
Council members. The City Council is a representative body to address community issues 
on behalf of the citizens of Newport. As such, Council may wish to consider a variety of 
factors in filling this vacancy to assure that Council reflects the community being served. 
These factors can include: 1) Race, including underserved populations. 2) Age 

36



                                                                                                                      

Page 2 of 6 
September 25, 2023 

City Council Work Session 
Newport, Oregon  

demographics. 3) Income. 4) Professional/Life background. 5) 
Geographic/Neighborhood Representation. (a map is attached). In addition, it is 
important that Council consider how the newly appointed member may work with 
remaining members of the Council and what each applicant may bring to the table to 
broaden discussions that lead to collaborative decisions to move the community 
forward. That being said, it is solely up to a majority of Council to decide on who will 
represent the community for remainder of this Council term. The proposed process for 
appointing the Council member is suggested as follows: 1) The Mayor will convene 
the special meeting of the City Council to proceed with the appointment of a new 
Council member. 2) Council can have a discussion on the various applicants who were 
interviewed by the City Council. 3) Ballots will be distributed with the names of the five 
applicants for the vacated Council seat. 4) Council members will select one of the 
candidates on the ballot and write down their own name on the ballot. (This is not a 
secret ballot. The ballots will be read aloud along with the name of the Council member 
casting the ballot.) 5) The City Recorder will count the ballots. Under Chapter VII, 
Section 33 of the City Charter: "A Mayor or Councilor vacancy will be filled by 
appointment by a majority of the remaining Council members." Since there is one 
vacancy on the Council, leaving six Council members, four affirmative votes are 
required before an applicant can be selected as a new Council member. 6) If no 
applicant receives four votes at the end of the first round of voting, ballots with the 
names of the five applicants will be redistributed and a second round of voting will 
occur. Additional rounds of voting would continue until a candidate has four affirmative 
votes. Should there not be the required four votes for appointing a new Council 
member at this meeting, the Council could consider continuing the selection at the 
October 2 meeting. 7) Once an applicant has received four or more votes a motion 
should be made to formally appoint that candidate as Mayor of the City of Newport. 
Recommendation: I recommend that the Council consider the following motion: I move 
to appoint as a member of Council for the City of Newport to fill the balance of a 
vacated term ending January 4, 2027. The appointed Council member will be sworn 
in at the October 2, 2023 Council meeting. An orientation will be provided prior to that 
meeting and the appointed Council member will be provided with an iPad and other 
materials prior to October 2. We have also maintained a room and registration for the 
new Council member to participate in the League of Oregon Cities Annual Conference 
which will take place in Eugene, Oregon, Wednesday, October 11 through Saturday, 
October 14. We will need to confirm whether they can attend this meeting following 
their appointment to Council. 

 
The questions for September 25, 2023 Interviews for City Council Vacancy were 

presented which read: Note: Questions 5 and 7 contain important information that will 
not be read during the interview. 1.Does your interest in serving on the City Council 
stem from a personal interest or goal? Is there something in particular you hope to 
accomplish while serving on the City Council, and why is serving on the Council 
important to you? Please elaborate. 2. What has been your involvement with the City 
of Newport, either serving on a City Committee or otherwise? How have you 
contributed to the City of Newport in your time as a resident? 3. What unique skills, 
experiences, perspectives, and relationships would you bring to this leadership 

37



                                                                                                                      

Page 3 of 6 
September 25, 2023 

City Council Work Session 
Newport, Oregon  

position that could support and advance the work of the City? 4. What do you perceive to 
be the current challenges and opportunities facing Newport? 5. If appointed to the City 
Council, what steps would you take to assure opportunities for underserved populations 
to fully participate in city services and decision-making? How do you see yourself adding 
to the diverse composition of the council? (Background for #5 above- The role of a 
member of the City Council is to represent all citizens living within the community. The 
City of Newport recognizes there are underserved populations that may not have had the 
same access to services in City governance due to language, cultural, social, or other 
barriers. Some of these underrepresented and underserved populations include: Native 
Americans, BIPOC folks, immigrants, people with disabilities, LGBTQ+ individuals, 
younger adults and youth, economically-disadvantaged folks, farm and migrant workers, 
and rural residents.) 6. The City Council must render decisions regarding the 
implementation of policies and/or programs that may be somewhat controversial. Are you 
willing to take on the responsibly of making decisions that are in the best interest of the 
public even though they may be somewhat controversial?  

7. The position of City Councilor is a time consuming position. With various community 
and committee meetings etc. Would you be able to devote the necessary time to 
adequately fill the position? (Background for #7 above- Meeting days/times: City Council: 
Regular Sessions: • 1st & 3rd Monday of every month at 6:00 p.m. Work Sessions: • 1st 
and 3rd Monday at 4:00 p.m. 2 council regular session meetings per month (generally 3 
hours twice a month); 2 council work sessions per month(generally from 1.5 hours, twice 
a month) Meeting materials reading & meeting preparation (generally 10 hours a month) 
Potential Additional Commitments: • Committee meeting(s) as Council Liaison( generally 
1.5-2 hours per committee, per month, generally in the evenings. Generally, a council 
member is appointed to serve on between 3-5 committees as liaison) • Special Meetings 
– as needed • Budget Meeting(s) in Spring(Typically one 1.5 hour intro meeting, two four 
hour budget meetings, one 1 hour final budget meeting) • Representation as Liaison on 
boards & committees Committee assignments: (Dependent upon appointment) 

 
First Candidate Interview, 11:15, Scout Hockema.   
Glover announced that Hockema withdrew from consideration via phone.   
 
Second Candidate Interview, 11:30, Robert Emond 
Emond interview was moved up to 11:15 due to cancellation. Council took turns asking 

the standard interview questions. Emond detailed he wanted to give back to the 
community, doesn't have a specific focus or goal to accomplish. He detailed he moved 
here during covid, and joined Nye Neighborhood Association and sits on the board, and 
is member of the Parking Advisory Committee. Detailed that he was a child actor, and he 
studied anthropology which teaches you to look at other cultures, evaluate them and how 
it compares to your own culture. He detailed work as a software engineer, and as an 
attorney so he has a logical data driven lean mentally. He detailed reading the Vision 2040 
and about ecological refugees, and said Newport will be likely nicer climatically in 20 years 
than many other places. Emond reported that another opportunity which seemed to come 
out of covid was that it shook up society, brought up inflation, forcing people out of comfort 
zones which is an opportunity to rebuild society by discarding what doesn't work, and what 
does work. He advised homelessness and affordable housing as the biggest challenges 

38



                                                                                                                      

Page 4 of 6 
September 25, 2023 

City Council Work Session 
Newport, Oregon  

which face Newport. Advised he is a good listener, and is Asian American so is used to 
being in a culturally diverse community. But has been on both sides of the cultural 
experience. Emond advised he has experience in working in difficult situations as a 
software engineer, thus is ok with dealing with difficult situations, and carrying out 
situations or directions he personally didn’t agree with. Emond detailed he is retired and 
can devote the time necessary to fill the vacancy. Jacobi thanked everyone for applying, 
and reminded everyone there are many openings on boards and commissions with 
vacancies throughout the City for anyone not appointed to Council.  

 
Lunch 11:45 
Lunch was skipped due to having candidates pending/waiting. 
 
Third Candidate Interview, 12:15, Mark C. Phillips 
Phillips answered the standard interview questions read by Council.  
 
Phillips advised there is a family history of public service for him, and has been visiting 

Newport for more than 40 years. He reported he has not stepped forward to serve, 
because he was working and doing 60-80 hours a week to feed his family.  He reported 
he now has time and opportunity to serve and has served as assistant at his church. He 
goes by to visit people in their homes, Newport has a lot of housing inequality. Detailed 
that it may be nice to look into for a City policy. He detailed that the Biden administration 
created the climate corps, and wondered if Newport could get some of the 20,000 
volunteers. They will have awareness and expertise, and climate change is big deal.  

Phillips detailed not being on a city committee before due to lack of time, and didn't 
want to put his name in without ability to follow through. He advised he has been intimately 
involved with Shriners though, who sponsor the Shriners Children’s Hospital who help 
around 80 kids a year in Lincoln County.  

 
He reported he has spent over 30 years working with city, county and state agencies, 

and his goal on Council was to listen. 
 
Phillips detailed visiting a family with substandard housing and issues of housing, 

inequality in jobs and what kind of training and education folks have to have to have a 
better paying job. Many people bring a job to Newport via remote work, but  he questioned 
how committed are they to this community. Homelessness is an issue, the Big Creek Dam 
project needs to get going. Detailed concerns of losing the bridge, with a Cascadia event/ 
earthquake and how vulnerable Newport is, as it will be on its own waiting for FEMA to 
get here thus local solutions to the issues are needed. Detailed that there is racism in 
Newport, granddaughter is half Latino half white, his granddaughter gets bullied, she got 
knocked down and water sprayed on her recently. Building awareness and breaking down 
barriers, and working on attitudes needs to take place.   

 
Phillips detailed a divide in Newport between English, and Spanish speaking 

populations during Covid. The group detailed that trying to reach the central Americans 
who live in Newport and speak a unique language is a concern.  Appreciates everything 
is bilingual in school. He advised that is seems there is a tendency, that an event occurs 

39



                                                                                                                      

Page 5 of 6 
September 25, 2023 

City Council Work Session 
Newport, Oregon  

once during a year and then it is forgotten. Gay pride for example was in June, and 
recently celebrated because it needs to be done. 

 
Hall detailed to Phillips/group that Pride is celebrated in September due to it being the 

shoulder season for tourists. 
 
 If you read some of the stuff on social media people are angry, and concerned with 

why the City Council is not doing anything on various issues. It is important in messaging 
to clarify that the Council is addressing the myriad of issues and items as best as the can.   
 
He detailed that if an issue is not controversial it may not be that important. Phillips 
detailed he could devote the time necessary to serve. 
 

Fourth Candidate Interview, 12:30, Steven Hickman 
Hickman spoke and detailed working as clinical psychologist and entrepreneur. He 

shared he missed the opportunity to serve with his career path. Detailed moving to 
Newport during covid, and has not regretted it. He shared he is an entrepreneur at heart, 
and has been successful at working within academia as an entrepreneur, but overall 
brings a fresh experience. Detailed a friend suggested he apply, ideally would have 
served on a committee before council. Detailed that he didn't want to move to Newport 
from southern California and start saying this is what the community needs. Detailed 
having a graphic design and marketing business, and founded a center for mindfulness 
in California. Detailed being a jack of all trades, and moving to a global compassion 
coalition a worldwide non-profit. Detailed being a creative thinker, and a good sense of 
humor and how the job needs to be fun. Detailed not being the most familiar with lower 
profile, but important challenges such as infrastructure. He saw in a bigger scale in 
California, a confluence of a tourist destination with lively and thriving business climate. 
He shared employment and underemployment in Newport is a concern, but affording 
housing in Newport is a concern. Efforts can be made to make everyone more successful 
in Newport, without growing it into a metropolis. He detailed not being under privileged, 
but had to work by necessity all across the globe and a DEI taskforce. Shared it seems 
necessary to have a DEI committee, or taskforce to advise the Council in Newport his 
goal would be to pursue that. Detailed having to make difficult decisions as a leader, hasn't 
had to make a public controversial decision but feels fully confident he could do it. 
Important to be well educated, and represent those decisions to people. Advised he has 
plenty of time to serve on Council. 

 
Fifth Candidate Interview, 12:45, Fernando Garza 
Garza spoke and detailed being involved in community a lot more in Gresham, or 

McMinnville once he had kids. He feels his personality gets folks to open up. Wants to 
start a snowball effect, which changes the attitude of the disenfranchised folks in Newport. 
Advised he was part of CERT, LISTOS, and recently Newport Police Advisory committee, 
he reported that he had volunteered at lot of covid events due to being bilingual, doing 
daily covid updates, updates during Echo Mountain fire, and over radio. Worked with 
nonprofit resources, and the whole coast. Worked with Oregon food bank out of Eugene. 
He detailed work for Council of Arts in Newport to translate. He shared he had been 

40



                                                                                                                      

Page 6 of 6 
September 25, 2023 

City Council Work Session 
Newport, Oregon  

involved with Newport emergency management, and part of translation advisory council. 
Working for HHS for about 4 years as interpreter. Nominated for Vision 2040 award. Since 
May has been working with the Newsguard to bring a Spanish newspaper which is 
community based. Served 25 years in human resources, and administrative duties.  

He detailed extensive knowledge in dual language personnel, Spanish and English 
interpretations. He advised the City needs an individual who is available to all walks of 
life. He shared he spent the last 8 years in developing translation and interpretation skills, 
and is a complete DEI candidate. He shared disenfranchised people need to be involved 
in the City. Detailed that DEI is not a new idea, if you are a breathing soul you count. Love 
to see county and city using multilanguage releases, and see city leaders at events where 
English is not a first language. Advised he would love to see city and county using multi 
language announcements. Hope to encourage other council members to make it happen 
and join these events. He shared he was comfortable with controversial decisions. 
Detailed he has the time to serve. Hope in the future council has to run against multiple 
people due to so much interest.  

 
Kaplan thanked everyone for their interest in serving, their interest today and advised 

he had learned a lot. 
ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 12:15 P.M. 

 

 

41



                                                                                                                      

Page 1 of 4 
September 25, 2023 

City Council Special Meeting 
Newport, Oregon  

 
September 25, 2023 

1:00 PM 
Newport, Oregon 

 
CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING  

 
The Newport City Council met on the above date and time in the City Council Chambers 
of the Newport City Hall. On roll call Jacobi, Hall, Parker, Goebel, Botello and Kaplan.   

  
City Staff in attendance were: Spencer Nebel, City Manager; Erik Glover; Assistant City 
Manager/City Recorder, Jason Malloy, Police Chief; David Allen, City Attorney.   

 
CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

 
Kaplan called the meeting to order at 1:00 P.M. and Glover conducted roll call.  
 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

City Manager’s Report. Nebel presented the written City Manager’s Report saying A 
special work session and a special meeting of for City Council has been set up to conduct 
interviews of applicants to serve the remaining portion of the Council term vacated by Jan 
Kaplan following his appointment as Mayor. This term which will run to January 4, 2027. 
The voters of the City of Newport will fill this position at the November 2026 election. A 
special Council meeting will be held on or after 1 PM to consider appointment to the City 
Council. The City Recorder received nine applications for this position prior to the 
September 20 deadline. Chapter VII, Section 28 of the City Charter provides: (a) The 
Mayor and each Councilor must be a qualified elector under state law, and reside within 
the City for at least one year immediately before election or appointment to office. One 
applicant did not meet residency requirements, and three applicants have since 
withdrawn, so there are five qualified applicants to consider for appointment to serve the 
remainder of this term. We have invited the applicants to participate in interviews based 
on the date of their application. Work Session Interviews (11 AM) The work session will 
begin at 11 AM. The Council will discuss the process outlined for the selection of the new 
Council member. Questions have been provided to the applicants. Each interview has 
been allocated 15 minutes. The interview questions have been attached. The applicants 
are invited to remain in the Council Chambers during the entire interview process.  

The work session will be adjourned following the last interview. Special City Council 
Meeting (1 PM) The Council member will be appointed at a special City Council meeting 
beginning at 1 PM. The City Council consists of a Mayor and six Councilors nominated 
and elected from the city at-large. The City Charter provides that Council will appoint a 
qualified applicant to fill the remainder of a vacated term by majority of the remaining 
Council members. The City Council is a representative body to address community issues 
on behalf of the citizens of Newport. As such, Council may wish to consider a variety of 
factors in filling this vacancy to assure that Council reflects the community being served. 
These factors can include: 1) Race, including underserved populations. 2) Age 

42



                                                                                                                      

Page 2 of 4 
September 25, 2023 

City Council Special Meeting 
Newport, Oregon  

demographics. 3) Income. 4) Professional/Life background. 5) 
Geographic/Neighborhood Representation. (a map is attached). In addition, it is 
important that Council consider how the newly appointed member may work with 
remaining members of the Council and what each applicant may bring to the table to 
broaden discussions that lead to collaborative decisions to move the community 
forward. That being said, it is solely up to a majority of Council to decide on who will 
represent the community for remainder of this Council term. The proposed process for 
appointing the Council member is suggested as follows: 1) The Mayor will convene 
the special meeting of the City Council to proceed with the appointment of a new 
Council member. 2) Council can have a discussion on the various applicants who were 
interviewed by the City Council. 3) Ballots will be distributed with the names of the five 
applicants for the vacated Council seat. 4) Council members will select one of the 
candidates on the ballot and write down their own name on the ballot. (This is not a 
secret ballot. The ballots will be read aloud along with the name of the Council member 
casting the ballot.) 5) The City Recorder will count the ballots. Under Chapter VII, 
Section 33 of the City Charter: "A Mayor or Councilor vacancy will be filled by 
appointment by a majority of the remaining Council members." Since there is one 
vacancy on the Council, leaving six Council members, four affirmative votes are 
required before an applicant can be selected as a new Council member. 6) If no 
applicant receives four votes at the end of the first round of voting, ballots with the 
names of the five applicants will be redistributed and a second round of voting will 
occur. Additional rounds of voting would continue until a candidate has four affirmative 
votes. Should there not be the required four votes for appointing a new Council 
member at this meeting, the Council could consider continuing the selection at the 
October 2 meeting. 7) Once an applicant has received four or more votes a motion 
should be made to formally appoint that candidate as Mayor of the City of Newport. 
Recommendation: I recommend that the Council consider the following motion: I move 
to appoint as a member of Council for the City of Newport to fill the balance of a 
vacated term ending January 4, 2027.  

The appointed Council member will be sworn in at the October 2, 2023 Council 
meeting. An orientation will be provided prior to that meeting and the appointed 
Council member will be provided with an iPad and other materials prior to October 2. 
We have also maintained a room and registration for the new Council member to 
participate in the League of Oregon Cities Annual Conference which will take place in 
Eugene, Oregon, Wednesday, October 11 through Saturday, October 14. We will 
need to confirm whether they can attend this meeting following their appointment to 
Council. 

 
The questions for September 25, 2023 Interviews for City Council Vacancy were 

presented which read: Note: Questions 5 and 7 contain important information that will 
not be read during the interview. 1.Does your interest in serving on the City Council 
stem from a personal interest or goal? Is there something in particular you hope to 
accomplish while serving on the City Council, and why is serving on the Council 
important to you? Please elaborate. 2. What has been your involvement with the City 
of Newport, either serving on a City Committee or otherwise? How have you 
contributed to the City of Newport in your time as a resident? 3. What unique skills, 

43



                                                                                                                      

Page 3 of 4 
September 25, 2023 

City Council Special Meeting 
Newport, Oregon  

experiences, perspectives, and relationships would you bring to this leadership position 
that could support and advance the work of the City? 4. What do you perceive to be the 
current challenges and opportunities facing Newport? 5. If appointed to the City Council, 
what steps would you take to assure opportunities for underserved populations to fully 
participate in city services and decision-making? How do you see yourself adding to the 
diverse composition of the council? (Background for #5 above- The role of a member of 
the City Council is to represent all citizens living within the community. The City of Newport 
recognizes there are underserved populations that may not have had the same access to 
services in City governance due to language, cultural, social, or other barriers. Some of 
these underrepresented and underserved populations include: Native Americans, BIPOC 
folks, immigrants, people with disabilities, LGBTQ+ individuals, younger adults and youth, 
economically-disadvantaged folks, farm and migrant workers, and rural residents.) 6. The 
City Council must render decisions regarding the implementation of policies and/or 
programs that may be somewhat controversial. Are you willing to take on the responsibly 
of making decisions that are in the best interest of the public even though they may be 
somewhat controversial?  

7. The position of City Councilor is a time consuming position. With various community 
and committee meetings etc. Would you be able to devote the necessary time to 
adequately fill the position? (Background for #7 above- Meeting days/times: City Council: 
Regular Sessions: • 1st & 3rd Monday of every month at 6:00 p.m. Work Sessions: • 1st 
and 3rd Monday at 4:00 p.m. 2 council regular session meetings per month (generally 3 
hours twice a month); 2 council work sessions per month(generally from 1.5 hours, twice 
a month) Meeting materials reading & meeting preparation (generally 10 hours a month) 
Potential Additional Commitments: • Committee meeting(s) as Council Liaison( generally 
1.5-2 hours per committee, per month, generally in the evenings. Generally, a council 
member is appointed to serve on between 3-5 committees as liaison) • Special Meetings 
– as needed • Budget Meeting(s) in Spring(Typically one 1.5 hour intro meeting, two four 
hour budget meetings, one 1 hour final budget meeting) • Representation as Liaison on 
boards & committees Committee assignments: (Dependent upon appointment) 

 
Council Discussion and Appointment of City Councilor 
Kaplan spoked and thanked everyone for applying, and advised he wanted to try to 

figure out how to keep everyone involved due to the talent in the room today. Goebel said 
he thanked everyone for stepping up. He shared Council is time-consuming and everyone 
here today is willing to make the commitment which is great, unfortunate we can only 
choose one. Botello spoke saying thank you for coming and applying, everyone works as 
a team here. She advised there is a big learning curve on the issues in front of Council. 
Jacobi shared she would be pleased to serve with any applicant who interviewed today. 
She shared that she kind of decided to put priorities on candidates who mentioned DEI, 
and all of them did that in various ways and different degrees. She shared she was looking 
at other attributes to prioritize, such as ability to work with others, and be a reasonable 
person and everyone also seemed to fit that. 

 Parker reported he was impressed to see the distribution of Council members via the 
GIS map.  

 

44



                                                                                                                      

Page 4 of 4 
September 25, 2023 

City Council Special Meeting 
Newport, Oregon  

Glover issued ballots and Council began the ballot process. Glover tabulated the 
ballots and read the votes by Council member name and voting choice. During the 1st 
tabulation it was reported as 2 votes for Garza, 3 votes for Emond and 1 for Hickman. 
Council was given 2nd ballot. At tabulation of the second round, Emond had 4 votes and 
Garza has 2 votes.  

During the 2nd vote, Botello and Parker voted for Garza. Goebel, Hall, Kaplan and 
Jacobi voted for Emond.  

 
MOTION by Goebel, seconded by Botello to move to appoint Robert Emond as a 

member of Council for the City of Newport to fill the balance of a vacated term ending 
January 4, 2027. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote.  

 
Kaplan shared that he wants to say that he would like to follow up with the other three, 

quite excited about what was said during interviews. Hall recommended to other 
applicants to join the Budget Committee, advised it was her starting point and shared a 
lot of great insight into the City, and the Budget Committee often struggles with volunteers. 
Nebel advised swearing in will be on October 16th. Nebel advised an orientation session 
will take place, to brief Emond on council rules and various activities which go on as a 
councilor.  

Goebel advised the new candidate will be involved with the replacement of City 
Manager which is a big and critical process.  

Kaplan shared he went on tour of FEMA grant projects last week with Dig Deep 
Research consultants. It was eye opening to look at various things we have talked about 
in the Council, and physically see where they are.  

 
Nebel advised Emond would be issued a City I-Pad, and council email access would 

following the swearing in officially to Council when he gets back from Spain.  
 

ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 1:24 P.M. 

 

 

45



 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
April 5, 2023 

5:37pm 
Newport, Oregon 

 
 
Newport Parks and Recreation Committee Meeting 
 
The Newport Parks and Recreation Committee met on the above date and time in the 
Council Chambers of Newport City Hall.  
 
On roll call, Nancy Steinberg, Charles Mitchell, Charles Brown, Jeff Schrantz, Al Gilhuly, 
Nyla Jebousek, Shelly Moore, Todd Chandler, and Council Member C.M. Hall were 
present.   
 
Staff in attendance was Mike Cavanaugh, Parks and Recreation Director, Sonia 
Graham, 60+ Center Supervisor.  
   
 

ADDITIONS/DELETIONS TO AGENDA 
None. 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 

Approval of Minutes:  March 1, 2023  
 
MOTION was made by Schrantz, seconded by Mitchell, to approve the minutes of the 
March 1, 2023 meeting with edits. The motion carried in a voice vote.  
 
 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
Report from the 60+ Center Supervisor – Sonia Graham 
Graham reported on the growth of the facility in the last couple years. They have 
experienced a 20% increase in 60+ membership since reopening from COVID-19. The 
current membership is 1,172. Programs being offered have also increased since 
reopening. Currently, the facility is offering an average of 36 programs on a monthly 
basis.  
 
Graham reported about the accreditation award that was received by the 60+ Activity 
Center in 2022. Staff was also able to find community partners to restart the Community 

46



 

 

Thanksgiving Celebration in 2022. They were able to serve 86 sit-down meals and 100+ 
meals for delivery to patron’s homes. Staff also started in April monthly birthday lunches 
for patrons to attend at the center. Those with a birthday in that month are invited to the 
center for a free lunch.Graham mentioned that she has one part-time employee and two 
Easterseal’s volunteers to help with office work and programming. One volunteer has 
already organized two volunteer fairs and is in the process of organizing a third one for 
the summer.  
 
Graham is working to improve communication with patrons. She has begun a monthly 
meeting where patrons can chat with her about the facility. She has also started sending 
weekly email newsletters to spread the word about programs and other doings at the 
facility. 
 
Graham reported how the facility operates by utilizing a lot of volunteers. Over the last 
year, the facility has used 56 volunteers to offer programs. Because of this, staff will be 
hosting a volunteer appreciation lunch at the 60+ Center. Graham mentioned that she is 
also bringing back a Veteran’s Lunch prior to the Loyalty Day’s Celebration. 
 
Steinberg ask what was the range of use for the facility volunteers. Graham responded 
that volunteers can be instructors, members of the Friends Organization or Advisory 
Committee, assist with grant writing, office volunteers, speakers, and lounge monitors. 
There are a wide variety of positions available. Graham mentioned that volunteers have 
even expressed interest in helping with landscape work around the facility. 
 
Steinberg mentioned that the Parks & Recreation Committee would like to better support 
the 60+ Center and the 60+ Advisory Committee with goals and objectives. Steinberg 
asked what ways can they offer support to the 60+ Center. Graham responded that she 
does not have ideas at the moment, but will discuss ideas with the 60+ Committee. 
Graham will report back with these ideas. 
 
 
Discussion on Potential Stakeholders for Current/Future Initiatives 
Steinberg explained how the committee have held joint meetings with current/potential 
community partners to help meet department and committee goals and objectives. 
Steinberg mentioned that brainstorming and creating these connections is a committee 
goal in Fiscal Year 2023-2024. Steinberg asked the committee for ideas of potential 
stakeholders.  
 
Cavanaugh mentioned groups such as Lincoln County School District, all local youth 
sports associations/clubs, Special Olympics, The Arc of Benton County, outdoor 
recreation businesses, State Parks, private businesses, community gardens, Lincoln 
County, OSU Extension Services, childcare organizations, Olalla Center, Newport 
Rotary Club, Angel Job Corp, Oregon Boaters Association, multi-culture organizations, 
Oregon Coast Council for the Arts, and the Port of Newport. Moore pointed out possible 
partnerships with non-Newport communities that would like to utilize our facilities and 
services. Moore also stressed partnerships in the local eco-tourism industry. Steinberg 

47



 

 

brought up other sports groups such as pickleballers, adult soccer, and youth sports 
clubs.  
 
 
Discussion on Recreation Fee Schedule Analysis 
Cavanaugh provided background on the Fee Schedule process that occurs each year 
during budget season. He pointed out that the 2019 Recreation Business Plan identified 
the need to review, analysis, and improve the formula and structure for how the 
recreation fees are determined. Cavanaugh noted that the Recreation Business Plan 
main purpose was to help identify ways to reduce recreation subsidies from the General 
Fund. One way to reduce to this subsidy is by improving the way fees were determined. 
 
Cavanaugh explained that the formula and methodology that was used to determine the 
new proposed fees came from the LERN Optimal Pricing Formula and the GreenPlay 
Pyramid Resource Allocation Model. The LERN formula was used to determine the 
direct costs (loaded salary/wage rates) of providing services and establish thresholds to 
recover those costs. The GreenPlay pyramid was used to sort category of programs into 
the 5 tiers of a pyramid. The bottom of the pyramid is Tier 1, which is understood to 
have the most community benefit and expected to be supported through tax funding. 
The top of the pyramid is Tier 5, which is understood to have the most individual benefit 
and expected to receive the least tax dollar support. Tiers 2 through 4 have both 
community and individual benefits and would be supported by a mix of tax dollars, fees, 
and other alternative revenue sources. This model serves as the foundation of the 
resource allocation component.  
 
Cavanaugh reviewed example programs that the pricing formula and allocation model 
were applied too. Some programs showed a heavy subsidy was being provided while 
others did not. Cavanaugh also explained that staff also applied these pricing models to 
membership fees. Cavanaugh also explained the membership/pass fees should also be 
compared to local and regional pricing with comparable facilities and businesses. 
Cavanaugh explained that the next step is to applying both pricing models to all 
recreation fees. Those fees will be presented to City Management for review and 
possibly moving forward in the FY2023-2024 budget.  
 
Steinberg stressed her concerns over the significant price increases that some 
programs might see. She pointed out our local communities’ needs and that increased 
pricing might be a barrier for some of the public. She stressed the need for a strong 
scholarship program to help offset future costs to some patrons. Steinberg also brought 
up other possible funding sources (i.e. grants, parks and recreation district, etc) to help 
reduce subsidies without increasing pricing. Steinberg pointed out that she would like to 
see other options to be reviewed too.  
 
Schrantz asked if it was too late to move programs to different levels of the pyramid 
model. Cavanaugh explained that staff was using the example pyramid model that is 
provided by GreenPlay. Moving forward, Cavanaugh clarified that the Newport 
community will determine where/how each program is subsidized. Cavanaugh explained 

48



 

 

that this will take engagement with policymakers, city management, and the public to 
determine what works for our community. 
 
 
Director’s Report 
Cavanaugh reviewed the January 2023 and February 2023 monthly Department reports 
(attached.) 
 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
None 
 
 

COMMITTEE COMMENTS 
None 
 
Develop Next Agenda 
Stakeholder follow-up 
Fee Schedule follow-up 
 
 
Establish Next Meeting Date 
The next meeting is tentatively scheduled for May 3, 2023 @ 5:30pm. 
 
 
Adjournment 
Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:47 pm 

49



 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
May 3, 2023 

5:33pm 
Newport, Oregon 

 
 
Newport Parks and Recreation Committee Meeting 
 
The Newport Parks and Recreation Committee met on the above date and time in the 
Council Chambers of Newport City Hall.  
 
On roll call, Nancy Steinberg, Charles Brown, Jeff Schrantz, Eva Gonzalez Munos, 
Brian Norris, Nyla Jebousek, Shelly Moore, Todd Chandler, and Council Member C.M. 
Hall were present.   
 
Staff in attendance was Mike Cavanaugh, Parks and Recreation Director. 
  
 

ADDITIONS/DELETIONS TO AGENDA 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 

Approval of Minutes:  None. 
 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
  
Follow up Discussion on Potential Stakeholders for Current/Future Initiatives 
Steinberg reviewed the previous discussion from the April meeting, where they 
brainstormed potential stakeholders and partners.  Moore suggested adding the Hatfield 
Marine Science Center and they were added to the list. Steinberg noted that having this 
list of potential partners would be useful when soliciting public input and it might also be 
beneficial to have these various groups come in and update the Committee about what 
they were currently working on.  Steinberg asked if there were Committee members who 
had an interest in a specific group and mentioned that she is interested in the Yakona 
Nature Preserve. Norris stated he thought the Special Olympics would be a good group 
to work with.  Moore stated that the State Director would be interested in attending one 
of the Committee meetings. Chandler stated he thought the Yacht Club might be a good 
organization to work with, adding that high school kids and adults were involved with the 
group.  Steinberg stated that she did not want to set the Parks & Recreation staff up with 
a bunch of instructions and tasks, but if the Committee wants to partner with these 
groups or just to be knowledgeable with these groups would be helpful.  Norris 

50



 

 

commented that the Master Gardeners might be a good partnership and using their 
clinics and volunteers to maintain one of the City parks.  Steinberg noted that the 
Committee might start with having a group or two from the list attend one of the 
Committee meetings.  Cavanaugh added the Community College to the list.   
  
 
Discussion on Recreation Fee Schedule Analysis 
Steinberg asked Cavanaugh to review the proposed fee schedule that they had 
discussed at the previous meeting.  She hoped the Committee would make a motion on 
how the City should move forward with this, noting that the Committee did not have the 
ability to tell the City Manager or Council what to do, but they are looking to the 
Committee to gauge how the increases would be received by the community.  
Cavanaugh reviewed the fee schedule and the method used to develop it, noting that 
they included the cost-of-living increase which had not been done before. Steinberg 
stated that she felt the process was being rushed a bit without any public input.  She 
stated she was not comfortable with saying yes, let’s go with all of these changes.  She 
would like to see a more in-depth presentation.  Steinberg added that some of the 
increases would be hard on the community.  Cavanaugh noted that staff were not able 
to include comparable prices in the current fee schedule, but it would be done for the 
next fiscal year.  He added that the scholarship program would become very important 
and needed to be sustainable. Hall noted that the fees are already in the FY23-24 
budget.   
 
MOTION: Steinberg moved to express to the Budget Committee and City Council that 
the Parks and Recreation Committee supports the fee schedule method but 
recommends holding off implementing a new fee schedule until further Committee 
questions are answered and there is public engagement.  Seconded by Moore.   
 
The motion carried in a voice vote.   
 
 
David’s Chair Excursion Update 
Steinberg noted that it appears that the City will be getting at least one chair for now.  
The David’s Chair organization has a grant that will cover a large part of the cost and we 
are almost all set for the rest of it.  Cavanaugh noted that the organization had received 
a large grant that will be spread throughout several cities, and the City would need to 
cover around $10,000 for the rest of it.  Discover Newport would be covering $5000 of 
that cost.  Cavanaugh stated that he was working on the Memorandum of Agreement 
between the City and the David’s Chair Organization.  Cavanaugh mentioned the 
excursion event that would be happening in June, with David’s Chair staff bringing 5-8 
different chairs and trailers, doing an all-day 9-5 event for people to try the chairs.  There 
would also be a fundraising event held at the Elks facility.  Cavanaugh stated that he 
thought the City of Newport would probably have a chair shortly after that event.   
 
 
Director’s Report 
Cavanaugh reviewed the March 2023 monthly Department report (attached.)  

51



 

 

Jebousek asked about the status of the Lucky Gap Trail.  Cavanaugh said there was 
some erosion on the south side, and they had done some improvements on the railings, 
and they would be doing more extensive repairs later.   
 
Cavanaugh noted about the BLOOM event that was happening May 20, which was to 
reduce barriers from various groups of people in the community.   
 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
None 
 
 

COMMITTEE COMMENTS 
Steinberg noted that Al Gilhuly had tendered his resignation after the April meeting. She 
noted that he had served on the Committee for many years and thanked him for his 
service. 
 
 
 
Develop Next Agenda 
Aquatic Center Update – Keeley Naughton 
Stakeholder Invites 
Community Garden 
 
 
 
Establish Next Meeting Date 
The next meeting is tentatively scheduled for June 7, 2023 @ 5:30pm. 
 
 
Adjournment 
Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:07 pm 

52



 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
July 13, 2023 

5:33pm 
Newport, Oregon 

 
 
Newport Parks and Recreation Committee Meeting 
 
The Newport Parks and Recreation Committee met on the above date and time in the Council 
Chambers of Newport City Hall.  
 
On roll call, Nancy Steinberg, Charles Mitchell, Cheryl Brown, Charles Brown, Jeff Schrantz, Nyla 
Jebousek, and Council Member C.M. Hall were present.   
 
Staff in attendance was Mike Cavanaugh, Parks and Recreation Director and Keeley Naughton, 
Aquatic Center Supervisor. 
  
 

ADDITIONS/DELETIONS TO AGENDA 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 

Additions/Deletions to Agenda 
None. 
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
MOTION was made by Schrantz to approve the amended minutes of the April 5, 2023 minutes.  
Seconded by Mitchell.  Abstention by Cheryl Brown.  The motion carried in a voice vote.  
 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
Discussion with Parks & Recreation Stakeholders – Central Coast Soccer Association (CCSA) - Tom 
Hurst 
Steinberg noted that she had invited Tom Hurst as part of the Committee’s discussion with various 
stakeholders in the community.   
 
Hurst provided a summary sheet about the Association and reviewed it with the Committee.  He noted 
that CCSA is a non-profit, independent organization, not associated with the School District or the 
Parks & Recreation Department, encompassing communities other than Newport. They offer youth 
soccer programs to Newport, Waldport, Toledo and Siletz, ages 4-14 years old.  Lincoln City Parks 
and Recreation offers their own program and they do work with them on occasion.  They have about 
500 kids per year involved in their program. Most of the kids are from Newport and all are welcome to 
play.  All the coaches and board members are volunteers.  They use a progressive play model, with 

53



 

 

the size of the field increasing as the kids get older and older. Most of the games are played in 
Newport on Saturdays.  They also hold games in Toledo and Waldport.  Hurst added that they offer 
programs for kids that want to play more games and travel to play in other area teams. 
Hurst noted there has been increased interest in girls’ soccer in the last few years.  Hurst added that 
with the shortage of referees, they now train their players as assistance referees so that they learn the 
game from a different perspective, and their families realize that someone must do the job and 
sometimes it’s their child.  The kids enjoy this aspect of the program.  Hurst noted that they have a 
great relationship with the high school teams and with the Newport Parks and Recreation Department.  
The biggest challenge for the program is the field space issue, which is noted in the Parks Master 
Plan and is being addressed by the City.  Hurst noted that asking volunteer coaches to do 3-hour 
online training every year is also a challenge, hampering their ability to recruit coaches.  
 
Steinberg asked about the type of training that the coaches received.  Hurst noted that there was 
training for various types of coaches, depending on their experience and what they would be 
coaching.  Cavanaugh noted that part of the issue with training was the number of areas where 
potential coaches live.  Cavanaugh asked Hurst how many kids they turn away each season.  Hurst 
noted that up to 30 additional kids were turned away due to a lack of coaches.   
 
Steinberg asked about the cost of the program and Hurst replied that it was $60 per season, and the 
kids purchase their own cleats and shin-guards, but everything else is provided.  Hurst added that 
they get some additional funding from team sponsorships.   
 
Jebousek asked if they offered scholarships.  Hurst stated that they have some, but not enough to 
advertise provide them to everyone, but they try to keep the rates low so everyone can afford it.  
Jebousek said that she thought $60 was a lot for low-income families and asked if they were 
interested in doing other types of fundraising to add to their scholarship funds.  Hurst stated that they 
were careful about fundraising, so they didn’t take funds away from other programs or organizations, 
but it was one of their goals.  Jebousek stated that from what she saw, it seemed like the soccer 
programs are a community building program, multi-cultural and a good thing for Newport.   
 
Steinberg asked what the program needed, or if the Committee could do anything to assist them.  
Hurst noted that the field space issue is their biggest hurdle, and it is one of the top recognized needs 
in the Parks Master Plan. He also added that he believes the community needs to come together on a 
plan for the fairgrounds.   
 
  
 
Report from the Aquatic Center Supervisor, Keeley Naughton 
Steinberg introduced Keeley Naughton, Aquatic Center Supervisor.  Naughton gave an overview and 
noted they were doing some swim lessons, but they are still short-staffed and could not offer as many 
as they would like.  She noted that they were doing special events every Friday in July and August, 
called Fun Fridays, featuring various themes.  Boot Camp is the only water exercise class they are 
offering, while looking for additional instructors.  Naughton noted that they are working on fall 
programming, which includes the Spooky Swim and a Dive-In movie in October, and they have 
offered CPR classes to the community every couple of months.  She added that in the previous fiscal 
year they had fourteen special events compared to the year before when they had six.  Naughton 
noted that they were still short five lifeguard positions before they could reopen on Mondays, and 
short seven positions if they wanted to reopen on Sundays, too. She added that they have been short-
staffed since March of 2020. Naughton reviewed the facility issues they have been dealing with, 
noting that the center is about six years old and necessary repairs persist.  She added that the new 

54



 

 

UV system is on its way from the East Coast and will hopefully be installed within the next month.  
Naughton mentioned that they had purchased a new app that is used to track required documentation 
and gives recommendations on chemical dosage.   
 
Steinberg noted that she had noticed some complaints about scheduling issues on social media.  
Naughton explained that due to staffing issues they had been forced to close from noon to three-thirty 
during the school year but had been able to reopen those hours in the summer.  She added that they 
would probably need to close those hours again once school starts.  Cavanaugh noted that Naughton 
had reviewed attendance numbers for their operating hours and the noon to three-thirty was the 
lowest.  Jebousek stated that she had advised them to post job openings at the community college 
and asked if that had been done.  Naughton noted that they do post there.  
 
Naughton reviewed the various equipment they were looking to purchase, including a climbing wall, 
Wibits, a zip line, and other items.  Cheryl Brown noted that Corvallis had a climbing wall in their pool 
and there was a company logo emblazoned on it, and the company had sponsored the wall. Hall 
asked if companies that donated funds to pool equipment would get a tax deduction and if the 
donation would go directly to the Aquatic Center.  Cavanaugh noted that funds could be paid to the 
city or the Friends of Newport Parks and Recreation Foundation, and it could be set up for the 
Aquatics equipment.   
 
Cavanaugh noted that Naughton has had to manage many mechanical problems since she has been 
the supervisor.  He added that she had developed a thorough preventative maintenance schedule 
which had not been set up before. 
 
Cavanaugh went over the current status of the cracks in the pool and the efforts   to determine the 
cause. Jebousek noted that she remembered they had found springs or a sinkhole in the building site 
during construction.  Cavanaugh stated that he did not remember that but would check with the 
Engineering Department.   
 
Naughton note that they were starting a program to use volunteers as instructors.  She said they had 
one former employee that was an instructor who was going to volunteer to teach swim lessons. 
 
 
David’s Chair Fundraiser & Excursion Follow-Up Report. 
Steinberg reminded the Committee that there had been a fundraiser in June in conjunction with the 
visit from David’s Chair organization.  Cavanaugh played a video from the events which highlighted 
many of the people who tried out the chairs at Nye Beach.  Cavanaugh stated that the weekend had 
gone very well, and David’s Chair staff commented that it was very well organized.  They are now 
trying to figure out how to place the shed for the chairs and set up electricity to charge them.  
Cavanaugh stated that over 16 people tried the chairs with others who watched and accompanied 
them.  Cheryl Brown asked if they could set up a QR code on the shed or somewhere that has 
information about the chairs and ways to donate.  Cavanaugh said that they had discussed this and 
were going to have a sign with information about the chairs and donating.  Hall suggested they 
include information that detailed the annual maintenance cost on the chairs – approximately $5000, 
and the cost of obtaining another chair.  Jebousek asked if there was a way to partner with BLM to 
share information regarding the use of chairs and noting that the lighthouse area was obtainable to 
the beach on wheelchairs, so if the David’s chair was in use at Nye Beach they could still go to that 
area and get to the beach.  Cavanaugh stated that they could definitely find a way to share the 
information.   
 

55



 

 

 
Director’s Report 
Cavanaugh reviewed the activities and events in May.  He noted that the attendance numbers 
continued to increase compared to last year.  The Teen Room was unofficially opened in May, with a 
grand opening to happen in the fall.  Interviews were held for the Recreation Superintendent position, 
but they will need to reopen the position.  The Department participated in the Loyalty Days parade 
which went very well.  In the Parks Division, memorial benches were installed with the new procedure, 
including a cement pad.  Mombetsu Park was cleaned up before the Sister City event, and part of the 
wall at the Nye Beach turnaround was painted with anti-graffiti paint.  Sonia at the 60+ Activity Center 
is participating in the Bridge Committee, the collaboration group that works with various entities in the 
community to share information, create events as a group, and pool resources.  Cavanaugh added 
that the 60+ Center also had a Veteran’s lunch during Loyalty Days with about 50 people attending.  
The Sports division has been wrapping up the track and field season and men’s basketball and 
getting started on adult softball.  They are also working on the technology aspect, finding a way to 
share games live from the Rec Center.   
 
Cheryl Brown stated that she had noticed a lot of new Parks and Recreation activities advertised on 
social media.  Cavanaugh stated that that they would also be having free access to the Recreation 
and Aquatic Centers once a month in July, August and September, which the City Council had 
suggested.   
 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
None 
 
 

COMMITTEE COMMENTS 
Steinberg noted that she had seen a thread on social media regarding the slide at Coast Park and 
that it had been closed for quite some time. She added the discussion broadened to parks 
maintenance in general, and how many of the parks needed updating. Steinberg asked if there was 
some way the committee could advocate for additional funding for the repairs and maintenance.  
Cavanaugh noted that the slide was inspected and was found to have a large crack.  They were 
having trouble locating the part that was needed to repair it, and if they couldn’t get it, the slide would 
be closed permanently and need to be replaced.  Cavanaugh explained where funding might come 
from, including grants through State Parks and Recreation.   
 
Hall wondered if the Whaler and Hallmark hotels might want to partner with the city for the repairs at 
Coast Park since their customers would be using it.  Cavanaugh stated that they also wanted to get 
back to using volunteers and having an adopt-a-park program.   
 
 
Steinberg stated that she wanted to acknowledge the resignation of the mayor and remind everyone 
that the Parks and Recreation Committee were not elected officials but were a quasi-public committee 
that needed to be cognizant of the fact that in some ways they represented the community, and they 
need to be careful when they are on social media or other public venues.   
 
 
Jebousek stated that this was the second meeting in a row where the committee had no opportunity 
for comments or input on the agenda.   Steinberg replied that Jebousek could contact her if there was 
something she wanted to add to the agenda and that she was correct that they needed to leave more 

56



 

 

time for committee input.  Jebousek asked if they ever had access to the Parks Master Plan and 
Steinberg noted that it was on the website.  Cavanaugh stated he would send her the link.   
 
 
Develop Next Agenda 
Interview potential committee members 
Review Tree Manual Revision 
 
 
Establish Next Meeting Date 
The next meeting is tentatively scheduled for August 9, 2023 @ 5:30pm. 
 
 
Adjournment 
Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:08 pm. 

57



 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
August 9, 2023 

5:32pm 
Newport, Oregon 

 
 
Newport Parks and Recreation Committee Meeting 
 
The Newport Parks and Recreation Committee met on the above date and time in the 
Council Chambers of Newport City Hall.  
 
On roll call, Nancy Steinberg, Cheryl Brown, Charles Brown, Jeff Schrantz, Brian Norris, 
Todd Chandler and Council Member C.M. Hall were present.   
 
Staff in attendance was Mike Cavanaugh, Parks and Recreation Director and Anita 
Albrecht, City Landscape Specialist.   
  
 

ADDITIONS/DELETIONS TO AGENDA 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 

Additions/Deletions to Agenda 
None. 
 
Approval of Minutes May 3, 2023 
 
MOTION was made by Norris to approve the corrected minutes of the May 3, 2023 
minutes.  Seconded by Charlie Brown.  Abstention by Cheryl Brown.  The motion carried 
in a voice vote.  
 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

Interview Applicants for Parks & Recreation Advisory Committee – Mike Kloeck and 
Tammy Moore. 
Steinberg introduced Mike Kloeck, applicant for the vacant position on the committee.  
Committee members each asked the applicant a question from the standard question 
list.  Kloeck gave his reasons for applying, recognizing how important Parks and 
Recreation are to a community.  He stated that it was important that activities be 
affordable and accessible.  Koeck stated that he used the parks for running and cycling. 
He added that he had experience working on the Visual Arts Center Committee for 

58



 

 

several years.  Koeck added that he had a very open mindset and is good at 
communicating with groups as a neutral arbitrator.    
 
Steinberg introduced Tammy Moore, second applicant for the vacant committee 
position.   Committee members each asked the applicant a question from the standard 
question list.  Moore stated that she had moved to Newport in 2019 and her family had 
been involved with activities offered by the Parks and Recreation Department.  Moore 
added that she had also volunteered for activities within the community through other 
entities.  Moore stated that she had been involved in many groups and committees for 
fundraising and organizing events and would bring her passion for Parks and Recreation 
to the committee. 
 
Norris asked if it was possible to have an applicant serve on a subcommittee if there 
was not a vacancy.  Cavanaugh stated he would check on that and thought it would 
work if they made the person an alternate.  He noted that the Bike/Ped committee 
currently had alternates members.    
 
The committee discussed the two candidates and which one they preferred, then made 
their decision.   
 
MOTION:  Schrantz moved to recommend Mike Koeck to the City Council to fill the 
vacant position on the committee.  Seconded by Chandler.  The motion carried in a 
voice vote.   
 
Steinberg stated that she would speak with Tammy Moore about possibly becoming an 
alternate on the committee.  She also added that she agreed that they should revisit the 
questions they currently ask applicants and include something about what constituents 
they would be representing.   
 
MOTION: Cheryl Brown moved to have staff explore the idea of having alternate 
positions on the committee.  Seconded by Norris.  The motion carried in a voice vote.   
 
 
Review of the 2023 Newport Tree Manual.   
Steinberg introduced Anita Albrecht, Landscape Specialist who went over the potential 
revisions to the Tree Manual.   Discussions included potential prohibited species, 
climate change relevance, and ivy removal.  The committee requested future changes to 
rename it the Tree and Landscape Manual, expand the prohibited plant list including 
bamboo, add more information on ivy and climate change, plants that are most 
susceptible to wildfire, and adding credits for Jenni Remillard and Anita Albrecht for 
developing the manual.    
 
MOTION:  Cheryl Brown moved to approve the current Tree Manual and to include the 
suggested additions and revisions in two years.  Seconded by Schrantz.  The motion 
carried in a voice vote.   
 

59



 

 

The committee added that they should address the code that states the Parks and 
Recreation Committee also serves as the Tree Board.  Cavanaugh stated that he would 
look into it.   
 
Director’s Report 
Steinberg noted that Cavanaugh has suggested the committee read the monthly report 
that is sent out, saving them time at the meeting.  Steinberg noted that the committee 
could use the time to ask questions of him or he could report on current issues.   
 
Cavanaugh gave an update on the Ocean to Bay trail, noting that they had already 
ripped out the kiosks at either end of the trail.  He stated that this trail was in great need 
of attention.  Cavanaugh listed the various projects they would be working on to improve 
it.   
 
Hall asked for an update on the David’s Chair project.  Cavanaugh noted that the shed 
to house the chair is in place at the Nye Beach turnaround, the chair is in town, and will 
be stored at the Parks yard until they figure out how to get power to the shed to charge 
the chair.  Cavanaugh added that he is working with Central Lincoln PUD and others to 
complete the project.  There is also some paperwork that must be completed. 
 
Cavanaugh noted that the slide at Coast Park is still closed due to a crack at the top.  He 
stated that they are still trying to get parts for it, which is difficult due to the age of the 
slide.   
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
None 
 
 

COMMITTEE COMMENTS 
Chandler announced the bike race that would be held next weekend, sponsored by the 
Oregon Coast Visitors Association and held at Big Creek Park.  
 
Cheryl Brown mentioned the 48th annual Seahorse Swim Meet that would be held in the 
Aquatic Center Friday, Saturday and Sunday, with fifteen teams participating.   
 
Hall noted that she had recently fell into a hole at Coast Park and she had heard from 
three people that there is someone digging holes with a spoon and then covering them 
up with grass and the holes were about as big as a bucket.  She said that she had 
received a call that there was now jagged glass in one of the holes.  The information she 
had received said that this was happening at Don Davis and Coast Park.  Cavanaugh he 
would have the Parks staff look into it.   
 
 
Develop Next Agenda 
Parks Master Plan 
Review Committee Goals (DEI review, events/programs) 
  

60



 

 

Establish Next Meeting Date 
The next meeting is tentatively scheduled for September 6, 2023 @ 5:30pm and a 
possible joint meeting with the Bike/Ped committee on September 12.    
 
 
Adjournment 
Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:08 pm. 
 
 
 

61



CITY MANAGER REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: October 16, 2023 
 
Agenda Item: 
Public Hearing and Potential Adoption of Ordinance No. 2215, Amending Chapter 14.14 
of the Newport Municipal Code Related to Off-street Parking Requirements for 
Development and Redevelopment in Special Parking Areas. 
 
Background: 
On September 25, 2023, the Newport Planning Commission held a public hearing to 
consider public testimony and comment on draft amendments impacting Chapter 14.14 
of the Newport Municipal Code relating to off-street parking requirements for development 
and redevelopment in special parking areas. The Planning Commission passed a motion 
recommending that the City Council adopt the amendments. 
 
Ordinance No. 2215 addresses parking requirements to reduce minimum off-street 
parking for new developments or redevelopment of properties located within areas in 
which public parking is managed with meters or combination of parking meters and 
permits. These recommendations were part of discussions during the parking study which 
laid out the proposed plan for addressing public parking in various commercial areas 
within the city. The proposed amendments allowed new development and redevelopment 
of property that generates a demand of 20 or fewer off-street parking spaces to move 
forward without constructing new off-street spaces. These projects would pay a one-time 
fee based upon parking demand attributed to the project to be set by Council resolution. 
The ordinance also provides existing businesses that provide private off-street parking 
the option of developing their existing parking areas, subject to the 20-space parking 
demand threshold.  
 
These changes will allow development to occur where development could not otherwise 
practically take place due to topography and other issues related to providing private off-
street parking. Furthermore, traditional downtown areas consist of continuous buildings, 
not typically interrupted with parking lots. By having a properly managed parking system, 
the parking study commissioned by the City Council indicates that further development 
can be accommodated without the requirement for additional spaces. These provisions 
would apply initially to the Bayfront parking area where pay parking is being implemented. 
A one-time fee would be paid by developers in lieu of constructing off-street parking for 
new development or redevelopment that generates demand for not more than 20 spaces. 
These fees will be set in a future Council resolution.  
  

62



In the Bayfront when metered parking is provided, commercial property owners will not 
be assessed the parking district annual fee.  
 
Finally, the Code will reflect that historic parking uses can be credited in meeting current 
requirements, if that old use occurred within the past ten years. This would be consistent 
with the Council’s reasoning on the 47-room Abbey Hotel appeal of the Planning 
Commission’s decision on parking requirements.  
 
Recommendation: 
I recommend that the Mayor conduct a public hearing on the potential adoption of 
Ordinance No. 2215, an ordinance amending Chapter 14.14 of the Newport Municipal 
Code related to off-street parking requirements for development and redevelopment in 
special parking areas.  
 
Following the public hearing, I recommend the City Council consider the following motion:  
 
I move to place for final passage and read by title only Ordinance No. 2215, an ordinance 
amending Chapter 14.14 of the Newport Municipal Code related to off-street parking 
requirements for new development and redevelopment in special parking areas  
 
The Mayor will then ask for a voice vote on whether to adopt the ordinance. If the motion 
passes, the City Recorder will read the ordinance by title only.  
 
A roll call vote on the final passage of the ordinance will then be requested by the Mayor 
and taken by the City Recorder. 
 
Fiscal Effects: 
None. 
 
Alternatives:  
Do not approve the motion, refer back to City administration for further refinement, or as 
suggested by City Council. Section 16 – Ordinance Adoption of the City Charter provides 
that “at the request of any Council member, the roll call vote shall be at a separate Council 
meeting. Any amendments from the printed version circulated at the Council meeting shall 
be read in full at the time of the reading of the ordinance by title, unless Council by 
unanimous vote waives reading of the amendments.” 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 

 
 

Spencer Nebel 
City Manager 
 
 

63



 

Page 1 of 2 

       
       

   
 
             
   

                Date: October 16, 2023 
 

 

Title: Public Hearing and Possible Adoption of Ordinance No. 2215, Amending Chapter 14.14 of 
the Newport Municipal Code Related to Off-Street Parking Requirements for New Development and 
Redevelopment in Special Parking Areas 
 

Prepared by: Derrick I. Tokos, AICP, Community Development Director 
 

Recommended Motion:  I move to place for final passage, and read by title only, Ordinance No. 2215, 
an ordinance amending Chapter 14.14 of the Newport Municipal Code related to off-street parking 
requirements for new development and redevelopment in special parking areas. 
 

Background Information:  Draft Ordinance No. 2215 amends the Newport Zoning Ordinance, 
codified as Title XIV of the Newport Municipal Code, to reduce minimum off-street parking 
requirements for new development or redevelopment in special parking areas where public 
parking is managed with meters or a combination of parking meters and permits.   
 
The amendments carry out implementation measures listed in the parking study the City Council 
adopted in 2020 with Ordinance No. 2163, which reads as follows: 
 

“Implementation Measure 1.3.1: Pursue metered zones, hybrid paid/permit, and 
hybrid permit/timed zones for high demand areas along the Bayfront; and” 
 
“Implementation Measure 3.2.3: Reduce or eliminate minimum off-street parking 
requirements for new development or redevelopment in metered and 
meter/permit zones.” 

 
The City is rolling out a meter and a combination meter and paid parking permit program for the 
Bayfront, with full implementation anticipated by the end of the year.  At that time, the City will shift 
to demand management, using pricing to influence parking behavior in order to realize better 
vehicle turnover, reducing congestion and improving safety.  In exchange, the City has agreed to 
reduce or eliminate off-street parking requirements for new development and redevelopment in 
these high demand areas.  Existing off-street parking requirements have been an impediment to 
economic growth because it is not practical (or in some cases even possible) to construct off-
street parking because of terrain constraints. 
 
Most of the changes are to NMC Chapter 14.14.100, Special Parking Areas, which applies to Nye 
Beach, City Center, and the Bayfront.  Only public parking areas along the Bayfront are being 
metered per the above policy.  The proposed amendments allow new development and 
redevelopment that generates a demand for 20 or fewer off-street parking to move forward without 
constructing new off-street spaces. Such projects would pay a one-time fee, based upon the 
parking demand attributed to the project.  The fee would be scaled, and set by Council resolution.  
The ordinance also provides existing businesses that provide private, off-street parking the option 
of developing their existing parking areas, subject to the 20 space parking demand threshold.   
 
Businesses in the City Center, Nye Beach, and the Bayfront pay an annual business license 
surcharge as a contribution towards maintenance of public parking that they rely upon.  A new 
subsection 14.14.100(D) provides that uses within these “special parking areas” shall be subject 
to a “Parking District Business License Annual Fee” in an amount set by Council resolution, unless 

STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

64



 

Page 2 of 2 

the City requires payment for the use of public parking in all or part of the special area.  This has 
the effect of codifying the fees set with Council Resolution No. 3864.  It also makes it clear that 
businesses will be relieved from the annual fee if they have to pay to use public parking.  That 
could be in the form of metering, which is being implemented for the Bayfront, or it could be a paid 
parking permit program, if implemented at some point in Nye Beach. 
 
Lastly, NMC Section 14.14.030, which states “for reconstruction or change of type of use, credit 
be given to the old use so that the required parking shall be based on the increase of the new 
use,” is being amended to clarify that “old use” is any use or structure on a property within the last 
10 years.  This aligns with the period of time an individual can claim System Development Charge 
credits for a prior use (NMC 12.15.065).  It also comports with the City Council’s decision in Order 
No. 2023-1, approving a Conditional Use Permit and Adjustment for the 47 room Abbey Hotel. 
 
The one-time fee that is to be paid in lieu of constructing off-street parking for new development 
or redevelopment that generates a demand for not more than 20 spaces will be included in a 
future Council resolution.  A concept for how it could be structured is included with staff analysis 
in Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 2215. 
 
The Newport Planning Commission held a public hearing on September 25, 2023 to consider 
public testimony and comment on the draft amendments and, at the conclusion of the hearing, 
passed a motion recommending the City Council adopt the amendments. 
 
Fiscal Notes:  There are no fiscal impacts associated with this amendment. 
 
Alternatives:  Adopt the ordinance, request changes, forgo adoption, or as suggested by Council. 
 
Attachments:   
Draft Ordinance No. 2215 
Special Parking Area Map 
Minutes from the 9/25/23 Planning Commission Hearing 
Resolution No. 3864 
Notice for the 10/6/23 Public Hearing 

65



 

 

 Ordinance No. 2215 – Off-Street Parking Requirements in Special Parking Areas – File No. 3-Z-22 1 

 

CITY OF NEWPORT 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2215 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 14.14 OF THE 
NEWPORT MUNICIPAL CODE RELATED TO OFF-STREET PARKING 

REQUIREMENTS FOR NEW DEVELOPMENT AND REDEVELOPMENT 
IN SPECIAL PARKING AREAS 

 

(Newport File No. 3-Z-22) 
 
Findings: 
 
1.  On August 14, 2023, the Newport Planning Commission initiated amendments to the 
Newport Zoning Ordinance, codified as Title XIV of the Newport Municipal Code, to 
reduce minimum off-street parking requirements for new development or redevelopment 
in special parking areas where public parking is managed with meters or a combination 
of parking meters and permits.   
 

2.  The amendments carry out implementation measures listed in the parking study the 
City Council adopted in 2020 with Ordinance No. 2163, which reads as follows: 
 

“Implementation Measure 1.3.1: Pursue metered zones, hybrid paid/permit, and 
hybrid permit/timed zones for high demand areas along the Bayfront; and” 
 
“Implementation Measure 3.2.3: Reduce or eliminate minimum off-street parking 
requirements for new development or redevelopment in metered and 
meter/permit zones.” 

 

3.  The City is rolling out a meter and a combination meter and paid parking permit 
program for the Bayfront, with full implementation anticipated by the end of the year.  At 
that time, the City will shift to demand management, using pricing to influence parking 
behavior in order to realize better vehicle turnover, reducing congestion and improving 
safety.  In exchange, the City has agreed to reduce or eliminate off-street parking 
requirements for new development and redevelopment in these high demand areas.  
Existing off-street parking requirements have been an impediment to economic growth 
because it is not practical (or in some cases even possible) to construct off-street parking 
because of terrain constraints. 
 
4.  The draft amendments were developed in consultation with the Parking Advisory 
Committee at its May 17, 2023 and August 16, 2023 meetings, the Planning Commission 
at work sessions on May 22, 2023 and August 14, 2023, and the City Council at a work 
session on June 20, 2023.  Proposed substantive changes are more specifically 
described below: 
 

66



 

 

 Ordinance No. 2215 – Off-Street Parking Requirements in Special Parking Areas – File No. 3-Z-22 2 

 

a.  Newport Municipal Code (NMC) Section 14.14.100, Special Parking Areas, applies 
to Nye Beach, City Center, and the Bayfront.  It is being amended to include a new 
subsection 14.14.100(B), which provides that uses within a special area where meters 
are utilized, in all or part of the special area, may pay a one-time fee in lieu of providing 
the off-street parking that would otherwise be required, provided the parking demand 
does not exceed 20 spaces.  Such fee shall be in an amount established by Council 
resolution.  Uses with a parking demand in excess of 20 spaces must provide off-street 
parking sufficient to accommodate the excess demand.  Parking ratios in subsection 
14.14.030 or a parking demand analysis authorized under subsection 14.14.040 are 
to be used to determine a use(s) parking demand.   
 
b.  A new subsection 14.14.100(C) is created, establishing that existing uses that 
provide off-street parking in order to comply with the provisions of this section, or prior 
parking ordinances, shall not be required to retain such parking if they are located 
within a special area where public parking meters are utilized, in all or part of the 
special area.  This amendment addresses an equity concern where, over the years, 
some Bayfront users were required to provide off-street parking on valuable real estate 
whereas others were not.  Large users, that generate a demand for more than 20 
parking spaces, will not be able to take full advantage of this provision because NMC 
14.14.100(B) requires they provide off-street parking. 
 
c.  A new subsection 14.14.100(D) provides that uses within a special area shall be 
subject to a “Parking District Business License Annual Fee” in an amount set by 
Council resolution, unless the City requires payment for the use of public parking in all 
or part of the special area.  This codifies the fee authorized with Council Resolution 
No. 3864.  Once this language is in place, and metering is operational, then the 
Bayfront will no longer be subject to a Parking District Business License Annual Fee.  
Similarly, if Nye Beach implements a paid parking permit program at some point in the 
future, then it would also no longer be subject to a parking district business license 
fee. 
 
d.  Lastly, NMC Section 14.14.030, which states “for reconstruction or change of type 
of use, credit be given to the old use so that the required parking shall be based on 
the increase of the new use,” is being amended to clarify that “old use” is any use or 
structure on a property within the last 10 years.  This aligns with the period of time an 
individual can claim System Development Charge credits for a prior use (NMC 
12.15.065). 

 

5.  The Newport Planning Commission held a public hearing on September 25, 2023 to 
consider public testimony and comment on the draft amendments and, at the conclusion 
of the hearing, passed a motion recommending the City Council adopt the amendments. 
 

6.  The City Council held a public hearing on October 16, 2023 regarding the question of 
the proposed amendments, and, after considering the recommendation of the Planning 

67



 

 

 Ordinance No. 2215 – Off-Street Parking Requirements in Special Parking Areas – File No. 3-Z-22 3 

 

Commission and evidence and argument in the record, adopted the ordinance, 
concluding that it is necessary and furthers the general welfare of the community. 
 

7.  Information in the record, including affidavits of mailing and publication, demonstrate 
that appropriate public notification was provided for both the Planning Commission and 
City Council public hearings. 

 

THE CITY OF NEWPORT ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1.  Findings.  The findings set forth above are hereby adopted in support of the 
amendments to Title XIV of the Newport Municipal Code adopted by Section 2 of this 
Ordinance. 

 

Section 2.  Municipal Code Amendment.  Chapter 14.14 of Title XIV of the Newport 
Municipal Code is hereby amended as set forth in Exhibit "A". 
 

Section 3.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect 30 days after adoption. 
 

Adopted by the Newport City Council on: _____________________ 
 

Signed by the Mayor on  __________________, 2023. 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Jan Kaplan, Mayor 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Erik Glover, Asst. City Manager/City Recorder 
  

68



 

 

 Ordinance No. 2215 – Off-Street Parking Requirements in Special Parking Areas – File No. 3-Z-22 4 

 

(Unless otherwise specified, new language is shown in double underline, and text to be removed is depicted with 

strikethrough. Staff comments, in italics, are for context and are not a part of the revisions.) 
 
 

CHAPTER 14.14 PARKING AND LOADING REQUIREMENTS 
 

14.14.010 Purpose 
 

The purpose of this section is to establish off-street parking 
and loading requirements, access standards, development 
standards for off-street parking lots, and to formulate special 
parking areas for specific areas of the City of Newport. It is 
also the purpose of this section to implement the 
Comprehensive Plan, enhance property values, and preserve 
the health, safety, and welfare of citizens of the City of 
Newport. 
 

14.14.020 Definitions 
 

For purposes of this section, the following definitions shall 
apply: 
 
Access. The point of ingress and egress from a public street 
to an off-street parking lot or loading and unloading area. 
 
Aisle. Lanes providing access to a parking space. 
 
Gross Floor Area. The total area of a building measured by 
taking the outside dimensions of the building at each floor 
level intended for occupancy or storage. 
 
Loading Space. A parking space for the loading and unloading 
of vehicles over 30 feet in length. 
 
Parking Space. An area for the parking of a vehicle. 
 
Site Plan. A map showing the layout of the building, parking, 
landscaping, setbacks, and any other pertinent information 
concerning the development of a site. 
 
Use. Any new building, change of occupancy, or addition to 
an existing building. 
 

Exhibit “A” 

Ordinance No. 2215 

69



 

 

 Ordinance No. 2215 – Off-Street Parking Requirements in Special Parking Areas – File No. 3-Z-22 5 

 

14.14.030 Number of Parking Spaces Required 
 

A.  Off-street parking shall be provided and maintained as set 
forth in this section. Such off-street parking spaces shall 
be provided prior to issuance of a final building inspection, 
certificate of occupancy for a building, or occupancy, 
whichever occurs first.  

 
B. For any expansion, reconstruction, or change of use, the 

entire development shall satisfy the requirements of 
Section 14.14.050, Accessible Parking. Otherwise, for 
building expansions the additional required parking and 
access improvements shall be based on the expansion 
only and for reconstruction or change of type of use, credit 
shall be given to the old use so that the required parking 
shall be based on the increase of the new use. For the 
purpose of this section “old use” is any use or structure on 
a property within the last 10 years. 

 
C. Any use requiring any fraction of a space shall provide the 

entire space. In the case of mixed uses such as a 
restaurant or gift shop in a hotel, the total requirement shall 
be the sum of the requirements for the uses computed 
separately.  

 
D. Required parking shall be available for the parking of 

operable automobiles of residents, customers, or 
employees, and shall not be used for the storage of 
vehicles or materials or for the sale of merchandise. 

 
E.  A site plan, drawn to scale, shall accompany a request for 

a land use or building permit. Such plan shall demonstrate 
how the parking requirements required by this section are 
met. 

 
F. Parking shall be required at the following rate. All 
calculations shall be based on gross floor area unless 
otherwise stated. 

 

1. General Office 1 space/600 sf 

2. Post Office 1 space/250 sf 

3. General Retail (e.g. shopping centers, apparel 
stores, discount stores, grocery stores, video 
arcade, etc.) 

1 space/300 sf 

70



 

 

 Ordinance No. 2215 – Off-Street Parking Requirements in Special Parking Areas – File No. 3-Z-22 6 

 

4. Bulk Retail (e.g. hardware, garden center, car 
sales, tire stores, wholesale market, furniture 
stores, etc.) 

1 space/600 sf 

5. Building Materials and Lumber Store 1 space/1,000 sf 

6. Nursery – Wholesale 
Building 

1 space/2,000 sf 
1 space/1,000 sf 

7. Eating and Drinking Establishments 1 space/150 sf 

8. Service Station 1 space/pump 

9. Service Station with Convenience Store 1 space/pump + 1 space/ 200 sf 
of store space 

10. Car Wash 1 space/washing module + 2 
spaces 

11. Bank 1 space/300 sf 

12. Waterport/Marine Terminal 20 spaces/berth 

13. General Aviation Airport 1 space/hangar + 1 space/300 sf 
of terminal 

14. Truck Terminal 1 space/berth 

15. Industrial 1.5 spaces/1,000 sf 

16. Industrial Park 1.5 spaces/5,000 sf 

17. Warehouse 1 space/2,000 sf 

18. Mini-Warehouse 1 space/10 storage units 

19. Single-Family Detached Residence 2 spaces/dwelling 

20. Duplex 1 space/dwelling 

21. Apartment  1 space/unit for first four units + 
1.5 spaces/unit for each 
Additional unit 

22. Condominium (Residential) 1.5 spaces/unit 

23. Townhouse 1.5 spaces/unit 

24. Cottage Cluster 1 space/unit 

25. Elderly Housing Project 0.8 space/unit if over 16 dwelling 
units 

26. Congregate Care/Nursing Home 1 space/1,000 sq. ft. 

27. 
 

Hotel/Motel 
 

1 space/room + 
1 space for the manager (if the 
hotel/motel contains other uses, 
the other uses 
Shall be calculated separately 

28. Park 2 spaces/acre 

29. Athletic Field 20 spaces/acre 

30. Recreational Vehicle Park 1 space/RV space +  

71



 

 

 Ordinance No. 2215 – Off-Street Parking Requirements in Special Parking Areas – File No. 3-Z-22 7 

 

1 space/10 RV spaces 

31. Marina 1 space/5 slips or berths 

32. Golf Course 4 spaces/hole 

33. Theater 1 space/4 seats 

34. Bowling alley 4 spaces/alley 

35. Elementary/Middle School 1.6 spaces/classroom 

36. High School 4.5 spaces/classroom 

37. Community College 10 spaces/classroom 

38. Religious/Fraternal Organization 1 space/4 seats in the main 
auditorium 

39. Day Care Facility 1 space/4 persons of license 
occupancy 

40. Hospital 1 space/bed 

41. Assembly Occupancy 1 space/8 occupants 
(based on 1 occupant/15 sf of 
exposition/meeting/assembly 
room conference use not 
elsewhere specified 

 
Staff:  Section 14.14.030 has been broken up into distinct 
regulatory concepts.  The language requiring that “for 
reconstruction or change of type of use, credit be given to the 
old use so that the required parking shall be based on the 
increase of the new use” is silent about whether or not a use 
that has ceased operation counts as an “old use.”  Clarifying 
language is being added indicating that, for the purpose of this 
section, “old use” is any use or structure on a property within 
the last 10 years.  That aligns with the period of time an 
individual can claim System Development Charge Credits for 
a prior use (NMC 12.15.065).  A typo is being corrected for the 
industrial use parking ratio. 
 

14.14.040 Parking Requirements for Uses Not Specified 
 

The parking space requirements of buildings and uses not set 
forth above shall be determined by the Planning Director or 
designate. Such determination shall be based upon 
requirements for the most comparable building or use 
specified in Section 14.14.030 or a separate parking demand 
analysis prepared by the applicant and subject to a Type I 
decision making procedure as provided in Section 14.52, 
Procedural Requirements. 
 

72



 

 

 Ordinance No. 2215 – Off-Street Parking Requirements in Special Parking Areas – File No. 3-Z-22 8 

 

14.14.050 Accessible and Electric Vehicle Parking 
 

Parking areas shall meet all applicable accessible parking and 
electric vehicle charging infrastructure requirements of the 
Oregon Structural Specialty Code to ensure adequate access 
for disabled persons, and sufficient electric vehicle parking 
infrastructure for future users.  
 

14.14.060 Compact Spaces 
 

For parking lots of five vehicles or more, 40% of the spaces 
may be compact spaces measuring 7.5 feet wide by 15 feet 
long. Each compact space must be marked with the word 
"Compact" in letters that are at least six inches high. 
 

14.14.070 Bicycle Parking 
 

Bicycle parking facilities shall be provided as part of new multi-
family residential developments of five units or more; new 
retail, office, and institutional developments; and park-and-
ride lots and transit transfer stations. 
 
A. The required minimum number of bicycle parking spaces 

is as follows, rounding up to the nearest whole number: 
 

Parking Spaces Required Bike Spaces Required 

1 to 4 a 1 

5 to 25 1 

26 to 50 2 

51 to 100 3 

Over 100 1/25 
a.  Residential developments less than 5 units are exempt from bicycle 
parking requirements. 

 
B. Bicycle parking for multiple uses (such as commercial 

shopping centers) may be clustered in one or several 
locations but must meet all other requirements for bicycle 
parking. 

 
C. Each required bicycle parking space shall be at least two 

and a half by six feet. An access aisle at least five feet wide 
shall be provided and maintained beside or between each 
row of bicycle parking. 

73



 

 

 Ordinance No. 2215 – Off-Street Parking Requirements in Special Parking Areas – File No. 3-Z-22 9 

 

D. Bicycle parking facilities shall offer security in the form of 
either a lockable enclosure in which the bicycle can be 
stored or a stationary object (e.g., a "rack") upon which a 
bicycle can be locked. 

 

E. Areas set aside for required bicycle parking must be 
clearly marked and reserved for bicycle parking only. 

 

14.14.080 Shared Parking 
 

The off-street parking requirements of two or more uses, 
structures, or parcels may be satisfied by the same parking lot 
or loading spaces used jointly to the extent that it can be 
shown by the owners or operators of the uses, structures, or 
parcels that their parking needs do not overlap. If the uses, 
structures, or parcels are under separate ownership, the right 
to joint use of the parking space must be evidenced by a deed, 
lease, contract, or other appropriate written document to 
establish the joint use.  
 

14.14.090 Parking Lot Standards 
 

Parking lots shall comply with the following: 
 

A. Parking Lot Minimum Standards. Parking lots shall be 
designed pursuant to the minimum dimensions provided in 
Table 14.14.090-A and Figure 14.14.090-A. 

 

Table 14.14.090-A. Parking Lot Minimum Dimensions for Standard Space 

 

74



 

 

 Ordinance No. 2215 – Off-Street Parking Requirements in Special Parking Areas – File No. 3-Z-22 10 

 

Figure 14.14.090-A. Parking Lot Minimum Dimensions 
 

 
B. Surfacing. 
 

1. All parking lots that are required to have more than five 
parking spaces shall be graded and surfaced with 
asphalt or concrete. Other material that will provide 
equivalent protection against potholes, erosion, and 
dust may be approved by the City Engineer if an 
equivalent level of stability is achieved. 

 
2. Parking lots having less than five parking spaces are 

not required to have the type of surface material 
specified in subsection (1), above. However, such 
parking lot shall be graded and surfaced with crushed 
rock, gravel, or other suitable material as approved by 
the City Engineer. The perimeter of such parking lot 
shall be defined by brick, stones, railroad ties, or other 
such similar devices. Whenever such a parking lot 
abuts a paved street, the driveway leading from such 

 

75



 

 

 Ordinance No. 2215 – Off-Street Parking Requirements in Special Parking Areas – File No. 3-Z-22 11 

 

street to the parking lot shall be paved with concrete 
from the street to the property line of the parking lot. 

 
3. Parking spaces in areas surfaced in accordance with 

subsection (1) shall be appropriately demarcated with 
painted lines or other markings. 

 
C. Joint Use of Required Parking Spaces. One parking lot 

may contain required spaces for several different uses, but 
the required spaces assigned to one use may not be 
credited to any other use. 

 
D. Satellite Parking. 
 

1. If the number of off-street parking spaces required by 
this chapter cannot be provided on the same lot where 
the principal use is located, then spaces may be 
provided on adjacent or nearby lots in accordance with 
the provisions of this section. These off-site spaces are 
referred to as satellite parking spaces. 

 
2. All such satellite parking spaces shall be located within 

200 feet of the principal building or lot associated with 
such parking. 

 
3. The applicant wishing to take advantage of the 

provisions of this section must present satisfactory 
written evidence that the permission of the owner or 
other person in charge of the satellite parking spaces 
to use such spaces has been obtained. The applicant 
must also sign an acknowledgement that the 
continuing validity of the use depends upon the 
continued ability to provide the requisite number of 
parking spaces. 

 
4. Satellite parking spaces allowed in accordance with 

this subsection shall meet all the requirements 
contained in this section. 

 
E. Lighting. Lighting from parking lots shall be so designed 

and located as to not glare onto neighboring residential 
properties. Such lighting shall be screened, shaded, or 
designed in such a way as to comply with the requirement 
contained in this section. This section is not intended to 

76



 

 

 Ordinance No. 2215 – Off-Street Parking Requirements in Special Parking Areas – File No. 3-Z-22 12 

 

apply to public street lighting or to outdoor recreational 
uses such as ball fields, playing fields, and tennis courts. 

 
F. Drive-Up/Drive-In/Drive-

Through Uses and 
Facilities. Drive-up or drive-
through uses and facilities 
shall conform to the 
following standards, which 
are intended to calm traffic, 
and protect pedestrian 
comfort and safety (Figures 
1 and 2).  

 
 

1. The drive-up/drive 
 through facility shall orient to an alley, driveway, 
 or interior parking area, and not a street; and 

 
2. None of the drive-up, 

drive-in or drive-through 
facilities (e.g., driveway 
queuing areas, windows, 
teller machines, service 
windows, kiosks, drop-
boxes, or similar facilities) 
are located within 20 feet 
of a street and shall not be 
oriented to a street corner. 
(Walk-up only teller 
machines and kiosks may 
be oriented to a street or placed adjacent to a street 
corner); and 

 
3. Drive-up/in queuing areas shall be designed so that 

vehicles do not obstruct a driveway, fire access lane, 
walkway, or public right-of-way. 

 
G. Driveway Standards. Driveways shall conform to the 

requirements of Chapter 14.46. 
 
H. Landscaping and Screening. Parking lot landscaping and 

screening standards must comply with Section 14.19.050. 
 

Figure 2 – Drive-up and Drive-Through Facilities 

 

 

 Figure 1 – Drive-Up and Drive-Through Facilities 

 

77



 

 

 Ordinance No. 2215 – Off-Street Parking Requirements in Special Parking Areas – File No. 3-Z-22 13 

 

I. Preferential Carpool/Vanpool Parking. Parking areas that 
have designated employee parking and more than 20 
vehicle parking spaces shall provide at least 10% of the 
employee parking spaces, as preferential carpool and 
vanpool parking spaces. Preferential carpool and vanpool 
parking spaces shall be closer to the employee entrance 
of the building than other parking spaces, with the 
exception of ADA accessible parking spaces. 

 

14.14.100 Special Area Parking Requirements 
 
A. The boundary of the These special areas are defined as 

follows: 
 

A1. Nye Beach. That area bounded by SW 2nd Street, 
NW 12th Street, NW and SW Hurbert Street, and the 
Pacific Ocean. 

 
B2. Bayfront. That area bounded by Yaquina Bay and the 

following streets: SE Moore Drive, SE 5th and SE 
13th, SW 13th Street, SW Canyon Way, SW 10th, SW 
Alder, SW 12th, SW Fall, SW 13th, and SW Bay. 

 
C3. City Center. That area bounded by SW Fall Street, 

SW 7th Street, SW Neff Street, SW Alder Street, SW 
2nd Street, SW Nye Street, Olive Street, SE Benton 
Street, SW 10th Street, SW Angle Street, SW 11th 
Street, SW Hurbert Street, and SW 10th Street. 

 
B.  Uses within a special area where public parking meters are 

utilized, in all or part of the special area, may pay a fee in 
lieu of providing the off-street parking required in this 
section provided the parking demand does not exceed 20 
spaces.  Such fee shall be in the amount established by 
Council resolution.  Uses with a parking demand in excess 
of 20 spaces must provide off-street parking sufficient to 
accommodate the excess demand.  Parking ratios in 
subsection 14.14.030 or a parking demand analysis 
authorized under subsection 14.14.040 shall be used to 
determine a use(s) parking demand. 

 
Staff:  The proposed language responds to Parking Study 
Comprehensive Plan Implementation Measure 3.2.3, which 
calls for the City to reduce or eliminate minimum off-street 
parking requirements for new development or redevelopment 

78



 

 

 Ordinance No. 2215 – Off-Street Parking Requirements in Special Parking Areas – File No. 3-Z-22 14 

 

in metered and meter/permit zones.  It is a combination of 
Options B.2 and B.3, presented to the Parking Advisory 
Committee on May 17, 2023, the Planning Commission on 
May 22, 2023, and the City Council on June 20, 2023.  
Blending the two options was the clear preference coming out 
of the meetings, with Option B.2 requiring a one-time fee in 
lieu of a developer constructing off-street parking to serve 
their project and Option B.3 capping the amount of parking a 
new development or redevelopment can place on the public 
parking system before the requirement for new off-street 
parking is triggered. 
 
The draft code provisions outlined above would allow smaller 
scale development (i.e. that which generates a demand for 
less than 20 parking spaces) to occur without requiring they 
construct new off-street parking.  Larger projects that 
generate a demand for more than 20 parking spaces would 
have to construct off-street parking to accommodate the 
additional demand.  A one-time fee will be charged for new 
development or redevelopment that generate a demand for up 
to 20 parking spaces.  This would create a modest amount of 
funding to help pay for new public parking, transit, etc. in 
concert with metering revenues.  It is justifiable because new 
development or redevelopment places additional strain on the 
finite amount of parking available in these areas.  The fee 
would be scaled to disincentivize development that places 
significant new demand on the l public parking spaces.  Here 
is an example of what that could look like: 
 
Additional Demand: 
 
Spaces 1 to 5  $0 ea. 
Spaces 6 to 10   $5,000 ea. 
Spaces 11 to 15 $7,500 ea. 
Spaces 16 to 20 $10,000 ea. 
 
At the Planning Commission meeting it was suggested that 
there be no fee for the first 5 required off-street spaces.  That 
is consistent with the existing fee resolution that allows the 
first 5 spaces to be exempted where a parking business 
license surcharge is in place.  That surcharge will go away 
though once a meter/permit program is in place. 
 
Here are examples of how the one-time fee would play out: 
 

79



 

 

 Ordinance No. 2215 – Off-Street Parking Requirements in Special Parking Areas – File No. 3-Z-22 15 

 

Example 1:  Convert 1,400 sf of retail to restaurant (About the 
size of the retail building where Noble Estates offered wine 
tasting (146 SW Bay Blvd)  
 
9.33 spaces (new restaurant) - 4.67 spaces (existing retail) = 
4.66 (5 spaces).  $0 fee. 
 
Example 2:  12,000 sq. ft. of waterfront industrial with 4,000 
sq. ft. of warehouse space (at old California Shellfish site 411 
SW Bay Blvd). 
 
20 spaces (new industrial/warehouse). No existing use 
credits.  $112,500 fee.  While significant, this cost is less than 
what it would take to construct a lot of this size and could 
potentially be absorbed as part of the development costs. 
 
Example 3:  Construct 47 room hotel, 2,626 sf retail (Abbey 
Hotel project) on site previously occupied by a nightclub, 
restaurants, and retail.  (836 – 856 SW Bay Blvd). 
 
65 spaces (new hotel/retail use) – 49 spaces (credit for old 
use) = 16 spaces. Old use provided 20 off-street spaces, so 
impact of new project is 36 spaces.  43 parking spaces 
provided off-street.  No fee.   
 
Example 4:  Construct 47 room hotel, 2,626 sf retail on a site 
where there was no prior use.  49 space impact.  $112,500 fee 
for first 20 spaces and developer would be required to 
construct 29 off-street parking spaces. 
 
This language would only apply in special parking areas 
where meters are deployed, which is the plan for the Bayfront.  
It would not apply to Nye Beach or City Center. 
 

C. Existing uses that provide off-street parking in order to 
comply with the provisions of this section, or prior parking 
ordinances, shall not be required to retain such parking 
if they are located within a special area where public 
parking meters are utilized, in all or part of the special 
area. 

 
Staff:  This language is needed to make it clear that the few 
businesses currently providing off-street parking in a meter or 
meter/permit area will no longer be bound to do so, meaning 
they can develop these properties.  Accessible parking 

80



 

 

 Ordinance No. 2215 – Off-Street Parking Requirements in Special Parking Areas – File No. 3-Z-22 16 

 

standards, electric vehicle parking requirements, and bicycle 
parking provisions key off of the number of off-street spaces 
provided.  The City will need to consider accommodating 
those needs in public rights-of-way.  The draft language has 
been revised to limit its applicability to metered areas, which 
for the time being is the Bayfront.  Such change aligns with 
Parking Study Comprehensive Plan Implementation Measure 
3.2.3, which calls for the City to reduce or eliminate minimum 
off-street parking requirements for new development or 
redevelopment in metered and meter/permit zones.  Metered 
parking and meter/permit zones are not currently planned for 
Nye Beach and City Center.  
 
D. Uses within a special area shall be subject to a “Parking 

District Business License Annual Fee” in an amount set 
by Council resolution, unless the City requires payment 
for the use of public parking in all or part of the special 
area.  The annual business license fee established under 
this subsection shall exempt new development or 
redevelopment from having to provide up to five (5) off-
street parking spaces.  Uses that generate a demand for 
more than five (5) off-street parking spaces shall provide 
the additional spaces in accordance with the provisions 
of this section. 

 
Staff:  This subsection is needed for the Nye Beach and City 
Center special areas, where metered and meter/permit zones 
are not being implemented.  It codifies language that is 
currently in Council Resolution No. 3864, a resolution that 
would be repealed if this language is adopted.  Once this 
language is in place, and metering is operational, then the 
Bayfront will no longer be subject to a Parking District 
Business License Annual Fee.  If Nye Beach implements a 
paid parking permit program at some point in the future, then 
it would also no longer be subject to a parking district business 
license fee. 
 

14.14.110 Loading and Unloading Areas 
 

Off-street loading and unloading areas shall be provided per 
this section. 
 
A. Whenever the normal operation of any use requires that 

goods, merchandise, or equipment be routinely delivered 

81



 

 

 Ordinance No. 2215 – Off-Street Parking Requirements in Special Parking Areas – File No. 3-Z-22 17 

 

to or shipped from that use, a sufficient off-street loading 
and unloading area must be provided in accordance with 
this subsection to accommodate the delivery or shipment 
operations in a safe and convenient manner. 

 
B. The loading and unloading area must accommodate the 

numbers as set forth in Table A. At a minimum, a loading 
and unloading space must be 35 feet in length, 10 feet in 
width, and 14 feet in height. The following table indicates 
the number of spaces that, presumptively, satisfy the 
standard set forth in this subsection. 
 
Table 14.14.110-A, Required Loading Spaces 

 

Square footage of Building Number of Loading Spaces 

0-19,999 0 

20,000 – 79,999 1 

80,000 – 119,999 2 

120,000+ 3 
 
C. Loading and unloading areas shall be located and 

designed so that vehicles intending to use them can 
maneuver safely and conveniently to and from a public 
right-of-way or any parking space or parking lot aisle. No 
space for loading shall be so located that a vehicle using 
such loading space projects into any public right-of-way. 

 
D. No area allocated to loading and unloading facilities may 

be used to satisfy the area requirements for off-street 
parking, nor shall any portion of any off-street parking area 
be used to satisfy the area requirements for loading and 
unloading facilities. 

 
E. Whenever a change of use occurs after January 1, 1995, 

that does not involve any enlargement of a structure, and 
the loading area requirements of this section cannot be 
satisfied because there is insufficient area available on the 
lot that can practicably be used for loading and unloading, 
then the Planning Commission may waive the 
requirements of this section. 

 
F. Whenever a loading and unloading facility is located 

adjacent to a residential zone, the loading and unloading 

82



 

 

 Ordinance No. 2215 – Off-Street Parking Requirements in Special Parking Areas – File No. 3-Z-22 18 

 

facility shall be screened per unloading facility shall be 
screened per Section 14.18. 

 

14.14.120 Variances 
 

Variances to this section may be approved in accordance with 
provisions of Section 14.33, Adjustments and Variances, and 
a Type III Land Use Action decision process consistent with 
Section 14.52, Procedural Requirements.* 

 

83



P-1

P-1

R-2

R-4

R-3 R-4

P-1

C-2
R-2

P-1

P-1

R-2

R-2

C-1

R-3

P-1

R-2

C-3

C-1

R-4

P-1
P-1

P-1
C-1

P-1
P-1

C-2

R-1

R-2

R-1
P-3

R-4

R-4
W-1W-1

W-2

P-2 W-1
W-1

R-4

C-2

C-2

R-4

P-3

P-1
P-1

P-1

P-1

C-3

P-1

R-1

W-2

P-1

R-3

P-1

R-4

P-1
C-1 W-2

P-1

W-2

R-4

W-1

W-2

P-1SW BAYLEY ST

NW
 O

CE
AN

VIE
W 

DR

NW 8TH ST

SW ABBEY ST

SW 2ND ST

SW COAST HW

NW
 C

OA
ST

 S
T

W OLIVE ST

SW
 7T

H S
T

SE MOORE DR

NW 6TH ST

SW HARBOR DR

NW 3RD ST

SW HURBERT ST

NE
 EA

DS
 S

T

NE
 C

OO
S S

T

NE 7TH STNE
 BE

NT
ON

 S
T

SE 2ND ST

NE 3RD ST

NW
 N

YE
 ST

SW BAY BV

N 
CO

AS
T H

W

NW 11TH ST

NW 15TH ST

NW
 S

PR
IN

G 
ST

NE 1ST ST
E OLIVE ST

SW
 9T

H S
T

NE 6TH ST

NE 11TH ST

NE 12TH ST

SE BAY BV

SE 10
TH ST

SW NATERLIN DR

SW
 E

LIZ
AB

ET
H 

ST SW
 N

EF
F W

Y

SE 4TH ST

SW
 C

OA
ST

 S
T

SW
 N

YE
 ST

SE
 M

AR
IN

E
SC

IEN
CE

 D
R

NE
 H

AR
NE

Y S
T

SW
 C

AN
YO

N 
WY

SW HATFIELD DR

NE YAQUINA
HEIGHTS DR

HIGHWAY 20

0 1,000 2,000500
Feet ¯This map is for informational use only and has not been prepared for, nor is it suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It

includes data from multiple sources. The City of Newport assumes no responsibility for its compilation or use and users of this
information are cautioned to verify all information with the City of Newport Community Development Department.

City of  Newport
Community Development Department
169 SW Coast Highway              Phone:1.541.574.0629
Newport, OR 97365                    Fax:1.541.574.0644

Image Taken July 2018
4-inch, 4-band Digital Orthophotos

Quantum Spatial, Inc. Corvallis, OR 

Zoning Map with Bayfront, City Center, & Nye Beach
Districts Shown With White Cross-Hatch (NMC 14.14.100)

84



Page 1    Draft Planning Commission Meeting Minutes – 09/25/2023. 
 

Draft MINUTES 

City of Newport Planning Commission 

Regular Session Meeting 

Newport City Hall Council Chambers 

September 25, 2023 

 

Planning Commissioners Present: Bill Branigan, Jim Hanselman, John Updike, Bob Berman, 

Braulio Escobar, Gary East, and Marjorie Blom (by phone). 

 

City Staff Present: Community Development Director (CDD), Derrick Tokos; and Executive 

Assistant, Sherri Marineau. 

 

1. Call to Order & Roll Call.  Chair Branigan called the meeting to order in the City Hall 

Council Chambers at 7:00 p.m. On roll call, Commissioners Branigan, Berman, Escobar, 

Hanselman, East, Updike, and Blom were present.  

 

2. Approval of Minutes.   

 

Branigan reported minor corrections to both sets of the minutes. 

 

A. Approval of the Planning Commission Work Session Meeting Minutes of September 

11, 2023. 

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Hanselman, seconded by Commissioner Escobar to 

approve the Planning Commission Work Session meeting minutes of September 11, 2023, with 

minor corrections. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 

 

B. Approval of the Planning Commission Regular Session Meeting Minutes of 

September 11, 2023. 

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Hanselman, seconded by Commissioner Escobar to 

approve the Planning Commission Regular Session meeting minutes of September 11, 2023, with 

minor corrections. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 

 

3. Citizen/Public Comment. None were heard.  

 

4. Action Items.  

 

A. File 1-PD-23 / 3-ADJ-23: Final Order and Findings of Fact for the Final Development 

Plan and Adjustment Permit for the Oregon State University 77 Apartment-Style Student 

Housing Residential Units.  

 

Berman asked why this application didn’t have to conform to the trash enclosure ordinance. Tokos 

explained that the application was submitted before the trash enclosure ordinance came into 

effective, and it couldn’t be subject to the new rules, as per Oregon state law. 

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Berman, seconded by Commissioner Escobar to approve 

the Final Order and Findings of Fact for File -PD-23 / 3-ADJ-23. The motion carried unanimously 

in a voice vote. 

 

85



Page 2    Draft Planning Commission Meeting Minutes – 09/25/2023. 
 

5. Public Hearings. At 7:07 p.m. Chair Branigan opened the public hearing portion of the 

meeting. He asked the Commissioners for declarations of conflicts of interest, ex parte contacts, 

bias, or site visits. Berman and Branigan reported a drive through the Bayfront. Branigan called 

for objections to any member of the Planning Commission or the Commission as a whole hearing 

this matter; and none were heard. 

 

A. File 3-Z-22: Amendments to Chapter 14.14, Parking and Loading Requirements. 

 

Tokos covered the amendments to Chapter 14.14, Parking and Loading Requirements that reduced 

the minimum off-street parking requirements for new development or redevelopment in areas 

where public parking was managed with meters or a combination of parking meters and permits. 

He reported that the package of amendments was reviewed by the Parking Advisory Committee at 

their meetings, as well as the Commission's review at prior work session meetings. Tokos 

explained that the Planning Commission would be making a recommendation to the City Council 

as to whether or not the amendments were necessary and furthered the general welfare of the 

community. 

 

Berman pointed out the inconsistencies of terminology when referencing metered zones, hybrid 

paid/permit hybrid, and permits/timed zones. He thought the terminology should be consistence 

and included in the definitions. 

 

Berman commented as a side note, that drive ins or drive throughs weren't addressed in these 

amendments. He thought if they did any future street vacations, the city should be able to make 

the vacation revocable if the development didn’t proceed. Tokos would have to look into this, but 

noted that it was immaterial to what the Commission was reviewing that evening. Berman wanted 

to see a mechanism for the titled to be transferred back to the city if the proposed use was not 

followed through on for a vacation. Tokos explained this would require a separate ordinance. The 

city followed the statues verbatim, and there was nothing in the statue that said vacations were 

conditional. Berman stated he would pursue this the next time a vacation came up. 

 

Berman asked for clarification on the commentary that said if Nye Beach implemented a paid 

parking program it would no longer be subject to a business license fee. He thought this only went 

away if there were meters. Tokos explained the relief of the business license fee would go into 

effect when meters or paid permit parking was implemented. Berman asked Tokos to take another 

look at this to make sure that was correct. He questioned if there would be any permit only zones 

in the city. Tokos reported Nye Beach would be permit only once changed. 

 

Updike pointed out there wasn’t any public in attendance for the hearing, and asked what the 

noticing requirements for these types of hearings was. Tokos explained the city did the required 

notice for the hearing by publishing it in the local newspaper. If there was a large planning effort 

like the Transportation System Plan, they would do a city wide post card mailing so the public 

could find out about future changes. They were not required to do a large outreach for a typical 

legislative change such as this hearing. Berman asked if the city reached out to Bayfront business 

owners. Tokos reported they contacted the Bayfront business owners through the Parking Advisory 

Committee, and the principal focus for the outreach concerned the parking meter program rollout. 

 

Berman asked if once the meters were implemented on the Bayfront, would the new rules apply to 

all three area districts. Tokos reported the rules would only apply to the Bayfront because it was 

the only area with meters, and the reduction was keyed off of meters. If Nye Beach did a permit 

only program, they would only get relief from the fee on their business license, not from the 

parking requirements. Updike asked if a parking permit program in Nye Beach would have to be 

86



Page 3    Draft Planning Commission Meeting Minutes – 09/25/2023. 
 

weighed in on by the Parking Advisory Committee. Tokos confirmed it would. He was wasn’t sure 

if the parking permit program for Nye Beach would have to be run by the Commission, but he 

would  want to show it to them so they were aware of the changes. This could also just be done by 

a fee resolution through the City Council.  

 

Escobar asked when the pricing for the metering would be finalized. Tokos reported they still 

needed to wrap up the outreach meetings with the fish plants. The Parking Advisory Committee 

make a change to a couple of the pricing elements at their last meeting. Tokos suspected it would 

be around the end of October when the fee resolution would be put together. 

 

Berman asked if permits would be available seasonally, or just month to month. Tokos explained 

the guarantee was subject to permit availability, and they were capping the number of permits. 

There would be options to have either a monthly permit or a six month permit for peak periods. 

 

Hanselman asked if someone who had a permit could park in a meter spot. Tokos confirmed they 

could only do this if they were in a meter/permit zone. They couldn’t park in the meter only zones 

with a permit. 

 

Chair Branigan closed the hearing at 7:33 p.m. 

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Hanselman, seconded by Commissioner Berman to make 

a favorable recommendation to the City Council for File 3-Z-22. The motion carried unanimously 

in a voice vote. 

 

6. New Business.  None were heard. 

 

7. Unfinished Business.  None were heard. 

 

8. Director Comments. None were heard 

 

9. Adjournment. Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:26 p.m. 

  

Respectfully submitted,   

 

 

     

Sherri Marineau 

Executive Assistant  

87



88



89



VISTA

EA
DS

BAYLEY

2ND

CAPE

COASTWOODS

MA
RT

IN

MINNIE

CASE
ABBEY

LA
UR

EL

HI
GH

AL
PIN

E

FALL

DO
UG

LA
S

PENTER

BEACH

BE
NT

ON

CO
OS

AV
ER

Y

DO
LP

HI
N

CL
IFF

PINE

EUILO

GR
AN

T

WADE

3RD

GR
OV

E

ALDER

ANGLE

LEEHURBERT

PARK

FO
GA

RT
Y

SURF

GOVERNMENT

7TH

MO
OR

E

13
TH

BAY

LIN
CO

LN

BA
Y

VIE
W

8T
H

CR
ES

CE
NT

SHERMER

6TH

SPRUCE

1ST

11T
H

CO
TT

AG
E

MA
RK

OLIVE

10TH

RIO VISTA

9TH

SMITH

4TH

5TH

12
TH

VIEW

NY
E

NATERLIN

HARBOR
CRESCENT

LARCH

NE
FF

HARBOR

YAQUINA HEIGHTS

BR
OO

K

HA
RN

EY

HIGHWAY 20

EL
IZA

BE
TH

CA
NY

ON

SCENIC

HATFIELD

Exhibit A, Resolution No. _____
Parking Districts Subject to Business License Surcharge

This map is for informational use only and has not been prepared for, nor is it suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
includes data from multiple sources. The City of Newport assumes no responsibility for its compilation or use and users of this
information are cautioned to verify all information with the City of Newport Community Development Department.

City of  Newport
Community Development Department
169 SW Coast Highway              Phone:1.541.574.0629
Newport, OR 97365                    Fax:1.541.574.0644 ¯

0 600 1,200300
Feet Date: 5/31/19

Bay Front Parking District Boundary (Ord. 2020) City Center Parking District Boundary (Ord. 2009) Nye Beach Parking District Boundary (Ord. 1993)

90

d.tokos
Typewritten Text
3864



91



92



CITY MANAGER REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: October 16, 2023 
 
Agenda Item: 
Communication from Lincoln County Historical Society Regarding the Lincoln County 
Historical Society’s Funding Needs. 
 
Background: 
Councilor Parker indicated that the Lincoln County Historical Society has identified a 
number of major projects that will require funding in the future. As a result, the Assistant 
City Manager/City Recorder, Erik Glover, reached out to Susan Tissot, Executive Director 
for Lincoln County Historical Society, to inquire about future projects and financial needs 
for the historical society. Attached is a communication from Susan regarding these issues. 
The Lincoln County Historical Society is a 501(c)(3) nonprofit organization that governs 
two museum locations in public education programs. 
 
Recommendation: 
None. 
 
Fiscal Effects: 
None. 
 
Alternatives:  
Direct staff to look at any potential funding scenarios or as suggested by the City Council.  
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 

 
 

Spencer Nebel 
City Manager 
 
 

93



From: Susan MG Tissot <director@oregoncoasthistory.org>  

Sent: Tuesday, October 3, 2023 4:33 PM 

To: Erik Glover <E.Glover@NewportOregon.gov> 

Cc: Spencer Nebel <S.Nebel@NewportOregon.gov> 

Subject: Re: Communication regarding LCHS Funding 

[WARNING] This message comes from an external organization. Be careful of embedded links.  

________________________________________ 

Hi Erik & Spencer, 

My office is at the PMHC but I am responsible for both locations. You currently just hear about the 

Maritime because it is what we currently have open on a regular basis.  

We are doing a number of maintenance projects over at 9th Street so that we can reopen the Burrows 

House Museum. The Log Cabin, the Burrows House, and the old City Garage all have multiple issues. I 

am guessing this is what the Council was referring to. 

 As you know historic buildings need lots of TLC. Add the coastal environment and ...... The Burrows 

House was sinking in one of the back corners of the building that does not have basement, repaired & 

painted walls in the back gallery where the building was sinking, rebuilt the pair of emergency exit stairs 

that rotted out, secured the garbage & recycling receptacle areas at the Log Cabin in the hopes that 

homeless people stop trying to move in. The City Garages are in terrible shape. We are installing a new 

garage door on the 9th street side. The door jam was totally rotted out, and we are rebuilding the 

exterior wall between us and the radio station adding new drainage concrete to help keep the water 

away from the building. This is about $75,000 worth of work that needed to be done before winter. The 

consensus was that a hard winter might take the garages down. It is money that we pulled out of our 

very limited reserves. All of the buildings need new roofs and exterior painting. 

At the PMHC our retaining wall at the top of our parking lot is in dire need. Jon Holbrook is drawing up 

plans and consulting with an engineer on what needs to be done. We need help funding this project. We 

have some drainage issues with the stream that comes off the hill above us. 

Also at the PMHC, we have the architectural drawing and renderings for the 1,700 sq ft multipurpose 

meeting room/classroom space that is directly across the hall from the Doerfler Family Theater. This 

space is space we will use for classes but also for community workshops and meetings. I have attached 

the drawing and renderings. The cost estimate is $223,860. I had a call with the Roundhouse Foundation 

this morning. They are interested in partially funding this project but want to see us raise at least 25% of 

the costs before they will step up. 

ANYTHING the city can do to help us with these projects would be greatly appreciated. 

Please advise. 

 

94



Best, Susan 

Susan MG Tissot 

Executive Director 

Lincoln County Historical Society  

95



CITY MANAGER REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: October 16, 2023 
 
Agenda Item: 
From Councilor Hall Regarding Follow-up of Potential City Membership with the National 
League of Cities.  
 
Background: 
Councilor Hall will provide a brief report on potential membership of the City of Newport 
with the National League of Cities at the October 16, 2023 City Council meeting. The dues 
for a city whose population is between 10,001 and 20,000 is $1,701 in 2024. You can read 
more about the National League of Cities at www.nlc.org. 
 
Recommendation: 
None. 
 
Fiscal Effects: 
None. 
 
Alternatives:  
Direct staff to apply for membership to the National League of Cities, or as suggested by 
the City Council.  
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 

 
 

Spencer Nebel 
City Manager 
 
 

96

http://www.nlc.org/


CITY MANAGER REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: October 16, 2023 
 
Agenda Item: 
Consideration and Potential Adoption of Resolution No. 3996, a Resolution in Support of 
Establishing a Continuum of Care for the Linn, Benton, and Lincoln Counties Region and 
Registering with the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development in 
2024.  

 
Background: 
The City Council heard a report from Community Services Consortium Executive Director 
Pegge McGuire regarding the challenges of these three counties being included in a 
continuum of care (CoC) that includes all of the counties of the state except for several of 
the more urbanized regions of the state primarily in the Willamette Valley. This is an issue 
that had a direct impact on our ability to get funding for homelessness during Governor 
Kotek’s effort to the funnel state funds to various entities. The three counties have much 
more in common than the balance of rural Oregon in addressing issues such as 
homelessness and housing. The specific purposes of CoCs are to promote community-
wide commitment to the goal of ending homelessness; provide funding for efforts by 
nonprofit providers, and state and local governments to quickly re-house homeless 
individuals and families while minimizing the trauma and dislocation caused to homeless 
individuals, families, and communities by homelessness; promote access to an effective 
utilization of mainstream programs by homeless individuals and families; and optimize 
self-sufficiency among individuals and families experiencing homelessness. This action 
closely related to the HB 4123 county-wide pilot program that has been occurring in 
Lincoln County. 
 
Recommendations: 
I recommend that Council consider the following motion: 
 
I move to adopt Resolution No. 3996, a resolution in support of establishing a continuum 
of care for the Linn, Benton, and Lincoln Counties region and registering with United 
States Department of Housing and Urban Development in 2024.  
 
Fiscal Effects: 
None.  
 
Alternatives:  
As suggested by the City Council. 
   
  

97



Respectfully submitted,  
 

 
 
 

Spencer Nebel 
City Manager 
 
 
 

98



 

 Res. No. 3996 – Support of Establishing a Tri County Continuum of Care 1 

 

CITY OF NEWPORT 
RESOLUTION NO. 3996 

 
A Resolution in Support of Establishing a Continuum of Care for the Linn, Benton, and 

Lincoln Counties Region and Registering with the United States Department of Housing 
and Urban Development in 2024 

 
WHEREAS, homelessness is a critical issue in the tri-county region of Linn, Benton, 

and Lincoln Counties; in Oregon; and across the nation; and  
 WHEREAS, children, families, veterans, and chronically homeless individuals 

experiencing mental illness and addictions comprise a large portion of the region's 
homeless population; and 

WHEREAS,, the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development 
created the Continuum of Care program in 1994 as a means for communities across the 
nation to "engage in multi-year strategic planning for homeless programs and services 
that are well integrated with planning for mainstream services"; mainstream services 
denoting public housing, Section 8 housing choice vouchers, and services for runaway 
and homeless youth, victims of domestic violence, veterans, seniors, and people 
experiencing addictions and/or mental illness; and  

WHEREAS, Linn, Benton, and Lincoln Counties are part of a "balance of state" Rural 
Oregon Continuum of Care; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Newport carefully considered relevant factors and determined 
that the region could benefit from creating its own Continuum of Care, with enhanced 
service coordination, local autonomy, and alignment of goals to more effectively reduce 
homelessness in the region 
 
THE CITY OF NEWPORT RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The City of Newport, Oregon strongly supports establishing a Continuum of 
Care for the Linn, Benton, and Lincoln County region and supports the new Continuum 
of Care registering with the United States Department of Housing and Urban 
Development in 2024. 
 
Section 2.  Effective Date. This Resolution shall become effective upon adoption. 
 
Adopted by the City Council on October 16, 2023. 
 
_____________________________________ 
Jan Kaplan, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
_____________________________________ 
Erik Glover, Assistant City Manager/City Recorder 

99



CITY MANAGER REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: October 16, 2023 
Agenda Item: 
Authorization to Execute a Grant Contract for Source Water Protection for the Oregon 
Health Authority – Drinking Water Services in the Amount of $30,000.  
 
Background: 
The City has made application to the Oregon Infrastructure Finance Authority as part of 
Oregon Business Development Department to update the City of Newport Drinking Water 
Protection Plan. This plan will provide policy guidance regarding source water protection 
actions for the City's two main water sources which are Big Creek Dam and the Siletz 
River. This is a project that has been advocated by the Water Conservation Management 
and Conservation Work Group.  

 
Recommendations: 
I recommend that the City Council consider the following motion: 
 
I move to authorize the city manager to execute contract with the Oregon Health Authority 
– Drinking Water Services to conduct an update of the city of Newport drinking water 
protection plan and appropriate the $30,000 grant to cover the expenses of $30,000 for 
this effort.  
 
Fiscal Effects: 
This is a 100% grant to conduct this study.  
  
Alternatives:  
None recommended.  
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 

 
 
 

Spencer Nebel 
City Manager 
 
 
 

100



 

Page 1 of 1 

       
       
   
 
              
  

        Date: October 10, 2023 
 

 
Title: Authorization to Execute a Grant Contract for Source Water Protection with the Oregon Health 

Authority-Drinking Water Services. Related to the City of Newport Drinking Water Protection Plan 
(Project No. U24002) 

 
Prepared by: Cathie Rigby, Grant Manager    
 
Recommended Motion:  I move that the Council authorize the City Manager to execute the Grant Contract 
for Source Water Protection on behalf of the City of Newport, pending legal review. 
 
Background Information:  The State of Oregon, acting by and through its Oregon Infrastructure Finance 
Authority of the Oregon Business Development Department (“OBDD”), is partnering with, Newport to 
update the City of Newport Drinking Water Protection Plan. This plan will provide policy guidance for the 
strategic implementation of source water protection actions for the City’s two water sources: Big Creek 
and the Siletz River. The existing plan was last updated in 2016 and is sorely in need of an update. The 
end product of this planning effort will include an important timeline for the implementation of protection 
strategies and contingency planning to address potential risks.  
 
The City of Newport draws from two water sources: Big Creek and seasonally from the Siletz River during 
the late spring and summer months. The Siletz River water has been rated 303(d) for turbidity and 
temperature; which refers to the condition of the water as too polluted or degraded to meet the state water 
quality standards. The industrial forests are dominant components of both watersheds and various ages of 
clear-cut harvest create conditions of high risk of contamination to source streams. This risk of contamination 
is exacerbated by other factors such as the quantity of soils, rural homesteads, and septic tanks adjacent to 
the streams in drinking water source areas. In the future, climate change impacts could add additional risks, 
making contingency planning vital to protecting the City of Newport’s drinking water resources.  
 
OBDD is making this $30,000 grant available to participating jurisdictions to offset their costs in participating 
in the planning process. Funds will be distributed once the grant agreement is signed, and they must be used 
to support the project. That can include public outreach, team formation activities, data collection, analyses, 
and expenses related to updating local plans and regulations. As this grant agreement is drafted as an 
Intergovernmental Agreement between the State of Oregon and the City of Newport, it must be approved by 
the City Council, consistent with ORS Chapter 190, before the agreement can be signed and funds accepted.  
The City must file a closeout report when the project is completed, documenting that the funds were used for 
permissible purposes. 
 
Fiscal Notes:   
 
Alternatives:  Approve the grant agreement, request amendments, forgo an agreement at this time, or 
as suggested by Council. 
 
Attachments:  
Draft SDWRLF Grant Agreement No.  

STAFF REPORT 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



CITY MANAGER REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: October 16, 2023 
 
Agenda Item: 
Authorization of a Request for Proposals for City Manager Executive Recruitment 
Services. 

 
Background: 
 
As you are aware, it is my intent to retire as City Manager of the City of Newport in 2024 
on or around July 1, 2024. As I have indicated previously, I plan to work through the 
budget process for 2024 so that my successor has a budget in place to facilitate their first 
year on the job. I will likely wish to continue to work until October 1 in a secondary role to 
complete a number of efforts that would help facilitate future efforts for the City and its 
new manager.  
 
At the July 17 work session, the City Council discussed utilization of an executive search 
firm to assist in the recruitment of a new city manager. There are a number of firms that 
regularly do work in the Northwest. The suggested schedule for proceeding with 
consultant selection that was presented to the Council in July is as follows: 
 

- October 16, 2023, approve a request for proposals to retain an executive search 

firm to assist with the hiring of the city manager. This firm would work with the City 

Council to develop an administrative profile. The executive search firm will likely 

meet individually and collectively with members of the City Council to do this . In 

addition, the firm would conduct preliminary review of applicants, complete an 

initial screening of the candidates, meet with Council to determine which 

candidates Council wishes to interview, and facilitate the interview process that 

Council will undertake with each of the candidates. 

- November 6, Council will interview the executive search firms who submitted 

proposals by the due date at a work session. Council will then select an executive 

search firm at the regular meeting on November 6, if they are ready to move in that 

direction. The executive search firm will meet with Council and develop an 

administrative profile for this position. 

- December 4, the City Council will approve the administrative profile for the position, 

proposed compensation, and develop a final recruitment calendar to fill the 

position.  

- January 3, 2024 advertising will be initiated for the city manager's position.  

It is my recommendation that the Council direct a Request for Proposals to four 
predominate firms who do work in the Northwest. I think the approach may vary from firm 

113



to firm and it will give the Council an opportunity to select a firm that Council feels will best 
meet their needs of through this hiring process. These firms regularly do work on the West 
Coast. A few firms have a more regional presences while SGR does work nationally. I 
would recommend that a request for proposals be sent to the following executive 
recruitment firms: 

- GMP Consultants, Snoqualmie, WA 

- Jensen Strategies, Portland OR 

- Prothman, Issaquah, WA 

- Strategic Government Resources (SGR), Keller, TX 

The actual schedule following November 6 would be developed by the selected executive 
search firm in consultation with the City Council. The remaining schedule, as reviewed by 
the Council in July, has been included in the RFP. I have discussed this schedule with 
several of the search firms listed above and they all feel there is sufficient time to get 
someone in place by the end of the fiscal year. It should be noted that professional 
recruitment firms may modify this schedule based on their normal processes, which we 
have asked them to outline in their proposal to the Council. I believe this schedule allows 
for some complications and timing setbacks to complete this process to have a new 
manager in place by the end of the fiscal year. That being said, I am available to work 
through September should challenges be encountered with this process.  
 
After June 30, I would like to work in a special projects-type position through September 
once a city manager is hired and has initiated their employment with the City. It is not 
appropriate to have two individuals working as City Manager. I would likely work from 
home on these assignments to further reduce any potential interference with my 
successor. This would be a great opportunity for me to focus on a number of very specific 
projects that will help facilitate work of the new city manager. In this capacity I would be 
working for the new city manager. I would ask that my compensation and benefits remain 
intact through this period of time as part of the transition. I believe that this schedule will 
provide a smooth, and hopefully, seamless transition for this position.  
 
Please note that there could be a circumstance in which I would retire earlier than October 
1 if the City Council has a manager in place at that time. However, I will not leave the City 
hanging prior to October 1, if there are delays in hiring a new manager. The selection of 
a city manager is perhaps the most important decision you will make as a City Council. 
This schedule should provide for a smooth, and hopefully seamless, transition in City 
Manager leadership for the City of Newport. 
 
Recommendation: 
I recommend that the City Council approve the following motion: 
 
I move to approve the Request for Proposals for an Executive Search Firm to assist in the 
hiring of a city manager, with the proposals being requested from GMP Consultants, 
Jensen Strategies, Prothman and Strategic Government Resources. 
  

114



Fiscal Effects: 
Cost should run under $35,000 for the executive search. Proposals will detail the fees and 
expenses that the City will be responsible for paying. Funding has been appropriated in 
the City Manager expenses for this search. 
 
Alternatives:  
Modify the RFP, utilize the Mayor and Council President to conduct interviews of the 
consultants submitting proposals, select different executive recruiters, or as suggested by 
the City Council.  
 
Respectfully Submitted,  
 

 
 
 

Spencer Nebel 
City Manager 
 
 
 

115



RFP Executive Recruitment Services for City of Newport City Manager 

City of Newport 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

FOR 

Executive Recruitment Services for City of Newport City 

Manager 

City of Newport 

City Hall 

169 SW Coast Highway Newport, OR 97365 

Telephone: 541-574-0603 

DUE DATE & TIME 

October 30, 2023 at 12:00PM 

116



RFP Executive Recruitment Services for City of Newport City Manager 

 

I.  GENERAL INFORMATION: 
 

The City of Newport Oregon is seeking proposals from qualified professional firms 

with experience in advertisement, solicitation and screening to fill the City Manager position. 

The current City Manager has announced retirement effective on or about July 1, 2024. 
 

The City of Newport is a prime tourist destination and the population center of the Central 

Oregon Coast. Newport is the county seat of Lincoln County, and houses the offices of 

several federal and state agencies, including a major Coast Guard station, Oregon State 

University’s Hatfield Marine Science Center, NOAA’s Pacific Marine Operations, the 

Oregon State Police, Oregon DMV, and Oregon Employment Division offices. The city is 

home to the Samaritan Pacific Communities Hospital, and the main campus of the Oregon 

Coast Community College. OCCC is a premier educational institution and unique in its 

aquarist program. Its aquarist graduates are working in aquarium and research facilities 

throughout the country. Newport has a population of 10,775. 
 

Newport is a council-manager form of government. The governance of the city is vested 

with the city council. The council is comprised of seven elected members, which includes 

the Mayor.  Newport is a full-service city providing a wide range of municipal 

services, including police, fire, finance, engineering, streets, water and sewer utilities, 

community development, airport, parks and recreation, performing arts center and visual 

arts center and urban renewal.  The city employs 164 employees, and the FY 23-24 

budget is $114,293,353. 

 

 
Proposals due to Spencer Nebel, City Manager at 

m.nelson@newportoregon.gov 

by October 30, 2023 by noon. Only electronic submissions will be accepted. Please do 

not submit proposals in hard copy. 

 

Proposals received after the specified date and time will not be given further 

consideration. All dates are tentative and subject to change at City’s discretion. 

 

Proposals should be prepared simply and economically, providing a 

straightforward, concise description of proposer's capabilities to satisfy the 
requirements of the RFP. Emphasis should be on completeness and clarity of the 

content. 

 

Proposals shall be firm for a period of thirty (30) days after the closing date. Each 

responding proposer may withdraw their proposal if it has not been accepted within 

thirty (30) days from the RFP closing date. 

 

The award of this contract will be made by the City Council on the basis of the proposal 

which, in the City’s sole and absolute judgment, will best serve the best interests and 

needs of the City. The City reserves the right to accept or reject any or all the 

proposals, and waive any informalities and irregularities in said proposals. 

117



RFP Executive Recruitment Services for City of Newport City Manager 

 

All proposers must provide the information requested in Section V, Proposal Submission 

Requirements. Failure to respond to any or all requested information may result in 

disqualification by the City. 

Questions, interpretations or clarifications of this RFP must be requested in 

electronically in writing. All questions should be directed to Spencer Nebel, 

City Manager, at the following address: m.nelson@newportoregon.gov 

II. ANTICIPATED RFP SCHEDULE 

 

 
 

ACTION 

Issue RFP 

Final Questions 

Due Proposals  

Virtual 

Interviews 

Due Award 

DATE 

October 16, 2023 

October 23, 2023 at noon 

October 30, 2023 at noon 

 

November 6, 2023 at 04:00 P.M Pacific 

On or after, November 6, 2023 

 

III. Scope of Work 

 

The Newport Mayor and City Council will lead all elements of the process, 

including selecting the recruitment firm, working directly with the selected 

firm on all of the tasks, and hiring the City Manager. 

 
The City wishes to conduct a search for a new City Manager, and seeks 

professional assistance with recruitment logistics. The project scope should 

include: facilitation/ coaching with the city council on the city manager 

recruitment process; development of the public process, development of 

recruitment materials; advertisement of the position to be vacated; outreach 

to potential candidates; screening of received applications; assistance with 

the interview process; finalist background and reference checks. The city’s 

goal is to provide an open and fair recruitment that will attract top talent 

while keeping the cost of the recruitment process reasonable. 

 
The scope of the work is to assist them through the entire process beginning 

with planning and preparing for the process and culminating with the 

selection and appointment of the new manager that would include at least 

include at least the following: 

• Provide a clear written scope of the projected costs and a detailed 

recruitment schedule. Meet with the City Council and public to 

outline the public process, position description and selection criteria 

• Review the current job description and compensation and make  

recommendations. 

• Design the recruitment process, schedule, scope of marketing and 

creative marketing materials. 

118

mailto:m.nelson@newportoregon.gov


RFP Executive Recruitment Services for City of Newport City Manager 

 

 

 

 

• Develop a profile for the community and the position that will 

highlight the opportunities and characteristics of the community as 

well as a profile of a successful candidate. 

• Develop a strategy for marketing the position to reach 

potential candidates. Track applications and prepare 

responses to applicants. 

• Establish criteria to review and screen applicants. 

• Initially screen applicants, in accordance with Oregon’s Veterans 

Preference laws and providing information to the City Council on the 

qualified candidates. 

• Be available to manage and oversee the recruitment process over the 

duration of the project, including managing and participating in the 

interviews 

• Assist the Council developing the structure and schedule of final interviews, 

including the debriefing and evaluation process. 

• Perform reference and background checks. 

• Assist the City Council in decisions, job offer, contract negotiations 

and employment agreement. 

 

IV. PRELIMINARY RECRUITMENT SCHEDULE 

• October 16, 2023- Council approve/issue RFP 

• November 6, 2023- Council select executive search firm 

to facilitate the process 

• December 4, 2023- Council and staff will develop the 

position profile, compensation and final calendar 

• January 3, 2024- Advertising will be initiated for the City 

Manager’s position 

• February 5, 2024- The job posting will be closed for this 

position 

• February 12, 2024- Candidates will be selected for 

interviews 

• February 29, 2024- Interviews will be conducted by City 

Council 

• March 4, 2024- Council would make an offer and 

background check process would commence 

• April 15, 2024- Negotiation of employment agreement. 

Targeted start date of July 1, 2024.  

•  

• Note: The actual schedule following November 6, 2023 

would be developed by the executive search firm in 

consultation with the City Council. Proposals can provide 

119



RFP Executive Recruitment Services for City of Newport City Manager 

 

alternative dates and steps for the recruitment process.  

 

V. PROPOSAL SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS: 

The proposing firm shall be responsible for preparing an effective, 

clear, and concise proposal. The proposals must include the 

following information: 

 

1. Letter of Transmittal: All Proposals must include a cover letter 

signed by a person legally authorized to bind the applicant to its 

proposal. The cover letter must include name of the firm, name of 

principal recruiter, address, telephone and fax numbers of the firm and 

email address of the person(s) who are authorized to represent the 

proposer. 

2. Experience and Qualifications: List the key personnel and 

qualifications for those who will be involved in the recruitment,  

relative to the scope of work of this RFP; including but not 

limited to a description of education, certificates or licenses, 

professional background, experience, skills, expertise and training. 

3. Response to Scope of Work: A description of how the proposer 

will provide services and address the scope of work of this RFP. 

4. Compensation: Discussion of proposed fee/compensation/estimated expenses. 

5. Additional Services: Provide descriptions of any other services the firm 

would propose to include within the base cost of the proposal. 

6. References:  

Provide a representative listing of municipal governments for whom the Proposer 

has previously provided executive/City Manager recruitment for, within the last three 

(3) years. Provide government contact name, phone number, and email address. 

Oregon references are preferred. The City reserves the right to explore the 

background, previous experience, training, financial affairs or related matters of any 

firm of individual under consideration for this contract. 

7. Proposer's Warranty: Exhibit A 

8. Other: 

 

• Indicate the Firms approximate annual recruitment volume 

in number of recruitments. 

 
VI. MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: 

 

 
1. Demonstrated experience in providing recruitments to entities 

of equal size, complexity, and scope. 

2. City of Newport is an Equal Opportunity Employer. Each service 

provider must comply with federal, state and local Equal 

Employment Opportunity requirements. 

 

120



RFP Executive Recruitment Services for City of Newport City Manager 

 

VII. SELECTION PROCESS: 

1. Each proposal received will be evaluated to determine if it meets the stated 

requirements. Failure to meet these requirements will be cause for eliminating the 

proposal from further consideration. 

2. The City reserves the right to reject any and all proposals, to accept or reject all parts of the 

proposal, and to be the sole judge of the suitability of the proposals offered. 

 

 

3. Proposals will be evaluated the following criteria: 

• Total fee and cost for the full City Management Recruitment service 

 and identification of estimated costs or rates for extra services. (25 points) 
• Capacity and capability to perform the recruitment timely. (25 points) 

• Successful experience in recruiting City Managers/Executives with great 

public visibility and participation including information about cost controls, 

quality of work, coordination with elected officials, ability to meet schedules, 
and contract administration. (30 points) 

• Availability to meet regularly with the City Council and familiarity with the 

region. (20 points)  

4. All submittals in response to this RFP are public records and available for 

inspection and copying upon request. 

 
5. The City Council will award the contract for services 

VIII. TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 

1. of Agreement: The City anticipates selecting the Proposer to 

commence services sometime after November 6, 2023 

 

2. Withdrawal of RFP: Proposals may be withdrawn before the RFP 

submittal deadline by submitting a written request to Spencer Nebel, 

City Manager at m.nelson@newportoregon.gov. Re-submittal before the 

RFP submittal deadline can be made, however, they may not be re- 

submitted after the deadline. 

 
3. RFP Costs: All costs incurred in the preparation and presentation of the RFP 

shall be the responsibility of the responding party to the RFP. All 

documents submitted as part of the RFP will become property of the City. 

Requests for specific material to be returned will be considered. 

 
4. City of Newport Contacts: The designated individual responsible for 

coordination of the RFP is Spencer Nebel, City Manager. Any questions 

relating to this RFP should be directed to m.nelson@newportoregon.gov in 

writing only. 

 

 

 

121

mailto:m.nelson@newportoregon.gov


RFP Executive Recruitment Services for City of Newport City Manager 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

PROPOSER’S WARRANTY 

 

TO: City of Newport, Oregon 

 

PROPOSAL OF:   

 

( ) an individual ( ) a partnership ( ) a corporation (please mark the appropriate box) organized under 

the laws of the State of  . 

 

The undersigned, having carefully read and considered the Request for Proposal to provide services 

for the City of Newport, Oregon does hereby offer to perform such services on behalf of the City, in 

the manner described and subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the attached proposal. 

Services will be performed at the rates set forth in the Proposal. 

 

OFFEROR 

 

Company Name 

 

BY  _________________________ 

Signature of Authorized Representative  

 

________________________________ 

Print name  

 

PRINCIPAL OFFICE ADDRESS 

Federal tax ID   State ID  _____________  

Street Address     

City  ________________ 

County   

State  ________________ 

Zip Code  ____________ 

Telephone 

 ____________________ 

Facsimile   

E-Mail Address  

 

 

THIS FORM MUST ACCOMPANY ALL PROPOSALS 

 

122



RFP Executive Recruitment Services for City of Newport City Manager 

 

 

123



CITY MANAGER REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: October 16, 2023 
 
Agenda Item: 
Report and Possible Action on Utilization of Action Minutes for the City Council, Boards 
and Commissions. 
 
Background: 
At the October 2, 2023 City Council meeting, discussion was held on the current format 
of minutes for the City Council and various boards and commissions. The City has 
traditionally used very detailed minutes outlining managers reports, highlights of 
discussion, other actions, and include actions taken by the City Council and by the various 
Boards and Committees. Action-based minutes indicate items such as attendance, time 
the meeting begins and ends, and outlines agenda items and any actions taken on those 
items. They also include a brief description of any items that are brought up that are off 
the agenda. Since all City Council, Boards and Committee meetings are recorded. When 
time stamping is used through Granicus you can go to each agenda item to hear that part 
of the meeting quickly and efficiently, and detailed packets are on the website. The need 
to restate that all in the form of minutes is redundant. Originally, we had thought about 
excluding the Planning and Development Commission from this format for minutes. Upon 
discussion with Derrick Tokos, it is his opinion that the Planning Commission could use 
action minutes as well, since transcripts are ordered from a third party contractor when 
needed for Planning Commission meetings. 
 
Overall, this would be a significant time savings for the City staff and specifically for the 
Recorder's office that could be spent on other issues. It should also be noted that Newport 
has a substantially higher number of Boards and Committees than other comparable 
Cities our size. This further makes the case for simplifying the minute system for the City 
of Newport. The model that we would utilize for the minutes would be based on the 
Stayton model. There is a significant advantage of utilizing one format for all minutes 
being generated for Boards and Committees of the City of Newport. We would work to get 
this model out and have staff trained to utilize the new format effective November 1, if 
Council is comfortable moving in this direction.  
 
Recommendation: 
I recommend that the City Council consider the following motion: 
 
I move to authorize the implementation of action minutes for the City Council and for 
Boards and Committees effective November 1, 2023.  
 

  

124



Fiscal Effects: 
Utilization of action minutes will be a significant time saver for all staff supporting Boards 
and Commissions of the City of Newport  
 
Alternatives:  
Utilize a different model, do not proceed with action minutes at this time, or as suggested 
by the City Council.  
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 

 
 
 

Spencer Nebel 
City Manager 
 
 
 

125



 

 

        

         
 
                          
                                                                    Meeting Date: October 16, 2023  
      
 
Title: Report on Action Minutes 
 
Prepared by: Erik Glover, Assistant City Manager/City Recorder 
  
Recommended Motion: None, informational only.  
 
Background Information:  
 
At the October 02, 2023 City Council meeting, Staff detailed the possibility of converting Newport 
to action minutes, and away from transcript type minutes. While Newport, uses a hybrid type of 
minutes, it leans towards a transcript. This is due to staff time required to process the minutes, 
the fact that all meetings are audio/video recorded with the recordings maintained from the record. 
Secondly, many cities are moving to action minutes for various reasons.  
 
At the October 02, 2023 meeting it was the general consensus of most of the Council members 
present that they desired to move towards a more action-based minutes style, with a specific 
interest in producing minutes like the Stayton model due to ease of readability.  Councilor Hall 
expressed some concerns with the transition, in some instances. Council requested additional 
time to discuss this item in greater detail at the next meeting. 
 
Councilor Hall sent an email to the Council group email providing a list of cities and their 
populations in relation to Newport’s size, and expressing some concern with the cities chosen 
during the first discussion on this item. Some of the cities in staff’s initial selection were much 
larger, some were much smaller than Newport, some were in the ballpark of Newport. Staff 
performed a review of various cities from the list Councilor Hall provided, and downloaded sets of 
their minutes for further Council review and discussion.   
 
In the first meeting on the subject, staff indicated that following a review of other communities 
across the state, it seems that Newport in addition, may potentially have more committees than 
many other communities even of equivalent size and scope, which increases the amount of time 
required for minutes preparation and production. 
 
 For the preparation of this staff report, staff performed a review of the committees, commissions, 
agencies and work groups maintained/staffed by the organization, to arrive at an approximate 
number for Council consideration: 
Independence- 10 Committees including Council 
Astoria- 10 Committees including Council 
Sweet Home- 11 Committees including Council 
Cottage Grove- 7 Committees including Council 
Baker City- 10 Committees including Council 
Monmouth- 9 Committees including Council 
Lincoln City- 8 Committees including Council 
Newport- 20 Committees including Council 

STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

126



 

 

 
(Not on the City by population list but Council liked the readability/format of their minutes).  
Stayton- 6 Committees including Council 
(Not on the City by population list, but is similar in scope to Newport.) 
 Florence- 9 Committees including Council 
 
In the previous staff report on this matter Staff indicated that these changes would not impact 
Planning Commission, due to their minutes styles being more complex than other groups (the 
exception being when Council is holding a land use action). Staff held a discussion with CDD 
Tokos who indicated that in many cases, the Planning Commission has to go out for the 
preparation of a transcript of their hearings by a third party contractor, anyway. CDD Tokos 
reported that it would be better to have organizational uniformity, and secondarily to not have his 
staff have to maintain two distinct types of minutes productions, and have to switch back and forth 
depending upon the group they are being prepared for, as this would complicate the process.  
 

Staff is requesting Council hold a discussion on their interest in converting to action 
minutes in Newport, for the Council, URA and all committees, including the Planning 
Commission which for a trial period and to be reconsidered in 6 months. Note: This would 
also not include City Council involvement in land use processes or decisions, it is 
expected hybrid minutes would continue to be produced.   
 
 
Fiscal Notes: None  
 
Alternatives: None recommended 
 
Attachments:  
Astoria Minutes 
Baker City Minutes 
Cottage Grove Minutes 
Lincoln City Minutes 
Monmouth Minutes 
Independence Minutes 
Stayton WS Minutes 
Stayton Council Minutes 
Sweet Home Minutes 
Florence Minutes 
 

127



From: CM Hall <CM.Hall@NewportOregon.gov>  

Sent: Wednesday, October 4, 2023 5:00 PM 

To: City Council <CityCouncil@NewportOregon.gov> 

Subject: Oregon Cities by Population.  

 

In our discussion about action minutes during Monday’s work session, I suggested we could adopt it as a 

pilot with committees but to reserve the Council meetings, work sessions, and Budget meetings as full 

minutes. I also asked that we do comps for similarly sized cities - what they do. We have a lot of 

different committees and activities because of our unique demands serving local residents, tourists and 

industry.  

I did a search for the Oregon cities that are similarly sized to Newport.  

Newport is the 62nd largest city in Oregon. (Out of 418 cities, towns, hamlets, etc.) 😁 

Our population being ~ 10,400.  

We looked at comps from Powers (pop. 713), Florence (pop. 9.376), Sodaville (pop. 361), and Stayton 

(pop. 8,188).  

Oregon Cities by Population 

oregon-demographics.com 
 

 

 

Here are cities that are similarly sized.  

 

128

https://www.oregon-demographics.com/cities_by_population
https://www.oregon-demographics.com/cities_by_population


 

129



 

 
City Council Meeting Minutes – December 10, 2018  1 of 6 

 
 

 

 
 

City of Florence 
City Council Regular Session 

Held at the Siuslaw Valley Fire & Rescue 
2625 Hwy 101, Florence, Oregon 

Final Action Minutes 

December 10, 2018 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER - ROLL CALL - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Meeting called to order at 5:30 p.m. 

 
Councilors Present:  Mayor Joe Henry, Councilors Joshua Greene, Ron Preisler, 

Susy Lacer and Woody Woodbury.  

  
Councilors Absent:  None 

 
Staff Present: City Manager Erin Reynolds, Public Works Director Mike 

Miller, Chief of Police Tom Turner, Planning Director Wendy 

FarleyCampbell, City Recorder / Economic Development 
Coordinator Kelli Weese, Project Manager Megan Messmer, 

Human Resources Analyst Alex Ferguson, Associate Planner 
Glen Southerland and Florence Events Center Director Kevin 
Rhodes.   

 
PRESENTATIONS & ANNOUNCEMENTS 

• Employee Introduction 
o Police Officer – Wade Martin 

 

 Start Time: 5:30 p.m. 
 Action:  Mr. Martin was introduced to the City Council.  

 
1.  PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items Not on the Agenda 

This is an opportunity for members of the audience to bring to the Council’s attention any item not otherwise listed on 

the Agenda. Persons wishing to address the Council must complete a Speaker’s Card available online at 
http://www.ci.florence.or.us/council/request-address-city-council-speakers-card, or at the meeting. Speakers Cards 
are due at least (5) minutes before the meeting. Comments will be limited to three (3) minutes per person, with a 
maximum time of 15 minutes for all items. Speakers may not yield their time to others.  

 
 Start Time: 5:32 p.m. 
 Comments: None 

  

This document is supplemented by agenda packet materials, meeting materials distributed and 
electronic audio / video recordings of the meeting and may be reviewed upon request  

to the City Recorder.  

130

http://www.ci.florence.or.us/council/request-address-city-council-speakers-card


 

 
City Council Meeting Minutes – December 10, 2018  2 of 6 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

2.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Consider approval of the October 22, 2018 City Council meeting minutes and 

the October 24, 2018 City Council work session minutes.  
 
3.  CERTIFICATION O F ELECTION 

Consider approval of Resolution No. 23, Series 2018, a resolution certifying 
the results of the 2018 General Election.  

 

4.  TSUNAMI EVACUATION WAYFINDING SIGNAGE GRANT 
Consider authorizing staff to submit an application to the Oregon Department 

of Geology and Mineral Industries (DOGAMI) and the Oregon Office of 
Emergency Management to assist with the purchasing of additional tsunami 
evacuation wayfinding signage.  

 
 Start Time: 5:33 p.m. 

 Action: Approval of the consent agenda items as presented.  
 Motion: Councilor Lacer 
 Second:  Councilor Woodbury 

 Vote: Unanimous 
 
PUBLIC HEARING & ACTION ITEMS 
The public will have an opportunity to offer comments on public hearing items after staff has given their report. Persons wishing 
to address the Council must complete a Speaker’s Card available online at http://www.ci.florence.or.us/council/request-
address-city-council-speakers-card, or at the meeting. Speaker’s cards are due at least five (5) minutes before the meeting. 

Comments will be limited to five (5) minutes per person. Speakers may not yield their time to others.  

 
3.  PETERSON ANNEXATION & ZONE CHANGE 

 
A. PUBLIC HEARING 

Hear and consider written and oral testimony regarding the annexation and 

zone assignment of the 0.20 acre property located at 87717 Rhododendron 
Drive, east of North Jetty Drive as applied for by Mr. Gordon Peterson.  

  
 Start Time: 5:35 p.m. 
 Hearing Reading: CR Weese read the Land Use Hearing Script and officiated 

the public hearing procedures. 
 Public Hearing:  Opened at 5:37 p.m. 
 

 Handout: PowerPoint Presentation 
 Discussion:  The City Council discussed… 

• Potential stormwater needs for the area 
Comments: Councilor Preisler 

 
 Comments: None 
 

131

http://www.ci.florence.or.us/council/request-address-city-council-speakers-card
http://www.ci.florence.or.us/council/request-address-city-council-speakers-card


 

 
City Council Meeting Minutes – December 10, 2018  3 of 6 

 Public Hearing: Closed at 5:41 p.m. 
 

 
B. APPROVAL OF ANNEXATION REQUEST 

Consider approval of Ordinance No. 18, Series 2018, an ordinance 
approving the annexation of Assessors Map No. 18-12-10-33, Tax Lot 
00200. 

 
 Action: First Reading of Ordinance No. 18, Series 2018 
 Vote: Unanimous 

 
 Action: Second reading of Ordinance No. 18, Series 2018 

 Motion: Mayor Henry 
 Second:  Councilor Lacer 
 Roll Call Vote: Councilor Woodbury – Aye 

  Councilor Preisler – Aye 
  Councilor Greene – Aye 

  Councilor Lacer – Aye 
  Mayor Henry – Aye 
  Ordinances passes 5-0 

 
C. APPROVAL OF ZONE ASSIGNMENT 

Consider approval of Ordinance No. 19, Series 2018, an ordinance 

establishing Restricted Residential zoning district for the Peterson property, 
as part of the proposed annexation.  

 
 Action: First Reading of Ordinance No. 19, Series 2018 
 Vote: Unanimous 

 
 Action: Second reading of Ordinance No. 19, Series 2018 
 Motion: Councilor Preisler 

 Second:  Councilor Lacer 
 Roll Call Vote: Councilor Woodbury – Aye 

  Councilor Preisler – Aye 
  Councilor Greene – Aye 
  Councilor Lacer – Aye 

  Mayor Henry – Aye 
  Ordinances passes 5-0 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

132



 

 
City Council Meeting Minutes – December 10, 2018  4 of 6 

 
ACTION ITEMS 
The public will have an opportunity to offer comments on action items after staff has given their report. Persons wishing to 
address the Council must complete a Speaker’s Card available online at http://www.ci.florence.or.us/council/request-address-
city-council-speakers-card, or at the meeting. Speaker’s cards are due at least five (5) minutes before the meeting. Comments 

will be limited to three (3) minutes per person. Speakers may not yield their time to others.  

 
6.  VOLUNTEER POLICY MANUAL 

Consider approval of Resolution No. 24, Series 2018, a resolution 
establishing a Volunteer Policy Manual.  

  

 Start Time: 5:45 p.m.  
 Handouts: PowerPoint Presentation 
 Discussion:  The City Council discussed… 

• Appreciation for the time tracking elements for 
volunteers 

Comments: Councilor Greene  
 

 Action: Approval of Resolution No. 24, Series 2018  
 Motion: Councilor Woodbury 
 Second:  Councilor Greene 

 Vote: Unanimous 
 

7.  CITY MANAGER EVALUATION 
Consider approval of the annual evaluation for City Manager Erin Reynolds 
and consider salary adjustments beginning January 1, 2019.  

  
 Start Time: 5:57 p.m. 
 Discussion:  The City Council discussed… 

• Process for the City Manager evaluation 

• Appreciation for Ms. Reynolds work and the energy 
within the staff led by Ms. Reynolds 

• Items reviewed during the City Manager evaluation 
process 

Comments: Mayor Henry 
 
 Action: Approve the City Manager Employee Evaluation of 3.82 / 

4.00 and approve a contract amendment to amend Ms. 
Reynolds annual base salary by a 2% increase to $132,451. 

 Motion: Councilor Lacer 

 Second:  Councilor Greene 
 Vote: Unanimous 

 
 
 

 
 

133

http://www.ci.florence.or.us/council/request-address-city-council-speakers-card
http://www.ci.florence.or.us/council/request-address-city-council-speakers-card


 

 
City Council Meeting Minutes – December 10, 2018  5 of 6 

8.  2019 CITY COUNCIL MEETING CALENDAR  
Review and consider approval of the 2019 City Council meeting calendar.  

 
 Start Time: 6:03 p.m.  

 Discussion:  The City Council discussed… 

• City Council work session start times 
Comments: Mayor Henry 

 
 Action: Approve the 2019 City Council Meeting Calendar dates and 

consider evaluating City Council work session start times at 
the January 7th City Council meeting 

 Motion: Councilor Preisler 

 Second:  Councilor Woodbury 
 Vote: Unanimous 

 
 
REPORT & DISCUSSION ITEMS 

 
9.  OCTOBER / NOVEMBER BOARD & COMMITTEE REPORTS 

Report on the Boards & Committees for the Month of October / November 
2018. 

  

 Start Time: 6:06 p.m. 
 Discussion:  The City Council discussed… 

• Public Art selection of artist design for Central Lincoln 
PUD Mural 

Comments: Councilor Greene 

 
10.  CITY MANAGER REPORT & DISCUSSION ITEMS 

 
 Start Time: 6:08 p.m. 
 Discussion: The City Council discussed… 

• City Council and other city upcoming meetings 

• Upcoming city events 
 

11.  CITY COUNCIL REPORTS & DISCUSSION ITEMS 

 
 Start Time: 6:12 p.m. 

 Discussion: The City Council discussed… 

• Council activities in the community and community 
announcements  

 
 Meeting adjourned at 6:16 p.m. 

 
 

134



 

 
City Council Meeting Minutes – December 10, 2018  6 of 6 

      
ATTEST:                                                               Joe Henry, Mayor 

 
 

   
   Kelli Weese, City Recorder 

135



13
6



13
7



13
8



13
9



14
0



14
1



14
2



14
3



14
4



14
5



14
6



14
7



14
8



14
9



15
0



15
1



15
2



15
3



15
4



15
5



15
6



15
7



15
8



15
9



16
0



16
1



16
2



16
3



16
4



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



����������	�
��������������������
�����������

���������������������� !��"#$%�&�'(( �$)*#(+,-!.�/#&!���.�0102'�$# (+������������3 �455�67�789:83�6;��<������=�������������>��>���?@����<�A������>�B�;����4>���3��3 8755��4553���������>����@��� C;��������>>�C�>�;�B�A�D�;����>���E��������>�������>��D���C�;=�>F��>��������4A���@ 9�=��8�����G�H�����I����C�����>����@�� D�����E��J�����������>D�>���B�;����J�����8���>��>K>���:L����>J����������������>C;�=���>L���J�:����<���9�L����<���9�>���>5����M��A�>J��������C�3�3 ��NO6:C3�6;��<���������;��B������J������8�����>��������=�>����A<�������;������������P�34�6�7N@���������>���>���<�L��������>�L��;��<�����������A<���Q���������>���>>���������3��������������R����@4S:C@� ��>>J�B�A�J���>���E�����J���>��J�C�;=�>F��>����������������������N4SC@� N���4TC6:N6�7NC@� N���U3 V�C�678C�
��OT5����7��:N6C3�N���3R3 8:�786C�
��8:C:N646�7NCR3�3 ����>���4>����>���>��@�3��4���<<�>���;����>�<�7976�>���>�����;��W=������>��������<�>�L�<����=������>�A���Q��<�>>�=�7976�=����;�L���������><�������;�>�����������������P�������K��>�>�����3�����><������;���A>������>�L��=��3A3��W�J�����>�D���F���������>�9�����<��=�;�>��>������L���>���>�����<��������>�L���>����>���>��>��3��3��W��=���A������>�����������������9���@�;��;������=�;�;��K����T��P�����Q�;������������;��D��X����>����Y�;����>��������Q�;����������>�D���F���>���;���������>�;��Q�;����������>�D���F�=�>�����;����>���J������=����;��Z[\]�̂�_̀�â
174



����������	�
��������������������
�����������

�������������������� ��� ������������!�����"���#$��%�����&�����������'��"��������������(�����������'��)������#����(����������("�������(�*�������+����������(�������������"��#��,�����-������#.�������(���#��""��/�(�����������������'������#�.��0�����������������������.�1��2��#��,����#������������(����'������#�����(�*���������3�#���������(�������*������1.������������#�����(������������!������(������������#�������%��������4�"��5��.�������������������#�#�'�����6���������4��7�8���������3�"��(����*��4�������"�������'���4������#� ��� %��������������$�%�����&�����.�9����(���3�����"(���3��������2��"������#���������������"#�����: 9����$�-����1�.�����������4�������������#������������#�����;��������#.������������&������#�#����%�((���%��������(�����"+���������(����������'��-���������������#���������'��#������'��9�����9������: )����������""��$�����������(��,8�,����#�����.����4�������#�����������������������������4�������%(����'���������������������������"�����(.�5�������������(��������������'����������"�����"����+���������#�������.����������"����������#�����#�����4��������#����"�����(+����'���������/"��������������'���������"��������"������#��������������4���"�������4�'�������������������������5���������#��,������#���<�"��"�������������+������'�������'��4���������
�������!�������"�����(.�������������#���'���#��������#������������((�����: !��4��������!����(���!��4��������"�#����"�������(������"����#��("���(������������������5�'�������'�����(����#����������������������0����%"����: !��4��������&3,���������������+����6������3������������%����"�����(������(���.���������'��������������������������� ������"��"����������(�����������#������������((���������������: ,�������4��������&3,����6�����������%���������+������������������������1 ������"���(�������'���#���������'���#������(�4���"��������(���������.��("����������#����4�"�#��,����5�������#�������&3,����������������"�'���#��"��(�����������""���������������6"����2�����'���#�����: 3���������������������������=������#������������������������4��������(������: !����(���!��4�������������������'���������������#�������("��(��������#����4���"����"�����(��2�"�������������#������4����(����#��+���������������#������������������'��(�������������������������4�#��������������%��������������������'�.��������������"���#����1�.� �.���#�>�����6��'���������������������4�#��������������'��(�������4�������"�#+�&���������4�������������������������������������(������>� ?@A&@&%293�)?%&@9%%��@����� @9!�)?%&@9%%����� 8���������B���� CC.�%�""�������,���A����#�����((�����������(�,""��������������������!�������#���#�)��'����������.�9/�������3����������������(����%������������ DEFG�H�IJ�KL
175



����������	�
��������������������
�����������

������������������������������� ��!���������������������������"�! ������� ��#�#$��� �����������#���������#�� ���������%�&����������'�����������������������������������"�! ������� ��� ����������������������$����"�! ����� ��������(��$���������������� ��))*��)���+��������,����("�-�������.�������������������������������������.�$����� ������##�#��"���#$��� �����������/������������������������������%���������������� ������������$�� ��'�����������������������"�0��(������1���#�������� ��������#.�� �� �� ����������"�)�(��������������������� �����������������������"��������������������� �� ��� ���� ���������� ��/����#���������.�� �� ����������������"�)�-'2,3���������������#����� �� ���������������*���������,�"�����411�56���������!��������� �����7��)����������������#$��� ����� ��))*��,����(����)���+��������������������##������%�����������������8��������������"��������������4����3)95!3� ����.�:�$�.�������8�����.������.�!� ���;�������������������������,)9!3� ,���)<!-5,-'2,!3� ,����"�" 20���0�������)�������.�,���2����� ��.�!����������(�"!��=��$�����������������#�������������������� �������������(�"�������:� ����)���������� ��20������������������ ����������������������������������������������� �#��� �����##��������")�-'2,3����������������#�����������##���������������� ����/��������������/��������!����������(��������������#��������������%�����������:�$����������"��������������4����3 )95!3� ����.�:�$�.�������8�����.������.�!� ���;�������������������������,)9!3� ,���)<!-5,-'2,!3� ,����"�" 20���0�������)�������.�,���2�����.�- ��-���!����"����������������8��������(������ ��������������������.�=��$����������� �� �������������������������#������������������������$�������������#����� ������"��������������������������#������������%���(������ ��$������������$�����.����>���������%�=��$�����������������������#�����#������������� ��")�-'2,3����������������8������#�����������##���������������� ����/��������������/��������- ��-���!����%������������������������"��������������4����3)95!3� ����.�:�$�.�������8�����.������.�*����.�!� ���;�������������������������,)9!3� ,���)<!-5,-'2,!3� ,����"?" ��$����@������3�)���6����"@��������������$����������)����"ABCD�E�FG�HI
176



����������	�
��������������������
�����������

������������������������ ��!����"�!�#�$���!����������%������!&������������'��!��
()���!��������
*���+�,���������!��&�,���-����������!�.���������&�"����/�#�!+�(0����!���..�!�1���-�������!�#�!����#!�0��������-���������#��2�&�/�3����#�!�������4&56���!�����6���"!�2�!�/���&�()������1������������������-�'����!���7�-��#!�#���������1��������� ��0��'����!���&� ��!�0��$���-����.#!�-����0��#����!�3��!�.��������'8��1�����-������!��!��&�9-��#!�#�!��-���%��������������-��0�������!�������-����.#�#�����������:�:&� ��!�0��$���-�����������-������!����1��������-�����������$���!�����������!�-��0�������!���;�$-��-��������-���.�!��!��!���0��<��%��2�!�3��!�.���;���!��)�.#��=&�9-��$��1������!��0�!����.���!&�(0����!������-�������������)���������-�����1�����-����&�,������##����������!���0���#.��&�9-������-����!����#7��������!����0���#.���$����!�3��!�������������!�0��$&�9-��3�����������-�����-�����-���#!�#�!��%������)��;����������;�$-���-�����-��1������%�&�"����!���..������##!�0����������)����&��������!���!����)#!�������!��������!�-��!��#�����!���!�����3��!�����!�.�����&���������!���%����2������-����>���%��2�����!�.�"!�2�!�/���;��������-�!���!���-�!���%��2�7�(0����!������-�!��$�����%������>���%��2��!�.�-��!���!���&9���.���+�&�?##�����&�,����&�'��@�0�!&�,�����&�,��!��&�*!��������;�'���#�������&� �������-��4�!�����������!�����%��-����A�����#!�#�!������-��-�������!�#�!�����!���-������-%�!-���&�9-!������!-�����-������������!�!����������1����&� ��%����0���-�������!�#�!���%������.#������������.����������������������-�������!������%�$�������2����������-�'����!��������-�����>�� ��0��'����!��������$�������&� ��������������������������-��������%��.���������-������!.���������0����%��7�#��#����-��0������-���.��!������-�������!�#�!�����.�����&�B&�C##����&�����!���-����?!���������-������!����0���$!�������.�����!�.����������������-����"-�!&�B&�&���������"-�!;�'���#�������&�"-��������-����0�����!����-���!����!�.�-��#�!���;������%A����������)�������������1�����' &�"-��!�����!.��-��-��#!�#�!�������!!�������%��!����������#!�#�!�&�"-���#�2����-���$��!����-��#!�#�!�;�����$���������$�����%������!������������$�-��.����.�������!���;�0�!����$�!��2�&�"-��������-�!�������������������.����$����������-��0�������!���&�9-������-%�!-������!������������!���!�.�-���#��������%����.�������!�!&�9-�!��$�����%�����!������!�������������������������&�9-�!���!����������-��!����#!����������!�-������-%�!-���&�B&�&����-����"-�!;�'���#�������&� �������-������-�����0�!���1����&�9-��#!�#�!�����#!�.�!����%�������%��!����������#!�#�!���;� '�����##!�#!���7��'��!���..�!������-�����%���������!��&�4&�?##������/�%���&��������!!��;�$�!2����!�D������������&�9-�����!���$�-� ';�%����0���-����.#��������%��!��#�����&�9-���$����2��#����!����1��������$����2��#�-��#!�#�!�������������������!%�����-%�!�&���������!���%����2��������$�����%������!�������7���!!��������-�!���!��$�!�-�������)����������$���������-�.�����!��.��!����&EFGH�I�JK�IL
177



����������	�
��������������������
�����������

������������������������� ����!�"��������"��������#����������������������� � ��#�$����$����%�������$��$���&�����������'�����(������������������������)������� $������*������������������$��������&+�������������������������� ��������$$������,-�.&�&�/���������������*�0���$�������&�1���������������������������������������)����*�"�����(�������������$$��$����&�0�����$��$������������������������*���������������������$�������2��������&�����������  ���*����$���������� ���&��&3�����������!�������������������&�4�������������������"���������(����#���$�����������'������3�������������������*���������$�������������������������������&�&4����������"������"������� �����������������&�5����������������2���$��������*����������6������������������������������������$��$������������&�&5����2��"��������������������01�(�������������������7����0��������&�5����2���������$������6���� ���*�����������������&�8��������������������"��������&�.&������������5��������������������������������������������"��������������07���������01�(����&���������6���������������-����������9�"����������������������������������������� �*���������)����������������(�����&�/2������������������������$��2����������������������������������� ��&�:���������������&�����������������5�������������������������$��$���������������������������������*���������/2��������$��������&�9�"�������������������������  ������#�/2�������������*��������������������������������������  ������&�����������������5�����������������������������������*��������������"����"!���������;���"���#�/2�������������;&�������������������$���������������6�����������������������"������#�������������������������������&�'���������������)����������� $��2�����$��$������������������2������������������������������������������"������)����� �������&������������������������������������"�����������2������������2����������#�/2�������������������������������#��������  ���������2�����������*���������������2��������������!�����������$��$���&���������������������������������������� �2�����*�����������������$��$������������$$�������*�����������2���� ���������������������������� $���������#�/2��������������*�������� ������������"����*��������� ��&�����������������������"��� ���������<<;������������������#�������������"������&�/2�������������������8�������0�2�� ����������*������6����������������������2����������������������������&�/2�������������������6�������������*������������������������ �����.%;&=>?@�A�BC�DE
178



����������	�
��������������������
�����������

��������������������������� ����!"����������#����$�%&������ ������� �"���������"������������&��'��(�)������������������������������#�����'����������&����������'����(��������������������������������� ��������������*��������������� ����� ���������"��"���$�����������(������+� ����,�������!!���#��� ���������������-����'��'��� ������ �����.����������.�' ��#����� ������""��(����������+���������� �����'�������� �����������������'����*���������/�������$�%&�������������.���'�������*�������#����� ����(�0����� ���*�������(�������+� ����,���������� ���""������ ��� ����� ��� ���� �� ��������"�������������.���� �������'��&�����!������(��%&��������!!���#��.������� �� ����������!�����������������!�������'����� �&��������������!�$���� ������/�'��������!����� ������� ��.� ��� ��������������!�����������������'(�1 ���""�������������������� ���'�� ������!�.� ���� ������ ����!���(�2���� �� ���'��&������!������(3�������4�5���������������������(��������6����������7����������2� '��#��������� ��!�&������89������� �&�������������������*������$�����������������������(����������������������������� ��'� � ���!"���������������������.�� �������� ��93�����������(����������������������������������� �������������������.�������&�����: ����&������(����������+���������� �������/� ���� ���� ������������:��(����������2� '��#���������� ��'��������!��������������������������"��������(�������+� ����,��������������������������"�����"�������������'��'����� �&�����������(�%&��������"����� ����&��'���2��� �"����;$���������������������*����!���(�1 �����������/���������������������� � ��&��������� �����������#����(�9�� ���������� ����.��������/� ��&�����������.�</���� (����������������������������'�������!����������������������5=����� ��&�� ������ $�%&��������"�������(,�19=07����������������!�&������""��&��>����0�(�,?��������.�����:��������<(;@���������ABCD�E�FG�HI
179



������������	�
���
���������������	�����������

��������������� ����!������������� ��������������������������""�������������!��#���������$����������!���%�
���������
������������&��������!������'����()*+�(� 
��� �,�-� ��������.����� ������� ���$/��0�������������������������1)*�(� ,�-�)2�3+13451�(� 1����&6& 
�������2����7������� �8��������3��������)���9������
��&�)
3451(
���������
����"�#������������$��!��!�����5�������� �
�������2����7��������������������$����9�������������������$��
�������!����� ������$����������"�%�
����������������.��������������&��������!������'����()*+�(� 
��� ��������.����� ������� ���$/��0�������������������������1)*�(� ,�-�)2�3+13451�(� 1���3$������������������$������������/����-��-����$������$����9��"���������������������������&�:& ;+1+�)<�41=5��)3451&�4��"����-"����������$��!�������������������"���������%�����������/�����>������-������������&?&��& 
5@1
4<�)115@1
+�+13�&�1���&)8,5@�1�+13&�.��$��������$���-�������������"��-�������$��������� �"�#��������A����&��������!������6����()*+�(� 
��� �,�-� ��������.����� ������� ���$/��0�������������������������1)*�(� 1���)2�3+13451�(� 1�������������A������(�:(���!" BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�)*5��,5C1���)�8<+)33+�3(BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBD�����,�$���� ���
 �
�����������
EFGH�I�JK�LM

180



The Office of 

CITY ADMINISTRATION 

1 – Lincoln City Council Minutes May 8, 2023 

 

CITY OF LINCOLN CITY 

 
 

CITY COUNCIL MINUTES OF THE MEETING 

 

May 8, 2023, 6:00 PM 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Wahlke called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 

B. ROLL CALL 

Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 

Susan Wahlke Mayor Present  

Sydney Kasner Councilor Ward 2 Present  

Judy Casper Councilor Ward 3 Present  

Riley Hoagland Councilor Ward 2 Present  

Rick Mark Councilor Ward 3 Present  

Mitch Parsons Councilor Ward 1 Present  

 

Staff Present: Daphnee Legarza, City Manager; Richard Appicello, City Attorney; Chief Broderick, Lincoln City 

Police Department; Alison Robertson, Economic Development and Urban Renewal Director; Seth Lenaerts, 

Project Manager; Stephanie Reid, Public Works Director; Anne Marie Skinner, Planning and Community 

Development Director; David Twigg, I.T. Support Specialist; Jamie Young, City Recorder.   

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Mayor Wahlke led The Pledge of Allegiance. 

D. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 1,2 & 4 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Rick Mark, Councilor Ward 3 

SECONDER: Sydney Kasner, Councilor Ward 2 

AYES: Wahlke, Kasner, Casper, Hoagland, Mark, Parsons 

 

The final minutes for this meeting are supplemented by an electronic recording of the meeting, which 

may be viewed online at www.lincolncity.org under the tab “Agendas, Packets, and Videos”.  The staff 

reports, resolutions, ordinances, and other documents related to this meeting are also available at the 

same location.  This meeting is rebroadcast on Cable Channel 4.  (See Channel 4 guide on the hour at 

http://www2.lincolncity.org/program-guide/. 

APPROVED BY CITY COUNCIL 

 

DATE: ______5/22/23_________ 

181

http://www.lincolncity.org/
http://www2.lincolncity.org/program-guide/


2 – Lincoln City Council Minutes May 8, 2023 

 

1. Reappointment to the Library Board 

MOTION: Motion to Reappoint Brittany Anderson and Robert Pfohman to the 

Library Board with a Term Ending 6/30/2027. 

MOVER: Rick Mark, Councilor Ward 3 

SECONDER: Sydney Kasner, Councilor Ward 2 

AYES: Wahlke, Kasner, Casper, Hoagland, Mark, Parsons 

RESULT: Passed 

 

2. First Amendment to Employment Agreement - Municipal Court Judge 

MOTION: FIRST AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT - MUNICIPAL COURT 

JUDGE 

MOVER: Rick Mark, Councilor Ward 3 

SECONDER: Sydney Kasner, Councilor Ward 2 

AYES: Wahlke, Kasner, Casper, Hoagland, Mark, Parsons 

RESULT: Passed 

 

3. Agreement for Abandoned RV Abatement 

MOTION: Motion to Approve the Agreement for Abandoned RV Abatement 

MOVER: Judy Casper, Councilor Ward 3 

SECONDER: Rick Mark, Councilor Ward 3 

AYES: Wahlke, Kasner, Casper, Hoagland, Mark, Parsons 

RESULT: Passed 

 

Councilor Mark pulled item 3. Councilor Mark reviewed items in the agreement that may need to be 

changed.   

4. Regular Meeting – Minutes of Regular Meeting – April 24, 2023, 6:00 PM 

MOTION: City Council - Regular Meeting - Apr 24, 2023, 6:00 PM 

MOVER: Rick Mark, Councilor Ward 3 

SECONDER: Sydney Kasner, Councilor Ward 2 

RESULT: Passed 

E. COUNCIL DELIBERATIONS 

None 

F. COMMENTS FROM CITIZENS PRESENT ON AGENDA/NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

Stacy Baird of Lincoln City spoke regarding the following agenda items; Ordinance 2023-08, Ordinance 

2023-07, Resolution 2023-07, the City's debt, utility rates, a $20K grant, and the MOU for the Judge. 

 

Ms. Legarza summarized a public comment received regarding marijuana dispensaries and out-of-area 

Staff.  

G. PRESENTATIONS 

None 

H. PUBLIC HEARING / ORDINANCE 

None 

182



3 – Lincoln City Council Minutes May 8, 2023 

 

I. PUBLIC HEARINGS / PUBLIC COMMENTS 

1. Public Comment Resolution 2023-08 Proposed Revisions to City Public Works fee schedule 

Mr. Appicello explained the resolution. No Citizens were present to comment on the resolution. Council 

and Staff had a discussion. 
 

J. ORDINANCES 

2. ORDINANCE NO. 2023-07 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LINCOLN CITY AMENDING THE LINCOLN 

CITY MUNICIPAL CODE, TITLE 2 (ADMINISTRATION AND PERSONNEL), AMENDING CHAPTER 2.14 

(COMMITTEE FOR CITIZEN INVOLVEMENT), AMENDING SECTION 2.14.030 (POWERS AND DUTIES) TO 

REFER TO THE OREGON ADMINISTRATIVE RULE GOVERNING THE COMMITTEE 

MOTION: Motion to Approve First Reading Ordinance 2023-07 Amending Authority 

for Citizen Involvement Committee 

MOVER: Riley Hoagland, Councilor Ward 2 

SECONDER: Judy Casper, Councilor Ward 3 

AYES: Wahlke, Kasner, Casper, Hoagland, Mark, Parsons 

RESULT: Passed by Roll Call Vote 

 

This is to replace Ordinance 2023-04 which was a duplicate number.  

3.  

MOTION: Motion to Approve Second Reading and Adoption of Ordinance 2023-07 

Amending Authority for Citizen Involvement Committee 

MOVER: Riley Hoagland, Councilor Ward 2 

SECONDER: Judy Casper, Councilor Ward 3 

AYES: Wahlke, Kasner, Casper, Hoagland, Mark, Parsons 

RESULT: Passed by Roll Call Vote 

 

4. ORDINANCE NO. 2023-08 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LINCOLN CITY AMENDING THE LINCOLN 

CITY MUNICIPAL CODE, TITLE 4, (REAL PROPERTY), AMENDING CHAPTER 4.04 (ACCEPTANCE OF REAL 

PROPERTY INTERESTS, LEASES, AND IGA RENEWALS), SECTION 4.04.010 (CITY MANAGER-

DELEGATION), ADDING MOU / MOA TO DELEGATED IGA AUTHORITY 

MOTION: Motion to Approve First Reading of Ordinance 2023-08 - Add MOU MOA 

to IGA Delegation 

MOVER: Riley Hoagland, Councilor Ward 2 

SECONDER: Mitch Parsons, Councilor Ward 1 

AYES: Wahlke, Kasner, Casper, Hoagland, Mark, Parsons 

RESULT: Passed by Roll Call Vote 

 

Mr. Appicello said that the delegation reads the City Manager shall report bi-annually to the City 

Council on the matter executed per this chapter. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

183



4 – Lincoln City Council Minutes May 8, 2023 

 

5.  

MOTION: Motion to Approve Second Reading and Adoption of Ordinance 2023-08 - 

Add MOU MOA to IGA Delegation 

MOVER: Sydney Kasner, Councilor Ward 2 

SECONDER: Mitch Parsons, Councilor Ward 1 

AYES: Wahlke, Kasner, Casper, Hoagland, Mark, Parsons 

RESULT: Passed by Roll Call Vote 

 

K. RESOLUTIONS 

6. RESOLUTION NO. 2023-07 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF LINCOLN CITY ADOPTING STRATEGIC 

PRIORITIES AND INITIATIVES AS IDENTIFIED AT THE MARCH 1, 2023 COUNCIL RETREAT 

MOTION: Motion to Approve Resolution 2023-07- Adopting Strategic Priorities 

Identified at Council Retreat 

MOVER: Rick Mark, Councilor Ward 3 

SECONDER: Sydney Kasner, Councilor Ward 2 

AYES: Wahlke, Kasner, Casper, Hoagland, Mark, Parsons 

RESULT: Passed via Voice Vote 

 

7. RESOLUTION 2023-08 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF LINCOLN CITY ADOPTING ADDITIONAL 

PUBLIC WORKS FEES - IRRIGATION METER 

MOTION: Motion to Approve Resolution 2023-08 Adopting Additional Public Works 

Fees - Irrigation Meter 

MOVER: Riley Hoagland, Councilor Ward 2 

SECONDER: Rick Mark, Councilor Ward 3 

AYES: Wahlke, Kasner, Casper, Hoagland, Mark, Parsons 

RESULT: Passed by Roll Call Vote 

 

L. SPECIAL ORDER OF BUSINESS 

8. Partnership with the Economic Development Alliance of Lincoln County (EDALC) 

MOTION: Motion to Approve a $20,000 Grant in FY22-23 to the Economic 

Development Alliance of Lincoln County to Support Regional Economic 

Development Activities 

MOVER: Rick Mark, Councilor Ward 3 

SECONDER: Mitch Parsons, Councilor Ward 1 

AYES: Wahlke, Kasner, Mark, Parsons 

NAYS: Casper 

RECUSED: Hoagland 

RESULT: Passed by Roll Call Vote 

 

Alison Robertson, Economic Development Director, and Paul Schuytema, Executive Director at Economic 

Development Alliance of Lincoln County spoke about a $20,000 grant to the Economic Development 

Alliance of Lincoln County (EDALC) to support regional economic development activities. Council and 

Staff discussed the details of the program and the grant. 

 

 

184



5 – Lincoln City Council Minutes May 8, 2023 

 

9. Update on Proposed Nelscott Urban Renewal (Tax Increment Finance) Plan 

Alison Robertson, Urban Renewal and Economic Development Director gave an update regarding the 

proposed Nelscott Urban Renewal plan. Council and Staff had a discussion regarding the next steps of 

the plan. 
 

10. Nelscott Force Main Phase 1 Construction Award 

MOTION: Motion to Award K&E Excavating, Inc. in the Amount of $1,581,412.50 

with a Construction Contingency of $151,841.25 (10 percent of bid the 

amount) for a total of $1,733,253.75 for the Nelscott Force Main Phase 1 

Construction Award 

MOVER: Riley Hoagland, Councilor Ward 2 

SECONDER: Rick Mark, Councilor Ward 3 

AYES: Wahlke, Kasner, Casper, Hoagland, Mark, Parsons 

RESULT: Passed by Roll Call Vote 

 

Stephanie Reid, Public Works Director, explained the project. Council and Staff had a discussion 

regarding the project and future plans.  

M. CITY MANAGER/CITY ATTORNEY REPORTS 

Ms. Legarza spoke about the Spanish copy of The News Guard. 

N. ACTIONS, IF ANY, BASED ON WORK SESSION OR EXECUTIVE SESSION 

None 

O. ADDITIONAL COMMENTS FROM CITIZENS PRESENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

None 

P. ANNOUNCEMENTS OR COMMENTS BY CITY COUNCIL 

Councilor Hoagland spoke about the LOC meeting in Seaside and classes attended, lithium battery drop 

off at North Lincoln Sanitary, and asked about requirements to be on a committee.  

 

Councilor Mark spoke about the Cascade West meeting he attended; ODOT trying for federal grants to 

fix the erosion issues and rough road on Highway 101; the open house for Taft Park; Spaghetti 

fundraiser at B'nai B'rith. Councilor Mark will be absent from the June 12th meeting.  

 

Councilor Casper spoke about attending the Regional Solid Waste meeting and the barrels that will be 

put out again for the 4th of July beach clean-up. Councilor Casper said the Juno Project will be open to 

tour again in Toledo.  

 

Mayor Wahlke said that she has received positive comments about the newsletter with the water bills. 

Mayor Wahlke spoke about the sessions she attended at the LOC in Seaside. Mayor Wahlke spoke about 

her attendance at the Ways and Means Committee in Newport, wanting to testify before the Capital 

Construction Subcommittee of Ways and Means on Friday, but there not being enough time for her to 

speak.  

 

 

185



6 – Lincoln City Council Minutes May 8, 2023 

 

 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Wahlke adjourned the meeting at 7:37 PM 

 

//S// 

SUSAN WAHLKE, MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

 

//S// 

JAMIE YOUNG, CITY RECORDER 

 

186



��

���������	
���	����
�� ������������ ����������������

��������������������������
������������������������� ������!
���!����
�������������"
���������
�����#�����$�%�����&���� � � � ������'
����	
�����������(���	����� � � � � ���
#�&������	
���$��������	��
#�)������ � � � )����*���������	
���+��������	�������
��� � � � *�������,�������-���.�	����,�"��,
���(����/0��#��� � � � ��$�0�����*�
��#1/
"���#�	���
����������	����
���	����������������#������� �2�	����
���/0��#����"�����������"���������#�������������	����
������
��#���������� &�����	������)���������
���/0��#��*�
��#1/
"���#������ ����� ������ ���3�	������*���
������3�4������!�#�5�
����0����3�	������	���
##
�����)����������#������,
#��
���+��������+�����6�������*���
���4��������"
�!���!�������������#����"��
�����#��7�������������������������������#���������#�
��������!��"���*���
���4������������������������������"��
#�8��9�����#���������#��������������!��"��
#��#3
�������8:�9���������#�������,
#��
���+��������+�����6���������3�������	����
��������
��#�������
��������#���7��;<=><?<@ABC<AD>EB;>FBAGBBH;I<JKEAHLL>F<A���
�#������%��
����CH?ABC<JAEMNNH;BABC<AO>BJKEA��
���������������
187



��

���������	
���	����
�� ������������ ����������������

	���
��
�����������������������������
��������������
����� ������������������
����������������������
��������
������������!�������"� 
��������#��	����
���$�"�%�������� �������
&���
�
!
���"��������
������'�
#�����
���(����������)
���
���*��������+������
������������"��������"�
�����!�
� �#���	����
�����,
������������������
����������������������������!����������������"������
��������
����
���������"��
��#�����������
���������
� ������������������������������������������#�����
���(�������������������������!�����������������������#�-��������������������������
������ ������� ����������"�������������� ������������ ���������
������������#��	����
���. �����������
��"��"�������/�������� ��
��������#�	
���*������������������������������
������������0�����������������/����������� �������� ���"��
���!
��#��	����
���	������������������
�
���
������������������������"��������
���!����!���#�)
���
���*��������+����������������
�������������������"������12345637568199:;3<991=63>2?35>@93<9345636AB@<C66;31234563D1;481=43E44<826C:;3<991=6#��������,����%����������������	����
����������������������������
��� ��������������=<2;62;F;398<A34563G<F2=1@3<23456183;FBB<8439<834563@6HC3>2?3F;12I34563G14C:;32>A6J3K563	����
���!�����
������
�������""������������!�# ��	
���*������������������������������
����������#�� L�������������#��������,����%��"�������������
������MN���"�#��	�����
���)�!��"�����)
�������)��������!
�����������������"����������!������!��!
���������������������������������
������$��
���
!��*��������#��	�����
���)�!��"�����)
�������)��������������������
���	���
��
���������"� 
������
������� ������"���"� 
������
������������������������������������#���������������	����
��������
!���
��������""��!����������������������������������� ����������
���	���
��
�������������������������!
�
���� ������"���	����
��
�����
��#��	����
���	���������������������������
����������"�
��������"�
��������������
����������������
���#��
188



��

���������	
���	����
�� ������������ ����������������

��������������������������
�������
����������
��
��������
��������	�����
����� ��!������
�������������"��#���	����
���$����� �������
��
��������
���"����	����
���%&�������$����&���������
���
����������!�
�������"�'����������������(	����������������
��������!�
����
��
���&���������)
�����&����!!��������	�����
����� ��!������
������������������������*!�
������)������������������"�	�����
����� ��!������
������������������������������������&�
�����)�
�
�������������������!����������������
��&�
�
���"�����������������������������
������+,�-�!�������������������	����
�&�
���"��������������������������������� ���
����������
��!��$��������� �������
�����
!���
����� �������!�����������������������"�.����������������
��!��$���
��������
������������&����������
������������"����������������$�������	����
�����
�!������)���������)����
$���������/��
�������������������!�����
����������������������"�����������������$���	
���*��������.���������������
�
���
����������!����������������������"�	
���*��������.������������������������������������&���������
��� ��
��"�0�����������������!������������������
��)���������������
�����
��"�.����������$�������	����
��)����������
�����)������������������������
�����������"��#���
�������������������������	����
�)���,��� ��
������������������������&��$�
�������������������!���1��� ��
��������������
����������
���������������
�����
�������
�������
��������
��.�������
���
��1����
��� ��
�����
�����
����
�������1������������������������������������
��&�
�
���
�������
����
������1�������������
������������"2�!��$
����!�����
�
����
����'��������*������&��3���
�������"���������������!��������	����
����������
����,���"��	���������������������&��$���������������&�������
�
�����
�"���	����
����)����
����������
�������
�����
�"���"��4
�
�������������
�������
��������
��.�������
���
�������� �����������������������&�
�
�����������������"���	����
����)���������$��!���������
�����������5�)����������
�
�������������
��������&�������������������������������������������"���"�(�� ��������6
�����
���������������
���!����
�������
����
�����������2��������������������$��
������������
��
 �"�7��	����
����)����
����������
����$
�����
������������
��
 �"��5"�*�)������
��� ��
�����
�����
����
������������$��
��������& 
����)����
����)�������
������������$����!����"�����������������
�
��������
��	����
�)���������
��������)���
189



��

���������	
���	����
�� ������������ ����������������

�����������������������������������������������������������	����
��������
�� ���	����
��!������
�����!����
�����������"��#�
���#����!!�������!
����
����!
��! ��$ �%��
!������ $�#���
���!#�����
�
����
��%��������&���������'��!
�� ���	����
��!������
�����!����
�������
�����
! �� 	����
�����(
�����������##�����)��
!��
���&�����������*��������
�����!��������#��#����������
������������#��)��
!��
���&�����������*����!����������������������������
�����
���
�������+,������������������
�!����������-�
����������������������������������
������
�
���
����������������
�
��!�����##�����������������������.�#��//�����.�#��///��##
���
��!����!������������������
���	���
!!
�� �	����
���+�
��!*0
����!�!������� �� 1��2��)�#�2����(
���0���!���+�
��!*0
����!�	����� �����	����
���)�#�2�������������
������34�5�#� ��	
�����������6
������
���������!�������#���������!��������	����
�������
������������
!
��!�����������
����� �+����!����
������������
������!����������
�������!�������!�
��������
����� ���	����
���+�
��!*0
����!��!��������������!���������
����������
��! ����
���	�
���'�
��!�!�����������������������������������������
���������������������!������
������ ��/����!��������������#���
��#����!!�����������
�
���������������#��#�!������
����� �	
���&��������+��������!�����������������������
!���������!����������#��!#���
������#��!���
���������
������
������� ��	
�����������6
���!�����������
������������!���������#������������
���
���
�����������������
����� �+��������������������
!���#����!!��
���#��!���
�������#��#�!�!����������!
��!!�������
�� �����
190



��

���������	
���	����
�� ������������ ����������������

���� ������������������������������ 	!��������"
�������
��������#���$�����������������%�$������&����$$'��$�����$������������(������
$���%�����)������#���$���������������������
$���
����������	
�����������*
�������������������
((�������
���%
�(�����������&���!
���#���
������+��
�������������������������������������������������$%���
$�(�
�����
,������������$������$�������������$����$�
�������
$��
�����������������������&����,��������������
��������������$&�������&�������(���&
�������� �� 	����
���#�
��$-.
,���$��������������	���
$$
��������$��%��&������
$��$$�����������$��%���������/��$�
���!�$�
���$��%��#������������������������
$��$$�����%����
����������$����$��	����
���#�
��$-.
,���$������������012345667887593783:55;79<3=03>?0780@83A=:;83=030123B7C?=?DE�#�������������	���
$$
���
$��%��$���&
���,�������$��� 	����
���	������������������	���
$$
������������,�����$
���,��
�����������/��
���$���������� �F�	����
���.(��$����������������$�������������$�������$
���
$�(�
��������������%
���,�����������.G./����������,�������%
����(�(������(����������
���H��������I����������������������������$$
���
$�
������%��&$��$�$�����$������,���(��.G./��	����
���.(��$��������������������������
��
������%��&������(
&����������$$
(��
�����J����
���%
�������(��
��
������$�����
����������I��������������������,
�%�������K��$���������$
�����������
��������
�������������������
���#������
���	�����
���	���
����$���
����	����
���.(��$��$����������������������&
��������,
$
�����������������������	���
$$
����� 	����
���.(��$�����������������
$������������
���+��
������������������������&��� �F�	����
���"������������������	����&����	�����
���	�������$�(�����+��
���"���������������������������%
����$$��
����������$�
�����������$��#��������������	����&����
$������
�$��������
���������
��.�����������
�����
$�&
������������������� 	
�����������*
�����������������$�����$�$
���������������������������#����L����$����#���������$���$
�������,
$
��$��������	
���+��������+������������
191



��

���������	
���	����
�� ������������ ����������������

	
������������
����������������������
������������
��
�������������������
��
������ !�
�����
����������������������
��������!������������	
���"�#��$������
�������������������$��!������
��
���������$��
���	���������%����������������������������
�����
��������&��#�� 	����
���$�
���'(
���������������������)�����������#���	����
�����*
�����������������������������������������	����������������������������!
����
!#�%��������&��"����	����'�������$�
���� �  ��
�����'+��
���+�����,
���� ���
�� � � � +���
��-�)���.�������	����/'�����/��� � *�
����	����� �
�����+���� � � � ���

��+������0�
��1�
������ � � � -�������2������$
�����,
�� � � � 	����"������0�3���"������ � � � $�!�
��"������4�����.5�/�� � � � ������0���������"����*�
����� � � � *��������
�
�,����������	����� � � 0��6��������,������-�
������� � � � � +�
���(��
/�����
��/�1
����7����� � � � ���
��.�����$�����/�-�����8����!�$����� � � � 1
���$�
�)��"������$���������� � � "������$�����.�����%����� � � � 0�/�
���%�����,
/���%��5
�� � � �  �
�������

����� 	����
���(�����������������5����#�%�������
���������5����������9&:����!�#����� � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � 	���
��4#�*����/�������� �����&����� � � � � � ����
��4#�-������	
���7��������
192



193



194



195



���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	
������
������
�������	����������
��
������	�������������	���	����	����
��
�	
����������	�������	
�����	��	�������
�������������
��������
������
�����
���	�	�����������	
�� !"#$%"&'$'��

�
�()*+�,-�./00*�1,20�()*+�(,34()5�2)43*0.�67879:�;;<�;=;><�?@>=�AB�CDEE:�FGHE�IJ:K�FLMM<�>;;N�BLJO�C:PEE:�CDEE:�FGHE<�QR�ST>U?��VWXW�AL99YGZE@�87E9:DJ[J�A\]6C]�9JMEOYE�LMM�YEMM�̂_GOE9�̀�6OKGOE�D_G�DJ9_E9�:G�9̂ELa<�̂MEL9E�9J8O�JOb�2cddcef�.ghgijifg��k_E�IJ:K�G[�CDEE:�FGHE�DJMM�DGPa�:G�l7JMZ�LO�EYGOGHJYLMMK�9:PGO8�YGHH7OJ:K�DJ:_�LO�E[[JYJEO:�LOZ�E[[EY:JmE�MGYLM�8GmEPOHEO:�:_L:�DJMM�̂PGmJZE�JO[PL9:P7Y:7PE�LOZ�E99EO:JLM�9EPmJYE9�:G�:_E�YJ:JnEO9�DE�9EPmEb�69�E[[JYJEO:�9:EDLPZ9�G[�:_E�mLM7LlME�L99E:9�LmLJMLlME<�DE�DJMM�lE�PE9̂GO9JmE�:G�:_E�YGHH7OJ:K�D_JME�̂MLOOJO8�LOZ�̂PÊLPJO8�[GP�:_E�[7:7PEb��2iigcfo�)fpeqjhgcef�k_E�IJ:K�G[�CDEE:�FGHE�J9�9:PELHJO8�:_E�HEE:JO8�mJL�:_E�BJYPG9G[:�kELH9�̂ML:[GPH�LOZ�L9a9�:_E�̂7lMJY�:G�YGO9JZEP�:_J9�Ĝ:JGOb�k_EPE�DJMM�lE�Ĝ ĜP:7OJ:K�[GP�̂7lMJY�JÔ7:�mJL�:_E�MJmE�9:PELHb�kG�mJED�:_E�HEE:JO8�MJmE<�GOMJOE�mJ9J:�_::̂@rrMJmEb9DEE:_GHEGPb8Gmb�W[�KG7�ZGOs:�_LmE�LYYE99�:G�:_E�JO:EPOE:�KG7�YLO�YLMM�JO�:G�Ntuv>?TvNu;U<�Y_GG9E�Ĝ:JGO�wu�LOZ�EO:EP�:_E�HEE:JO8�Wx�:G�lE�MG88EZ�JO�:G�:_E�YLMMb�BEE:JO8�Wx@�k_J9�mJZEG�9:PELH�LOZ�YLMM�JO�Ĝ:JGO9�LPE�LMMGDEZ�7OZEP�IG7OYJM�R7ME9<�HEE:�:_E�PEy7JPEHEO:9�[GP�QPE8GO�A7lMJY�BEE:JO8�\LD<�LOZ�_LmE�lEEO�L̂ P̂GmEZ�lK�:_E�BLKGP�LOZ�I_LJP̂EP9GO�G[�:_E�HEE:JO8b�(hzz�ge�,q{iq�hf{�|zi{oi�ep�}zziochf~i�k_E�HEE:JO8�DL9�YLMMEZ�:G�GPZEP�L:�?@>=�AB��ezz�(hzz�AR]C]�k�BLKGP�C79LO�IGMEHLO�APE9JZEO:�APG�kEH��PE8�BL_MEP�IG7OYJMGP�xLmE�kPL9a�IG7OYJMGP�\J9L��G7PMEK�IG7OYJMGP�6O8EMJ:L�CLOY_En�6�C]�k�IG7OYJMGP�xKMLO�RJY_LPZ9�IG7OYJMGP��G9_�k_GP9:LZ�Ck6XX��EMYEK��G7O8<�IJ:K�BLOL8EP��MLJP�\LP9EO<�IGHH7OJ:K�LOZ�]YGOGHJY�xEmEMĜHEO:�xJPEY:GP�RGlEP:�COKZEP<�IJ:K�6::GPOEK�BE8LO�xLnEK<�\JlPLPK�CEPmJYE9�xJPEY:GP�kPJ9_�RJYE<�]O8JOEEPJO8�kEY_OJYJLO��L9GO�Q8ZEO<�AGMJYE�I_JE[�6ZLH�\EJ9JO8EP�IGHH7OJYL:JGO9�BLOL8EP��B]xW6��EOOK�VE9:YG::<��ED�]PL��

196



���������	
���������������������������	��	������������
������������
��
����� !!�"���
�#�������������$!���#�%	
���&��'()$$�*�����
��	
�+�����������,����#�����	�����-���
���.��
��������������)!��/	0��&�1����&��'(!)-�+	����	���
��
��������������
�
����
�����������2
�3��$!!����4���������#�%	
���&��'()$��+����
��������������
���������5	����	
�����
�������5����	��	%��
����	���%��*�������+	5���������
����%�����
�������������3�����
�,�	6����
������������������
��������	�0��+	���������	
��*�������+	5��������
�������	
�5�7�89:;<:=�>?<:@AB�+����
����	..������5����
��
��#�
�	��	���%�����
�������������������
����%��*�������+	5���3������
�,�	6����
������������������
��������	�0��+	���������	
��*�������+	5��������
�������	
�5�7�#%��
�6����
�������5����	������
���������5	����#..���	�����+�
����6�#�����C��$!$)�	D� $!$)E!CE!C���������
����+����
�+�
�����F<G9?:H=H9:�9I�JH;H=9K;�A:@�L<AKH:?�9I�M<=H=H9:;B���	
���������������������������	��	������������
������������
��
���N�&�D��� !!�"���
�#�������������$!��#�%	
���&��'()$$3�����	���	�%�����������.���
�����&������������5���5�����5����	������&���
�	
���
��1����O���3�O��1����.��������
����	���
�����5�����
������������������������
3�+	���������	
�����
��������	�0��	
�����
��������������	�0���P������
����������5������	��������	�������&����������3�Q<R�ST;H:<;;B�	D� ���������
�&
���E��	����+	�����*�	
�*�����
��	
�+�����������,����#�����	�����.��������	�.����
�	���
���	���
��5���	����+	�����*�	
3������+	
	���,��
�������%����5��
�������.���
��5��.������3�%D� ���������
�&
���E������1	����+	�����*�	
�+	����	���
��
��������������
�
����
�����������2
�3�.��������	�.����
�	���
���	���
��5�������1	����+	�����*�	
3��D� �����1E,���	��������U��5%��5����/��	��2�.������
�����������N/2�D�4�
	
��
�V�	���/	���
�������
����	
�����
�����������.��
�����������.���������.�	��������5�����
������	���
��5�������1E,���	��������U��5%��5����/��	��2�.������
�����������N/2�D�4�
	
��
3�+����
��	������	..��������������
�U�3�$$�����$!$)�	
����
��5���.���	��*�%�������0��4�
��������.��
��*��W�����	���%�����
�������������������
����%��*�������+	5���3�����
�,�	6����
������������������
�������	
�5�7�����
��������	�0��*�������+	5�����+	���������	
�#%��
�6����
�������5����	������
���������5	����XY@�ST;H:<;;B�XK@H:A:G<�SHYY;���P������������
����#����
�	
��4�������	��
����&���
	
���V���������
����	��
����&���
	
���V������5������	��
����&���
	
���V�����N������	����������P�����D�F<Z9K=;�9I�89[[H==<<;B�#��O��������������
�O�	��5����
��������������	���	���.�����
��5�������
����O�	�5�4	��3�#��O��������������
�#����	
����������
197



���������	��
��	�����	���������������	������	������������������	�����������������	������	�������	�������������������	�������
���������������������������
�������������	�����
������ �	����	�!�	������������������������"	������
��������������#�������
��������������$%&'()*�'+�,-).�/++-0-12*3������4	�	5��6��������������4	�	5���5	
��	��������	�����	�!����
���������������	�����	���������5�����"���������	��������	����������������7���8�4	���6��������������4	�	5���5	
��	��������	�����	�!����
���������������	�����	���������5�����"��������8��9%&1():%;)�9-(%0)'(<*�$%&'()*�=>���������5��������4����?�����	������
�����@��������	?� ����	���@��������4������������������������	���A��������@�
���������@��������BC� ����������D�A��������@�
���������@��	������������������E����FGFH��������"��!��@��������	?� �������"��!��4��������������9%&1():%;)�9-(%0)'(<*�$%&'()*�=F���������5��������4����?���	����@���������������������	?� �������@��	�������4����������������������������,'I;0-2�JI*-;%**�+'(�K''L�'+�)M%�/(L%(������������	����N���	�!�������������������������������������������������
����������������������O	�	��8�PLQ'I(;:%;)�����������5��	��	�7�������	��RSFT��4���� � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � �����������������4	�������A��S��� � � � � � � � � � � � � ������4	�	5���U�AV�W����������������������
198



���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	
������
������
�������	����������
��
������	�������������	���	����	����
��
�	
����������	�������	
�����	��	�������
�������������
��������
������
�����
���	�	�����������	
�� !"#$%"&'$'��

�
�()*+�,-�./00*�1,20�()*+�(,34()5�2)43*0.�67897:;7<�=>?�>@>A?�BCA@�DE�6F779�GH:7�IJ9K�GLMM?�A>>N�ELJO�69<779�6F779�GH:7?�PQ�RSATB��UVWV�DLXXYHZ7C�[\7X9FJ]J�D̂ _̀ 6_�XJM7OY7�LMM�Y7MM�8aHO7X�b�̀OKHO7�FaH�FJXa7X�9H�X87Lc?�8M7LX7�XJ[O�JOd�2effegh�.ijiklkhi��ma7�IJ9K�H]�6F779�GH:7�FJMM�FH<c�9H�;\JMZ�LO�7YHOH:JYLMMK�X9<HO[�YH::\OJ9K�FJ9a�LO�7]]JYJ7O9�LOZ�7]]7Y9Jn7�MHYLM�[Hn7<O:7O9�9aL9�FJMM�8<HnJZ7�JO]<LX9<\Y9\<7�LOZ�7XX7O9JLM�X7<nJY7X�9H�9a7�YJ9Jo7OX�F7�X7<n7d�̀X�7]]JYJ7O9�X97FL<ZX�H]�9a7�nLM\L;M7�LXX79X�LnLJML;M7?�F7�FJMM�;7�<7X8HOXJn7�9H�9a7�YH::\OJ9K�FaJM7�8MLOOJO[�LOZ�8<78L<JO[�]H<�9a7�]\9\<7d��2kkiehp�)hqgrljiegh�ma7�IJ9K�H]�6F779�GH:7�JX�X9<7L:JO[�9a7�:779JO[�nJL�9a7�EJY<HXH]9�m7L:X�8ML9]H<:�LOZ�LXcX�9a7�8\;MJY�9H�YHOXJZ7<�9aJX�H89JHOd�ma7<7�FJMM�;7�H88H<9\OJ9K�]H<�8\;MJY�JO8\9�nJL�9a7�MJn7�X9<7L:d�mH�nJ7F�9a7�:779JO[�MJn7?�HOMJO7�nJXJ9�a998CssMJn7dXF779aH:7H<d[Hnd�V]�KH\�ZHOt9�aLn7�LYY7XX�9H�9a7�JO97<O79�KH\�YLO�YLMM�JO�9H�Nu=vABSvN=>T?�YaHHX7�H89JHO�w=�LOZ�7O97<�9a7�:779JO[�Vx�9H�;7�MH[[7Z�JO�9H�9a7�YLMMd�E779JO[�VxC�maJX�nJZ7H�X9<7L:�LOZ�YLMM�JO�H89JHOX�L<7�LMMHF7Z�\OZ7<�IH\OYJM�Q\M7X?�:779�9a7�<7y\J<7:7O9X�]H<�P<7[HO�D\;MJY�E779JO[�̂LF?�LOZ�aLn7�;77O�L88<Hn7Z�;K�9a7�ELKH<�LOZ�IaLJ<87<XHO�H]�9a7�:779JO[d�(jzz�ig�,r{kr�jh{�|zk{pk�gq�}zzkpejh~k�E779JO[�YLMM7Z�9H�H<Z7<�L9�BCA@�DE��gzz�(jzz�DQ_6_�m�IH\OYJMH<�xKMLO�QJYaL<ZX�IH\OYJM�̂JXL��H\<M7K�IH\OYJMH<�̀O[7MJ9L�6LOYa7o�ELKH<�6\XLO�IHM7:LO�D<7XJZ7O9�D<H�m7:��<7[�ELaM7<�IH\OYJMH<��HXa�maH<X9LZ�IH\OYJMH<�xLn7�m<LXc�6m̀ WW��LXHO�P[Z7O?�DHMJY7�IaJ7]��<7[�68<JO[:LO?�D\;MJY�UH<cX�xJ<7Y9H<�E7[LO�xLo7K?�̂J;<L<K�67<nJY7X�xJ<7Y9H<�QH;7<9�6OKZ7<d�IJ9K�̀99H<O7K��MLJ<�̂L<X7O?�IH::\OJ9K�LOZ�_YHOH:JY�x7n7MH8:7O9�xJ<7Y9H<�EL99��<HFO?�WJOLOY7�xJ<7Y9H<��7MY7K��H\O[?�IJ9K�ELOL[7<�Z̀L:�̂7JXJO[7<?�IH::\OJYL9JHO�ELOL[7<�Ò[7ML�IM7[[?�̀XXHYJL97�DMLOO7<�E_xV̀��7OOK�U7X9YH99?��7F�_<L���_6m6�L̂[7L�E\MM?�_�7Y\9Jn7�xJ<7Y9H<?�IaL:;7<�H]�IH::7<Y7?�=NSN�ELJO�69?�6F779�GH:7?�PQ�RSATB�

199



���������	��
������������������������������������������������� ���!�"�#���$��"��%&�$�"������� ���!�"�#���'�"�����(�)������*��+���!�"�#���$��"��%&���!�"�#���,�������&�-���,�����#��&�� �����#����&���!�"�#���,���.&���!�"�#���/�!�#� &���!�"�#���'�"������01� 2������������3���������������#�����������4���,��������������$ �����-#���5�6�	�7�7����8�97�7��:����
�;��:7�	��8�<��7�7�����=�����$!##����&�>?>?��(�@���$�����&����(�A?B&�$�����C���&�D'�EFGHI&�"��"���������!������"������#.������������#�� (��JK
�LM�7������N�O�LM�7�������P� '�Q!����4�����!�"�#��"�����R�����������'���#!�����SS�����SG����4�������3����4!���T�������� ��������*�!�����������������!"����������U�#����������3����4!���T����(�@����"��V���"����W��������"!�����'���#!�����X�(�SS�����'���#!�����X�(�SG������������!�"�#(������������������'���#!�����X�(�SG�����'���#!�����X�(�SG����������� ���!�"�#���,���.&�$�"������� ���!�"�#���'�"�����(�)������*��+�� �����#����&�-���,�����#��&���!�"�#���,���.&���!�"�#���/�!�#� &���!�"�#���$��"��%&���!�"�#���'�"�����&���!�"�#���,�������(���P� '�Q!����4�����!�"�#��"�����R�����������'���#!�����SB����!��������#�� ��"���!#������ ��������*�!������������������������!���������#�� ��"���!#��(�������������������'���#!�����X�(�SB����������� ���!�"�#���,���.&�$�"������� ���!�"�#���$��"��%(�)������*��+�� �����#����&�-���,�����#��&���!�"�#���,���.&���!�"�#���/�!�#� &���!�"�#���$��"��%&���!�"�#���,��������)������X� +���!�"�#���'�"������"P� '�Q!����4�����!�"�#��"�����R�'���������������������������������"��4�������)������Y������������ ��������*�!������������������������"�����"�������������������������4!�������������4������(�T�����!##&�ZU�"!�����V���"�����4��������������4�������"�&�������������"�����������!���������!�������4��Q!��" ��4����������4�������"���������(�����������������������������"��4�������)������������������������� �-���,�����#��&�$�"������� ���!�"�#���'�"�����(�)������*��+�-���,�����#��&���!�"�#���,���.&���!�"�#���/�!�#� &���!�"�#���$��"��%&���!�"�#���'�"�����&���!�"�#���,�������(��������+�� �����#������P� '�Q!����4�����!�"�#��"�����R�������������-������#�$����"���������"���������������!��� �$����"�����������!����� ��������*�!������"!���������$����"���������"�������������!�"�#���(�����������������������$����"���������"���������������!��� �$����"�����������!������������ ���!�"�#���$��"��%&�$�"������� ���!�"�#���'�"�����(�)������*��+�� �����#����&�-���,�����#��&���!�"�#���,���.&���!�"�#���/�!�#� &���!�"�#���$��"��%&���!�"�#���'�"�����&���!�"�#���,�������(�J:
7���6��L7KK��'�Q!����4�����!�"�#��"���������@�����'��������4�D������"��W�##��
200



���������	�
��������
�	�����
������
�����	�
��������
�	�����
�����������	������������
����������� !��"�#�$$%  ��!&�'	(�������)	���	*��	�+�
���
��������
��������))
��������)�*���
��	�������)�,
+�	�(-�)	�����	..�
�����/��0�����))
��������0�	����/��0�����))
��������/����	����������������
����1�����(��	*��	���.���2�/�)
�
���	�
*��	���3
�	���45��.���(���	��
���	���(���))
����������
�����
��	����	��������
����������	��6
���+���
	
����2�/��	���))
��
��������	��.���	�
�����	)+��������))�������	�������*
�6���))
����������
�����1�*���)�����,
+�	�(�/�*
���(���	��������
�����
��	����	�7������+����)�*���	������,
+�	�(���	����
	
���2��5�����)�'	�����*��������������+�������
	
���2�5	�7�	����������))
��������
��8	����/�*
���(������
��9�����/�*
���(������
�������� !��"�#% :�;""%<%=>!&��
�(�'	�	���?����.�����
�(�'	�	����9������	*��	���.���2�'	(��?����.�����@��=� $�A �@%��< ��B!������ !��C���)���
����������'������,
+�	�(����*
����D
���������))��
�(�	���E����)
��D�*���.)����D
�������5�+�
��8��7��D
��������@��=� $�A �@%��< ��B!������ !��F���)���
����������'������3
�	����D
�������5��
�����
����
�(�/������(��#�GA<%>�HG!%A�!!�"���I��J��"� K��;�J���
201



��������	�
�������������������������� � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � �������������������������� !����� � � � � � � � � � � � � �"�����������#� $�%&&�'���"����('������

202



________________________________________ 
 
From: David Allen 
Sent: Sunday, October 1, 2023 2:27 PM 
To: Erik Glover 
Cc: Department Heads; City Council; Robert Emond 
Subject: Re: October 02. 2023 Work Session and City Council Agenda 
 
For the Oct. 2 work session agenda item 2.C. (discussion on action minutes), include this e-mail in the 
agenda packet. --David 
 
ORS 192.650 (link below) sets out the requirements for meeting minutes: 
 
   https://oregon.public.law/statutes/ors_192.650 
 
These requirements are summarized in the AG's public records/meetings manual (2019) as follows: 
 
   A governing body must provide for written minutes of its meetings and executive sessions, or sound, 
video, or digital recording. The written minutes or recording must include at least the following 
information: 
 
   -- members present; 
 
   -- motions, proposals, resolutions, orders, ordinances and measures proposed and their disposition; 
 
   -- results of all votes; and, the vote of each member by name, except for public bodies consisting of 
more than 25 members unless recording by name is requested by a member of that body; 
 
   -- the substance of any discussion on any matter; and 
 
   -- a reference to any document discussed at the meeting, unless even a reference to the document is 
exempt under Public Records Law. 
 
   Written minutes need not be a verbatim transcript, and a sound, video, or digital recording is not 
required to contain a full recording of the meeting, except as otherwise provided by law. However, the 
minutes or recording must contain the above information and must give "a true reflection of the matters 
discussed at the meeting and the views of the participants." 
 
* * * * * 
  

203

https://mail.newportoregon.gov/owa/redir.aspx?REF=SXh0DZro7Zp37TFFB6O3m7EkUHU499LbUpUsYwmUpuuQxQK_3MLbCAFodHRwczovL29yZWdvbi5wdWJsaWMubGF3L3N0YXR1dGVzL29yc18xOTIuNjUw


      192.650 Recording or written minutes required; content; fees. (1) The governing body of a public 
body shall provide for the sound, video or digital recording or the taking of written minutes of all its 
meetings. Neither a full transcript nor a full recording of the meeting is required, except as otherwise 
provided by law, but the written minutes or recording must give a true reflection of the matters 
discussed at the meeting and the views of the participants. All minutes or recordings shall be available 
to the public within a reasonable time after the meeting, and shall include at least the following 
information: 
      (a) All members of the governing body present; 
      (b) All motions, proposals, resolutions, orders, ordinances and measures proposed and their 
disposition; 
      (c) The results of all votes and, except for public bodies consisting of more than 25 members unless 
requested by a member of that body, the vote of each member by name; 
      (d) The substance of any discussion on any matter; and 
      (e) Subject to ORS 192.311 to 192.478 relating to public records, a reference to any document 
discussed at the meeting. 
      (2) Minutes of executive sessions shall be kept in accordance with subsection (1) of this section. 
However, the minutes of a hearing held under ORS 332.061 shall contain only the material not excluded 
under ORS 332.061 (2). Instead of written minutes, a record of any executive session may be kept in the 
form of a sound or video tape or digital recording, which need not be transcribed unless otherwise 
provided by law. If the disclosure of certain material is inconsistent with the purpose for which a 
meeting under ORS 192.660 is authorized to be held, that material may be excluded from disclosure. 
However, excluded materials are authorized to be examined privately by a court in any legal action and 
the court shall determine their admissibility. 
      (3) A reference in minutes or a recording to a document discussed at a meeting of a governing body 
of a public body does not affect the status of the document under ORS 192.311 to 192.478. 
      (4) A public body may charge a person a fee under ORS 192.324 for the preparation of a transcript 
from a recording. [1973 c.172 §5; 1975 c.664 §1; 1979 c.644 §4; 1999 c.59 §44; 2003 c.803 §14] 

204



CITY MANAGER REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: October 16, 2023 
Agenda Item: 
Working Draft of a Climate Action Plan for the City of Newport. 
 
Background: 
One of the Council goals for this year is to develop a climate action plan for the City of 
Newport. Funding was appropriated in the current fiscal year for a community-facilitated 
development of a climate action plan. In subsequent discussions with the City Council, it 
was thought that we could pull together various steps that we can take as an organization 
to utilize this funding to implement various actions to address our own carbon footprint as 
a City organization instead of doing a larger community involvement plan. Councilor Ryan 
Parker had pulled together a list of potential items that could be steps taken either by the 
City or by others, to meet the goal of implementing climate-friendly actions by the City of 
Newport either directly by policy, or through collaboration with other entities. Staff added 
other considerations to this mix and this list was then sent to both Department Heads and 
Council with a request to rank the importance of each item, and whether the item was a 
near-term, short-term or longer-term goal for the City to try to achieve. I have attached the 
updated survey results, which include one additional Council member. From the original 
tally, I utilized these results to prepare an outline of an action plan that the City Council 
could consider as a basis for addressing these steps. Items that were identified as a 
medium-to-high priority by both Council and staff, are included in this working draft as an 
item to pursue. The timeframes were also determined based on the results of the survey 
as to whether it is an item that should be accomplished within the next two years, a 
timeframe of two to five years, or beyond five years.   
 
The next section of the draft report indicates items where there was a split opinion on 
whether we should proceed or not with those items. These are items that the City Council 
should review and determine whether any of those should move forward into the working 
plan or not.  
 
This is followed by a list that shows items where there was not widespread support for 
moving forward with them. People either indicated as a low priority or as an item where 
we should be taking no action. The final list of those items that either have been or will be 
completed. 
 
Also, please note that there were several items that were suggested that were not 
included in the survey. Council should discuss how they would like to address those 
issues. They can be found at the end of the second section of the report.  
 
If the Council is in general agreement with this framework for a City of Newport climate 
action plan, it would be my intent to work with staff to refine the verbiage and objectives 

205



that we would try to accomplish on these identified issues to bring back for final review 
and approval by the City Council. Council may wish to discuss some of the items that are 
not included in the plan to determine whether it is appropriate for them to be moved up 
into the plan or not; or Council may choose to drop some items from the existing work 
plan, as well. 
 
If Council is comfortable with this framework, then it would be appropriate for Council to 
confirm that by motion and direct staff to finalize the report. If Council wishes to go into a 
different direction on the climate action plan, then it would be appropriate for Council  to 
share that direction with staff so that we can take appropriate steps. 
 
In reviewing how to proceed with a climate action plan, a great deal of time could be taken 
to engage the community in these discussions and development a plan that may be more 
theoretical than practical for City implementation. I think that the items that are identified 
in this document are things that we can actually work toward implementing and measure 
our progress in implementing those actions.  
 
Recommendations: 
I recommend that the City Council consider the following motion: 
 
I move to direct staff to utilize the working draft of the City of Newport Climate Mitigation 
Plan as a basis to develop a plan to propose for adoption by the City Council.  
Fiscal Effects: 
None by this action other than dedication of staff time to develop the report.  
 
Alternatives:  
Modify the various provisions, or as suggested by the City Council  
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 

 
 
 

Spencer Nebel 
City Manager 
 
 
 

206



1 

                10/10/23 

City of Newport Internal Survey Results of  
City Climate Mitigation Priorities 

 
At the August 21, 2023 City Council work session, the Council discussed the City’s approach to developing a climate action 
plan for the City. This was identified as City Council Goal B-6 and more specifically Objectives B-6(a) Develop and implement 
sustainability information on measures that the City can implement in our day-to-day operations to reduce environmental 
impacts and B-6(c) Prioritize strategies to adapt the city to address conditions created by climate change. Part of the Council 
discussion focused on utilization of the $50,000 appropriated in the current year budget to develop a climate action plan. 
This discussion included using this funding to actually implement a number of practices that would be ways to reduce the 
City’s impact on climate.  Councilor Ryan Parker initially compiled a list of potential action items that the City of Newport 
could consider taking towards this goal. Current goals that are not part of this list. 
On Thursday August 10, Erik Glover and I went through the list that Councilor Parker compiled and ranked the items based 

on the likelihood of proceeding with the initiative in the next 18 months. One (1) means likely, if approved by the City Council, 

and five (5) means unlikely based on current situations. This was a quick review to facilitate the discussions for the work 

session on August 21. 

Those items that are currently identified as City Council Goals are identified by goal number.  

The survey was sent out to Council members and Department Heads. Respondents were asked to indicate the priority of 

each item with the number one (1) being the highest priority and number four(4) indicating that no action should be taken. 

In addition, responses were requested to determine the timeframe for the project to be accomplished with “A” under two 

years, “B” being 2-5 years, “C” being 5 years and beyond, and “D” being no action taken. Responses from 12 Department 

Heads and 4 Council members have been compiled. The numbers in black are responses from Department Heads and 

responses in red are Council members. The results can be used as a basis to develop a City Climate Mitigation plan should 

Council wish to proceed.  

In addition, several other suggestions were made for Council consideration : 

1. Conduct an energy audit of all City buildings.  
2. Acquire land in the watershed. 
3. Prepare for climate-related emergencies.  
 A. Water resilience/dams. 
 B. Emergency planning. 
 C. Strategies to engage the public in preparedness. 
 D. Identify areas in the city that are most vulnerable to natural disasters.  

  

207



2 

A. City Climate Mitigation Actions 

  NA 1 2 3 4 A B C D 

A.1 Seek funding, issue a request for proposals, and 
contract for updating the City’s Storm Water 
Master Plan. Goal B-2(a) 

 6 
4 

6 
1 

  6 
1 

6 
4 

  

A.2 Proceed with the first year upgrades as identified 
in the Wastewater Treatment Plant Master Plan. 
Goal B-3(a) 

 9 
5 

3   11 
5 

1   

A.3 Develop a plan to finance necessary 
improvements and capacity upgrades as 
identified in the Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Master Plan. Goal B-3(b) 

 11 
4 

1 
1 

  10 
3 

2 
2 

  

A.4 Determine the feasibility of utilizing the energy 
savings through the use of LED fixtures and more 
efficient placement of outdoor lighting to help 
expedite implementation of the dark sky street 
lighting system for the City. Goal B-5(a) 

 1 
1 

5 
1 

5 
3 

1 2 
2 

6 
3 

4  

A.5 Review model ordinances for the development of 
dark sky regulations for private outdoor lighting in 
the city. Goal B-5(b) 

 1 
1 

3 6 
4 

2  
2 

6 
3 

5 1 

A.6 Utilize the Water Conservation Work Group to 
review existing ordinances and determine current 
provisions that would need to be amended to 
promote gray water diversion and rainwater 
storage. Goal B-7(a) 

1 1 
2 

5 
2 

4 
1 

1 1 
4 

4 
1 

6  

A.7 Support the efforts of the Water Conservation 
Work Group to review methods to reduce drinking 
water use by residents, commercial and industrial 
businesses in the City of Newport. Goal B-8(a) 

1 2 
2 

6 
2 

3 
1 

 3 
1 

4 
3 

4 
1 

 

A.8 Biodiesel for equipment use- plant-based blends 
available from NextGen (4) The City currently 
farms out maintenance of equipment. We could 
have discussions with Lincoln County about this. 
 

 2 
1 

3 
2 

2 
2 

5 2 
1 

2 
1 

4 
3 

4 

  

Priority: 1. High; 2. Medium; 3. Low; 4. No action 
Timing: A. Within two years; B. Two to five years; C. Beyond five years; D. No action. 

208



3 

A. City Climate Mitigation Actions 
 

  NA 1 2 3 4 A B C D 

A.9 Airport Solar Farm and Grid-tied inverter/storage 
facility with plug shed for  
emergencies (1) We have initiated a preliminary 
feasibility study for a solar farm at the airport. Goal 
B-6(b) 
 

1 1 
3 

6 
2 

4  1 
2 

6 
3 

4  

A.10 Apply for $0-down solar arrays for city buildings 

and sited at city owned facilities. (1) We will apply 

for funding during the next grant round. 

 

 

 1 
4 

8 
1 

3  2 
4 

8 
1 

2  

A.11 EV purchases as fleet acquisition priorities, 

especially for a city Vanpool program, high mileage 

vehicles when available. (This has been a priority. 

Supply of vehicles has been limited) 

 

1 4 
3 

2 
2 

4 1 5 
3 

2 
2 

3 1 

A.12 Implement EV charge agreement modeled on DAS 

Charge @ Work program for state agencies. (This 

has been done) 

 

3 
1 

2 
3 

3 2 2 
1 

3 
2 

4  2 
2 

A.13  

Repair leaking water valve along Government 

Street. Reported numerous times. (This has been 

reported to Public Works and is scheduled to be 

done) 

 

1 
1 

7 
1 

1 
1 

1 2 
2 

9 
1 

 
1 

 2 
2 

  

Priority: 1. High; 2. Medium; 3. Low; 4. No action 
Timing: A. Within two years; B. Two to five years; C. Beyond five years; D. No action. 

209



4 

A. City Climate Mitigation Actions 
 

  NA 1 2 3 4 A B C D 

A.14 Consider Hardscaping alternatives to mowed grass 

fields (in parks). Succulents, etc. Are non-urban 

heat absorbing ways to beautify but not emit 

carbon and glare. (4) This could be a longer-term 

goal. It would take the development of new 

standards for City parks. 

 

 2 6 4 
4 

 
1 

 1 
1 

6 
3 

5 
1 

A.15 Trial semi-permeable paved road segments in 

areas like Big Creek Road that are currently hard 

to maintain. Gravel and rock quarrying is extremely 

energy intensive. (4) Funding would need to be in 

place for street construction. We would need to 

evaluate this option when funding is in place to 

pave gravel streets. 

  3 
1 

6 
3 

4 
1 

 1 
2 

6 
2 

5 
1 

A.16 Remove 2 large tires by the USCG station 

(Contract is in place) 

1 
1 

4 
1 

1 1 5 
2 

5 
1 

1  5 
2 

A.17 City should adopt a mile of HWY 20 or 101, 

especially near the Welcome to Newport signs 

(there are 3 so many choices for the ODOT 

program) City department heads should be giving 

back to the city in this kind of visible way. (We can 

discuss this with staff) 

 1 2 3 
5 

6 2 
 

2 
2 

2 
4 

6 

A.18 Pre-treat (physically screen) stormwater in 

retention ponds, with metal grates at the street or 

other outfall devices (4) This is likely coming down 

the road in the next 5 to 10 years. We will be 

updating our storm sewer master plan and can 

consider steps to move in that direction at that time. 

 2 
 

8 
3 

2 
2 

1 1  
1 

9 
4 

2 

  

Priority: 1. High; 2. Medium; 3. Low; 4. No action 
Timing: A. Within two years; B. Two to five years; C. Beyond five years; D. No action. 

210



5 

A. City Climate Mitigation Actions 
 

Priority: 1. High; 2. Medium; 3. Low; 4. No action 
Timing: A. Within two years; B. Two to five years; C. Beyond five years; D. No action. 
  NA 1 2 3 4 A B C D 

A.19 Encourage backflow 

preventors for new home 

construction projects to 

mitigate homeowner expense 

of cleaning up a spill and 

limiting city liability. (5) I am 

not sure that this is a good 

solution for most homeowners. 

Home owners in areas subject 

to backups could benefit. 

Backflow preventer add 

additional costs for installation 

and maintenance of these 

devises. 

 

 1 1 3 
2 

7 
3 

 2 3 
1 

7 
4 

A.20 Expand pollinator boxes to 

each city park that has 

significant open spaces (2) 

This is something that we can 

continue doing. 

 

1 4 
1 

3 
4 

1 3 3 
4 

4 
1 

1 3 

A.21 Commit to and plant a 

community orchard, with 

design assistance from OSU 

Extension. (1) Funds have 

been budgeted. The location 

at Big Creek Dams will need to 

be used for a staging area 

during dam construction. We 

need to find an alternate 

location for this project. 

 

1 2 4 
3 

3 
1 

2 
1 

3 2 
2 

3 
2 

3 
1 

  

211



6 

A. City Climate Mitigation Actions 
 

Priority: 1. High; 2. Medium; 3. Low; 4. No action 
Timing: A. Within two years; B. Two to five years; C. Beyond five years; D. No action. 
  NA 1 2 3 4 A B C D 

A.22 Pave SE 50th between Wilder Corner and the 

WWTP as a fire and evacuation egress. (4) This is 

part of our masterplan, but would likely need to be 

done as part of a future development. We can see 

if there are any possibilities with FEMA funding to 

assist with this project. 

 

  
1 

3 
2 

6 
2 

3  5 
2 

4 
2 

3 
1 

A.23 Fire smoke safety supply cache for employees 

working in smokey conditions (The Fire 

Department has gear and we have a big inventory 

of N95 masks should we get into a smoke situation 

during fire season) 

 

1 
1 

2 
1 

2 4 
2 

3 
1 

2 
1 

4 
1 

2 3 
2 

A.24 1 additional FTE to clear city sidewalks of weeds, 

tripping hazards, mark crosswalks and maintain 

ROWs. (3) This would need to be a budget 

consideration. Also, we should review the code 

provisions for adjacent property owners to maintain 

weeds in sidewalks. 

 

1 1 
2 

5 
1 

3 
2 

2 2 
3 

5 
1 

2 
1 

2 

A.25 Request DLCL add a focus for wetland carbon 

storage in the draft 2023 Yaquina Bay Estuary 

Management Plan. (1) This plan is reaching its 

conclusion. You are a member of the Advisory 

Committee, so you are in a good position to have 

them consider this request. It is my understanding 

that they are trying to wrap the draft plan this 

month, so if you haven’t done so, it would be good 

for you to communicate  

3 1 
2 

1 
2 

2 5 
1 

 3 
3 

1 5 
2 

  

212



7 

A. City Climate Mitigation Actions 
 

Priority: 1. High; 2. Medium; 3. Low; 4. No action 
Timing: A. Within two years; B. Two to five years; C. Beyond five years; D. No action. 
  NA 1 2 3 4 A B C D 

A.26 Plant willow and wetland shrubs along city creeks 

and dam outfalls to improve water quality. (3) Most 

of our creeks are pretty well vegetated. There are a 

few sections in parks that are not. What specific 

areas are you referring to? 

 
1 

 1 
2 

6 
2 

5 1 1 
3 

4 
1 

6 

A.27 Produce better downloadable fire evacuation route 

maps for citizens to put on their phones. (2) This is 

a project that we will have our internal emergency 

management committee review 

3 4 
2 

1 
3 

3 1 4 
2 

2 
3 

2 1 

 

B. Outside Jurisdiction, City Needs to Lobby or Partner to Enact 
 

B.1 Encourage a northern Lincoln County PUD 
community solar-at Ops HQ- NE Avery Street. (1) 
This is an item we can place on the Work Session 
agenda with PUD) 
 

1 
1 

 
2 

1 
1 

7 
1 

3  
3 

4 
1 

4 3 

B.2 Request PUD Board request staff do a 
comprehensive metering and energy use audit 
from City-billed electric accounts at scale (meter 
fee consolidation needed) (1) This would be done 
as part of an Ameresco type project, which we are 
anticipating moving forward with later this year 
once staffing is in place to support this effort. 
 

1 2 
2 

4 
3 

5  4 
3 

3 
2 

4  

  

213



8 

B. Outside Jurisdiction, City Needs to Lobby or Partner to Enact 
 

Priority: 1. High; 2. Medium; 3. Low; 4. No action 
Timing: A. Within two years; B. Two to five years; C. Beyond five years; D. No action. 
  NA 1 2 3 4 A B C D 

B.3 Professionally estimate the carbon storage 
potential of the forest surrounding the 
boundaries of they yet-to-be constructed Big 
Creek Dam, and acquire the lands with the 
highest sequestration as a bioreserve, similar to 
North Coast Land Conservancy did in 2022. (1) It 
is a current goal to acquire the watershed and we 
are working with Sustainable Northwest on a 
grant application for this purpose. I am not sure 
of the carbon storage potential. I know that this 
has been reviewed conceptionally, but I am not 
aware of a formal estimate of carbon storage. 
 

 1 
3 

6 2 
2 

3  
1 

5 
1 

3 
2 
 

4 
1 

B.4 Have Lincoln County Transit provide Council a list 
of ways to improve service and green their fleet 
of large busses. (2) We can have a work session 
with Lincoln County Transit regarding services. 
We can suggest that they look at ways to green 
their fleet, but this would be a decision for 
Lincoln County.  
 

2 
1 

1 
1 

2 4 
3 

3 1 3 
2 

3 
1 

3 
1 

B.5 Use City Franchise fees to fund community solar 
projects. (4) This would require a redirection of 
funds currently used to support the General 
Fund. This would be a future budget decision for 
the City on how to replace these funds used for 
existing City services. 

 

1 1 1 3 
4 

6 
1 

1 2 1 
4 

7 
1 

  

214



9 

B. Outside Jurisdiction, City Needs to Lobby or Partner to Enact 
 

Priority: 1. High; 2. Medium; 3. Low; 4. No action 
Timing: A. Within two years; B. Two to five years; C. Beyond five years; D. No action. 
  NA 1 2 3 4 A B C D 

B.6 Air Quality Index sensor array for city hall. No AQI 
sensors are officially active in Lincoln County, 
weather app on iPhone uses AQI in Philomath 
and isn’t accurate for fire weather events. Lane 
Regional Air Pollution Authority has a toolkit for 
small cities to add such hardware. (2) This is 
something we can explore. 

 

2 2 
1 

1 
1 

4 
2 

3 
1 

2 
1 

1 
2 

5 
1 

2 
1 

B.7 Countywide Climate pledge, with measurable to-

do list signed by all incorporated cities in Lincoln 

County. (3) This is something that the City or 

County could initiate. Multijurisdictional pledges 

do take time 

 and require a champion to see through the 

process. Possibly related to Goal B-6(c) 

 
 

2 1 
2 

3 
2 

4 
1 

2 1 
1 

4 
3 

3 
1 

2 

B.8 Plant Shade Trees at multi-family housing 

complexes as a way to clean the air and provide a 

hedge against asphalt heat islanding. (Partner 

with LC Housing Authority) (3) A program could 

be developed where funding would be available 

for tree planting in these locations, or planting 

could be suggested, with the development of a 

plan identifying the correct species to plant in 

different locations.  

 

1 1 2 
3 

5 
2 

3 1 2 
4 

5 
1 

3 

B.9 Better trash management along School zones and 
DLCD property lines. Not sure what the best way 
to deal with this option would be? 
 

2 
1 

2 2 2 
3 

4 
1 

2 1 3 
3 

4 
1 

  

215



10 

B. Outside Jurisdiction, City Needs to Lobby or Partner to Enact 
 

Priority: 1. High; 2. Medium; 3. Low; 4. No action 
Timing: A. Within two years; B. Two to five years; C. Beyond five years; D. No action. 
  NA 1 2 3 4 A B C D 

B.10 Restaurant Compost Roll-out (Support and 

collaborate with TSS) (2) TSS has been doing 

some of this on a trial basis. We can request a 

report from Thompsons on this initiative.  
 

2 1 
2 

5 
2 

2 
1 

2 1 
2 

4 
3 

3 2 

 

C. City Code Changes or Changes Required 

C.1 Apply fire fuels standards for landscaping around 
city buildings, with a preference for natives. This 
would be something we could develop for City 
Owned facilities. 

 

1 2 5 
4 

3 
1 

1 3 
1 

5 
2 

1 
2 

2 

C.2 Update to Stormwater Runoff systems to require 
swales, screening and other water quality 
improvements along the existing discharge 
routes. This would be a significant effort. This 
could be part of the storm water master plan 

 

 2 
2 

2 5 
3 

3 2 
2 

1 5 
3 

4 

C.3 Create and enforce a noxious weeds ordinance. 
Drafting the Ordinance is doable. Passing the 
ordinance would take some time. Staffing 
enforcement would have budgetary impacts. 

 

1 1 
2 

5 
1 

4 
2 

1 1 
1 

7 
2 

3 
1 

 
1 

C.4 Audit vector control at Agate Beach Transfer 
Station. Take of Western Gulls and Crows is 
significantly below what’s needed. Entry road is 
in terrible shape. Not sure if we have a role in 
that beyond the fact that TSS leases the land 
from the City for the transfer facility. 

 

2  3 2 
5 

5  2 
3 

3 
1 

5 
1 

  

216



11 

C. City Code Changes or Changes Required 

Priority: 1. High; 2. Medium; 3. Low; 4. No action 
Timing: A. Within two years; B. Two to five years; C. Beyond five years; D. No action. 

  NA 1 2 3 4 A B C D 

C.5 Connect the fish plants to sanitary sewer- 
ordinance and DEQ process required. This is 
something that would need to be led by the DEQ. 
This would have major implication for the 
wastewater treatment plant as well which would 
need to be expanded to handle the additional 
capacity 

 1 1 
2 

5 5 
3 

1 1 
1 

5 
1 

5 
3 

 

217



Working Draft  
Climate Mitigation Actions 

 
The City of Newport has identified the following items as climate mitigation actions:  

 
A. City Climate Mitigation Actions 
 
Near Term (within two years) 

A.2 Proceed with the first year upgrades as identified in the Wastewater Treatment Plant 

Master Plan. Goal B-3(a) 

A.3 Develop a plan to finance necessary improvements and capacity upgrades as 

identified in the Wastewater Treatment Plant Master Plan. Goal B-3(b) 

A.6 Utilize the Water Conservation Work Group to review existing ordinances and 

determine current provisions that would need to be amended to promote gray water 

diversion and rainwater storage. Goal B-7(a) 

A.7 Support the efforts of the Water Conservation Work Group to review methods to 

reduce drinking water use by residents, commercial and industrial businesses in the City 

of Newport. Goal B-8(a) 

A.20 Expand pollinator boxes to each city park that has significant open spaces (2) This 

is something that we can continue doing. 
 

A.24 One additional FTE to clear city sidewalks of weeds, tripping hazards, mark 

crosswalks and maintain ROWs. (3) This would need to be a budget consideration. Also, 

we should review the code provisions for adjacent property owners to maintain weeds in 

sidewalks. 

Mid Term (two to five years) 

A.1 Seek funding, issue a request for proposals, and contract for updating the City’s Storm 
Water Master Plan. Goal B-2(a) 
 
A.9 Airport Solar Farm and Grid-tied inverter/storage facility with plug shed for  
emergencies (1) We have initiated a preliminary feasibility study for a solar farm at the 
airport. Goal B-6(b) 
 
A.10 Apply for $0-down solar arrays for city buildings and sited at city owned facilities. (1) 

We will apply for funding during the next grant round. 

 

218



A.11 EV purchases as fleet acquisition priorities, especially for a city Vanpool program, 

high mileage vehicles when available. (This has been a priority. Supply of vehicles has 

been limited) 

A.27 Produce better downloadable fire evacuation route maps for citizens to put on their 
phones. (2) This is a project that we will have our internal emergency management 
committee review 
 
Long Term (more than five years) 

A. 21 Commit to and plant a community orchard, with design assistance from OSU 

Extension. (1) Funds have been budgeted. The location at Big Creek Dams will need to 

be used for a staging area during dam construction. We need to find an alternate location 

for this project. 

B. Outside Jurisdiction, City Needs to Lobby or Partner to Enact 
 
Near Term (within two years) 

B. 2 Request PUD Board request staff do a comprehensive metering and energy use 
audit from City-billed electric accounts at scale (meter fee consolidation needed) (1) This 
would be done as part of an Ameresco type project, which we are anticipating moving 
forward with later this year once staffing is in place to support this effort. 

 
Mid Term (two to five years) 

B.10 Restaurant Compost Roll-out (Support and collaborate with TSS) (2) TSS has been 

doing some of this on a trial basis. We can request a report from Thompsons on this 

initiative.  

 
Long Term (more than five years) 
 
B.3 Professionally estimate the carbon storage potential of the forest surrounding the 
boundaries of they yet-to-be constructed Big Creek Dam, and acquire the lands with the 
highest sequestration as a bioreserve, similar to North Coast Land Conservancy did in 
2022. (1) It is a current goal to acquire the watershed and we are working with Sustainable 
Northwest on a grant application for this purpose. I am not sure of the carbon storage 
potential. I know that this has been reviewed conceptionally, but I am not aware of a formal 
estimate of carbon storage. 

 
C. City Code Changes or Changes Required 
 
Near Term (within two years) 
 
None.  
 

219



Mid Term (two to five years) 
 
C.1 Apply fire fuels standards for landscaping around city buildings, with a preference for 
natives. This would be something we could develop for City Owned facilities. 
 
C.3 Create and enforce a noxious weeds ordinance. Drafting the Ordinance is doable. 
Passing the ordinance would take some time. Staffing enforcement would have budgetary 
impacts. 
 
Long Term (more than five years) 
 
None.  
 

Actions to be Reviewed for Possible Inclusion in the Plan 
 
A. 4 Determine the feasibility of utilizing the energy savings through the use of LED 
fixtures and more efficient placement of outdoor lighting to help expedite implementation 
of the dark sky street lighting system for the City. Goal B-5(a) 
 
A.18 Pre-treat (physically screen) stormwater in retention ponds, with metal grates at 
the street or other outfall devices (4) This is likely coming down the road in the next 5 
to 10 years. We will be updating our storm sewer master plan and can consider steps 
to move in that direction at that time. 
 
A.22 Pave SE 50th between Wilder Corner and the WWTP as a fire and evacuation 
egress. (4) This is part of our masterplan, but would likely need to be done as part of a 
future development. We can see if there are any possibilities with FEMA funding to assist 
with this project. 
 
A.25 Request DLCL add a focus for wetland carbon storage in the draft 2023 Yaquina 
Bay Estuary Management Plan. (1) This plan is reaching its conclusion. You are a 
member of the Advisory Committee, so you are in a good position to have them consider 
this request. It is my understanding that they are trying to wrap the draft plan this month, 
so if you haven’t done so, it would be good for you to communicate. 
 
A.26 Plant willow and wetland shrubs along city creeks and dam outfalls to improve water 
quality. (3) Most of our creeks are pretty well vegetated. There are a few sections in parks 
that are not. What specific areas are you referring to? 
 
B.1 Encourage a northern Lincoln County PUD community solar-at Ops HQ- NE Avery 
Street. (1) This is an item we can place on the Work Session agenda with PUD) 
 
B.7 Countywide Climate pledge, with measurable to-do list signed by all incorporated 

cities in Lincoln County. (3) This is something that the City or County could initiate. 

Multijurisdictional pledges do take time and require a champion to see through the 

process. Possibly related to Goal B-6(c) 
 

220



 
B.8 Plant Shade Trees at multi-family housing complexes as a way to clean the air and 

provide a hedge against asphalt heat islanding. (Partner with LC Housing Authority) (3) A 

program could be developed where funding would be available for tree planting in these 

locations, or planting could be suggested, with the development of a plan identifying the 

correct species to plant in different locations.  

In addition, several other suggestions were made for Council consideration : 

1. Conduct an energy audit of all City buildings.  
2. Acquire land in the watershed. 
3. Prepare for climate-related emergencies.  
 A. Water resilience/dams. 
 B. Emergency planning. 
 C. Strategies to engage the public in preparedness. 
 D. Identify areas in the city that are most vulnerable to natural disasters.  
 

Actions Not Included in the Working Draft 
 
A. 5 Review model ordinances for the development of dark sky regulations for private 
outdoor lighting in the city. Goal B-5(b) 
 
A.8 Biodiesel for equipment use- plant-based blends available from NextGen (4) The City 
currently farms out maintenance of equipment. We could have discussions with Lincoln 
County about this. 
 
A.14 Consider Hardscaping alternatives to mowed grass fields (in parks). Succulents, 

etc. Are non-urban heat absorbing ways to beautify but not emit carbon and glare. (4) 

This could be a longer-term goal. It would take the development of new standards for City 

parks. 

A.15 Trial semi-permeable paved road segments in areas like Big Creek Road that are 
currently hard to maintain. Gravel and rock quarrying is extremely energy intensive. (4) 
Funding would need to be in place for street construction. We would need to evaluate this 
option when funding is in place to pave gravel streets. 
 
A.17 City should adopt a mile of HWY 20 or 101, especially near the Welcome to Newport 
signs (there are 3 so many choices for the ODOT program) City department heads should 
be giving back to the city in this kind of visible way. (We can discuss this with staff) 
 
A.19 Encourage backflow preventors for new home construction projects to mitigate 

homeowner expense of cleaning up a spill and limiting city liability. (5) I am not sure that 

this is a good solution for most homeowners. Home owners in areas subject to backups 

could benefit. Backflow preventer add additional costs for installation and maintenance 

of these devises. 

 

221



A.23 Fire smoke safety supply cache for employees working in smoky conditions (The 

Fire Department has gear and we have a big inventory of N95 masks should we get into 

a smoke situation during fire season) 
 

B.4 Have Lincoln County Transit provide Council a list of ways to improve service and 
green their fleet of large busses. (2) We can have a work session with Lincoln County 
Transit regarding services. We can suggest that they look at ways to green their fleet, but 
this would be a decision for Lincoln County.  
 
B.5 Use City Franchise fees to fund community solar projects. (4) This would require a 
redirection of funds currently used to support the General Fund. This would be a future 
budget decision for the City on how to replace these funds used for existing City services. 
 
B.6 Air Quality Index sensor array for city hall. No AQI sensors are officially active in 
Lincoln County, weather app on iPhone uses AQI in Philomath and isn’t accurate for fire 
weather events. Lane Regional Air Pollution Authority has a toolkit for small cities to add 
such hardware. (2) This is something we can explore. 
 
B.9 Better trash management along School zones and DLCD property lines. Not sure 
what the best way to deal with this option would be? 
 
C.2 Update to Stormwater Runoff systems to require swales, screening and other water 
quality improvements along the existing discharge routes. This would be a significant 
effort. This could be part of the storm water master plan 
 
C.4 Audit vector control at Agate Beach Transfer Station. Take of Western Gulls and 
Crows is significantly below what’s needed. Entry road is in terrible shape. Not sure if we 
have a role in that beyond the fact that TSS leases the land from the City for the transfer 
facility. 
 
C.5 Connect the fish plants to sanitary sewer- ordinance and DEQ process required. This 
is something that would need to be led by the DEQ. This would have major implication for 
the wastewater treatment plant as well which would need to be expanded to handle the 
additional capacity 
 

Actions Completed or Under Contract to be Completed and Not Necessary 
to Include in the Plan 
 
A.12 Implement EV charge agreement modeled on DAS Charge @ Work program for 
state agencies. (This has been done) 
 
A.13 Repair leaking water valve along Government Street. Reported numerous times. 
(This has been reported to Public Works and is scheduled to be done) 
 
A.16 Remove 2 large tires by the USCG station (Contract is in place) 
 

 

222



CITY MANAGER REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: October 16, 2023 
Agenda Item: 
Scheduling a Council Tour of Various City Facilities. 
 
Background: 
Over the past year we have attempted to schedule a tour of various city facilities on a 
couple of occasions and have had to cancel due to conflicts and other issues preventing 
number of Council members from participating in the tours. It is important for the Council 
members to have an opportunity to see the various activities going on at facilities like the 
wastewater treatment plant, water plant, fire station and other facilities that you do not 
normally visit. I am proposing that we conduct a Council tour on Monday, October 30 
beginning at 9 AM and wrapping up around 4 PM on that day. If this date works with the 
majority of Council members, I would like to proceed with the tours. We can provide a 
second tour for those that are unable to participate on the 30th at a later time, if requested. 
If a majority of Council can participate on October 30 I would like to proceed with that tour 
on that day. Please note that the tour would be in place of a possible town meeting on 
that date.  
 
Recommendation: 
I recommend that the City Council consider the following motion:  
 
I move to schedule a facilities tour on October 30 from 9 AM till 4 PM to review various 
city facilities.  
  
Fiscal Effects: 
None. 
 
Alternatives:  
Schedule this on a different date, or suggested by the City Council. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  

 
 
 

Spencer Nebel 
City Manager 

223



CITY MANAGER REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: October 16, 2023 
Agenda Item: 
Report on Sustainable Northwest’s Oregon Coastal Resilience Source Water Acquisition 

Project.  
 

Background: 
City staff has been working with Sustainable Northwest on various efforts to seek funding 
for the purchase of private lands within sensitive watersheds. Sustainable Northwest has 
included the cities of Newport, Seaside, and Rockaway Beach, the Neskowin Water 
District, the State of Oregon Department of Environment Quality, and Parks and 
Recreation to leverage over $25 million in federal grant funds to purchase private property 
within these sensitive watersheds, including Big Creek. This is a new program that is an 
offshoot of the Inflation Reduction Act with the funds being directed through the National 
Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA). Sustainable Northwest is awaiting an 
indicate invitation to make full application for this funding. If they are invited to submit, 
then the City Council will need to take formal action to support the proposal. There is no 
action required at this time.  
 
Recommendation: 
None. 
  
Fiscal Effects: 
None by providing this report.  
 
Alternatives:  
None recommended. .  
 
Respectfully submitted,  

 
 
 

Spencer Nebel 
City Manager 

224



Page 1 of 2 

       
       

   
 
          Meeting Date: October 16, 2023 
       
 
 
Title:  Sustainable Northwest’s Oregon Coastal Resilience Source Water Acquisition Project 
 
Prepared by:  Derrick I. Tokos, AICP, Community Development Director 
 
Recommended Motion: None.  This is an informational item. 
 
Background Information:  Sustainable Northwest, in collaboration with the City of Newport 
and other coastal communities, has actively sought to expand public ownership of 
watersheds that citizens rely upon for their drinking water.  An opportunity recently 
presented itself for Sustainable NW to pull together a regional collaboration involving the 
cities of Newport, Seaside, and Rockaway Beach, the Neskowin Water District, and the 
State of Oregon Departments of Environmental Quality and Parks and Recreation to 
leverage over $25 million in federal grant funds to purchase private land within these 
sensitive watersheds to prevent them from being further fragmented, developed, or 
subject to seasonal use pressure that negatively water quality and supply.  This particular 
grant, described in greater detail below, is available by invitation only.  Prospective 
applicants were required to submit their proposals by the end of August, and they will 
learn whether or not they have the option of applying by mid-October. 
 
This particular grant is new.  It is an offshoot of the Inflation Reduction Act, with the funds 
being directed through the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA). It 
is a two track grant program, titled the “NOAA Climate Resilience Regional Challenge,” 
and its purpose is to fund collaborative approaches to achieving resilience in coastal 
regions with an emphasis on risk reduction, regional collaboration, equity, and building 
enduring capacity. 
 
The first track of the program has been structured to assist coastal communities with 
regional initiatives to build capacity, foster collaboration, and develop transformational 
resilience and adaptation strategies.  It is a planning grant to support regional scale 
coordination that fosters engagement and advance equitable outcomes.  Successful 
applicants will receive between $500,000 and $2,000,000.  Total track one funding is $25 
million. 
 
The second track supports implementation of transformational regional resilience and 
adaptation strategies and associated actions for coastal communities anchored in 
previous planning efforts.  Applicants must propose a suite of complementary adaptation 
actions that together build the resilience of multiple communities within a coastal region, 
including those that have been marginalized, underserved, or underrepresented. 
Substantially more funding is available in this track, with applicants applying for not less 

STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

225



Page 2 of 2 

than $15,000,000 and not more than $75,000,000.  Total funding available for all Track 
Two awards is up to $550,000,000. 
 
Sustainable Northwest reached out to City staff to confirm that they could include Newport 
as part of the regional collaboration when they were putting together the letter of intent.  If 
they are invited to apply, then it is likely that the City Council will need to take formal action 
to support the proposal. 
 
Fiscal Notes:  None. 
 
Alternatives:  None at this time. 
 
Attachments: 
Letter of Intent from Sustainable Northwest 
NOAA Notice of Grant Funding Opportunity 
 

 

226



NOAA CLIMATE RESILIENCE REGIONAL CHALLENGE

COVER PAGE

To: NOAA Office for Coastal Management

Purpose: NOAA Climate Resilience Regional Challenge (2023)

Project Title: Oregon Coastal Resilience - Source Water Acquisition

Funding Track: Track Two Funding

Lead Applicant: Daniel Wear, Sustainable Northwest,
Email: dwear@sustainablenorthwest.org
Phone: 206-317-4614
Address: 233 SW Naito Parkway, Suite 200
Portland, OR, 97204
(Include the full name, affiliation, and contact information, including
phone number, mailing address, and email address.)

Project Director: (Same as above: Lead Applicant)

Federal Funding Request: $25,684,193

Geographic Description: The focus of this project’s geographic region is on Oregon’s Mid &
North Coast, specifically within the counties of Clatsop, Lincoln and
Tillamook Counties. This includes five independent forested watershed
properties, currently identified for the cities of Newport, Seaside,
Rockaway Beach, and Yachats,, as well as the unincorporated
community of Neskowin.

Participating Jurisdictions: City of Newport, City of Rockaway Beach, City of Seaside, Neskowin
Water District, Oregon Department of Environmental Quality, and
Oregon Parks and Recreation Department.

Collaborators:

● Coalition of Oregon

Land Trusts

● North Coast Land

Conservancy

● Nuveen Natural

Capital

● Neskowin Water

District

● Weyerhaeuser

Company

● The City of Newport

● Manulife/ Hancock

Timber

● Springboard Forestry

● City of Rockaway

Beach

● City of Seaside

● View the Future

● Oregon Department

of Environmental

Quality

● Oregon Parks and

Recreation

Department

Period of Performance: October 2024 - June 2029

227



Resilience Vision
In Oregon, over 50% of the land area surrounding community drinking water sources is privately
owned. Many of these lands face conversion to development, fragmentation, and seasonal use
pressures negatively impacting water quality and supply. Increased conservation practices and
protections are necessary to increase these lands' resilience to climate change and ensure long-term
water quality and security for some of Oregon’s most vulnerable communities.

These issues are particularly acute on the Oregon Coast, where 50 communities rely on a supply of
surface water,1 known as source water, to provide clean drinking water. These source water supplies
include rivers, streams, reservoirs, and the forested areas which surround them. Source water supplies
are continuously threatened due to changing land use, unsustainable land management practices,
commercial or residential conversion, and impacts of catastrophic wildfire. Unfortunately, climate
change is now dramatically exacerbating threats on the coast to communities and ecosystems due to
higher intensity weather patterns and greater periods of water supply uncertainty. During the wet
season, water suppliers are vulnerable to increased precipitation events, causing flooding and pulses of
sedimentation and runoff that compromise water quality and require expensive chemical treatment
options. During the dry season, communities are experiencing extended periods of drought,2 which
present water supply issues, especially for those reliant on limited stream supplies. The current era of
unprecedented climatic challenges and water uncertainty presents major risks to underserved
communities and unique ecosystems and habitat on the Oregon Coast.

Recent studies find that healthy, diverse, and intact forests act as effective storage and filtration
systems for rainfall, precipitation, and moisture in watersheds (FAO, IUFRO and USDA. 2021).3 With the
ongoing decrease in precipitation reaching each source water area, it is vital that coastal Oregon
communities have forests capable of storing water later into the dry season, able to resist disease and
wildfire, and effectively withstand high intensity weather events to prevent downstream flooding and
sediment pulses. Ownership, management, and protection of forests within watersheds is consistently
recognized as one of the best tools for local governments to achieve water supply security and climate
resiliency. Healthy forests also provide substantial co-benefits beyond clean and abundant drinking
water, including habitat for coastal species, cool stream temperatures for migratory salmon,
recreational or public access for under-resourced communities, and long term economic opportunity.

This proposed initiative will support five communities and nearly 20,000 residents in predominantly
lower income and underserved areas by bundling forestland acquisition into a replicable model to
increase the pace and scale of source water and ecosystem protection along the Oregon Coast. This will
ensure that forests remain healthy and functional, provide natural buffers against extreme weather,
and complement other measures and infrastructure to protect communities and achieve climate
resilience. The program will also provide funding and technical assistance to build local capacity,
support enduring forest management and conservation, and facilitate acquisition due diligence. This
effort will provide a blueprint for future land acquisition efforts in similar coastal communities, and
showcase innovative regional coordination among industrial timber landowners, conservation
organizations, local governments, and state agency partners to capitalize on growing momentum to
achieve coastal resilience in a changing climate.

This program will help communities, water suppliers, and conservation organizations achieve the
following outcomes:

● Secure plentiful and high quality drinking water in vulnerable Oregon coastal communities.

3 A guide to forest-water management. FAO Forestry Paper No. 185. Rome. https://doi.org/10.4060/cb6473en.

2 As of August 8, 2023, the U.S. Drought Monitor shows Clatsop, Lincoln and Tillamook County all experiencing moderate to severe drought
conditions, with 97% of Tillamook County experiencing drought conditions, 40% of which residing in severe drought conditions. Meanwhile,
100% of Lincoln County is experiencing drought conditions, with 97% of the county in severe drought conditions.

1 Drinking Water Data for Coastal Communities. Ecotrust. Portland. https://ecotrust.org/drinking-water-data-for-coastal-communities/

228



● Improve forest health to maintain functionality and increase resilience to climate change.
● Protect critical ecosystems and habitats experiencing increased climate related threats.
● Leverage state and private funding to protect water resources and public health.
● Maintain working forests and drive economic benefit in tourism dependent communities.

Regional Context
In recent years, land use on the Oregon Coast has undergone a significant transition. A rapid expansion
of short-term rentals and record tourism has increased pressure on previously undeveloped areas, such
as intact and diverse forestland, and is contributing to dwindling water supplies. As more land is
acquired and converted into residential or commercial properties, motivation grows for development
within watersheds. Meanwhile, the need for more consistent and protected water supplies expands
alongside population pressures. Any reduction of forestland within source water areas has a direct
impact on the retention and filtration capacity of forests, and the resulting “green infrastructure”
support for coastal water systems. Coupled with the rising impacts of climate change, including
unpredictable precipitation events and extended periods of drought, coastal water suppliers,
communities, and ecosystems are experiencing unprecedented strain.

The State of Oregon recently addressed these compounding challenges and recognized that a reliable
supply of drinking water is a top concern and priority to ensure resilience for communities in Oregon’s
Mid and North Coast. Numerous risks were identified by the Oregon Department of Environmental
Quality (DEQ)4, such as climate change, highly erodible soils, recently managed forestlands, and
residential land and infrastructure development. These concerns have generated significant public and
political interest, including discussion of the need for mechanisms to support community acquisition
and protection of lands around drinking water sources. Consequently, the Oregon Legislature
established a new program at the Oregon Watershed Enhancement Board (OWEB) in the 2023 session,
and $5 million was appropriated statewide for the biennium to protect source drinking water areas.
OWEB and SNW are working in close partnership to ensure this fund aligns with the intention of the
State-wide source water challenges.

This proposal is also timely given Oregon’s decade-long difficulties meeting the conditions of the
Coastal Zone Management Plan and Clean Water Act, in part due to concerns regarding forest and road
management from NOAA and EPA.5 These concerns have led to the withholding of a portion of funds
under Section 306 of the Coastal Zone Management Act and Section 319 of the Clean Water Act. Since
then, progress has been made by negotiation between timber interests and conservation groups,
leading to creation of the Oregon Private Forest Accords6 and subsequent support from the Oregon
Governor and Legislature for a private Oregon forestland Habitat Conservation Plan.

These positive developments and shifting political alignment provide important precedents for a
collaborative federal, state, and private initiative to aggregate several coastal communities and
watersheds to achieve climate resilience and water security. However, state resources and recent policy
changes provide just a fraction of the necessary resources to meet the scope of need identified by state
agencies and local governments. Funding from NOAA will achieve a scaled impact in some of Oregon’s
largest and most vulnerable coastal communities, improving public health, ecosystem function, and
climate resilience. Doing so will provide a template for similarly situated coastal communities across
the Pacific Northwest to pursue and realize the economic, ecological, and social benefits of intact
forestlands and resilient watersheds.

6 https://www.oregon.gov/odf/pages/private-forest-accord.aspx

5 NOAA AND EPA RESPONSE TO COMMENTS REGARDING THE AGENCIES’ PROPOSED FINDING THAT OREGON HAS NOT SUBMITTED A FULLY
APPROVABLE COASTAL NONPOINT PROGRAM. NOAA. WASHINGTON DC.:
https://coast.noaa.gov/data/czm/pollutioncontrol/media/ORCZARARtC.pdf

4Oregon Public Water Systems Surface Water Resource Guide. Oregon Department of Environmental Quality. Portland.

https://www.oregon.gov/deq/FilterDocs/SurfaceWaterResourceGuide.pdf

229



Partnership and Collaboration
Spanning communities and water suppliers in Clatsop, Lincoln, and Tillamook Counties, this project will
support land acquisition, property ownership and management, and ensure clean, reliable water in five
coastal communities, three of which have been identified as disadvantaged by the State of Oregon.

● The City of Newport, for acquiring 1,500 acres of priority property and dam design.
● The City of Rockaway Beach, for the acquisition or land use easement of 559 acres of priority

forestland.
● View the Future and Oregon Parks and Recreation Department, for the acquisition of 953 acres

of priority forestland within the Yachats River Watershed.
● The City of Seaside, for the acquisition of 1,890 acres of priority forestland.
● Neskowin Water District, for acquisition of 1,300 acres of priority forestland.

Over the past decade, Sustainable Northwest has partnered with numerous coastal municipalities,
organizations, and local stakeholders to balance forest ownership with the protection of community
drinking water supplies. These partnerships seek to maintain forests as green infrastructure to
complement existing gray infrastructure, establish permanent source water protection, and mitigate
the risks posed by drought conditions, flooding, and other severe weather events. In addition to land
acquisition and conservation, these collaborations have focused on building durable local capacity for
water suppliers and community-based organizations, and advancing coastal conservation priorities.

Recent successes have included the acquisition of 1,500 acres of forestland containing the community
of Arch Cape’s source drinking water supply, acquisition of a 160 acre parcel in the City of Port Orford’s
watershed, and additional forest management planning and due diligence with the Cities of Coquille,
Newport, and Rockaway Beach. Our work in these communities, as well as collaboration with local
government, water districts, landowners, and conservation organizations has highlighted the increasing
demand for local ownership, management, and conservation of individual community water supplies.

Sustainable Northwest has also proven itself as an effective facilitator of federal funding to partners
and communities. Our organization is currently sub-awarding and contracting $40 million in federal
funds to communities pursuing wildfire recovery, climate-resilient forestry, and regenerative ranching
and agriculture. We also manage and facilitate the Northwest Community Forest Coalition, providing
technical assistance, financial, and consulting services to diverse communities, landowners, and
conservation organizations across the region.

This project’s established network of local governments, community partners, landowners, and
conservation organizations provides an unprecedented opportunity for regional collaboration to
achieve scaled source water protection and improved climate resilience for communities and
ecosystems. Each of the identified communities will be provided resources to both acquire properties
and establish a sustainable management plan. This will ensure enduring capacity for long-term success
and adaptive management, local economic benefit, and ecological resilience. This collaborative
capacity building model will also support replication for additional under-resourced communities and
partners seeking source water protection and enhanced climate resilience across the Pacific Northwest.

Proposed Activities and Outcomes
This proposal includes the acquisition of over 6,000 acres of priority property within DEQ identified
Source Water Areas on Oregon’s Mid and North Coast, and development of corresponding local
capacity for enduring forest management to achieve climate resilience. Each of these acquisitions will
require different levels of funding, capacity support, and technical assistance. In addition to resources
for forestland acquisition, each community will receive customized technical assistance from expert
consultants to develop a long-term forest management and conservation plan, and establish strategies
for implementation and adaptive management. As a result of this effort, the Mid and North Coast of
Oregon will see a transition towards drinking water security for over 20,000 year-round residents, 230



achieving an equitable distribution of resources and resiliency for lower-income, under-resourced, and
rurally designated communities. These communities include:

Neskowin: The Neskowin Regional Water District is working to protect the 1,500 acre Hawk Creek
source water area that supplies drinking water to residents. The water district has a productive
relationship with the largest landowner in the watershed, Weyerhaeuser, who owns 1,300 acres in the
upper watershed. The district has been working on title review, appraisals, and consulting with
forestland managers to determine acquisition and management challenges, as well as property values
in the watershed. The water district is now ready to acquire 1,300 acres from Weyerhaeuser at an
estimated cost of $5.4 million.  Beyond pursuing water security in a changing climate, the water district
seeks to protect water for ESA listed Coho salmon that return to Hawk Creek every year, and 21 other
species identified for protection by the Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife in the Oregon
Conservation Strategy. This rurally designated 300 person community is highly reliant on a single source
to provide its drinking water supply, and over 87% of properties are located in vulnerable flood risk
zones, as identified by the EPA’s Environmental Justice Screener and Mapping Tool.

Newport: The City of Newport has identified the acquisition of forest property to pair with
replacement of the community’s earthen dam. Newport has established a relationship with the local
landowner, Hancock Timber, enabling a potential acquisition of 1,500 acres within the Big Creek
Watershed, at an estimated cost of $6 million. This acquisition will enhance the earthen dam
replacement effort, also located within Newport’s Big Creek Watershed, at an estimated cost of more
than $80 million (2020 dollars). The city has already obtained $14 million in state lottery funds, and
used that commitment to leverage a $60 million authorization from the federal government. However,
current funding secured for the Newport Dam will not cover funding needed for forestland acquisition.
NOAA funding for green infrastructure (forestland acquisition) will pair with this gray infrastructure
(earthen dam renovation) project to provide assurances for the long-term protection of the
communities’ drinking water supply. The EPA’s Environmental Justice Screening and Mapping Tool lists
Newport as a low-income community, with a majority of its 10,000 residents receiving water from the
Big Creek Water Supply falling between the 60 and 90th percentile in the low-income tool of the
screener. The tool also shows that over 2,000 residents are vulnerable to flooding based on the seismic
risks associated with the current earthen dam.

Seaside: The City of Seaside has prioritized ownership of forestlands within their source water area,
and is seeking additional acquisitions. A 1,890 acre parcel is currently in consideration for conservation
easement or sale from North Coast landowner Nuveen Natural Capital at an estimated cost of $8
million. This property lies within the Source Drinking Water Area of Seaside within the Necanicum River
Watershed, adjacent to Seaside’s current 960 acres of ownership. This provides a showcase
opportunity to maintain working forest lands with increased conservation protections for reliable
drinking water and sustainable supply to support seasonal tourism. This acquisition will also serve as an
assurance to Seaside’s water security and reliability to the community’s year-round residents. Seaside is
listed as a low-income community according to the EPA’s Environmental Justice Screener and Mapping
Tool. Over half of the City’s residents fall within the 72nd and 94th percentile in the low-income tool of
the screener, with 93% of properties located in vulnerable flood risk zones.

Rockaway Beach: Conservation partners on the North Coast, including Sustainable Northwest, North
Coast Land Conservancy, Nuveen Natural Capital, and the City of Rockaway Beach, have been working
closely with community members on cooperative management of a 559 acre forested area within the
Jetty Creek Watershed at an estimated cost of $3 million. Funding would ensure that over half of the
water supply of Jetty Creek to the City of Rockaway Beach would be managed with the primary goal of
sustaining water quality and quantity. Rockaway Beach is listed as a low-income community according
to the EPA’s Environmental Justice Screener and Mapping Tool. The portions of the city and the
community receiving water from Jetty Creek fall between the 56th and 72nd percentile within the
low-income tool of the screener, with 89% of properties located in vulnerable flood risk zones. 231



Yachats: Conservation partners on Oregon’s Mid-Coast, including Oregon State Parks and Recreation
Department and View the Future, are working to acquire 953 acres of priority forestland at an
estimated cost of $4 million outside of Yachats, Oregon. This property lies within the Source Drinking
Water Area of the Yachats River, and is currently the communities’ backup water supply. If acquired,
the Yachats Ridge Property will secure a critical forest buffer and watershed protection area for
residents, while also providing an accessible tsunami evacuation area and increased recreation
opportunities. According to the EPA’s Environmental Justice Screening Tool, over half the Yachats
community is listed as low-income, at the 51st percentile, with 90% of these properties located in
vulnerable flood risk zones.

Collectively, these strategic project areas will acquire over 6,000 acres of critical drinking water source
areas in the at-risk forested watersheds of five communities, including two of the largest coastal
communities in Oregon. By strengthening relationships between local municipalities, water authorities,
conservation organizations, community members, and industrial landowners, this initiative will
aggregate a cohort of coastal watersheds, providing a powerful template for similarly situated
communities along the Oregon Coast and across the Pacific Northwest. This effort will leverage federal,
state, and private funding, build durable local capacity and collaborative partnerships, and protect
drinking water source areas and ecosystems to achieve climate resilience and broad socioeconomic
benefit along the Oregon Coast.

Budget Summary
The preliminary budget for this project is $25,684,193, broken into five distinct categories.

Sustainable Northwest Personnel: $500,000 will support Sustainable Northwest staff time for the
project period. SNW will serve as administrator of project funds and lead all monitoring and reporting
activities necessary to comply with federal requirements. Sustainable Northwest will also serve as a
project manager in partnership with individual water systems. Staff will provide capacity to local
partners to finalize acquisitions, support forest management plan development, and identify and
facilitate additional water quality protection activities over the five year project period.

Contracts: Contract funding will include due diligence, legal fees, local capacity building, and costs for
expert consultation to ensure capacity for long-term forest management planning and implementation,
with the priority of water quality protection and climate resilience. A total of $1,125,000 for these
activities includes an estimated $750,000 in due diligence costs and an estimated $375,000 for legal
review for the suite of projects. All contracting costs will be distributed on an as needed basis. Given
the complexity of each project and variance of each acquisition timeline, contracts will be executed
with partnering water districts, conservation partners, and other project participants throughout the
five year project period.

Sub-Awards: Subaward funding covers the estimated cost of acquisition for each of the identified
properties. A total of five sites are currently under consideration, bringing the preliminary acquisition
cost to $23,576,023.

Travel: Travel costs during the project period consist of $75,000 for staff and contractors. This includes
a budget for 15 site visits per year over five years, at a cost of $1,000 per visit.

Indirect: Sustainable Northwest’s negotiated NIRCA Rate is 24.01%. When applied to $1,700,000 of
contracting, personnel, and travel expenses, this indirect expense comes to $408,170.

Technical assistance from NOAA: No technical assistance from NOAA is requested within this scope.

232



Inflation Reduction Act: NOAA Climate Resilience Regional Challenge
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS

 
I.  Funding Opportunity Description 4

A.  Program Objective 4
B.  Program Priorities 15
C.  Program Authority 16

II.  Award Information 17
A.  Funding Availability 17
B.  Project/Award Period 17
C.  Type of Funding Instrument 18

III.  Eligibility Information 19
A.  Eligible Applicants 19
B.  Cost Sharing or Matching Requirement 20
C.  Other Criteria that Affect Eligibility 21

IV.  Application and Submission Information 21
A.  Address to Request Application Package 21
B.  Content and Form of Application 21
C.  Unique Entity Identifier and System for Award Management (SAM) 37
D.  Submission Dates and Times 37
E.  Intergovernmental Review 39
F.  Funding Restrictions 39
G.  Other Submission Requirements 40

V.  Application Review Information 41
A.  Evaluation Criteria 41
B.  Review and Selection Process 49
C.  Selection Factors 52
D.  Anticipated Announcement and Award Dates 53

VI.  Award Administration Information 53
A.  Award Notices 53
B.  Administrative and National Policy Requirements 54
C.  Reporting 62

VII.  Agency Contacts 63
VIII.  Other Information 63

Notice of Federal Funding Page 1 of 64

233



NOTICE OF FUNDING OPPORTUNITY
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
 

Federal Agency Name(s):  National Ocean Service (NOS), National Oceanic and Atmospheric
Administration (NOAA), Department of Commerce
 
Funding Opportunity Title:  Inflation Reduction Act: NOAA Climate Resilience Regional
Challenge
 
Announcement Type:  Initial
 
Funding Opportunity Number:  NOAA-NOS-OCM-2023-2008068
 
Federal Assistance Listings Number:  11.473, Office for Coastal Management
 
Dates:  Letter of Intent Date: Letters of Intent are required and must be postmarked, provided to
a delivery service, or received by electronic mail by 11:59 PM Eastern Time on August 21, 2023.
Use of a delivery service must be documented with a receipt. No facsimile applications will be
accepted. Electronic mail must be sent to resiliencechallenge@noaa.gov.
 
Full Application Date: Invited full applications must be postmarked, provided to a delivery
service, or received by www.Grants.gov by 11:59 PM Eastern Time on February 13, 2024. Use
of a delivery service must be documented with a receipt. No facsimile or electronic mail
applications will be accepted.
 
Funding Opportunity Description:  The NOAA Climate Resilience Regional Challenge
(Challenge) will support collaborative approaches to achieving resilience in coastal regions with
an emphasis on risk reduction, regional collaboration, equity, and building enduring capacity.
The Challenge is a $575 million competition with a Letter of Intent phase and two exclusive
funding tracks designed to meet the needs of coastal communities wherever they are in the
resilience and adaptation process.
 
Regional Collaborative Building and Strategy Development (Track One) supports building
capacity for, development of, and collaboration on transformational resilience and adaptation
strategies for coastal communities. Successful applicants will receive $500,000 to $2,000,000 to
support regional scale coordination, engagement, planning, advancement of equitable outcomes,
and capacity building for resilience and adaptation. Total funding for all Track One awards may
be up to $25 million.
 
Implementation of Resilience and Adaptation Actions (Track Two) supports implementation of
transformational resilience and adaptation strategies and associated actions for coastal

Notice of Federal Funding Page 2 of 64

234



communities anchored in previous planning efforts. Applicants must propose a suite of
complementary adaptation actions that together build the resilience of multiple communities
within a coastal region, including those that have been marginalized, underserved, or
underrepresented. Applicants can apply for not less than $15,000,000 and not more than
$75,000,000, with most awards being between $25,000,000 and $50,000,000. Total funding
available for all Track Two awards is up to $550,000,000.
 

Notice of Federal Funding Page 3 of 64

235



FULL ANNOUNCEMENT TEXT

 
I.  Funding Opportunity Description
 

A.  Program Objective
 

1. Background
 
      U.S. coastal counties are home to 40% of the nation’s population, employ 54.6 million
people, and produce $9.6 trillion in goods and services. These counties and their
communities are experiencing not just rapid but accelerating change and increased risks from
the combined effects of storms, precipitation, sea level rise, and other physical stressors. The
Fourth National Climate Assessment (NCA4, 2018) highlighted the significant risk to coastal
property and public infrastructure from increases in the frequency, depth, and extent of tidal
flooding due to sea level rise, with cascading impacts to the Nation’s economy. Higher storm
surges due to sea level rise and the increased probability of heavy precipitation events
increase the risk. By the latter part of this century, many more coastal communities will
suffer financial impacts as chronic high tide flooding leads to increased infrastructure
damage. As the pace and extent of coastal flooding and erosion accelerates, climate change
impacts along our coasts are compounding pre-existing social inequities and communities
are facing difficult questions about the costs and tradeoffs associated with adaptation
strategies, including if, how, or when to relocate infrastructure.
 
      Coastal communities also face additional threats from the changing climate, including
extreme heat, wildfire, drought, and ocean acidification. These stressors also impact coastal
economies, social systems, and important coastal ecosystems. In response to these climate
threats, the “Executive Order on Tackling the Climate Crisis at Home and Abroad”, (E.O.
14008 at https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/DCPD-202100095/pdf/DCPD-
202100095.pdf) lays out a range of responsibilities for federal agencies to tackle the climate
crisis, including a directive to align Federal financial programs to support robust climate
action and deliver environmental justice in communities across America. The order also calls
upon federal agencies to align the creativity, courage, and capital necessary to make our
Nation resilient and points to the essential role of coastal communities in improving our
resilience to weather and climate impacts.
 
      Climate change does not respect jurisdictional boundaries and poses a challenge that
surpasses the capacity of any single organization or government agency to resolve,
necessitating cross-jurisdictional and cross-sectoral adaptation solutions. While many coastal
communities have begun to identify their climate risks, mechanisms are needed to
effectively coordinate and execute resilience and adaptation actions across jurisdictions and

Notice of Federal Funding Page 4 of 64

236



sectors in a way that will meaningfully engage marginalized, underserved, or
underrepresented communities. Regional collaboration can dramatically improve how we
achieve coastal resilience by aligning adaptation strategies across jurisdictions and sectors to
achieve co-benefits. Co-benefits are the supplemental positive impacts (e.g., job creation,
habitat conservation, recreation, etc.) that can result from adaptation actions in addition to
the direct risk reduction benefits (e.g., reduced cost of flooding). Regional collaboration on
climate adaptation also promotes the leveraging of resources, enables collective action that
includes input from and benefits to marginalized, underserved and underrepresented
populations, and allows for development of more durable solutions that multiply the value of
individual efforts.
 
      Entire segments of our society have been marginalized, underserved, or underrepresented
in efforts to prepare for, respond to, recover from, and adapt to weather and climate impacts,
despite being at greater risk due to lack of resources, accessibility constraints, and systemic
institutional barriers. This includes Tribes and Indigenous People who are disproportionately
affected by climate change and face additional institutional barriers in order to adapt to the
most severe impacts (Fourth National Climate Assessment). Executive Order 14096,
Revitalizing Our Nation's Commitment to Environmental Justice for All"
(https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2023/04/26/2023-08955/revitalizing-our-
nations-commitment-to-environmental-justice-for-all), and it's predecessor E.O.13985
(https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2021/01/25/2021-01753/advancing-racial-
equity-and-support-for-underserved-communities-through-the-federal-government),
emphasize the need for Federal agencies to take actions to redress unfair disparities and
remove barriers to government programs and services. E.O. 14096 places even greater
urgency on the Federal Government to “. . . build upon and strengthen its commitment to
deliver environmental justice to all communities across America. Our Nation needs . . . ".
Executive Order 14008 also established the Justice40 Initiative, directing that 40% of the
overall benefits from federal climate and clean energy investments flow to disadvantaged
communities and that such communities accrue the benefits of those investments.
 
      With funding from the Inflation Reduction Act (P.L. 117-169, Section 40001), NOAA
has designed the Climate Resilience Regional Challenge to catalyze equitable adaptation
through regional scale collaboration and implementation of adaptation actions that will
reduce future damage from weather and climate impacts. The Federal investments being
made through NOAA’s Climate Resilience Regional Challenge also provide a unique
opportunity to build enduring capacity for adaptation in coastal areas, including
marginalized, underserved, and underrepresented communities. This investment further
supports the directive in Executive Order 14008 (referenced above) to secure environmental
justice and spur economic opportunity for disadvantaged communities. Adaptation actions

Notice of Federal Funding Page 5 of 64

237



supported by this funding will contribute to the Interagency Memorandum of Understanding
(MOU) on Promoting Equitable Access to Nature in Nature-Deprived Communities, which
seeks to support locally led conservation and park projects in nature-deprived communities.
NOAA will partner with award recipients to provide technical assistance (e.g., scientific
expertise, knowledge of coastal resource management, technical and training capabilities) in
support of these regional efforts and to help ensure lasting progress toward equitable
resilience and adaptation. For more information on the Climate Resilience Regional
Challenge and to learn about technical assistance from NOAA, visit:
https://coast.noaa.gov/funding/ira/resilience-challenge/
 
      In recognition that some communities are just beginning to address climate challenges,
while others have been planning for many years, this funding opportunity includes two
distinct and exclusive tracks:
 
      - Regional Collaborative Building and Strategy Development (Track One): Funding
        under Track One supports the development and operation of regional collaboratives to
        generate transformational resilience and adaptation strategies for coastal
        communities, including those that have been marginalized, underserved, or
        underrepresented. This funding track will meet communities where they are in the
        adaptation process, advance equitable resilience, adaptation planning and partnership
        building, and establish more entities with local capacity for implementing future
        on-the-ground resilience and adaptation actions. Track One funding, combined with
        technical assistance from NOAA, will allow successful applicants to plan for holistic
        resilience and adaptation investments, initiatives and policies, and build enduring
        capacity for future adaptation efforts.
 
      - Implementation of Resilience and Adaptation Actions (Track Two): Funding under
        Track Two supports transformational resilience and adaptation actions
        that are ready for implementation and will greatly and measurably reduce risk and
        vulnerability in coastal areas while advancing equity. This funding track supports
        implementation of a suite of complementary resilience and adaptation actions that:
               - extend benefits beyond the boundaries of one town and avoid detrimental
                 consequences for others (e.g. stormwater improvements that reduce coastal
                 erosion in one community but increase flooding in another);
               - are holistic and provide co-benefits (e.g., a system of nature-based installations
                 that protect multiple communities and provide open space and access to nature);
                 and
               - provide equitable outcomes that benefit the entire community, including
                 marginalized, underserved, or underrepresented residents.

Notice of Federal Funding Page 6 of 64

238



 
      This funding, combined with technical assistance from NOAA, will enable successful
      applicants to implement resilience and adaptation actions that provide measurable risk
      reduction outcomes and support related initiatives and policies, while building enduring
      capacity for future adaptation efforts.
 
      2. Program Overview
 
      The Climate Resilience Regional Challenge is a two-track competition. Applicants must
clearly identify in their application the track that should be used to evaluate their proposal
(Regional Collaborative Building and Strategy Development, or Implementation of
Resilience and Adaptation Actions). Applicants should select a category based on the
evaluation criteria in Section V.A. If a category is not identified by the applicant within the
proposal, NOAA will identify a category for the applicant. No appeals regarding placement
will be considered.
 
      All applicants must identify the geographic region that they propose to serve for the
purposes of this competition. The geographic region must be located within one or more
coastal states or territories as defined in the Coastal Zone Management Act (See Section
III.A Eligibility), and should be of a size and scope to be able to demonstrate, with the
amount of funding available from NOAA, significant, tangible resilience and adaptation
outcomes that benefit the identified region and local coastal communities. NOAA
encourages applications that benefit tribal lands and/or tribal priorities, and a region may be
made up of or include tribal lands. A region may include lands governed by multiple Tribes
within a single compact area, such as a watershed. Alternatively, a region may include
multiple parts of geographically connected states or tribal lands facing similar weather and
climate impacts. Specified regions should be of a size and scope to facilitate the
implementation of resilience and adaptation actions and ensure benefits at the community
level.
 
      All proposals should focus on regional efforts that:
 
             1) provide local and regional co-benefits (e.g., reducing risk and improving public
                 health, advancing equitable adaptation actions and increasing access to open
                 space);
             2) advance equity through meaningful community involvement in the identification
                 and implementation of holistic resilience and adaptation strategies and actions;
                 and
             3) contribute to enduring capacity for adaptation in the region.

Notice of Federal Funding Page 7 of 64

239



 
      All proposals should demonstrate collaboration between relevant entities in the specified
region and build upon previous and ongoing efforts related to achieving resilience within the
specified region, where such activities exist. Successful proposals will leverage scientific
information, indigenous knowledge, and local knowledge and technical skills that are
distributed across a diverse group of organizations and sectors, including NOAA and other
federal, state, tribal and local government agencies. These leveraging opportunities include
previous or ongoing investments in resilience and adaptation, such as information sources
(e.g., assessments, studies, plans, tools, training, technical assistance), and mechanisms (e.g.,
funding, programs, partnerships). Applicants can review the Guidance for Federal
Departments and Agencies on Indigenous Knowledge (at https://www.whitehouse.gov/wp-
content/uploads/2022/12/OSTP-CEQ-IK-Guidance.pdf) for ways to improve the recognition
and inclusion of Indigenous Knowledge.
 
Track One - Regional Collaborative Building and Strategy Development
 
      Through Track One, NOAA will award $500,000 to $2,000,000 to successful applicants
to support regional scale collaborative efforts focused on building resilience for coastal areas
and communities. NOAA expects to select between 20-25 winning collaboratives but may
select more or less based on the merits of the applications. Total funding for all Track One
awards may be up to $25 million. Funding amounts listed here are approximate. Typical
award amount is anticipated to be $1,000,000.
 
      For the purposes of this program, regional collaboratives are defined as groups
comprised of collaborators and partners (see Section I.A.3 for definitions) that are unified by
a common vision for how to significantly increase the resilience of their region, are led by or
include locally-oriented institutions and governments, and share adjacent and/or overlapping
geographical interests or administrative boundaries or benefit from the same natural, social,
economic, and/or infrastructure systems. The collaborators and partners that comprise the
regional collaborative should have a clear, shared sense of the need for action and
willingness to engage in a collaborative process that links diverse interests to achieve shared
goals in a regional setting. This shared vision should align with the “NOAA 2022-26
Strategic Plan (https://www.noaa.gov/organization/budget-finance-performance/value-to-
society/noaa-fy22-26-strategic-plan), and reflect the interests of relevant coastal Tribes and
jurisdictions, such as states, territories, counties, parishes, cities, towns, villages, tribal lands
and culturally significant areas. Collaboratives should include and/or engage with
representatives from the relevant jurisdictions and sectors to collectively address weather
and climate impacts.
 

Notice of Federal Funding Page 8 of 64

240



      Entities applying to Track One should come together as a regional collaborative with a
unified vision for increasing resilience at a regional scale. This vision and the preliminary
strategies and activities needed to advance towards that vision should be clearly articulated
in Letters of Intent and full applications. Track One funding can be used to support further
development of the vision and strategy, including necessary coordination, engagement, and
planning. Engagement must include convening multiple stakeholders from the public and
private sectors (e.g., federal, state, and/or local agencies; Tribes, and tribal organizations;
non-governmental organizations; community-based organizations; and business and
industry) and include- marginalized, underserved, or underrepresented communities.
 
      Track One funding will support the building of new and strengthening of existing
collaboratives toward identifying joint actions to advance climate resilience and adaptation
in the respective region. Applicants to Track One should include a clear strategy for making
significant progress toward implementation of adaptation actions within two years of the
start of the award. Milestones that reflect progress of a collaborative include the following:
articulation of shared priorities; identification of a collaborative leadership structure, and the
roles and responsibilities for each position; formulation of operating norms and practices,
including decision-making processes; establishment of routine communication mechanisms,
both within the collaborative and with stakeholders; initiation of strategic planning activities;
and pursuit of training and capacity-building events. Other activities that reflect progress
toward implementation of adaptation actions include: identification and assessment of the
most significant weather and climate risks and potential impacts; engagement of those most
impacted by weather and climate impacts for co-development of solutions; initiation and/or
completion of vulnerability assessment(s); collection of necessary data to evaluate options
(e.g., economic data, modeling results); development and sharing of policy, program and
technical advice; identification and evaluation of adaptation options and potential pathways
to implementation; pursuit of activities that position the collaborative to undertake future
implementation activities (e.g., design and engineering plans); and identification and
evaluation of funding and financing sources.
 
      Track One funding can be used for the following:
 
             - Establishing and expanding durable regional partnerships, including
               organizational development of a regional collaborative, identification of
               strategies and actions, and strategic planning;
            - Conducting outreach and communication activities related to regional resilience
               and adaptation;
            - Convening inclusive and accessible engagement activities to enhance the breadth 
               of the collaborative teams, especially with marginalized, underserved, and

Notice of Federal Funding Page 9 of 64

241



               underrepresented communities;
             - Analyzing risk, vulnerability and adaptation actions for the region and conducting
               related assessments;
             - Planning for the implementation of equitable resilience and adaptation actions,
               including integration with other planning efforts;
             - Undertaking environmental and engineering reviews needed to support future
               resilience and adaptation actions;
             - Developing and implementing laws, regulations, and policies related to resilience
               and adaptation actions;
             - Identifying and pursuing funding and financing options for resilience and 
               adaptation actions;
             - Identifying the workforce requirements to implement resilience and adaptation 
               actions  into the future;  
             - Developing and implementing training and capacity building for resilience and
               adaptation in coastal communities, especially for marginalized, underserved, and
               underrepresented communities;
             - Designing, planning and implementing performance management and evaluation
               activities related to the collaborative partnerships; and
             - Pursuing other activities essential to moving forward with regional coastal 
               resilience and adaptation activities. 
     
      NOAA strongly encourages new collaboratives to form and apply to this Challenge.
Existing collaboratives are also encouraged to apply and build upon their current efforts and
expand involvement to new collaborators and partners. Each collaborative must identify an
eligible entity that will apply for and receive federal funds if the application is selected for
funding (See Section III.A Eligible Applicants). The regional collaborative itself is not
required to be a legal entity, nor will there be any competitive advantage for being a legal
entity. For new and existing collaboratives that wish to establish themselves as a new legal
entity, Track One funding may be used for that purpose.
 
Track Two - Implementation of Resilience and Adaptation Actions
 
      Through Track Two, NOAA anticipates awards for no less than $15,000,000 to no more
than $75,000,000, and anticipates that most awards will be between $25,000,000 and
$50,000,000. Successful applicants will use the funding to support implementation of
complementary adaptation actions (approximately three to eight), including construction and
non-construction activities. NOAA expects to award no more than 15 Track Two awards but
may select more based on the merits of the applications. Total funding available for all Track
Two awards is up to $550,000,000. Funding amounts listed here are approximate.

Notice of Federal Funding Page 10 of 64

242



 
      Track Two funding is intended to support the implementation of a complementary suite
of ambitious and achievable actions (approximately three to eight) that are grounded in
existing plans and/or strategies aimed at addressing the resilience and adaptation challenges
within a specified region. Applicants for Track Two funding may be, but are not required to
be, a regional collaborative as defined for Track One (i.e. they can be a single entity).
However, all entities interested in applying to Track Two should be committed to working
closely with relevant partners, including representatives of underserved communities, on
their applications and in potential implementation of funding under a collective vision for
increasing resilience within their specified geographic region. The adaptation actions
proposed for funding should have been developed through engagement with multiple
stakeholders (e.g., federal, state, and/or local agencies; Tribes and tribal organizations; and
non-governmental organizations), especially those that have been marginalized, underserved,
and underrepresented, and aligned with the overall climate resilience and adaptation vision
being proposed for the region. The collective vision and a list of collaborators and/or
partners (see Section I.A.3) for the regional effort should be clearly identified in the Letter of
Intent and full application. The proposed suite of actions to achieve the vision should
measurably reduce risk and build resilience in the identified region, and provide benefit to
those that are most at risk due to social and economic factors.
 
      Applicants to Track Two should also propose efforts to build enduring capacity for
continued pursuit of equitable adaptation within the region and include activities to transfer
knowledge and experience gained from the implementation of adaptation actions to other
jurisdictions and sectors within and beyond the geographic region. Applicants should also
consider the workforce requirements for successful implementation of the proposed and
future adaptation actions and include development of training programs or other capacity
building services that strengthen or build the region’s talent pool, emphasize in-demand
skills, connect workers with quality jobs, and develop accessible career pathways for
professionals within the region (if relevant). Proposals including workforce development
activities should follow Department of Commerce (DOC) best practices that can be found at
https://www.commerce.gov/issues/workforce-development.
     
      Example activities for Track Two include:
 
             - Planning (including design and permitting) and construction of natural
               infrastructure that reduces weather and climate impacts;
             - Acquiring land to reduce the impacts of weather and climate and to protect 
               coastal habitats and human communities;
             - Strengthening or protecting public access to ocean and coastal resources and 

Notice of Federal Funding Page 11 of 64

243



               related activities, including working waterfronts;
             - Pursuing new or updated outreach and risk communication efforts;
             - Planning, designing, or preparing for implementation of community-led relocation
               efforts;
             - Advancing state/tribal/local standards, policies, and codes to build resilience;
             - Acquiring coastal data and developing decision support tools to inform resilience 
               and adaptation measures;
             - Pursuing hybrid green (natural) and gray (structural) projects, including 
               modifying public infrastructure to deliver multiple benefits and significant positive
               impact for the long-term;
             - Establishing resilience hub(s) that use pre-existing facilities to support residents 
               and coordinate resource distribution and services before, during, or after a
               natural hazard event;
             - Development and implementation of performance measurement, monitoring,
               evaluation, and/or reporting mechanisms;
             - Efforts that support relevant workforce needs, in line with Department of
               Commerce (DOC) best practices (https://www.commerce.gov/issues/workforce-
               development); and
             - Activities under Track One that support the implementation of adaptation actions.
 
      Any proposed construction activities are required to, at a minimum, be in conformance
with the highest Federal standards available, unless higher local and state standards are
available, and specifications that incorporate the latest hazard-resistant designs. Proposals
should clearly describe how the construction activities, including construction of natural
infrastructure, will measurably reduce exposure, vulnerability, or risk to known weather and
climate impacts and/or decrease recovery time for future extreme weather events. This
includes natural infrastructure projects that use existing or rebuilt natural landscapes (i.e.,
forests, floodplains, and wetlands) to increase resilience to climate impacts, often resulting in
environmental, economic, and social co-benefits. It also includes hybrid green and gray
projects that combine gray infrastructure with nature-based solutions to create systems that
improve resilience to climate impacts, while also often resulting in environmental, economic,
and social co-benefits. For more information on potential nature-based solutions, please see
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Engineering with Nature Initiative; EPA’s Green
Infrastructure website; and NOAA’s Natural Infrastructure for Coastal Hazards website.
 
      Proposals for large scale actions that provide significant impact are encouraged;
however, ‘demonstration’ or ‘pilots’ are also eligible. If a ‘demonstration’ or ‘pilot’ scale
effort is proposed, applicants should describe the need for the effort, expected positive
benefits, and the steps to be taken to transfer knowledge and experience within and outside

Notice of Federal Funding Page 12 of 64

244



the region. All construction activities must be located on publicly owned land, tribal land, or
land where a public entity holds a lease or easement which shall, at a minimum, be for the
expected life of the project (as defined by the project applicant and NOAA, but for a
minimum of 20 years). NOAA will review leases and easements conveying property to
public entities to ensure that the public interest is adequate and consistent with competition
requirements. All construction activities must be able to be completed within the period of
performance. For additional information on application requirements for construction
activities, see Section IV.B PDF 4 Supplemental Materials/Appendices.
 
      All proposed land acquisitions must provide resilience and adaptation benefits to a
coastal community. Resilience and adaptation benefits include reducing damages from
weather and climate impacts or avoiding future losses caused by conversion of land from its
natural, undeveloped, or recreational state to other uses. To be eligible, grantees and sub-
awardees must acquire property or permanent conservation easements from willing sellers
within eligible States and provide for non-Federal public or tribal ownership or ownership by
a private entity whose organizational purpose or goal is conservation, restoration or
preservation of land and natural resources. Interest in land must be held for conservation in
perpetuity. If the grant recipient is a State agency that does not have authority to hold title to
lands, the property may be held by another eligible non-Federal public entity if there is an
appropriate Memorandum of Understanding, subaward agreement or other legal agreement
in place with the State agency to ensure conservation and resilience benefits. Applications
requesting funding for land acquisition should describe the proposed strategy for long-term
stewardship of the site once acquired, including ongoing monitoring and management, and,
if restoration of ecosystem services is proposed, how that will be accomplished. Land
acquisitions must also provide for passive public access or other public benefit on some
portion of the property, as appropriate and consistent with resource protection, or clearly
describe why passive public access would be detrimental. For additional information on
application requirements for land acquisitions, see Section IV.B PDF 4 Supplemental
Materials/Appendices.
 
      3. Definitions.
 
      For the purposes of this competition:  
 
             - “Resilience” is defined as the ability of a coastal community to prepare and plan 
               for, absorb impacts of, recover from, and more successfully adapt to weather and
               climate impacts.
             - “Adaptation” refers to adjustments in ecological, social or economic systems in
               response to actual or expected climatic changes and their effects.

Notice of Federal Funding Page 13 of 64

245



             - “Regional collaborative” or “collaborative” or “collaborative teams” are
               interchangeable and are defined as a group of individuals or entities with a  
               unified vision for resilience that choose to apply to this Challenge together.
               Collaboratives are comprised of collaborators with a unified vision for resilience
               that are led by or include locally-oriented institutions and governments, and that 
               share adjacent and/or overlapping geographical interests or administrative
               boundaries, or benefit from the same natural, social, economic, and infrastructure
               systems. Applicants to Track One must be collaboratives. Applicants to Track Two
               may be collaboratives.
             - “Collaborator” is defined as an eligible entity who contributes substantially to the
               regional team’s overall strategic direction and decision-making, and is committed 
               to long-term interactions based on shared missions and goals. Collaborators may
               receive federal funds as the lead recipient or through subawards and contracts, or
               may participate without federal funding. Collaborative teams in Track One must 
               have collaborators and regional implementation efforts under Track Two may have
               collaborators.
             - “Partners” are individuals and entities that are supportive of the proposed effort 
               but do not participate in overall decision-making and do not commit to regular 
               and sustained engagement in collaborative activities. Applicants to both Track
               One and Track Two may have partners. If the applicant to Track Two is not a 
               collaborative, it must have strong partners. In both Track One and Track Two,
               partners may receive funds through subawards or contracts from the applicant
               or may participate without federal funding.
             - “Equity” means the consistent and systematic fair, just, and impartial treatment
               of all  individuals, including individuals who belong to underserved communities
               that have been denied such treatment (E.O. 13985).
             - “Underserved communities” refers to populations sharing a particular
               characteristic, as well as geographic communities, that have been
               systematically denied a full opportunity to participate in aspects of economic,
               social, and civic life (E.O. 13985).
             - “Marginalized” refers to populations excluded from mainstream social, economic,
               educational, and/or cultural life. Examples of marginalized populations include, 
               but are not limited to, groups excluded due to race, gender identity, sexual
               orientation, age, physical ability, language, and/or immigration status (National
               Institutes of Health).
             - “Underrepresented” means a population that is typically underrepresented in
               service provision, and includes populations such as persons who are minorities,
               poor persons, persons with limited English proficiency, older individuals, or
               persons from rural areas (see 29 U.S.C. § 3002(18)).

Notice of Federal Funding Page 14 of 64

246



             - “Environmental justice” means the just treatment and meaningful involvement of 
               all people, regardless of income, race, color, national origin, Tribal affiliation, or
               disability, in agency decision-making and other Federal activities that affect 
               human health and the environment.
             - “Disadvantaged communities” is defined by the Council on Environmental Quality
               as those communities that are marginalized, underserved and overburdened by
               pollution and they are identified by the Climate and Economic Justice Screen Tool.
 
      NOAA uses the phrase ‘marginalized, underserved and underrepresented’ throughout the
NOFO, which encompasses the concepts of environmental justice and disadvantaged
communities.
 
B.  Program Priorities
 

The NOAA Climate Resilience Regional Challenge seeks to transform the resilience of
U.S. coastal communities, ecosystems, and associated economies to weather and climate
impacts. Applications submitted for both Track One and Track Two should consider the
following program priorities in the development of their proposals:
 
      - Risk Reduction. Building resilience requires implementing adaptation actions that
        reduce risk to coastal populations, infrastructure, economies, and ecosystems from
        the impacts of drought, extreme heat, sea level rise, floods, and wildfires, and/or other
        future weather and climate impacts. For Track One, applicants should assess weather
        and climate risks and apply risk information to identity, plan and design future
        adaptation actions. For Track Two, applicants should propose a complementary set of
        adaptation actions (approximately three to eight) that collectively reduce risk by
        increasing community preparedness, decreasing community exposure, and/or
        improving community recovery. Proposed adaptation actions can include nature-based
        and hybrid green and gray actions. Those adaptation actions should provide co-benefits
        and alleviate multiple stressors within communities, such as improving public health,
        achieving reductions in pollution burden, enhancing habitat or other environmental
        benefits, and providing access to safe parks, natural areas, and waterways.  Applicants
        must include metrics for risk reduction in their applications.
 
      - Regional Coordination and Collaboration. Regional coordination and collaboration,
        driven by an integrated, achievable, and ambitious vision for how to improve the
        resilience of the region, is critical to addressing weather and climate impacts. All
        applicants to both tracks should focus on ensuring that relevant entities are engaged
        as collaborators and/or partners in building resilience across states, counties, cities,
        and Tribes within the region. Applicants should focus on the identification of shared

Notice of Federal Funding Page 15 of 64

247



        needs, priorities, challenges, and strategies that can be addressed by actions at the
        local and regional scales. Successful applicants will support public engagement to
        inform planning efforts and build effective relationships between government entities
        and communities.
 
      - Equity and Inclusion. Inclusive and equitable adaptation strategies and actions require
        co-development with members of marginalized, underserved, and underrepresented
        communities to ensure that benefits flow to them. These adaptation strategies and
        actions should include Tribes, tribal priorities, and indigenous knowledge.
 
      - Enduring Capacity. Enduring capacity refers to sustaining a level of community
        readiness that promotes continuous adaptation to the impacts of weather and climate,
        including developing and maintaining specific workforce capabilities and capacities.
        All applicants to both tracks should focus on building capacity for adaptation that can 
        be sustained into the future within the region (post-award period) including with
        community-based organizations and for marginalized, underserved, and
        underrepresented communities. Successful applicants will also propose efforts to
        extend anticipated benefits beyond their region through information sharing and
        transfer of knowledge to other regions.
 
      In addition to these program priorities, NOAA will consider other standard factors in
evaluating the extent to which applications address these program priorities including:
technical merit; qualifications of the applicant(s); project costs; and outreach and
engagement (See Section V.A. for the Evaluation Criteria and weighting for Track One and
Track Two). 
    
      For additional information on the NOAA Climate Resilience Regional Challenge
program, visit: https://coast.noaa.gov/funding/ira/resilience-challenge/.
 
C.  Program Authority
 

The Secretary of Commerce is authorized under the following statutes to provide grants
and cooperative agreements for the purposes described in this announcement, including
Section 40001 of the Inflation Reduction Act (Public Law 117-169), Section 310 of the
Coastal Zone Management Act (16 U.S.C. § 1456c) (titled “Technical Assistance”), the
Digital Coast Act (Public Law 116-223), the National Climate Program Act (Public Law
95–367), and the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA, Public Law 117-58).
 
 

Notice of Federal Funding Page 16 of 64

248



 
II.  Award Information
 

A.  Funding Availability
 

Total funding for all Track One awards is anticipated to be up to $25 million. NOAA
will not accept applications requesting less than $500,000 or more than $2,000,000 in federal
funds from Track One under this solicitation. Total funding for all Track Two awards is up
to approximately $550 million. NOAA anticipates receiving applications requesting not less
than $15,000,000 and not more than $75,000,000 in federal funds for investments that will
result in significant resilience and adaptation actions in the region. The exact amount of
funds that may be awarded will be determined in pre-award negotiations between the
applicant and NOAA. At its discretion, NOAA may reduce the scope and budget of a
proposed award or provide separate awards for individual adaptation actions that are
proposed as part of a Track Two proposal that may require additional oversight by or
collaboration with NOAA.
 
      Any funds provided to successful applicants will be at the discretion of NOAA Office for
Coastal Management and the NOAA Grants Management Division (GMD). NOAA or the
Department of Commerce are not responsible for the direct costs of application preparation
if the applicant fails to receive funding or efforts in their proposal are canceled because of
other agency priorities. Publication of this announcement does not oblige NOAA to award
any specific project or to obligate any available funds. There is no guarantee that sufficient
funds will be available to make awards for all top-ranked applications. The number of
awards to be made as a result of this solicitation will depend on the number of eligible
applications received, the amount of funds requested, and the merit and ranking of the
applications. Applicants should be in compliance with requirements in any existing NOAA
grants. Top ranked proposals not initially funded may be considered for funding
subsequently if additional funds become available, without NOAA repeating the competitive
process outlined in this announcement.
 
B.  Project/Award Period
 

Applicants may submit applications covering up to a 60-month period with an
anticipated start date of October 1, 2024. Pre-award costs and advance payments may be
considered during pre-award negotiations between the applicant and NOAA. Incurring pre-
award costs before the NOAA GMD provides an award document is at the applicant’s own
risk. An award may be funded in full for all years, or in increments (usually annually) at
NOAA’s discretion. More information on pre-award costs can be found in Section IV.F
Funding Restrictions. 

Notice of Federal Funding Page 17 of 64

249



C.  Type of Funding Instrument
 

Selected applications will be funded through cooperative agreements, as described in 31
U.S.C. 6305 and 2 C.F.R. § 200.1, meaning that NOAA expects to be substantially involved
in many aspects of the awards, which may include the provision of NOAA technical
assistance and other activities. NOAA’s involvement is intended to support the success of
award recipients by complementing regional and local knowledge and expertise with
additional science and services. NOAA’s specific involvement will be negotiated with
successful applicants and specific roles and responsibilities will be formalized as part of the
final cooperative agreement. NOAA’s involvement may also include other roles described in
OMB Guidelines at 43 Fed. Reg. 36860 (Aug. 18, 1978), including but not limited to further
collaboration on the scope of work, training of recipient personnel, review of procurement
materials to the extent authorized by 2 C.F.R. § 200.325, tracking progress towards the
successful completion of the project, providing Federal personnel to work on the effort, and
specifying direction or redirection of the scope of work due to inter-relationships with other
efforts, such as requiring recipients to achieve a specific level of cooperation with other
efforts.
    
      Collectively, NOAA’s programs and partnerships encompass a significant amount of
climate science as well as resilience and adaptation expertise. Applicants are encouraged to
connect with relevant NOAA programs and partnerships as part of the application
development process, however NOAA employees are not permitted to assist with writing
applications for Federal funding. For more information on NOAA technical assistance and
relevant NOAA programs and partnerships, visit:
https://coast.noaa.gov/funding/ira/resilience-challenge/.
 
      If an applicant requests technical assistance and/or other involvement with current
NOAA programs or staff as part of an application, the applicant should describe the nature
and extent of the desired roles and responsibilities within the application. The specific roles
and responsibilities for NOAA involvement will be negotiated with successful applicants
and included as part of the final cooperative agreement. Letters of support from NOAA
employees are not allowable and will not be included among the application materials
considered by merit reviewers.
    
      Applicants are strongly encouraged to work with other relevant Federal and state
agencies, non-governmental organizations, and municipal and county governments. Planned
involvement of other federal agencies should be clearly described in the project proposal.
Federal agencies and employees are not allowed to receive funds under this announcement
but may serve as collaborative project partners. If federal agencies are partners, applicants

Notice of Federal Funding Page 18 of 64

250



are expected to provide detail on the planned level of federal engagement in the application. 

 
III.  Eligibility Information
 

A.  Eligible Applicants
 

Eligible entities who may apply include:
 
             - coastal States, territories, or Tribes;
             - counties, cities, or other political subdivisions of a coastal State or territory,
               including special purpose units of government engaged in economic or
               infrastructure development activities;
             - the District of Columbia;
             - institutions of higher education; and
             - non-profit organizations or associations, including those acting in cooperation
               with a State, tribal, local or territorial government; regional councils of
               government and regional planning councils.
 
      Coastal states are defined in the Coastal Zone Management Act (16 U.S.C. § 1453(4) as
any state of the United States in, or bordering on, the Atlantic, Pacific, or Arctic Ocean, the
Gulf of Mexico, Long Island Sound, or one or more of the Great Lakes, including the
District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, the Virgin Islands, Guam, the Commonwealth of the
Northern Mariana Islands, American Samoa, and former Trust Territories of the Pacific
Islands including Federated States of Micronesia, Republic of the Marshall Islands, and
Republic of Palau.
 
      The term ‘‘Tribe’’ is synonymous with “tribal government” and means any Indian or
Alaska Native Tribe, band, nation, pueblo, village, community, component band, or
component reservation, individually identified (including parenthetically) in the list
published most recently as of the date of enactment of this subsection pursuant to 25 U.S.C.
5131. The term “tribal organization” means the recognized governing body of any Indian
tribe; any legally established organization of Indians which is controlled, sanctioned, or
chartered by such governing body or which is democratically elected by the adult members
of the Indian community to be served by such organization and which includes the maximum
participation of Indians in all phases of its activities (25 U.S.C 5304). While tribal
organizations are eligible to apply on behalf of one or more Tribes, they must document
tribal approval prior to commencing proposed activities (per 25 U.S.C. 5304). Non-profit
organizations are eligible to apply, including state-recognized tribes, Native Hawaiian
entities or other non-profit organizations serving the needs of indigenous peoples.
Institutions of higher education (as defined in subsection (a) of section 101 of the Higher

Notice of Federal Funding Page 19 of 64

251



Education Act of 1965 (20 U.S.C. 1001(a)) are eligible.
 
      For the purposes of this competition, a group of entities who are applying together are
considered a regional collaborative (also referred to as a collaborative or a collaborative
team). Collaboratives teams must identify a lead entity to submit an application (i.e., the
funding recipient, who is the non-federal entity that receives a Federal award directly from a
Federal awarding agency, per 2 CFR 200.1). The lead entity is responsible for the award as a
whole, including monitoring, reporting, and communicating progress to NOAA. The lead
entity should work with other collaborators and partners through subawards and contracts
under 2 CFR 200.1 and other arrangements pertinent to the collaborative’s activities that do
not involve the transfer of funds. In addition, the lead entity must identify a Project Director
(PD), who is the individual with the appropriate level of authority and responsibility to direct
the activities supported by the grant. Applicants should be aware that the terms Project
Director (PD) and Principal Investigator (PI) are used interchangeably. Existing
collaboratives that are legal entities and may receive and expend Federal funds are eligible.
Regional collaboratives must identify the geography that they represent for the purposes of
this competition and the identified geography must be exclusively in coastal states and
territories or otherwise enable U.S. coastal communities to prepare for weather and climate
impacts, consistent with the Inflation Reduction Act (e.g., in the District of Columbia or in
areas impacting coastal waters). It is not required that all collaborators and partners be
physically located in coastal states.
          
      Foreign governments are not eligible to apply for funding under this announcement.
However, international non-governmental organizations are eligible to participate as funded
or unfunded partners in the collaborative if they are conducting projects in one or more of
the eligible coastal states and territories.
 
      For-profit organizations may participate as contractors, subrecipients if applicable, or
through other arrangements pertinent to the project that do not involve the transfer of funds.
 
B.  Cost Sharing or Matching Requirement
 

Pursuant to the Inflation Reduction Act, Public Law: 117-169, Section 40001, there is no
non-federal matching requirement for this funding. However, applicants are encouraged to
leverage NOAA funding with other funds or in-kind contributions from a broad range of
other public and private funding sources. Leveraged funds are funds that contribute to an
effort funded through this program in addition to the requested federal funds from NOAA.
NOAA understands that applicants may face challenges in identifying resources to leverage.
The budget narrative should describe any sources of leveraged funds, and in-kind services or
efforts to identify leveraging opportunities and any associated challenges. Efforts to leverage

Notice of Federal Funding Page 20 of 64

252



resources will be considered as part of the evaluation criteria as described in Section V.A.
    
      Applicants may choose to designate part or all their Federally negotiated indirect costs as
leveraged funds (Refer to Section IV.B PDF 4 Supplemental Materials/Appendices which
includes additional information about Indirect Costs). Other federal funds can be included
and described in the budget narrative as leveraged funds.
 
C.  Other Criteria that Affect Eligibility
 

NOAA will not accept applications requesting less than $500,000 or more than
$2,000,000 in federal funds for Track One, or less than $15,000,000 or more than
$75,000,000 in federal funds for Track Two under this solicitation.
 
      Applicants should also note that the following activities will not be considered for
federal funding:
 
      1) activities that alleviate the liability associated with legally required mitigation for
          the adverse effects of an activity regulated or otherwise governed by local, state,
          or federal law;
      2) activities that constitute compensatory restoration for natural resource damages
          under federal, state, or local law; and
      3) activities that are required by a separate consent decree, court order, statute, or
          regulation.

 
IV.  Application and Submission Information
 

A.  Address to Request Application Package
 

Complete application packages, including required federal forms and instructions, can be
found on www.Grants.gov. If a prospective applicant is having difficulty downloading the
application forms from www.grants.gov, or using the Grants.gov Workspace feature, contact
www.grants.gov Customer Support at 1-800-518-4726 or support@grants.gov. 
 
      If an applicant does not have effective access to Grants.gov, application packages shall
be requested by emailing resiliencechallenge@noaa.gov. Additional resources to support
applicants with the application process can be found at:
https://coast.noaa.gov/funding/ira/resilience-challenge/
 
B.  Content and Form of Application
 

1.  Letter of Intent (LOI)

Notice of Federal Funding Page 21 of 64

253



 
      For this funding competition, a LOI is required before submitting a full proposal. The
LOI should provide a concise description of the proposed work and its relevance to program
priorities. NOAA will invite applicants to submit a full proposal if their LOI strongly aligns
with the program priorities and includes the required components listed below. An applicant
may not submit a full proposal unless they receive an invitation from NOAA after review of
a submitted LOI. NOAA anticipates that proposed activities may change between the LOI
and the full application. Any full proposal submitted without having received such an
invitation will not be reviewed.
 
      Applicants are required to designate a Project Director (PD) within the Letter of Intent
and the full application. The Project Director is the individual identified by the lead entity
with the appropriate level of authority and responsibility to direct all activities supported by
a grant. The PD will serve as the primary point of contact between NOAA and the regional
collaborative during the competition and throughout the period of performance for any
awards.
 
      The required LOIs shall be sent via electronic mail to resiliencechallenge@noaa.gov
with “NOAA Climate Resilience Regional Challenge - Letter of Intent” as the subject line.
Letters of Intent must be received by electronic mail by 11:59 p.m. Eastern Time on August
21, 2023. Refer to Section IV.D. below for additional information about LOI submission.
Applicants submitting multiple LOIs must use a unique project title for each LOI and may
send all LOIs in one email or in multiple emails.
 
      If for any reason applicants are unable to submit their application by email, or if you do
not receive an automated response that your application was received by NOAA, send an
email to resiliencechallenge@noaa.gov to make alternative arrangements. If necessary,
applicants may provide an original paper copy of their LOI by mail. See Section IV.D. below
for instruction on submitting a paper application.
 
      The Office for Coastal Management (OCM) will respond to each LOI by electronic mail
informing the applicant and their Project Director (PD) whether they are invited to submit a
proposal. Applicants who submit an LOI through paper mail will be notified via paper mail
at the return address contained within the LOI. NOAA anticipates sending responses by
October 11, 2023. If the applicant and the PD does not receive notification by October 12,
2023, the applicant must contact the OCM Grants Coordinator via
resiliencechallenge@noaa.gov and request the status of their LOI. The results of the LOI
review will be released only to the applicant and the PD unless there are extenuating
circumstances. The proposal submission deadlines in this announcement will apply to all

Notice of Federal Funding Page 22 of 64

254



applicants. The LOI should include the following information on a cover page:
 
      - Identification of the NOAA Office for Coastal Management as the intended recipient
        of the LOI.
      - Funding Track applying for: Regional Collaborative Building and
        Strategy Development (Track One) or Implementation of Resilience and Adaptation
        Actions (Track Two).
      - Project title.
      - Applicant name and name and affiliation of their Project Director along with contact
        information.
      - Brief description of the geographic region.
      - List of collaborators and/or partners.
      - Proposed project start and end dates.
      - Total anticipated funding request.
 
      The body of the LOI should be no more than 5 pages, single-spaced, 11 or 12-point font,
and must include the following components:
 
      - Description of the geographic region and the resilience vision.
      - High-level description of the proposed activities and the intended outcomes.
      - Summary of the relationship of proposed activities to ongoing efforts.
      - Description of how the activities align to the Program Priorities in 1.B, including
        description of involvement or engagement of, as well as what benefits will be provided
        to marginalized, underserved, or underrepresented communities.
      - Description of involvement of or engagement with other federal, tribal, state, territorial
        and/or local agencies, activities, or programs.
      - Summary description of anticipated costs including any sub-awards and contracts. For 
        Track Two, include preliminary estimates for each of the proposed adaptation actions.
      - Description of any technical assistance needed from NOAA, if known. Please refer to
        Section II.C. above, and note that NOAA employees are not permitted to assist with
        writing applications for Federal funding.
 
      A template is available that organizes the information NOAA is requesting in the LOI at:
https://coast.noaa.gov/funding/ira/resilience-challenge/
 
      2.  Full Application
 
      Applicants should submit full applications through the www.Grants.gov website as
described in Sections IV.D. and G. below. If for any reason applicants are unable to submit

Notice of Federal Funding Page 23 of 64

255



their application through Grants.gov or are concerned about possible problems associated
with the Grants.gov system, send an email to resiliencechallenge@noaa.gov to make
alternative arrangements. If necessary, applicants may provide an original paper copy of
their full application by mail (see Section IV.D. below for instruction on submitting a paper
application).
 
      A complete standard NOAA financial assistance application package should be
submitted in accordance with the guidelines in this document. Each full application must
include the application forms from the SF-424 form family relevant to what is being
proposed:
 
      - Application for Federal Assistance: Form SF-424.
      - Budget Information for Non-construction Programs: Form SF-424A
      - The non-federal entity must submit a line-item budget (SF-424A) and corresponding
        budget narrative for each of the funding periods anticipated when applying for a
        multi-year award.
      - Assurances for Non-construction Programs: Form SF-424B.
      - Budget Information for Construction Programs: Form SF-424C.
      - Assurances for Non-construction Programs: Form SF-424D.
      - Certification Regarding Lobbying: Form CD-511.
      - Disclosure of Lobbying Activities: Form SF-LLL (if applicable).
 
      In addition to the Federal application forms listed above, applications submitted through
the www.Grants.gov website should include a maximum of five files (PDF files only) in
addition to the Federal application forms. Page limits assume an 11- or 12-point font and 1-
inch margins and may use single spacing. Applicants should number pages in their full
proposal and any appendices. There is a 100 megabyte file size limit on individual files.
Applicants can upload multiple files to avoid exceeding the 100 megabyte file size limit. The
following files are required:
 
      - PDF 1. Project Summary (3 page limit). 
      - PDF 2. Project Narrative (25 page limit). 
      - PDF 3. Budget Narrative (no page limit).
      - PDF 4. Supplemental Materials/Appendices (50 page limit recommended).
      - PDF 5. Letters of Support and Collaboration (no page limit).
 
      PDF 1. Project Summary (3 page limit).
 
      All proposals must briefly describe the activities to be implemented with the requested

Notice of Federal Funding Page 24 of 64

256



funds including:
 
      - Project title.
      - Funding Track applying for: Regional Collaborative Building and Strategy
        Development (Track One) or Implementation of Resilience and Adaptation Actions
        (Track Two).
      - Requested NOAA funding amount.
      - Proposed project start and end dates.
      - Applicant name and the name and affiliation of their Project Director with contact
        information.
      - Brief description of the geographic region.
      - Brief description of the resilience vision, the proposed activities, and the intended
        outcomes, including equity components.
      - List of collaborators and/or partners.
      - Brief description of proposed engagement with marginalized, underserved, or
        underrepresented communities.
      - For Track Two, include a list of each adaptation action (approximately three to eight)
        and the entity that will implement the activity.
      - Summary budget table for major project activities, including sub-awards and contracts.
      - Brief description of the leveraging of resources from NOAA and other federal, state,
        territorial and/or local activities or programs (including, if known, brief description of
        anticipated needs for technical assistance that NOAA may provide).
 
      PDF 2. Project Narrative (25 page limit).
 
      The project narrative should be responsive to the evaluation criteria (see Section V. A.
Evaluation Criteria) to receive a consistent review against competing applications. Sufficient
detail should be provided to:
 
      - enable reviewers to evaluate the relevance and applicability of proposed work to
        program priorities described in Section I.B of this announcement;
      - determine the technical/scientific merit of the proposed work;
      - adequately review the qualifications of the applicants; determine if costs are realistic
        and commensurate with the project needs and timeframe;
      - assess whether the proposal includes a strategy to engage other organizations,
        groups, and individuals; and
      - assess whether the proposed scope of work raises any concerns with regard to
        federal policy considerations, such as those related to the National Environmental
        Policy Act, Endangered Species Act, Historic Preservation Act, and Marine Mammal

Notice of Federal Funding Page 25 of 64

257



        Protection Act.
 
      The project narrative should contain the following:
 
             i. Background. Provide sufficient background information for NOAA and
                non-NOAA reviewers to independently assess the significance of the proposed  
                project. Describe the geographic scope of the region, including a map showing
                participating jurisdictions and location of proposed efforts as applicable. Describe
                the rationale for this geographic scope based on specific threats from weather and
                climate impacts, enlisting those with capacities to address those threats, and
                pursuing and implementing adaptation strategies and actions that increase the
                resilience of a region. Describe the climate risk, vulnerability, or resilience and
                adaptation challenge(s) to be addressed, the specific problems, gaps, or needs to
                be addressed, and the status of and relationship to ongoing efforts to address
                them.
   
            ii. Overall Resilience Vision, Strategies, and Activities. Describe the vision for 
                resilience and the adaptation strategies and activities to accomplish this vision.
                The described strategies should address the overarching program priorities
                described in Section I.B including: risk reduction; regional collaboration and
                coordination; equity; and enduring capacity. Describe the significant benefits
                that will be derived from a regional approach.  In cases where funding is being
                requested for a component of work that is part of a larger design or effort,
                applicants should clearly identify what  portion will be implemented with the
                requested funding. Applicants should provide supporting documentation in PDF 4
                (Supplemental Materials/Appendices) that is sufficient to allow reviewers to
                understand work that has been completed and work that is being proposed for
                funding.
                       - For Track One, describe the proposed activities to build the collaborative as
                         well as specific strategies and associated milestones for progressing the
                         collaborative toward implementation. See Program Overview/Track One
                         (Section I.A.2) for more information on the types of activities that could
                         be undertaken in Track One.  
                       - For Track Two, describe the adaptation actions (approximately three to
                         eight) and the connection to the overall resilience vision. For each of the
                         proposed adaptation activities, describe the specific activities to be
                         undertaken, the expected outcomes (including but not limited to risk
                         reduction), and the relationship to the program priorities. Describe
                         timelines for major tasks, target milestones for important intermediate

Notice of Federal Funding Page 26 of 64

258



                         and final activities, and clearly state key project outcomes. Describe how
                         the expected outcomes address program priorities described in Section I.B
                         and any potential obstacles to successful completion of proposed activities.
                         See the description for PDF 4 Supplemental Materials/Appendices for
                         additional information to include in the application for construction
                         activities and land acquisitions.
 
           iii. Framework for Collaboration. Describe the general approach of the collaborative 
                team, if relevant, including the organizational structure and function. Describe
                efforts by collaborators and/or partners to engage and provide benefits to
                marginalized, underserved, or underrepresented communities, and Tribes. This
                should clearly identify both efforts completed during the application development
                process and those that are proposed for funding related to establishing or
                supporting the regional collaborators. Describe the roles of collaborators, if
                relevant, including their experience and capacity in completing similar efforts.
                Describe how collaborators will interact with each other and with partners to
                accomplish the proposed efforts, including specific communication mechanisms
                to be used, and how they will contribute to the outcome or results of the project.
                Describe whether collaborators and/or partners are proposed to receive funding
                under the award as subrecipients or contractors. Note that subaward means an
                award provided by a pass-through entity to a subrecipient for the subrecipient to
                carry out part of a Federal award, including a portion of the scope of work or
                objectives. It does not include payments to a contractor or payments to an
                individual  that is a beneficiary of a Federal program. Contract means a legal
                instrument by which a non-Federal entity purchases property or services needed 
                to carry out the project or program under a Federal award. See 2 C.F.R. § 200.1.
 
                Also, describe how other federal, state, tribal, territorial, and local government
                agencies will be connected to, integrated, and leveraged in the project, including
                connections to other federally-supported resilience and adaptation efforts and
                investments. Describe resources to be leveraged by the applicant, including
                information sources, assessments, studies, plans, programs, and partnerships, 
                and previous or ongoing efforts to marry technical and scientific capacity with
                local knowledge and values. Describe efforts to develop a plan for sustaining
                coordination and collaboration following the period of performance of the federal
                award. Letters of collaboration from identified collaborators, partners, and any
                letters of support from communities, or other interested parties should be
                included in a separate PDF.
 

Notice of Federal Funding Page 27 of 64

259



                For applicants that are collaboratives, the application should include a letter or
                letters identifying the Project Director/lead for the collaborative team and
                evidence that each collaborative team member has read the application and is
                committed to executing its roles, responsibilities, or commitments related to the
                collaborative team. NOAA discourages form letters of support and encourages
                letters describing concrete engagement and commitments from all identified
                collaborators and partners. 
 
            iv. Engagement, Workforce Development, and Knowledge Transfer. Describe how 
                the public and other stakeholders will be engaged in the development of the 
                desired outcomes, how information generated by the applicant will reach its 
                target audience(s) and have a positive impact within and outside the region, and  
                how the proposal uses best practices for communicating risk to target audiences.
                Describe activities to support the transfer of knowledge within and outside of
                the region by organizing, creating, capturing, and/or distributing knowledge to
                ensure its availability for future use. Appropriate activities for knowledge transfer
                may include but are not limited to the development of information products,
                tools, training, or risk communication and outreach. It also could include
                improving access to data and information related to current and future
                environmental, economic, and social conditions, and building capacity to
                integrate this information into sound planning and decision making. Describe
                efforts, if any, to identify workforce needs that will be required to implement
                resilience and adaptation actions into the future. For Track Two, describe
                workforce requirements needed to implement identified projects, including types
                and levels of positions related to: resilience or adaptation planning; coastal
                restoration design, permitting, engineering; risk modeling; land and natural
                resources valuation; applied social science; geospatial analysis; and other
                expertise as required.
 
            v. Strategy for Advancing Equity and Support for Underserved Communities.
                NOAA is committed to advancing equity for all, including people of color and 
                others who have been marginalized, underserved, and underrepresented, and
                adversely affected by persistent poverty and inequality. Applicants should
                address these factors in the design of their proposed projects. The NOAA Climate
                Resilience Regional Challenge program will advance the Justice40 Initiative
                requiring that 40 percent of the overall benefits of this effort flow to
                disadvantaged communities that are marginalized, underserved, and
                overburdened by pollution. NOAA encourages all applicants to use the
                information available through the following tools to assist them in identifying and

Notice of Federal Funding Page 28 of 64

260



                assessing the marginalized, underserved and underrepresented communities
                that are connected to their proposed adaptation actions. Applicants should use
                the Climate & Economic Justice Screening Tool (CEJST) as the primary tool to
                identify disadvantaged communities. Applicants are encouraged to use the
                information available through any of the following tools to assist in assessing how
                the  benefits of a project will reverse or mitigate the burdens of disadvantaged:
                       - Climate and Economic Justice Screening Tool
                         (at https://screeningtool.geoplatform.gov/en/#3/33.47/-97.5);
                        - the National Risk Index
                          (at https://www.fema.gov/flood-maps/products-tools/national-risk-index);
                       - the Environmental Justice Index
                         (at https://www.atsdr.cdc.gov/placeandhealth/eji/index.html);
                       - EJScreen (at https://www.epa.gov/ejscreen);
                       - US Census Community Resilience Estimates
                         (at https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/community-resilience-
                         estimates/data/tools.html); and other relevant tools.
 
                In this section, applicants should describe how engagement and benefits to
                marginalized, underserved and underrepresented communities and tribes will be
                supported in the proposal. Tribes and other lead entities who are themselves, or 
                who represent the interests of, marginalized, underserved, or underrepresented
                communities, should describe how the proposed efforts expand participation and 
                meet the needs of these populations and the role of marginalized, underserved 
                and underrepresented communities in decision-making. All applicants should 
                describe ways in which the collaborative team will foster an inclusive
                environment and recruit from, engage with, and collaborate with members of
                marginalized, underserved, and underrepresented communities, or other
                organizations or institutions serving the needs of these populations. Applicants
                should describe the provision of financial resources to enable engagement and
                collaboration with marginalized, underserved, and underrepresented
                communities, or other organizations or institutions serving the needs of these
                populations. Applicants are encouraged to highlight previous efforts and
                relationships that add value to the proposed activities. Applicants should also
                describe opportunities for individuals in underserved communities through
                educational opportunities, job training, job creation, workforce development,
                leadership development, and training programs structured toward long-term
                careers and not limited to entry-level skill building.
 
           vi. Evaluation. Describe the approach for evaluating performance and results using 

Notice of Federal Funding Page 29 of 64

261



                clear measure(s) of success. For both tracks, this includes monitoring the
                effectiveness of proposed activities and reporting the impact of associated
                outcomes during the period of performance. For Track Two, this should also
                include plans to monitor longer-term effectiveness of proposed strategies and
                adaptation actions beyond the period of performance where appropriate,
                including collecting quantitative and qualitative data on outcomes and impacts.
                NOAA may request modifications to proposed evaluation activities during the
                negotiation process for selected awards to support federal performance
                measurement and reporting activities. Costs associated with evaluation and the
                collection of additional data or information for monitoring effectiveness are
                eligible for funding; however, only for the duration of the award’s period of
                performance. If data collection is proposed, applicants are encouraged to plan for
                longer-term data management needs in coordination with NOAA, as described in
                Section VI.B.6 of this announcement.
 
      PDF 3. Budget Narrative (no page limit).
 
      Provide a budget narrative that follows the categories and formats in the NOAA grants
package (see object classes on Form SF-424A). The budget narrative should clearly identify
and justify the cost of separable elements of the proposed work. For Track One proposals,
clearly identify the costs associated with the activities intended to build the collaborative and
progress towards implementation. For Track Two proposals, the budget narrative should
include a detailed breakdown by category of cost (object class) for each of the adaptation
actions (approximately three to eight).
 
      The budget narrative should be sufficiently detailed to enable a clear understanding of
the cost breakdown and calculations used to derive the line item subtotals in each object
class of the SF-424A budget. All budget forms (i.e., SF-424, SF424-A (or SF424-C for
construction awards) must match the budget narrative. Each identified non-construction
subaward should include form SF-424A. Each identified construction subaward can include
form SF-424A, but must include form SF-424C. NOAA may require awards to comply with
additional statutes, standards, or regulations such as the Americans with Disabilities Act.
NOAA may request additional information for any awards (construction or non-construction
projects) selected for funding during the award negotiation process to ensure compliance.
 
      An award or subaward requires use of the SF424-C when it is considered a construction
award. An award or subaward is considered a construction award when the primary purpose
of the financial assistance is to support construction activities and the primary purpose of the
project is construction, such as renovation or rehabilitation of existing buildings, and

Notice of Federal Funding Page 30 of 64

262



construction or development of real property infrastructure improvements (e.g., site
preparation, utilities, streets, curbs, sidewalks, parking lots, other streetscaping
improvements, etc.). In contrast, alteration activities incidental to the primary purpose of an
award are generally not considered to constitute a construction award. For example, if the
primary purpose of an award or subaward is to allow a recipient to conduct educational or
business seminars, the renovation of an educational exhibit or staging area would not be
considered construction.
 
      NOAA staff will review budget information to determine if costs are allowable,
allocable, reasonable, and realistic. Applicants should include detailed budget information
regarding all known contracts and subawards, including funding to regional collaborators
beyond the applicant, and indicate the basis for the cost and price estimates in the narrative.
Describe activities to occur or products or services to be obtained and indicate the
applicability or necessity of each to the project. Detailed budget information includes:
 
      - Name of identified qualified subrecipient or contractor, affiliation, contact information,
        and method of selection. For “to be determined,” describe plans for selection.
      - Period of Performance. Include the dates for the performance period. If it involves
        several tasks, include the performance period for each task.
      - Scope of Work. List and describe the specific activities or tasks to be performed.
      - Criteria for Measuring Accountability. Include an itemized line-item breakdown as
        well as total contract/award amount. If applicable, include any indirect costs paid under
        the contract/award and the indirect cost rate used.
      - Itemized Budget. Include categories used in the program budget for subrecipients or
        cost-based contractors. If applicable, include any direct cost paid under the subaward
        or contract, and the indirect cost rate used.
 
      All subawards and contracts must be made consistent with the requirements of 2 C.F.R.
§§ 200.331-200.333 for subawards, and 200.317-200.327 for procurements.
 
      Any proposed geospatial data acquisitions should use the NOAA Coastal Geospatial
Services Contract (more information at https://coast.noaa.gov/idiq/geospatial.html). If an
applicant intends to acquire geospatial data but does not intend to use the NOAA Coastal
Geospatial Services Contract, they should contact resiliencechallenge@noaa.gov to discuss
the rationale and alternative data collection and management options before completing the
application. Applicants proposing geospatial data acquisitions should include information
about the type, timing, location, and of the data to be collected within the Project Narrative
and estimated cost within the Budget Narrative. Estimated costs should not be included in
the standard NOAA budget forms (SF424, SF424-A/B, SF424-C/D) given the proposed

Notice of Federal Funding Page 31 of 64

263



acquisition will take place outside of the grant award if the proposal is selected for funding.
Once selected for funding, NOAA will coordinate the acquisition process with the applicant
during the award negotiation process. NOAA will work with tribal agencies and tribal
organizations on appropriate data sovereignty and sharing agreements on any tribally
collected data within the constraints of applicable federal laws. Data approved for public
access by the Tribes and all other data collected through the Coastal Geospatial Services
Contract will be made available via the Digital Coast.
 
      For any equipment, a description of the item and associated costs or price is required,
including a description of how it will be used in the project. Note that equipment is defined
as tangible personal property (including information technology systems) having a useful life
of more than one year and a per-unit acquisition cost which equals or exceeds the lesser of
the capitalization level established by the non-federal entity for financial statement purposes,
or $5,000. See 2 C.F.R. § 200.1 Equipment, 2 C.F.R. § 200.313, and 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.317-
327.
 
      The cost or price, purpose, and method of selection for identified and planned acquisition
contracts should be thoroughly justified in the Budget Narrative. Describe products or
services to be obtained and indicate the applicability or necessity of each to the project.
Procurements are subject to policies described in 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.317-.327. For “to be
determined,” describe plans for selection.
 
      The budget narrative should describe any sources of leveraged funds or in-kind services.
Leveraged funds are funds that are spent on a funded project in addition to the requested
federal funds from NOAA. NOAA understands that applicants may face challenges in
identifying resources to leverage. In these circumstances, NOAA encourages applicants to
describe the challenges they have encountered.
 
      The budget narrative should also provide, to the extent possible, detailed information on
travel, including costs, a description of anticipated travel, destinations, the number of
travelers, and a justification of how the requested travel is directly relevant to the successful
completion of the project. If actual trip details are unknown, applicants should state the basis
for the proposed travel charges. Applicants should allocate travel funds for any necessary
coordination meetings at regional or national levels. Applicants are encouraged to factor in
travel costs for up to two representatives of each collaborative to participate in three national
meetings in the Washington, D.C. area for recipients of awards from this program during the
period of performance. Applicants may also factor in travel costs for participation in a bi-
annual NOAA Grants Management Division workshop, located in Silver Spring, Maryland
or potentially the U.S. west coast.

Notice of Federal Funding Page 32 of 64

264



 
      If a foreign air carrier is anticipated to be used for any portion of travel, prior approval is
required under the DOC Financial Assistance Standard Terms and Conditions, Section
G.05.d., and therefore, such travel should be included in the proposal to avoid having to
request prior approval after the project starts. See Department of Commerce Financial
Assistance Standard Terms and Conditions at:
https://www.commerce.gov/sites/default/files/2020-
11/DOC%20Standard%20Terms%20and%20Conditions%20-
%2012%20November%202020%20PDF_0.pdf.
 
      Applicants should also include costs for signage in proposed budgets for construction
and non-construction land acquisition activities. Signage which is visible to the public is
required for projects that exceed $5,000,000 in federal funds or result in 6 months of on the
ground construction activity, provided the signage does not involve great administrative
burden to the recipient. The costs to procure, distribute, and install signage should be
included in proposed budgets. Signs shall meet the specific design requirements in the
Building A Better America Brand Guide and no alterations and/or modifications shall be
made. The sign must be placed in a visible location that can be directly linked to the work
taking place and must be maintained in good condition throughout the work period. If work
is taking place in communities where English is not the predominant language, applicants are
encouraged to translate the language on the signs. Applicants are encouraged to use recycled
or recovered materials when procuring signs.
 
      Detailed guidance for budget justification from NOAA’s Grants Management Division is
available: https://coast.noaa.gov/data/coasthome/funding/_pdf/forms/budget-narrative-
guidance-for-NOAA-grants.pdf.
 
      PDF 4. Supplemental Materials/Appendices (50 page limit recommended).
 
      Supplemental materials and appendices should be limited to materials that directly
support the main body of the proposal and should not exceed a maximum of 50 pages. All
supplemental materials should be combined into a single PDF as appendices, including a
cover page that lists all of the documents and associated page numbers. The compiled PDF
should be uploaded under the “Other Attachments Form” in Grants.gov. Only material that is
submitted as a single package will be reviewed by merit reviewers. The following documents
should be included in the Supplemental Materials:
 
      i. Resumes. Provide resumes for the Project Director  and other key personnel critical
         to the success of the proposed efforts. Ensure that all resumes address the

Notice of Federal Funding Page 33 of 64

265



         qualifications relevant to conducting the proposed work. Please limit each resume to a
         maximum of two pages.
 
     ii. Data Management Plan. Provide a Data Management Plan as described in Section
         VI.B.6. of this Announcement.
 
    iii. National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA). Refer to Section VI.B.4. of this
         Announcement for information about the types of environmental information that
         should be described in the application.
 
    iv.  Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement (if applicable). The proposed budget may
         include an amount for indirect or “Facilities and Administrative” costs if the applicant
         has an established indirect cost rate with the federal government. Indirect costs are
         essentially overhead costs for basic operational functions (e.g., utilities, rent, and
         insurance) that are incurred for common or joint objectives and, therefore, cannot be
         identified specifically within a particular project. See 2 CFR 200.1 and 200.412-415.
 
         A copy of the current approved negotiated indirect cost agreement with the federal
         Government should be included with the application package. If an award recipient
         does not have a current negotiated (including provisional) rate, it may elect to charge
         a de minimis rate of 10 percent of modified total direct costs (MTDC) unless subject
         to an exception in 2 C.F.R. § 200.414(f). Non-federal entities may use this rate
         indefinitely but may choose to negotiate an indirect (F&A) cost rate at any time. This
         de minimis rate option is not available to state and local governments, and Tribes.
 
         Alternatively, the negotiation and approval of a new rate is subject to the procedures
         required by NOAA and the DOC. If an applicant proposes establishing a new rate, the
         U.S. Department of Commerce, Financial Assistance Standard Terms and Conditions
         require that recipients within 90 days of the award start date, submit to the address
         listed below documentation (indirect cost proposal, cost allocation plan, etc.)
         necessary to perform the review.
 
                 Raishan Adams, Grants Officer
                 NOAA Grants Management Division
                 1325 East West Highway, 9th Floor
                 Silver Spring, Maryland 20910
                 Raishan.Adams@noaa.gov
 
         Indirect-cost-rate-agreement documentation is not required for sub-awardees;

Notice of Federal Funding Page 34 of 64

266



         however, indirect cost rates at the negotiated levels should be paid by the primary
         awardee. Costs must be consistently charged as either indirect or direct costs, but
         may not be double charged or inconsistently charged as both pursuant to 2 C.F.R.
         § 200.403 “Factors affecting allowability of costs.”
 
    v.  Supporting Documentation. For all construction activities proposed under Track Two,
         including construction of natural or green, and hybrid, infrastructure, applicants
         should provide details regarding the current status of proposed activities including
         whether the project is in conceptual stage, preliminary design, final design and
         permitting, or construction ready. Applicants should provide information that is
         sufficient to allow reviewers to understand work that has been completed and work
         that is being proposed for funding. This may include project designs, maps, permitting
         information, and other compliance related documentation. Applicants are encouraged
         to demonstrate how current and future coastal hazard risks, including flood risks,
         inundation, erosion, and sea level rise, have been considered in the planning and
         design of construction activities.
 
         To ensure compliance with Executive Order 13690, the Federal Flood Risk
         Management Standard (FFRMS), applicants must, at a minimum, identify the
         current 100-year floodplain in relation to any proposed construction activity. The
         FFRMS requires federal agencies to use best-available information in identifying the
         floodplain and to reduce risks and costs associated with future flood disasters for
         federal investments in and affecting floodplains to meet higher flood risk standards.
         NOAA may request additional information to ensure compliance during the negotiation
 
         process for awards that are selected for funding. Applicants should also describe how
         the project design conforms with the latest published editions of additional relevant
         codes, specifications, and standards that incorporate the latest hazard-resistant
         designs.
 
         Proposals including construction activities should include a comprehensive project
         schedule describing all activities from the start of the award, including when the
         project will commence and demonstrating that the project will be able to complete
         construction within the period of performance. Proposals should clearly state the
         month and year in which the project’s final design was or will be completed, all
         permits needed to begin construction, and information on the status of permitting
         (e.g., date when permit applications were submitted or date when permits were
         issued). In cases where funding is being requested for a component of work that is
         part of a larger design or effort, applicants should clearly identify what portion will

Notice of Federal Funding Page 35 of 64

267



         be implemented with the requested funding.
 
         For all land acquisitions proposed under Track Two, applicants should provide details
         regarding the current status of the proposed acquisition and information that is
         sufficient to allow reviewers to understand work that has been completed and
         activities that are being proposed for funding. Proposals with land acquisitions must
         include a complete and self-contained appraisal prepared by an independent
         State-approved appraiser. The negotiated price of the property or conservation
         easement should be based on the fair market value as established by the appraisal.
         Appraisals must reflect nationally recognized appraisal standards, including the
         Uniform Appraisal Standards for Federal Land Acquisition (the Yellow Book). If an
         appraisal has not been completed at the time a proposal is submitted, the applicant
         may propose a good faith estimate of the cost for the acquisition based on market
         value or agreement with the willing seller. However, if the acquisition is selected for
         funding, an appraisal will be required before funds can be released. The cost of the
         acquisition cannot exceed the estimated cost in the application. If the appraised value
         of the property is higher than the estimated cost in the proposal, the applicant must
         make up the difference. If the appraised value is lower than the estimated cost,
         NOAA may reduce the Federal share of the acquisition as appropriate.
 
      PDF 5.  Letters of Support and Collaboration (no page limit).
 
      Letters of support and collaboration should be combined into a single PDF. The
compiled PDF should be uploaded under the “Other Attachments Form” in Grants.gov. Only
material that is submitted as a single package will be reviewed by merit reviewers, including
letters of support. Letters of support received by NOAA after the application has been
submitted will not be considered in the merit review process.
 
      i. Letters of Collaboration. Include a letter of commitment from each collaborator
         (including letters signed by multiple collaborators) that documents review of the
         application and includes a statement of commitment to supporting and executing the
         activities proposed in the application. Letters of collaboration do not need original
         signatures.
 
      ii. Letters of Support. Letters from partners, including individuals, agencies,
         organizations, or institutions that cooperate with or are supportive of the project
         should be included in the application package. Letters of support from NOAA
         employees are not allowed and will not be included among the application materials
         considered by merit reviewers. Letters of support do not need original signatures. If

Notice of Federal Funding Page 36 of 64

268



         a regional collaborative does not include at least one unit of local, tribal, or state
         government as a collaborator, the applicant must include at least one letter of support
         from a unit of local, tribal, or state government.
 
 
C.  Unique Entity Identifier and System for Award Management (SAM)
 

Applicants should:
             1) be registered in the federal System for Award Management (SAM.gov) before
                 submitting an application;
             2) provide a valid Unique Entity Identifier (UEI) on an application; and
             3) continue to maintain an active SAM registration with current information at all
                 times during which it has an active federal award or an application or plan under
                 consideration by a federal awarding agency.
 
      NOAA may not make a federal award to an applicant until the applicant has complied
with all applicable unique entity identifier and SAM requirements and, if an applicant has
not fully complied with the requirements by the time NOAA is ready to make a federal
award, NOAA may determine that the applicant is not qualified to receive a federal award
and use that determination as a basis for making a federal award to another applicant.
 
      Applicants should allow a minimum of two weeks to complete the SAM registration;
registration is required only once but must be periodically renewed. On April 4, 2022, the
federal government began using a new Unique Entity Identifier (UEI) number provided by
SAM. Your organization’s Employer Identification Number (EIN) will be needed to receive
a UEI, which is provided by SAM. If your entity is already registered in SAM.gov, your new
UEI has already been assigned and is viewable in SAM.gov. This includes inactive
registrations.
 
      Applicants are strongly encouraged not to wait until the application deadline date to
begin the application process through www.grants.gov. An entity potentially interested in
applying should immediately register for SAM or check to assure that their previous
registration is up to date and any necessary renewal has been processed. 
 
D.  Submission Dates and Times
 

The deadline for receipt of Letters of Intent (LOI) is August 21, 2023 at 11:59 p.m.
Eastern Time. For LOIs submitted by email, the date and time indication of the receiving
server will be the basis of determining timeliness. Note that receipt may be delayed if email
servers are not functioning efficiently. Applicants submitting multiple LOIs must use a
unique project title for each LOI and may send all LOIs in one email or in multiple emails. If

Notice of Federal Funding Page 37 of 64

269



an applicant does not receive acknowledgement that its LOI was received by NOAA, it
should send an email tor resiliencechallenge@noaa.gov. For paper copy submission of LOIs,
see below.
 
      Full applications must be submitted by February 13, 2024 at 11:59 p.m. Late applications
will not be considered for funding. Submission time will be documented by electronic
submission to Grants.gov, a U.S. Postal Service postmark, or a delivery service receipt.
Information regarding electronic submission through Grants.gov and the address for paper
applications is contained below and in Section IV.G. No facsimile or electronic mail
applications will be accepted. All applications must contain all required forms signed by an
authorized organization representative. Digital signatures are allowed.
 
      If for any reason applicants are unable to submit their application through Grants.gov or
are concerned about possible problems associated with the Grants.gov system, send an email
to resiliencechallenge@noaa.gov to make alternative arrangements. If necessary, applicants
may provide an original paper copy of their LOI or full application by mail. Applications
submitted by mail must include all relevant application elements described above, a SF-424
form with original ink or valid electronic signature and date from an authorized recipient
organization representative and the entire package should be stamped with an official U.S.
Postal Service postmark or provided to a commercial carrier with tracking number and
receipt on or before 11:59 pm Eastern on February 13, 2024. Private metered postmarks are
unacceptable. Address all mailed applications to:
 
             Grant Coordinator, Business Operations Division
             ATTN: Climate Resilience Regional Challenge
             NOAA Office for Coastal Management
             2234 South Hobson Avenue
             Charleston, SC 29405-2413
             resiliencechallenge@noaa.gov
 
      Paper applications received more than seven calendar days after the deadline will not be
reviewed, and applicants submitting by paper are responsible for tracking their applications.
Proposal application packages, including all letters of collaboration and letters of support,
shall be submitted together in one package. Failure to submit forms may result in
disqualification from this competition. In addition, email resiliencechallenge@noaa.gov to
inform NOAA that a paper application is forthcoming. Applicants should consider the
possibility of unforeseen events that could affect their Internet access and use of Grants.gov
on or before application due dates. Applicants should be aware that localized hazardous
weather or other situations beyond their control affecting their ability to submit packages

Notice of Federal Funding Page 38 of 64

270



before deadlines may not result in changes to the application deadline.
 
E.  Intergovernmental Review
 

Applications submitted under this notice are subject to the provisions of Executive Order
12372, “Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs.” Any applicant submitting an
application for funding is required to complete item 19 on Form SF-424 regarding clearance
by the State Single Point of Contact (SPOC). To find out about and comply with a State’s
process under Executive Order 12372, the names, addresses, and phone numbers of
participating SPOCs are listed on the Office of Management and Budget’s home page at:
https://www.whitehouse.gov/wp-content/uploads/2020/04/SPOC-4-13-20.pdf.
 
F.  Funding Restrictions
 

The placement of sand on beaches for renourishment is not eligible for funding under
this announcement. In addition, the construction of shoreline stabilization structures are not
eligible for funding under this announcement, unless they are part of a hybrid green and gray
adaptation action. Shoreline stabilization structures are hard structures used to create rigidity
and include breakwaters, riprap, jetties, breakwaters, seawalls, and revetments.     
 
      Per 2 C.F.R. § 200.458, NOAA authorizes award recipients to expend pre-award costs up
to 90 days before the period of performance start date at the applicant’s own risk without
approval from NOAA and in accordance with the applicant’s internal policies and
procedures. As such, pre-award costs may be incurred up to 90 days prior to the effective
date of and in anticipation of the award, if such costs are necessary for efficient and timely
performance of the scope of work. Pre-award costs incurred after the publication of this
Funding Opportunity but more than 90 days before the state of the award may also be
considered, but require prior approval from NOAA. This does not change the period of
performance start date. Pre-award costs and advance payments should be considered and
discussed during pre-award negotiations between the applicant and NOAA representatives.
Such costs are allowable only to the extent that they would have been allowable if incurred
after the date of the Federal award and only with the written approval of the Federal
awarding agency. This could include proposal preparation costs (as defined at 2 C.F.R. §
200.460) that are not covered in indirect costs. Pre-award costs will be a portion of, not in
addition to, the approved total budget of the award. All costs incurred before NOAA makes
the award are at the recipient's risk (i.e., NOAA is not required to reimburse such costs if for
any reason the recipient does not receive a Federal award or if the Federal award is less than
anticipated and inadequate to cover such costs).
 
      Pre-award costs eligible for land acquisitions include costs necessary for conducting
appraisals, title work, and environmental assessments. The cost of land acquisition may also

Notice of Federal Funding Page 39 of 64

271



be reimbursed as a pre-award cost if the acquisition occurred between the date this Notice of
Funding Opportunity is published and the start date for an approved grant award.
Reimbursement of funds is subject to NOAA’s approval of due diligence documents; closing
on a property prior to the award start date is at the applicant’s risk. For land acquisitions,
funds may not be used for:
 
      - funding operations, maintenance, and management of the land beyond the period
        of performance (above those costs allowed for initial land stewardship);
      - acquisition of lands, or interests in lands, that completely restrict access to specific
        persons (e.g., non-residents of a community);
      - acquisition of lands, or interests in lands, to comply with mandatory or compensatory
        mitigation for recent, pending or future habitat losses resulting from the actions of
        agencies, organizations, companies, or individuals;
      - enforcing fish, wildlife, or other regulations, either solely or primarily, except when
        necessary for the accomplishment of approved project purposes; or
      - reimbursement of expenses that have been incurred prior to the start of a grant award,
        except those approved as pre-award costs.
 
G.  Other Submission Requirements
 

Applicants should submit full applications electronically through www.Grants.gov.
Users of Grants.gov will be able to download a copy of the application package, complete it
off line, and then upload and submit the application via the Grants.gov site. If an applicant
has problems downloading the application forms from Grants.gov, contact Grants.gov
Customer Support at 1-800-518-4726 or support@grants.gov.
 
      NOAA highly recommends that applicants do not wait until the application deadline to
begin the application process through Grants.gov, as registration with SAM is required, as
described in Section IV.C. After electronic submission of the application, applicants will
receive an automatic acknowledgment from Grants.gov that contains a Grants.gov tracking
number. Applications submitted through Grants.gov will be accompanied by THREE
automated responses (the first confirms receipt by Grants.gov, not NOAA; the second
confirms that the submission is acceptable and timely; and the third validates that the
application has been forwarded to NOAA for further processing).
 
      If all notifications are not received, applicants should follow up with the Grants.gov help
desk to confirm NOAA receipt of the complete submission. Applicants should document
communications with the Grants.gov help desk in the event technical issues arise. Applicants
are strongly encouraged to submit applications early in the event technical issues arise.
 

Notice of Federal Funding Page 40 of 64

272



      NOTE: It may take Grants.gov up to two business days to validate or reject the
application. Keep this in mind in developing your submission timeline. Applicants should
allow themselves sufficient time to submit their application to Grants.gov in advance of the
deadline to ensure applications have been submitted successfully, as waivers of the
submission deadline will not be granted. Late applications will not be accepted. If an
applicant is unable to use the preferred submission method (Grants.gov) or is unsure about
the success of their submission to Grants.gov, a signed paper copy application must be
postmarked, or provided to a delivery service and documented with a receipt, by the deadline
under “Submission Dates and Times” in Section IV.D and sent to:
 
             Grant Coordinator, Business Operations Division
             ATTN: Climate Resilience Regional Challenge
             NOAA Office for Coastal Management
             2234 South Hobson Avenue
             Charleston, SC 29405-2413
             resiliencechallenge@noaa.gov
 
      Mandatory requirements regarding signatures and the format of paper copy applications
are described in Section IV.D. Paper applications submitted by the deadline must be received
by NOAA within seven business days. While email applications will not be accepted,
applicants should notify resiliencechallenge@noaa.gov that a paper application was
submitted by the deadline and request confirmation when the application is received.
 
      Grant Coordinator, Business Operations Division
      ATTN: Climate Resilience Regional Challenge
      NOAA Office for Coastal Management
      2234 South Hobson Avenue
      Charleston, SC 29405-2413

 
V.  Application Review Information
 

A.  Evaluation Criteria
 

LETTER OF INTENT EVALUATION CRITERIA
 
      The Letter of Intent (LOI) evaluation criteria in this program and weights for each
criterion are below. Track One and Track Two LOIs will be evaluated separately. NOAA
anticipates that highly ranked LOIs will satisfy most or all of the criteria listed in this
section.
 

Notice of Federal Funding Page 41 of 64

273



      1. Program Priorities (60 Points). Questions relevant to this criterion include the extent
          the application addresses the program priorities listed in Section 1.B.
 
                 - Risk Reduction (15 points) - For Track One LOIs, to what extent does the
                   proposed effort prepare the region for implementation of future actions that
                   will reduce risk to coastal communities, infrastructure, economies, and
                   ecosystems from weather and climate impacts? For track Two LOIs, to what
                   extent will the proposed effort reduce risk to coastal communities,
                   infrastructure, economies, and ecosystems from weather and climate impacts?
 
                 - Regional Coordination and Collaboration (15 points) - To what extent does
                   the proposed effort promote regional coordination and collaboration through a
                   shared vision for how to improve resilience within the specific geography or
                   region? To what extent is the size and location of the specified region likely to
                   facilitate implementation of resilience and adaptation actions that ensure
                   benefits flow to coastal communities?
 
                 - Equity and Inclusion (15 points) - To what extent does the proposed effort
                   support development, identification, or implementation of equitable adaptation
                   strategies and actions led by or with members of marginalized, underserved,
                   and underrepresented communities and/or Tribes? Does the proposed effort
                   advance environmental justice and provide opportunity for disadvantaged
                   communities?
 
               - Enduring Capacity (15 points) - To what extent does the proposed effort aim
                 to build capacity for adaptation that can be sustained into the future beyond
                 the period of award, including for Tribes and/or marginalized, underserved,
                 and underrepresented populations?
 
      2. Technical Merit (10 points). Questions relevant to this criterion include: To what
          extent are the vision, strategies, activities, and outcomes of the proposed efforts
          clear? To what extent are the proposed activities appropriate for accomplishing the
          stated vision and outcomes?
 
      3. Project Costs (10 points).  Questions relevant to this criterion include: To what extent
          are the estimated costs realistic and commensurate with the project needs and time
          frame?
 
      4. Outreach and Engagement (20 points). Questions relevant to this criterion include:

Notice of Federal Funding Page 42 of 64

274



          To what extent do the proposed effort include specific activities for involving or
          engaging a wide range of agencies and organizations, including marginalized,
          underserved, and underrepresented communities, and Tribes? Does the LOI reflect
          connections with or intent to connect with NOAA’s partnerships? 
 
      LOIs will undergo a technical review (with at least three reviewers), ranking, and
selection process to determine eligibility to submit a full application. The LOI Evaluation
Criteria will be scored as follows:
 
      0 – Poor: LOI does not address Evaluation Criterion;
      1 – Fair: LOI marginally addresses Evaluation Criterion;
      2 – Good: LOI adequately addresses Evaluation Criterion; or
      3 – Excellent: LOI exceptionally addresses Evaluation Criterion.
 
      The Letter of Intent’s average score is then calculated using the weights and ratings for
each criterion, as follows:
 
      (Rating for “Risk Reduction” × 0.15) +
      (Rating for “Regional Coordination and Collaboration” × 0.15) +
      (Rating for “Equity” x 0.15) +
      (Rating for “Enduring Capacity” x 0.15) +
      (Rating for “Technical Merit” × 0.20) +
      (Rating for “Project Costs” × 0.05) +
      (Rating for “Outreach and Engagement” x 0.15) +
      Sum of all review scores / # of reviewers = Total Score (Range: 0.00 - 3.00)
 
      FULL APPLICATION REVIEW CRITERIA
 
      Reviewers will assign scores to full applications ranging from 0 to 100 points based on
the following five standard NOAA evaluation criteria. Criteria and sub-criteria will be
evaluated holistically up to the number of points specified.
 
1. Importance/Relevance and Applicability. These criteria are related to the program
priorities.
 
        Risk Reduction: This factor evaluates the extent to which the proposed approach,
        strategies, and actions reduce risk to coastal communities, infrastructure, economies,
        and ecosystems from weather and climate impacts.
 

Notice of Federal Funding Page 43 of 64

275



        For Track One (10 points), does the proposal:
             1. Describe the risk from weather and climate impacts within the project area?
                 If not, does the proposal include activities to assess risk and vulnerability within
                 the project area?
             2. Articulate a regional resilience vision and propose development of strategies,
                 approaches or plans to support implementation of future adaptation actions?
             3. Describe specific needs or gaps within the region that will be addressed by the
                 collaborative’s activities? If not, does the proposal describe a process to identify
                 them?
             4. Describe how the benefits of a regional approach will flow to coastal
                 communities?
             5. Describe the impact the strategy will have when implemented and how the
                 collaborative will pursue implementation?
 
        For Track Two (15 points), does the proposal:
             1. Articulate a vision, specific resilience and adaptation actions with co-benefits,
                 and associated outcomes based on the needs, issues, or gaps within the
                 region?
             2. Describe a suite of complementary adaptation actions, grounded in existing
                 plans or strategies, that are achievable within the proposed period of
                 performance?     
             3. Provide a description of each proposed implementation action and specific plans
                 for implementing each action (e.g., timeline, mechanism, etc.)?
             4. Describe how the suite of proposed adaptation actions will measurably increase
                 resilience of the region?
 
        Regional Coordination and Collaboration. This factor evaluates the extent to which
        the applicant includes the appropriate entities for a specific geography in the
        collaborative team and proposes activities that are likely to advance specified goals.
 
        For Track One (20 points), does the proposal:
             1. Describe the geographic scope of the regional collaborative and how the size
                 facilitates collaboration?
             2. Include the necessary collaborators and partners to accomplish stated goals
                 (including appropriate government entities) and how each of the collaborators
                 are connected to the priorities?
             3. Articulate steps and actions to create and sustain the collaborative team?
                 Include activities to incorporate indigenous knowledge, local and community
                 knowledge and values related to climate adaptation within the region?

Notice of Federal Funding Page 44 of 64

276



             4. Describe the leadership, organizational, and administrative framework for the
                 collaborative team, or propose activities that will result in an organizational and
                 administrative framework?
 
        For Track Two (10 points), does the proposal:
             1. Describe the geographic scope of the suite of adaptation actions and how that
                 size facilitates implementation?
             2. Articulate a governance approach for the proposed suite of adaptation actions
                 that ensure they complement each other and collectively contribute to regional
                 adaptation objectives and actions that have been identified?
             3. Demonstrate that it has enlisted the expertise and entities required to address
                 the identified climate change threats holistically and collaboratively, including
                 engagement and commitment from any relevant collaborators and/or
                 partners?
             4. Demonstrate integration and leveraging of federal, state, and local entities, as
                 well as Tribes, tribal organizations, and non-governmental organizations?
 
        Equity and Inclusion (15 points). This factor evaluates the extent to which the
        proposed activities are co-developed with Tribes or marginalized, underserved, and
        underrepresented communities and support development and implementation of
        equitable adaptation strategies and actions.
 
        For Track One (15 points), does the proposal:
             1. Identify, or propose to identify as an action, those who are most vulnerable
                 to weather and climate impacts within the geography of interest, including
                 Tribes or marginalized, underserved, and underrepresented populations, as well
                 as disadvantaged communities?
             2. Include both short-term and long-term activities that are led by or engage with,
                 and provide resources to, Tribes or marginalized, underserved, and
                 underrepresented communities? This should include resources for these
                 communities to lead projects or engage in the process (e.g., attend meetings,
                 provide expertise, etc.).
             3. Describe how those Tribes or marginalized, underserved and underrepresented
                 communities have co-developed or will be integrated into project activities? Does
                 it clearly explain what inclusion looks like?
             4. Describe activities to overcome known barriers to engagement of Tribes or
                 marginalized, underserved, and underrepresented communities, or propose
                 activities to identify barriers?
 

Notice of Federal Funding Page 45 of 64

277



        For Track Two (15 points), does the proposal:
             1. Identify, or propose to identify as an action, those who are most vulnerable to
                 weather and climate impacts within the geography of interest, including Tribes
                 or marginalized, underserved, and underrepresented populations, as well as
                 disadvantaged communities?
             2. Describe the outreach that was done with Tribes or marginalized, underserved
                 and underrepresented communities in developing and identifying the proposed
                 adaptation actions? Or include plans for doing so (or continuing to do so) prior
                 to and during implementation of these adaptation actions?
             3. Identify the benefits that will accrue to Tribes or marginalized, underserved and
                 underrepresented communities from the implementation of the proposed
                 adaptation actions?
             4. Identify the potential mitigation for any burdens that could be placed on these
                 communities from the actions?
             5. Describe activities, including staff time and dedicated funding, to ensure
                 continued engagement of Tribes or marginalized, underserved, and
                 underrepresented communities and incorporation of those communities into
                 decision making processes?
 
        Enduring Capacity (10 points). This factor evaluates the extent to which the
        proposed activities will build enduring capacity for adaptation within specified regions,
        including Tribes or marginalized, underserved, and underrepresented communities.
 
        For Track One (10 points), does the proposal:
             1. Include activities to improve planners’, decision makers’ and coastal
                 stakeholders’ access to and capacity to apply data and information related to
                 current and future environmental, economic, and social conditions and integrate
                 information into sound, planning and decision making?
             2. Include a plan to sustain regional collaboration beyond the period of
                 performance or propose to develop a plan for long term, sustained
                 collaboration?
             3. Invest in capacity building of those involved in the collaborative team and
                 relevant communities by providing training? Support activities that will ensure
                 sharing the lessons learned with other regions and communities?
 
        For Track Two (10 points), does the proposal:
             1. Identify the workforce requirements, including numbers, that would need to be
                 hired to implement identified adaptation actions, including types and levels of
                 positions related to: resilience or adaptation planning; coastal restoration

Notice of Federal Funding Page 46 of 64

278



                 design; permitting; engineering; risk modeling; land and natural resources
                 valuation; applied social science; geospatial analysis; and other expertise as
                 required?
             2. Identify opportunities to share the lessons learned during implementation more
                 broadly and transfer knowledge within and outside the region?
             3. Include a plan to sustain regional collaboration and adaptation actions beyond
                 the period of performance or propose to develop a plan for long term,
                 sustained collaboration?
 
2. Technical and Scientific Merit. This criterion assesses whether the approach is technically
sound and/or innovative, if the methods are appropriate, and whether there are clear goals
and objectives for the activities.
 
        For Track One, does the proposal: (15 points)
             1. Have a clearly defined, focused, and realistic vision? Include activities that are
                 appropriate for accomplishing the stated vision and are achievable within the
                 proposed time frame?
             2. Incorporate current guidance, authoritative data and science, and/or technical
                 advancements in the design and implementation of the proposed work?
             3. Reference scientific sources from federal and non-federal sources, and/or
                 Indigenous Knowledge related to weather and climate risk?
             4. Include activities for evaluating and reporting performance of the overall effort
                 and specific adaptation actions?
 
        For Track Two, does the proposal: (20 points)
             1. Have a clearly defined, focused, and realistic vision? Include activities that are
                 appropriate for accomplishing the stated vision and are achievable within the
                 proposed time frame?
             2. Completely describe the proposed adaptation actions, including a realistic
                 timeline, key milestones and outcomes to be achieved, and the status of
                 permitting and environmental compliance? Include sufficient detail about each
                 of the adaptation actions to assess the merit of the planned activities? 
             3. Provide support for the feasibility of the methods, including whether the
                 approach is technically sound and safe for the public? Does the proposal
                 provide support for the sustainability of the approach?
             4. Reference scientific sources from federal and non-federal sources, and/or
                 Indigenous  Knowledge related to weather and climate risk?
             5. Include activities for evaluating and reporting performance of the overall effort
                 and specific adaptation actions including the anticipated social and economic

Notice of Federal Funding Page 47 of 64

279



                 benefits? Include plans to support longer-term monitoring beyond the period
                 of performance?
 
3. Overall Qualifications of the Funding Applicants (15 points). These criteria assess
whether the funding applicant and any sub-applicants possess the necessary education,
experience, training, facilities, and administrative resources to accomplish the project.
 
        For Track One, does the proposal:
             1. Include a lead entity with the capability and/or experience in successfully
                 administering a federal award, or propose activities for the lead entity to gain
                 the knowledge and skills necessary to successfully administer a federal award?
             2. Clearly describe the roles of collaborators? Does the application include letters
                 of collaboration that describe the scale and scope of involvement for the
                 collaborators?
             3. Identify a team of collaborators who have knowledge of and experience working
                 in the specified geographic region? Does the team of collaborators have broad
                 support for the proposed effort as reflected in letters of cooperation and/or
                 letters of support?
 
        For Track Two, does the proposal:
             1. Involve a lead entity with the capability and/or experience in successfully
                 administering a federal award and/or similar funding of a similar scope and
                 scale? Include activities to gain the knowledge and skills necessary to
                 successfully administer a federal award? 
             2. Involve collaborators and/or partners with sufficient expertise and capacity to
                 implement the proposed suite of adaptation actions?
 
4. Project Costs (10 points). These criteria evaluate the budget to determine if it is realistic
and commensurate with the project needs and time frame.
 
        For Track One, does the proposal:
             1. Include a budget request that is reasonable and does the applicant justify the
                 proposed budget request? Are requested funds for salaries and fringe benefits
                 only for those personnel who are directly involved in implementing the
                 proposed regional collaborative and/or are directly related to specific products
                 or outcomes of the proposed regional collaborative?
             2. Describe how the proposed activities include strategic partnerships with
                 collaborating institutions, agencies, foundations, community organizations, or
                 private-sector partners? Do the proposed activities leverage resources from

Notice of Federal Funding Page 48 of 64

280



                 other organizations or funding sources? Or describe efforts and associated
                 challenges in identifying leveraging opportunities?
             3. Have administrative costs been minimized to the greatest extent possible? This
                 includes, but is not limited to, an assessment of effective direct/indirect costs
                 across all categories in the proposed budget according to the type, size and
                 duration of project and project objectives.
 
        For Track Two, does the proposal:
             1. Include a budget request that is reasonable and does the applicant justify the
                 proposed budget request? Are requested funds for salaries and fringe benefits
                 only for those personnel who are directly involved in implementing the proposed
                 effort and/or are directly related to specific products or outcomes?
             2. Demonstrate that the proposed activities leverage resources, and to what
                 extent, from other organizations or funding sources? Or describe efforts and
                 associated challenges in identifying leveraging opportunities?
             3. Demonstrate that the proposed approach is the most efficient way to meet
                 project objectives?  Have administrative costs been minimized to the greatest
                 extent possible? This includes, but is not limited to, an assessment of effective
                 direct/indirect costs across all categories in the proposed budget according to
                 the type, size and duration of project and project objectives.
 
5. Outreach and Engagement (5 points). These criteria assess whether the proposal includes a
strategy to engage stakeholders beyond the collaborative team in improving resilience of the
region.
 
        For Track One, does the proposal:      
             1. Reflect outreach to one or more of NOAA’s partnerships (see Section II.C)?
             2. Outline a strategy that will improve and sustain dialogue and information
                 sharing with supporters and other stakeholders, particularly marginalized,
                 underserved, and underrepresented communities, and Tribes?
 
        For Track Two, does the proposal:
             1. Reflect outreach to one or more of NOAA’s partnerships (see Section II.C)?
             2. Outline a strategy that will improve and sustain dialogue and information
                 sharing with stakeholders, particularly marginalized, underserved, and
                 underrepresented communities, and Tribes?
 
B.  Review and Selection Process
 

LETTER OF INTENT REVIEW AND SELECTION PROCESS

Notice of Federal Funding Page 49 of 64

281



 
      All LOIs received consistent with the deadline and procedures in Section IV. above will
be evaluated by NOAA in accordance with the evaluation criteria in Section V.A. NOAA, in
its sole discretion, may continue the review process for LOIs with non-substantive issues that
may be easily rectified or cured. Each LOI will be reviewed by at least three objective
reviewers, and a rank order will be established based on the scoring in Section IV. The goal
of this review is to select the projects that are most strongly aligned with and most likely to
advance the program priorities of the Climate Resilience Regional Challenge. Highly ranked
LOIs will be invited to develop a full application. The number of LOIs invited to submit full
proposals will be based on the rank order and available funding, and may take into account
the Selection Factors in Section V.C. below. Proposals receiving lower scores that do not
strongly align with program priorities will not be invited to submit full proposals.
 
      Appropriate mechanisms will be established to avoid conflicts of interest. The Office for
Coastal Management (OCM) will respond to each LOI by email informing the applicant and
the PD as to whether they are invited to submit a proposal. OCM anticipates sending
responses by October 11, 2023. If the applicant and the PD does not receive an email by
October 12, 2023, they both must contact resiliencechallenge@noaa.gov and request the
status of their LOI. The proposal submission deadline in this announcement will apply to
everyone. The results of the LOI review will be released only to the applicant and the PD
unless there are extenuating circumstances. Feedback on the LOI will be provided upon
request. Applicants may not submit a full proposal unless they receive an invitation from
NOAA to do so after submitting an LOI. Any proposal that is submitted without having
received an invitation will not be reviewed.
 
      FULL APPLICATION REVIEW AND SELECTION PROCESS
 
      An initial administrative review is conducted on each application to assure that it is
timely, responsive, and complete. NOAA, in its sole discretion, may continue the review
process for applications with non-substantive issues that may be easily rectified or cured.
NOAA is not required to screen applications before the submission deadline, to identify
deficiencies that would cause the application to be rejected or receive a poor evaluation (for
example, a missing component). However, if deficiencies are identified by NOAA or the
applicant before the deadline, the applicant may correct any deficiencies by submitting a
revised application. 
 
      Applications that meet the minimum requirements will be reviewed by at least three
independent peer reviewers during a merit-based review and ranking process. Appropriate
mechanisms will be implemented to avoid potential conflicts of interest during the proposal

Notice of Federal Funding Page 50 of 64

282



review process. Each reviewer will be asked to individually evaluate and rank proposals
using the weighted evaluation criteria above. Proposal evaluations will be based primarily on
information included in the application. Merit reviewer ratings will be used to produce a
rank order of the proposals.
 
      Following the merit review, one or more panels may meet to make final
recommendations to the Selecting Official regarding which of the top ranked proposals best
meet the program objectives and priorities. The panel may be composed of federal
employees and non-federal experts and may convene in person or by teleconference, video
conference, or other electronic means to discuss applications. The panel will be presented
with the top-ranked applications, per the results of the merit review, merit review scores, and
comments for each application.
 
      The panel will rate all top-ranked proposals on the following scale:
 
             3- Excellent--Application exceptionally addresses program priorities and was
                 highly responsive to evaluation criteria;
             2- Good--Application partially addresses program priorities and was strongly
                 responsive to evaluation criteria; or
             1- Fair--Application marginally addresses program priorities and was moderately
                 responsive to evaluation criteria.
    
      The final rating will be presented to the Selection Official and will be the primary
consideration for deciding which applications will be recommended for funding. The
Selecting Official, or their designee, may negotiate the funding level or other major aspects
of the proposal, and based on the rank order and selection factors in Section V. C. below, the
Selecting Official will make the final recommendation for award to the Grants Officer, who
is authorized to obligate Federal funding and execute the award.
 
      NOAA may select all, some, or none of the applications, or part of any application, may
ask applicants to work together or combine proposals, may defer applications to the future,
or may reallocate funds to different funding categories, to the extent authorized. Proposals
not initially selected for funding may be considered for funding subsequent to the initial
review and selection if additional funds become available without NOAA repeating the
competitive process outlined in this announcement.
 
      Please note that not all activities submitted under a single proposal may be deemed
appropriate for funding, and the Selecting Official may recommend alternate activities as
appropriate or only partial funding, based on the selection factors and the merit and/or panel

Notice of Federal Funding Page 51 of 64

283



review written evaluations. For a proposal to be selected for funding, the applicant may be
asked to modify objectives and activities, work plans, and budgets, and to provide
supplemental information required by the agency prior to the award. This includes review of
any proposed cost sharing, which is not required, and which may be removed or changed to
leverage if more appropriate. This may result in submission of a revised application before
final funding decisions are made. The exact amount of funds to be awarded, the final scope
of activities, the project duration, specific NOAA cooperative involvement with activities of
each project, and other relevant application details will be determined in pre-award
negotiations among the applicant, NOAA GMD, and Office for Coastal Management
officials. Applicants should also note that modifications to proposals may be necessary due
to NOAA’s efforts to comply with NEPA and other legislation.
 
C.  Selection Factors
 

The Selecting Official, a senior official within the National Oceanic and Atmospheric
Administration or their designee, shall recommend applications for funding in rank order
unless an application is justified to be selected out of rank order based upon one or more of
the following selection factors:
 
      - availability of funding;
      - balance/distribution of funds:
               a) by geographic area,
               b) by type of institutions,
               c) by type of partners,
               d) by research areas, or
               e) by project types;
      - whether this project duplicates other efforts funded or considered for funding by
        NOAA or other federal agencies;
      - program priorities and policy factors set out in Sections I.A. and I.B.;
      - an applicant's prior award performance;
      - partnerships and/or participation of targeted groups (including the extent to which
        projects benefit Tribes, underserved, marginalized, underrepresented, environmental
        justice, and/or disadvantaged communities); and
      - adequacy of information necessary for NOAA staff to make a NEPA determination
        and draft necessary documentation before recommendations for funding are made to
        the NOAA GMD.
 
      Hence, awards may not necessarily be made to the highest-scored applications. The
Selecting Official or designee may negotiate the funding level of the proposal.
 

Notice of Federal Funding Page 52 of 64

284



D.  Anticipated Announcement and Award Dates
 
       Applicants with the highest ranked proposals will be notified in Spring 2024 that they
have been recommended for funding. Applicants must undergo reviews by NOAA’s Grants
Management Division as described in Sections V.B. and VI.B.9., and successfully complete
all NOAA/applicant negotiations including providing the information required for NOAA to
comply with NEPA and permit requirements, and the provision of other supporting
documentation as requested prior to funding being awarded. The anticipated start date for
cooperative agreement awards made under this competition is October 1, 2024, dependent on
funding availability.
 
      Unsuccessful applicants will be notified by e-mail that their application was not
recommended for funding after the final selection package has been approved by the NOAA
Grants Management Division, which is expected to be approximately June 2024.
Unsuccessful applications submitted to this competition will be retained for three years and
then destroyed.

 
VI.  Award Administration Information
 

A.  Award Notices
 

Applications recommended for funding by the Selecting Official will be forwarded to
the NOAA Grants Management Division (GMD) by the Program Office. The applicant will
be notified by the program office by email that their application was recommended for
funding and remains under consideration. The applicant should be aware that the notification
by the program office is not the official award notice and funding is not assured. Official
notification happens only when the applicant receives an award notice from the Grants
Officer electronically.
 
      The official notice of award is the Commerce Form 450 (CD-450), Financial Assistance
Award, issued by the NOAA Grants Officer electronically through NOAA’s electronic
grants management system, Grants Online, and must be accepted by the non-federal entity.
 
      In addition, award documents provided by NOAA may contain specific award conditions
as necessary, such as a limitation on the use of funds for activities that have outstanding
environmental compliance requirements, which may lead to modification of the project’s
scope of work. These specific award conditions may also include other compliance
requirements for the award and will be applied on a case-by-case basis. Applicants are
strongly encouraged to review award documents carefully before accepting a Federal award
to ensure they are fully aware of the relevant terms that have been placed on the award.

Notice of Federal Funding Page 53 of 64

285



B.  Administrative and National Policy Requirements
 

1. Pre-Award Notice. The Department of Commerce Pre-Award Notification
Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements contained in the Federal Register
notice of December 30, 2014 (79 FR 78390) are applicable to this solicitation. Refer to
http://go.usa.gov/cXC7A.
 
      2. Uniform Administrative Requirements. Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements at 2 C.F.R. § 200, implemented by the Department of
Commerce at 2 C.F.R. § 1327.101, apply to awards in this program. Refer to
http://go.usa.gov/cXCJQ.
 
      3. Terms and Conditions. The Department of Commerce Financial Assistance Standard
Terms and Conditions will apply to awards in this program. These terms will be provided in
the award package in Grants Online. A current version is available for review at
https://www.commerce.gov/sites/default/files/2020-
11/DOC%20Standard%20Terms%20and%20Conditions%20-
%2012%20November%202020%20PDF_0.pdf. Also, NOAA will apply administrative
terms, and a current version is at
https://www.noaa.gov/sites/default/files/legacy/document/2021/Mar/Administrative%20Stan
dard%20Award%20Conditions%20for%20NOAA%20Financial%20Assistance%20Awards
%2002.18.2021.pdf. In addition, award documents provided by NOAA may contain special
award conditions, including those limiting the use of funds for compliance activities such as
outstanding environmental compliance requirements, which will be applied on a case-by-
case basis, requirements for physical signage attributing the project to its funding source, and
requirements for submitting progress reports.
 
      4. National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) Requirements. NOAA must analyze the
potential environmental impacts, as required by NEPA, for applicant projects or proposals
that are seeking NOAA funding.  Detailed information on NOAA compliance with NEPA
can be found at the following NOAA NEPA website: http://www.nepa.noaa.gov, including
our NOAA Administrative Order 216-6 for NEPA,
http://www.nepa.noaa.gov/NAO216_6.pdf, and the Council on Environmental Quality
implementation regulations, http://energy.gov/sites/prod/files/NEPA-40CFR1500_1508.pdf.
Council on Environmental Quality implementation regulations are also accessible under
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-
idx?SID=30655823cf5f0dcb1c5ee59d01883b89&mc=true&tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title40/40chapt
erV.tpl.
 

Notice of Federal Funding Page 54 of 64

286



      Applicants should review the Environmental Compliance Questionnaire for National
Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration Notice of Federal Funding Opportunity Applicants
at https://www.noaa.gov/sites/default/files/2021-11/NOAA-Grants-Questionnaire-final.pdf.
This form addresses information requirements specific to compliance with the National
Environmental Policy Act (“NEPA”), 42 U.S.C. §§ 4321- 4370. Under the description of
program activities, applicants are required to provide detailed information on the activities to
be conducted, locations, sites, species and habitat to be affected, possible construction
activities, and any environmental concerns that may exist (e.g., the use and disposal of
hazardous or toxic chemicals, introduction of non- indigenous species, impacts to
endangered and threatened species, aquaculture projects, and impacts to coral reef systems).
At a minimum, applicants should provide the proposed activity location, maps and graphics
of the proposed location, if available (at a scale that clearly shows site location(s) relative to
the surrounding area and nearby features), and whether there are pre-existing or ongoing
uses at the location of the proposed activity. Applicants recommended for funding must
complete questions 1 - 19 of the Environmental Compliance Questionnaire for National
Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration Federal Financial Assistance Applicants
(accessible at:
https://www.nepa.noaa.gov/docs/NOAA-Grants-Questionnaire-final.pdf) prior to NOAA
review and approval of the funding award.
 
      After the application is submitted, NOAA may require additional information to fulfill
NEPA and other compliance requirements. If NOAA determines that an environmental
assessment (EA) or environmental impact statement (EIS) is required, applicants may also
be requested to assist in drafting the EA or EIS. Applicants may also be required to
cooperate with NOAA in identifying and implementing feasible measures to reduce or avoid
any identified adverse environmental impacts of their proposal. The failure to do so shall be
grounds for the denial of an application. If NOAA cannot evaluate the environmental
impacts of the award due to the nature of the application (e.g., the funding will support the
selection, design and implementation of a project but cannot evaluate a project that has not
yet been selected), NOAA may require the applicant to submit additional information to
fulfill NEPA and other compliance requirements once that information becomes available.
Funds cannot be expended until NEPA and other compliance requirements are fulfilled.
 
      5. Freedom of Information Act (FOIA). Department of Commerce regulations
implementing the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA), 5 U.S.C. Sec. 552, are found at 15
C.F.R. Part 4, Public Information. These regulations set forth rules for the Department
regarding making requested materials, information, and records publicly available under the
FOIA. Applications submitted in response to this Federal Funding Opportunity may be
subject to requests for release under the Act. In the event that an application contains

Notice of Federal Funding Page 55 of 64

287



information or data that the applicant deems to be confidential commercial information that
should be exempt from disclosure under FOIA, that information should be identified,
bracketed, and marked as Privileged, Confidential, Commercial or Financial Information. In
accordance with 15 CFR § 4.9, the Department of Commerce will protect from disclosure
confidential business information contained in financial assistance applications and other
documentation provided by applicants to the extent permitted by law.
 
      6. Data Sharing Requirements. If the applicant intends to collect or create environmental
data or information, and if the applicant receives funding under this competition, they will be
required to make the data or information collected or created under the NOAA award
discoverable by and accessible to the public in a timely fashion (typically within two years),
free of charge or at no more than the cost of reproduction, unless an exemption is granted by
the NOAA Office for Coastal Management. Data should be available in at least one
machine-readable format, preferably a widely used or open-standard format, and should be
accompanied by machine-readable documentation (metadata), preferably based on widely
used or international standards. 
 
      For the purposes of this announcement, environmental data includes: 1) observations and
measurements of physical, chemical, biological, geological, and geophysical properties of
the oceans, atmosphere, space, sun, and solid earth; 2) correlative data, such as
socioeconomic data, related documentation, and metadata; 3) digital audio or video
recordings of environmental phenomena (such as animal sounds or undersea video); 4)
numerical model outputs, particularly if supporting a peer-reviewed publication; and 5) data
collected in a lab or other controlled environment, such as measurements of animals and
chemical processes.
 
      Applications that involve the collection or creation of environmental data should include
a general Data Management Plan of up to two pages describing how the following
requirements will be satisfied. A typical plan should include:
 
             1) descriptions of the types of environmental data and information expected to be
                 created during the course of the project (including geographic and temporary
                 coverage, anticipated quantity, volume or size of data collected, and the
                 collection and/or generation methods that will be used);
             2) the tentative date by which data will be shared;
             3) information on data quality assurance/quality control procedures, document
                 and metadata requirements;
             4) methods for providing data access, sharing and preservation; and
             5) prior experience in making such data accessible. If the proposal is selected for

Notice of Federal Funding Page 56 of 64

288



                 funding, the applicant will need to provide a data management plan that
                 addresses all the listed plan elements in detail. 
 
      The costs of data preparation, accessibility, or archiving may be included in the proposal
budget. Accepted submission of data to the NOAA National Centers for Environmental
Information (NCEI) is one way to satisfy data sharing requirements; however, NCEI is not
obligated to accept all submissions and may charge a fee, particularly for large or unusual
datasets. Proposals are to describe their proposed approach. Use of open-standard formats
and methods is encouraged. NOAA may, at its own discretion, make publicly visible the
Data Management Plan from funded proposals, or use information from the Data
Management Plan to produce a formal metadata record and include that metadata in a
Catalog to indicate the pending availability of new data.
 
      Proposal submitters are hereby advised that the final pre-publication manuscripts of
scholarly articles produced entirely or primarily with NOAA funding will be required to be
submitted to NOAA Institutional Repository after acceptance, and no later than upon
publication. Such manuscripts shall be made publicly available by NOAA one year after
publication by the journal.
 
      Responsible NOAA Official for questions regarding this guidance and for verifying
accessibility of data produced by funding recipients:
 
             Randy Warren
             Data Manager
             NOAA Office for Coastal Management
             Randy.Warren@noaa.gov
 
      7. Limitation of Liability. Funding for programs listed in this notice is contingent upon
the availability of appropriations. Applicants are hereby given notice that funds may not
have been appropriated yet for the programs listed in this notice. Publication of this
announcement does not oblige NOAA to award any specific project or to obligate any
available funds.
 
      NOAA reserves the right to halt activity under the award through enforcement
procedures under 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.339-.343, Remedies for Non-compliance, if the recipient
is not fulfilling the requirements of the project as outlined in the grant award. Non-
compliance with a federally approved project may result in termination of the award as
described in 2 C.F.R. § 200.340.
 

Notice of Federal Funding Page 57 of 64

289



      8. Paperwork Reduction Act. This collection of information contains requirements
subject to the Paperwork Reduction Act. The use of Forms SF- 424, SF- 424A, SF-424B,
and SF-LLL has been approved by the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) under
control numbers found at https://www.reginfo.gov/public/do/PRASearch. Form CD-511 and
CD-512 are also required by the DOC. Applicants shall not submit form CD-512 with their
application package; this form must remain on file with the applicant only. Form SF-LLL is
required only if lobbying activities are being reported; otherwise, this form shall remain on
file with the applicant only and not with the federal program office.
 
      9. Review of Risk. The NOAA Grants Officer will review financial and grants
administration aspects of a proposed award, including conducting an assessment of the risk
posed by the applicant in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.206. NOAA is required to review
and consider any information about the applicant that is in the designated integrity and
performance system accessible through SAM. An applicant, at its option, may review
information in the designated integrity and performance systems accessible through SAM
and comment on any information about itself that a Federal awarding agency previously
entered and is currently in the designated integrity and performance system accessible
through SAM. NOAA will consider any comments by the applicant, in addition to the other
information in the designated integrity and performance system, in making a judgment about
the applicant's integrity, business ethics, and record of performance under Federal awards
when completing the review of risk posed by applicants as described in 2 C.F.R. § 200.206
Federal awarding agency review of risk posed by applicants.
 
      In addition to reviewing repositories of government-wide eligibility, qualifications or
financial integrity information, the risk assessment conducted by NOAA may consider items
such as the financial stability of an applicant, quality of the applicant’s management systems,
an applicant’s history of performance, previous audit reports and audit findings concerning
the applicant and the applicant’s ability to effectively implement statutory, regulatory, or
other requirements imposed on non-federal entities. Applicants should be in compliance with
the terms of any existing NOAA grants or cooperative agreements and otherwise eligible to
receive federal awards, or make arrangements satisfactory to the Grants Officer, to be
considered for funding under this competition. All reports due should be received and any
concerns raised by the agency should be addressed in a timely fashion in order to receive a
new award. Upon review of these factors, if appropriate, specific award conditions that
respond to the degree of risk may be applied by the NOAA Grants Officer pursuant to 2
C.F.R. § 200.208. In addition, NOAA reserves the right to reject an application in its entirety
where information is uncovered that raises a significant risk with respect to the responsibility
or suitability of an applicant. The final approval of selected applications and issuance of
awards will be by the NOAA Grants Officer.

Notice of Federal Funding Page 58 of 64

290



 
      10. Minority Serving Institutions. The Department of Commerce/National Oceanic and
Atmospheric Administration (DOC/NOAA) is strongly committed to increasing the
participation of Minority Serving Institutions (MSIs), i.e., Historically Black Colleges and
Universities, Hispanic-serving institutions, tribal colleges and universities, Alaskan Native
and Native Hawaiian institutions, and institutions that work in marginalized, underserved or
underrepresented communities.
 
      11. NOAA Sexual Assault and Sexual Harassment Prevention and Response Policy
Applicable to Financial Assistance Awards. NOAA requires organizations receiving federal
assistance to report findings of sexual harassment, or any other kind of harassment,
regarding an applicant, Project Director (PD), co-PD, Principal Investigator (PI), co-PI, or
any other key personnel in the award. The recipient must report to the NOAA Grants Officer
and Program Officer if the PI, co-PI, or other key personnel are placed on administrative
leave relating to a harassment finding or investigation. NOAA may take unilateral action as
necessary to protect the safety of all personnel on a project supported by financial assistance,
to include suspending or terminating an award or requiring a recipient to replace or remove
personnel. If the award involves the use of NOAA-operated facilities and/or vessels, the
recipient must adhere to the following specific requirements:
 
      - Financial assistance awards involving the use of NOAA operated-facilities: NOAA
        Sexual Assault and Sexual Harassment Prevention and Response Policy Applicable to
        Financial Assistance Awards Involving NOAA-Operated Facilities (May 2018).
      - Financial assistance awards involving the use of vessels: NOAA Sexual Assault and
        Sexual Harassment Prevention and Response Policy Applicable to Financial Assistance
        Awards Involving the Use of a Vessel(s) under NOAA Contract, Order, Grant, or
        Cooperative Agreement (May 2018).
 
      Direct links to the requirements for awards involving the use of NOAA operated-
facilities and/or vessels may be found at https://www.noaa.gov/organization/acquisition-
grants/noaa-workplace-harassment-training-for-contractors-and-financial. Note that these
policies include required training.
 
      12. Required Use of American Iron, Steel, Manufactured Products, and Construction
Materials.
If applicable, and pursuant to the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (“IIJA”), Pub. L.
No. 117-58, which includes the Build American, Buy American (BABA) Act, Pub. L. No.
117-58, §§ 70901-52, and OMB M-22-11, recipients of an award of Federal financial
assistance from the Department of Commerce (DOC) are hereby notified that none of the

Notice of Federal Funding Page 59 of 64

291



funds provided under any award in this program may be used for a project for infrastructure
unless:
     (1) all iron and steel used in the project are produced in the United States–this
          means all manufacturing processes, from the initial melting stage through the
          application of coatings, occurred in the United States;
    (2) all manufactured products used in the project are produced in the United States—
          this means the manufactured product was manufactured in the United States; and
          the cost of the components of the manufactured product that are mined, produced,
          or manufactured in the United States is greater than 55 percent of the total cost of
          all components of the manufactured product, unless another standard for
          determining the minimum amount of domestic content of the manufactured product
          has been established under applicable law or regulation; and
    (3) all construction materials are manufactured in the United States—this means that all
          manufacturing processes for the construction material occurred in the United States.
          The Buy America preference only applies to articles, materials, and supplies that are
          consumed in, incorporated into, or affixed to an infrastructure project. As such, it
          does not apply to tools, equipment, and supplies, such as temporary scaffolding,
          brought to the construction site and removed at or before the completion of the
          infrastructure project. Nor does a Buy America preference apply to equipment and
          furnishings, such as movable chairs, desks, and portable computer equipment, that
          are used at or within the finished infrastructure project but are not an integral part
          of the structure or permanently affixed to the infrastructure project.
 
      To help federal agencies and recipients meet BABA requirements, the U.S. Department
of Commerce, National Institute for Standards and Technology (NIST), Hollings
Manufacturing Extension Partnership (MEP) National Network™ provides a service to
connect stakeholders, including recipients, to U.S. manufacturers that have relevant
production capabilities and capacities to help fulfill current market and supply chain needs.
Recipients considering a BABA nonavailability waiver are strongly encouraged to contact
the NIST/MEP for assistance with supplier scouting services prior to seeking a BABA non-
availability waiver. Further information on the NIST/MEP supplier scouting services is
available at: https://www.nist.gov/mep/supplier-scouting.
 
      Waivers: When necessary, recipients may apply for, and DOC may grant, a waiver from
these requirements. DOC will notify the recipient for information on the process for
requesting a waiver from these requirements. When DOC has made a determination that one
of the following exceptions applies, the awarding official may waive the application of the
domestic content procurement preference in any case in which DOC determines that: a.
applying the domestic content procurement preference would be inconsistent with the public

Notice of Federal Funding Page 60 of 64

292



interest; b. the types of iron, steel, manufactured products, or construction materials are not
produced in the United States in sufficient and reasonably available quantities or of a
satisfactory quality; or c. the inclusion of iron, steel, manufactured products, or construction
materials produced in the United States will increase the cost of the overall project by more
than 25 percent. A request to waive the application of the domestic content procurement
preference must be in writing. DOC will provide instructions on the format, contents, and
supporting materials required for any waiver request. Waiver requests are subject to public
comment periods of no less than 15 days and must be reviewed by the U.S. Made in America
Office. There may be instances where an award qualifies, in whole or in part, for an existing
waiver described at whitehouse.gov/omb/management/made-in-america.
 
      Definitions:
            - “Construction materials” includes: an article, material, or supply—other than an
               item of primarily iron or steel; a manufactured product; cement and
               cementitious materials; aggregates such as stone, sand, or gravel; or aggregate
               binding agents or additives —that is or consists primarily of: non-ferrous metals;
               plastic and polymer-based products (including polyvinyl chloride, composite
               building materials, and polymers used in fiber optic cables); glass (including optic
               glass); lumber; or drywall.
             - “Domestic content procurement preference’’ means: all iron and steel used in the
               project are produced in the United States; the manufactured products used in the
               project are produced in the United States; or the construction materials used in
               the project are produced in the United States.
             - “Infrastructure” includes, at a minimum: the structures, facilities, and equipment
               for, in the United States, roads, highways, and bridges; public transportation;
               dams, ports, harbors, and other maritime facilities; intercity passenger and freight
               railroads; freight and intermodal facilities; airports; water systems, including
               drinking water and wastewater systems; electrical transmission facilities and
               systems; utilities; broadband infrastructure; and buildings and real property.
               Infrastructure includes facilities that generate, transport, and distribute energy.
             - ‘‘Project’’ means the construction, alteration, maintenance, or repair of
               infrastructure in the United States. -- 1 Excludes cement and cementitious
               materials, aggregates such as stone, sand, or gravel, or aggregate binding agents
               or additives. 2 IIJA, § 70917(c)(1).
 
      Implementation of Domestic Sourcing Requirements: Prior to initiation of any
construction that may arise in any award under this program, the Recipient will be required
to inform the NOAA Grants Officer and the Federal Program Officer whether it is using
iron, steel, manufactured products, or construction materials as described in the above policy

Notice of Federal Funding Page 61 of 64

293



on Required Use of American Iron, Steel, Manufactured Products, and Construction
Materials. In addition, the Recipient will be required to inform the NOAA Grants Officer
and the Federal Program Officer whether those materials are produced or manufactured in
the United States, or alternatively, it is requesting one or more waivers, as described in this
announcement. The Recipient will be required to coordinate with NOAA regarding its
compliance with this policy.
 
C.  Reporting
 

Award recipients will be required to submit financial and performance (technical)
progress reports consistent with 2 CFR 200.328 - .330 and DOC Standard Terms and
Conditions electronically through NOAA’s electronic grants management system, Grants
Online. Performance reports must be submitted on a semi-annual schedule no later than 30
days following the end of each 6-month period from the start date of the award. Financial
reports must be submitted every 6 months by the end of April and October during the period
of the award in accordance with the DOC Financial Assistance Standard Terms and
Conditions. NOAA will provide instructions for submitting financial and progress reports
upon request.
 
      A comprehensive final report is due 120 days after the award expiration date along with
copies of all products developed under the award. Copies of all materials (including but not
limited to brochures, posters, videos, DVDs, publications, reports, management plans, public
service announcements, workshop proceedings, etc.) produced through the award, along with
copies of any reports submitted by contractors as part of the award, must be provided to the
program office within 120 days of the end of the award. Except where limited by law,
regulation, policy or security, recipients are requested to include a statement on the front
page of all products to indicate the material is “Approved for public release; distribution is
unlimited”. Journal publications must be made available to the public free of charge if the
applicant has requested publication costs or when consistent with an award’s approved data
management plan. Additional data policies may arise prior to award pursuant to the federal-
wide directive found at https://www.whitehouse.gov/wp-content/uploads/2022/08/08-2022-
OSTP-Public-Access-Memo.pdf.
 
      Successful applicants will be requested to ensure that all interim progress reports indicate
whether financial reports have been submitted to NOAA's GMD and are up to date. In their
final progress report, applicants will be asked to:
 
      (a) clearly state the resulting overall impact of their project; and
      (b) certify that “Final financial reports have been submitted to NOAAs GMD and a
           final funding draw-down has been made through the Automated Standard

Notice of Federal Funding Page 62 of 64

294



           Application for Payments (ASAP).”
 
      If equipment or tangible personal property is purchased with grant funds, applicants shall
submit an inventory to the extent required by the Office of Management and Budget
Uniform Guidance set out at 2 C.F.R. Part 200.313. Recipients must inventory tangible
property at least once every two years and at award closeout. As necessary, SF-428 forms
may be attached as an appendix to progress reports or submitted directly to the NOAA
program officer.
 
      Recipients must submit reports at least annually and at award closeout on the status of
real property in which the federal government retains an interest, unless the federal interest
in the real property extends 15 years or more. As necessary, SF-429 forms may be attached
as an appendix to progress reports or submitted directly to the NOAA program officer.
 
      The program office recommends that if the equipment is no longer needed, recipients are
encouraged to request disposition instructions for equipment approximately 150 days before
the project period ends to allow sufficient time to have equipment disposition requests
addressed before a project ends. Equipment disposition instructions typically require that
recipients “Submit Additional Closeout Documents” as an award action request in Grants
Online. NOAA will provide instructions for disposition in accordance with OMB
requirements.
 
      The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, 31 U.S.C. § 6101, includes a
requirement for awardees of applicable Federal grants to report information about first-tier
subawards and executive compensation under Federal assistance awards issued. All
awardees of applicable grants and cooperative agreements are required to report to the
Federal Subaward Reporting System (FSRS) available at www.FSRS.gov on all subawards
over $25,000. See 2 C.F.R. § 170 at http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-
idx?tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title02/2cfr170_main_02.tpl.

 
VII.  Agency Contacts
 

For administrative or technical questions regarding this announcement, contact the OCM
Grants Coordinator: resiliencechallenge@noaa.gov

 
VIII.  Other Information
 

Additional information on the NOAA Climate Resilience Regional Challenge, including
the dates and times of informational webinars, can be found here:

Notice of Federal Funding Page 63 of 64

295



https://coast.noaa.gov/funding/ira/resilience-challenge/
 
      Funds awarded cannot necessarily pay for all the costs that the recipient might incur
while carrying out an award. Generally, costs that are allowable include salaries, equipment,
and supplies, as long as these are “necessary and reasonable” specifically for the purpose of
the award. Allowable costs are determined by reference to the OMB Uniform Guidance at 2
C.F.R. Part 200, codified by the Department of Commerce at 1327.101. All cost
reimbursement sub-awards (e.g., subgrants, subcontracts) are subject to those federal cost
principles applicable to the particular type of organization concerned.
 
      The applicant acknowledges and understands that information and data contained in
applications for financial assistance, as well as information and data contained in financial,
performance, and other reports submitted by applicants, may be used by the Department of
Commerce in conducting reviews and evaluations of its financial assistance programs. For
this purpose, applicant information and data may be accessed, reviewed, and evaluated by
Department of Commerce employees, other Federal employees, Federal agents and
contractors, and/or by non-Federal personnel, all of whom enter into appropriate conflicts of
interest and nondisclosure agreements covering the use of such information. As may be
provided in the terms and conditions of a specific financial assistance award, applicants are
expected to support program reviews and evaluations by submitting required financial and
performance information and data in an accurate and timely manner, and by cooperating
with the Department of Commerce and external program evaluators. In accordance with 2
C.F.R. § 200.303(e), applicants are reminded that they must take reasonable measures to
safeguard protected personally identifiable information and other confidential or sensitive
personal or business information created or obtained in connection with a Department of
Commerce financial assistance award.
 

Notice of Federal Funding Page 64 of 64

296



CM Hall's City Council Report, 9/30 - 10/15, 2023 

 

9/30/23: Attended Art Installation Ceremony at Don & Ann Davis Park 

10/2/23: City Council Work Session  

10/2/23: City Council Meeting 

10/9/23: Attended Welcome Remarks at Oregon Airport Managers Association conference 

10/10/23: Joint Meeting of Parks and Bike/Ped Committees 

10/12/23: League of Oregon Cities Conference 

Attended Sessions:  

Building a Successful Organization By Building Healthy Relationships 

Unhoused Shelter and Affordable Housing Tour 

Welcome & Keynote - Bill Strickland 

 

10/12/23: Attended dinner with City Council members and staff 

10/13/23: League of Oregon Cities Conference 

Attended Sessions:  

Creating Inclusive and Deliberative Local Democracies 

Increasing Community & Civic Engagement in Both Urban and Rural Areas 

Women’s Caucus Business Meeting 

Council Compensation:  “You Make How Much?” 

Making Equity Stick: City Charter Revisions and Other Systemic Changes 

Top Three Legal Issues Facing Cities 

10/14/23: League of Oregon Cities Conference 

Attended Session:  

Addressing Oregon’s Homeless Crisis – Where Are We? 

 

297


	City Council Agenda
	2018-8219 - City Council Oath of Office.pdf
	2018-8282 - PROCLAMATION.pdf
	2018-8245 - Staff Report Great Oregon ShakeOut 10.19.23.pdf
	2018-8245 - City Manager's Report 
	2018-8243 - City Manager's Report 
	2018-8243 - Staff Report for LAC Board Recommendation_High School Student Representative.pdf
	2018-8243 - Hazdra Library Board Application.pdf
	2018-8301 - 05-01-2023 City Council Work Session Minutes-final.pdf
	2018-8301 - 09-05-2023 City Council Work Session Minutes-final.pdf
	2018-8301 - 09-18-2023 City Council Work Session Minutes-Final.pdf
	2018-8301 - 09-25-2023 City Council Work Session Minutes-Final.pdf
	2018-8301 - 09-25-2023 City Council  Minutes-Final.pdf
	2018-8292 - Park and Rec Committee Minutes 4-5-23 FINAL.pdf
	2018-8292 - Park and Rec Committee Minutes 5-3-23 FINAL.pdf
	2018-8292 - Park and Rec Committee Minutes 7-13-23 FINAL.pdf
	2018-8292 - Park and Rec Committee Minutes 8-9-23 FINAL.pdf
	2018-8205 - City Manager's Report 
	2018-8205 - Staff Report.pdf
	2018-8205 - Ordinance No. 2215_draft.pdf
	2018-8205 - Special Parking Area Map.pdf
	2018-8205 - Draft Planning Commission Regular Session Minutes 09-25-2023.pdf
	2018-8205 - Resolution No. 3864.pdf
	2018-8205 - Public Hearing Notice.pdf
	2018-8235 - City Manager's Report 
	2018-8235 - Communication from LCHS.pdf
	2018-8160 - City Manager's Report 
	2018-8291 - City Manager's Report 
	2018-8291 - Res. No. 3996 - Support for Tri County Continuum of Care.pdf
	2018-8294 - City Manager's Report 
	2018-8294 - Staff Report.pdf
	2018-8294 - U24002 Safe Drinking Water Agreement.090523.pdf
	2018-8096 - City Manager's Report 
	2018-8096 - City Manager Executive Recruitment RFP 10-2023.pdf
	2018-8234 - City Manager's Report 
	2018-8234 - Staff Report.pdf
	2018-8234 - Councilor Hall Email Minutes.pdf
	2018-8234 - 12.10.18 CC Mtg Minutes Draft - Florence.pdf
	2018-8234 - Astoria Council Minutes.pdf
	2018-8234 - Baker City Minutes.pdf
	2018-8234 - Cottage Grove Minutes.pdf
	2018-8234 - Independent City Council, July 25, 2023 - Agenda - Pdf.pdf
	2018-8234 - Lincoln City Minutes.pdf
	2018-8234 - Monmouth Minutes.pdf
	2018-8234 - Stayton August 7 2023 Work Session Minutes (1).pdf
	2018-8234 - Stayton August 21 2023 Minutes.pdf
	2018-8234 - Sweet Home Minutes.pdf
	2018-8234 - David Allen e-mail - ORS 192.650.pdf
	2018-8159 - City Manager's Report 
	2018-8159 - Climate Study.pdf
	2018-8159 - Working Draft Climate Plan.pdf
	2018-8290 - City Manager's Report 
	2018-8128 - City Manager's Report 
	2018-8128 - Staff Report.pdf
	2018-8128 - Sustainable NW Letter of Intent.pdf
	2018-8128 - NOAA Notice of Funding Opportunity.pdf
	2018-8295 - CM Hall Report.pdf



